Page 1 of 9

San Pasqual Valley Unified School District

BOARD OF TRUSTEES
REGULAR BOARD MEETING AGENDA
January 13, 2026 5:30 PM ~
MS/HS Library

PUBLIC INSPECTION OF DOCUMENTS AVAILABLE AT:

DISTRICT OFFICE

676 BASELINE RD, WINTERHAVEN, CA 92283 *

REQUEST FOR DISABILITY-RELATED ACCOMMODATIONS OR MODIFICATIONS TO BE MADE IN .
WRITING TO THE DISTRICT OFFICE 72 HOURS PRIOR TO MEETING

Meetings of the San Pasqual Valley School Board shall be held in-person and teleconference. Trustees of San
Pasqual Vailey School Board can participate in this meeting in-person or teleconference. The Public may view r
this meeting by actessing zoom link below. If this public wish to be heard on items, they must participate in-

person, Zoom link is view only for the public,

Join Zoom Meeting

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/8§7522202613 2pwd=e ThNZHNDaTQ5SSOWMEUwTUIua096UT09 -
Meeting ID: 875 2220 2613 Passcode: 896292

I. OPENING OF THE MEETING

This meeting was called to order by at ,P.M. This meeting is being
recorded for the purpose of minutes only. Flag Salute )
Roll Call by Secretary
!
Mr. Hartt Here Ms. Owl Here Ms. Delgadillo  Here
Absent Absent Absent
Mr. Derma Here Ms. Dominguez Here Miss Numkena  Here
Absent Absent Student Board Absent
Executive closed session Time:
Motion Second Action
Miss Numkena Aye Ms., Owl Aye Ms. Delgadillo  Aye
. No N No No
' Abstain d Abstain Abstain
Mr. Derma Aye Ms. Dominguez  Aye Mr. Hartt Aye
No No No
Abstain __ ‘ Abstain Abstain

Posted:
Winterhaven & Bard Post Office
Winterhaven & Bard Water District Offics




Page 2 of 9

Reconvene Time:
Motion Second Action __ .
Ms. Owl Aye Ms. Delgadillo  Aye
No No
Abstain Abstain
Mr. Derma Aye Ms. Dominguez Aye _ Mr. Hartt Aye
No No No
Abstain Abstain Abstain

-~

1. Adjustment to the Agenda
The Superintendent may recommend a change in order of agenda items or deletion of items
at this time. '

2. Presentations
a. Student(s) of the Month
A. Elementary School: Daphnie Roosevelt and Joziah McNeely
B. Middle School: Jiya Cachora
b. Associated Student Body
c. Joint Impact Aid Report — Mr. Cordero

"3. Public Comments ]

~

Comments shall be limited to three minutes per person and twenty minutes for all
comments, per topic, unless the board president, subject to the approval of the
Governing Board, sets different time limits

a) Are there any members of the public to be heard on items not appearing on agenda
that are within the jurisdiction of the District?

b) Are there any members of the public to be heard on items appearing on the agenda?
’t.
¢) Are there any members of the public or parents/guardians of Indian children to be
heard on equal participation in educational programs provided by the district.

*Persons who have complaints against Board members or District staff are encouraged to seek
resolution to those complaints by using the San Pasqual Valley Unified School District written
complaint procedures before orally addressing them at a meeting. The Board will not respond to such
complaints until the applicable complaint procedure (BP/AR 1312.1) has been followed and has
reached the Board level. Where a complaint concerns a District employee identifiable by name,
position, or other facts, the Board cannot respond until proper written notice has been given to the
employee pursuant to Government Code Section 54957.

Posted:
Wirderhaven & Bard Post Office
Winlerhaven & Bard Water Distict Office




. Page 3 of 9

II. CONSENT AGENDA -

All items under the Consent Agenda are considered to be of a routine nature and are acted
with one motion. Any recommendation may be removed from the Consent Agenda at the
request of any board member and placed under Discussion/Action.

1. The Superintendent recommends approval of the December 9, 2025 Board Minutes,

2. The Superintendent recommends approval of the December 17, 2025 Board Minutes.

3. The Superintendent recommends ratification of the December warrants in the amount of
$784,221.37

4. The Superintendent recommends the hiring of

Alyssa Gutierrez as Pre K Clerk

Rosa Gonzalez as SpEd paraprofessional with Maria Perez as alternate ' .

Vianna Zamudio as a Substitute Teacher

The Superintendent recommends approval of Classified and Certificated Seniority Lists

6. The Superintendent recommends acceptance of donations to Strong Hearts from the +
Quechan Tribe in the amount of $500 to help cover costs of the light parade

7. The Superintendent recommends acceptance of donations to Strong Hearts from Quechan

Police Department (Quechan Tribe) in the amount of $300 for Holiday Season

The Superintendent recommends acceptation of donations to.the SPVHS Basketball Team

The Superintendent recommends ratlﬁcatxon of Field Trip: Arizona First Lego League

Explore Festival.in Phoenix. AZ on January 10 2026 with Ms. Arredondo and Robotlcs

Club Students

10. The Superintendent recommends acceptance of FFA club donation from T & P Farms in the
amount of $5,000 to help cover the cost of the loans for students’ animals

11. The Superintendent recommends acceptance of FFA club donation from IVORP
Community Foundation in the amount of $1,000 for various events and animal care in
preparation of the fair ;

12, The Superintendent recommends. approval of surplus items for auction sale, date to be
determined

13. The Superintendent recommends approval Travel/Training: San Pasqual Valley High
School Principal to WASC Accreditation Committee in San Diego from 3/15/26-3/18/26

14. The Superintendent recommends the acceptation of Resignation from Sarah Jeffers,
Certificated Staff member Effective January 6, 2026 )

15. Con App Executive Summary Winter Data Collection :

hd

RS

¥

Motion Second Action
Miss Numkena Aye Ms. Owl Aye Ms. Delgadillo - Aye
No No . No
. . Abstain Abstain Abstain
Mr..Derma Aye Ms. Dominguez  Aye Mr, Hartt Aye
No No No .
Abstain ; Abstain Abstain

III. MONTHLY REPORTS
1. San Pasqual Teacher Association (SPTA) — Ms. Amanda Beck
2. California School Employees Association (CSEA) — Ms. Adina Alvarez -

Posted:
Winterhaven & Bard Post Office
Winterhaven & Bard Water District Office




IV.

V.

Page 4 of 9

3. Principals’ reports
e Elementary -- Ms. Tamy Durham
e Middle School — Ms. Erin Grande
e High School — Ms. Anastasia Noriega
4, Business Services - Ms. Kish Curtis
5. Superintendent -~ Mr. Richard Cordero
6. Board

INFORMATION ITEMS

All items under the Information agenda-are for informational purposes only and not action
items. Any recommendation may be removed from the Information Agenda at the request of
any board member and placed under Discussion/Action.

1. Enrollment December:

Elementary 242
Pre School 8
Middle School 109
High School 177
Bill Manes 12
Total 548 .

2. Counselor Induction Program Ana Noriega and Alba Tudor ICOE 12/16/25

3. Field Trip: ELOP Main Street Cinema 1/24/2026

4. Fine Motor and Sensory Skills Alysha Miller, Larissa Bouts and Kerri Dornstadter ICOE
1/23/26

5. Tield Trip: 12/4/2025 Strong Hearts to Quechan Tribal Headquarters to observe official
tribal council meeting

6. Field Trip: Ag Teacher to travel to Imperial High School to assist with fair requirement for a
pig. Students will view the fair requirement for male pigs.

7. Updated Advisors Log for 25-26 School Year )

DISCUSSION/ACTION ITEMS

1

If the board chooses, Items 1-8 can be approved with one motion, second and action. These
were presented as first read at the December board meeting

1. The Superintendent recommends approval of CSBA Recominend policies and procedures
Section 1000: Policy 1000 Concepts and Roles, Policy/Administrative Regulation 1114
District-Sponsored Social Media ,

Motion Second Action
Miss Numkena Aye Ms. Owl Aye Ms. Delgadillo  Aye
No No No
Abstain Abstain Abstain
Mr. Perma Aye Ms. Dominguez  Aye Mr. Hartt Aye
No No ' No
Abstain Abstain 1 Abstain

A

Posted:
Winterhaven & Bard Post Office
Winterhaven & Bard Water District Office




Page 5 of 9

1

2. The Superintendent recommends approval of CSBA Recommend policies and procedures
Section 2000: Policy 2120 Superintendent Recruitement and Selection,

Motion Second Action
Miss Numkena Aye  Ms.Owl Aye_ Ms. Delgadillo Aye
No _ No _ No
«  Abstain Abstain Abstain
Mr. Derma Aye  Ms.Dominguez Aye  Mr. Hartt Aye
No No No __
Abstain ____ Abstain Abstain

1

3. The Superintendent recommends approval of CSBA Recommend policies and procedures

Section 3000: Administrative Regulation 3311.3 Design-Build Contracts, 3470 Debt
Issuance and Management,

Motion Second Action : )
Miss Numkena Aye  Ms.Owl Aye_ ~ Ms.Delgadillo Aye
No No _ No _
Abstain Abstain Abstain
. Mr. Derma Aye_~ Ms.Dominguez Aye  Mr. Hartt Aye
No _ No - No
Abstain Abstain Abstain

4, The Superintendent recommends approval of CSBA Recommend policies and procedures -
Section 4000: Policy 4000 Concept and Roles, -

Motion Second Action
Miss Numkena Aye  Ms., Owl Aye_ Ms. Delgadillo Aye
No No No
Abstain Abstain Abstain
Mr. Derma Aye _ Ms.Dominguez Aye_  Mr. Hartt Aye
No No No
Abstain Abstain Abstain

Posted:
Winterhaven & Bard Post Office
Winterhaven & Bard Water District Office




Page 6 of 9

5. The Superintendent recommends approval of CSBA Recommend policies and procedures
Section 5000: Policy 5000 Concept and Roles, Policy/Administrative Regulation 5020
Parent Rights and Responsibilities, Policy/Administrative Regulation 5117 Interdistrict
Attendance, 5138 Conflict Resolution/Peer Mediation,

Motion Second Action
Miss Numkena Aye  Ms. Owl Aye  Ms. Delgadillo Aye
No No No
Abstain Abstain Abstain
Mr. Derma Aye  Ms.Dominguez Aye_  Mr, Hartt Aye
No - No No
Abstain ___ © Abstain Abstain

6. The Superintendent recommends approval of CSBA Recommend policies and procedures
Section 6000: Board Policy/Administrative Regulation 6020 Parent Involvement, Board
Policy/Administrative Regulation 6143 Courses of Study, Board Policy/Administrative
Regulation/Exhibit 6146.2 Certificate of Proficiency/High School Equivalency

Motion Second Action
Miss Numkena Aye  Ms Owl Aye  Ms. Delgadillo Aye_
No No __ No -~
Abstain Abstain Abstain ____
Mr. Derma Aye  Ms.Dominguez Aye_ Mr. Hartt Aye
No No No
Abstain Abstain Abstain

7. The Superintendent recommends approval of CSBA Recommend policies and procedures
Section 7000 Board Policy*7000 Concepts and Roles and Board Policy 7131 Relations with
Local Agencies

Motion Second Action

Miss Numkena Aye  Ms.Owl Aye  Ms. Delgadillo Aye_
No No No

Abstain _ Abstain Abstain

]

Mr. Derma Aye  Ms.Dominguezz Aye  Mr. Harit Aye
No No _ No

Abstain Abstain > Abstain

Posted:
Wintechaven & Bard Post Office
Winterhaven & Bard Water District Cffice




Page 7 of 9

8. The Superintendent recommends approval of CSBA Recommend policies and procedures
Section 9000 Board Bylaw 9310 — Board Policy and Board Bylaw/Exhibits 9321 — Closed

Session
Motion Second Action )
Miss Numkena Aye Ms. Owl Aye Ms. Delgadillo  Aye
No No No
Abstain Abstain Abstain
Mr. Derma Aye Ms. Dominguez  Aye Mr. Hartt Aye
. No No No -
Abstain Abstain Abstain

”

9. The Superintendent recommends the board to determine monthly compensation of up to
$600 per month per board member and percentage of annual increase.

Motion Second Action ’
Miss Numkena Aye Ms. Owl Aye Ms. Delgadillo  Aye
No No No
Abstain Abstain _ Abstain
Mr. Derma Aye Ms. Dominguez  Aye Mr. Hartt Aye |
No No No
Abstain Abstain Abstain

10. The Superintendent recommends approval Letter of Agreement to engage SitelogIQ for the

development of facility improvements, energy conservation measures, renewable energy solutions,
and energy management services

Motion Second Action
Miss Numkena Aye  Ms, Owl Aye_ Ms.Delgadillo Aye
No __ No _ No
- Abstain Abstain Abstain
Mr, Derma Aye  Ms.Dominguez Aye  Mr. Hartt Aye
No ' No No _
Abstain . Abstain _____ Abstain

11. The Superintendent recommends approval of Board Member Compensation for Members
Absent During Board Meetings in January

Motion Second ~~ Action
Miss Numkena Aye Ms. Owl AT Ms. Delgadilio ©  Aye
No No ) No
Abstain Abstain . Abstain
Mr. Derma Aye Ms. Dominguez  Aye Mr. Hartt Aye
No No No
Abstain Abstain ' Abstain
Posted:
Winterhaven & Bard Post Office

Winterhaven & Bard Water District Office




Page 8 of 9

VI. ITEMS FOR FUTURE AGENDA '

1. 2.
3. ' 4. .
VII. CLOSED SESSION Time: P.M.
Motion Second Action
Miss Numkena Aye Ms. Owl Aye Ms. Delgadillo  Aye
No No No
‘ Abstain Abstain Abstain
Mr. Derma Aye Ms. Dominguez  Aye Mr, Hartt Aye
No No No
Abstain Abstain Abstain

1. CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATOR (Superintendent) — Pursuant to
Government Code 54957.6 }
2. STUDENT MATTERS - Pursuant to Education Code 48918
a. Readmission Student ID JH6000931
3. -PERSONNEL MATTERS — Pursuant to Government Code 54957
a. Certificated .
+ b. Classified
4, PENDING LITIGATION — Pursuant to Government Code 54956.9
5. PUBLIC EMPLOYEE PERFORMANCE EVALUATION — Pursuant to Government
Code 54957 T
a. Superintendent Evaluation ‘

RECONVENE Time: P.M.
Motion Second . Action
Ms, Owl Aye Ms. Delgadillo  Aye
No No
Abstain Abstain
Mr. Derma Aye Ms, Dominguez ~ Aye Mr. Hartt Aye
No No ) No
Abstain Abstain Abstain

During the Executive Session of the Regular Board Meeting on December 9, 2025, the
Board took the following reportable action:

1. CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATOR (Superintendent)x—‘ Pursuant to
Government Code 54957.6 v
2. STUDENT MATTERS - Pursuant to Education Code 48918
b. Readmission Student ID JH6000931
Posted:

Winteshaven & Bard Post Office
Winterhaven & Bard Water District Offica
\




Page 9 of 9

3. PERSONNEL MATTERS — Pursuant to Government Code 54957
a. Certificated
b. Classified
PENDING LITIGATION — Pursuant to Government Code 54956.9
PUBLIC EMPLOYEE PERFORMANCE EVALUATION — Pursuant to Government
Code 54957
a. Superintendent Evaluation

b

VIII. ADJOURNMENT Time: P.M.
Motion Second Action

Ms. Owl Aye . Ms. Delgadillo  Aye
No No

Abstain Abstain

Mr. Derma Aye Ms. Dominguez ~ Aye Mr. Hartt Aye -

No No No

Abstain Abstain Abstain

Next regular board meeting is scheduled for Tuesday, February 10, 2026 5:30 P. M
in the Middle/High School Library or via zoom if necessary.

!

Posted:
Winterhaven & Bard Post Office
Winterhaven & Bard Water District Office




Page 1 of 6

»

) San Pasqual Valley Unified School District

BOARD OF TRUSTEES
REGULAR BOARD MEETING AGENDA
December 9, 2025 5:30 PM

. MS/HS Library

PUBLIC INSPECTION OF DOCUMENTS AVAILABLE AT:

DISTRICT OFFICE

676 BASELINE RD, WINTERHAVEN, CA 92283

REQUEST FOR DISABILITY-RELATED ACCOMMODATIONS OR MODIFICATIONS TO BE MADE IN
WRITING TO THE DISTRICT OFFICE 72 HOURS PRIOR TO MEETING

Meetings of the San Pasqual Valley School Board shall be held in-person and teleconference. ‘Frustees of San
Pasqual Valley School Board can participate in this meeting in-person or teleconference. The Public may view
this meeting by accessing zoom link below. If this public wish to be heard on items, they must participate in-
person. Zoom link is view only for the public.

Join Zoom Meeting

https:/fus02web.zoom.us/j/87522202613pwd=e ThANZHNDaTQ5SS9WMEUwTUlua096 UT09

Meeting ID: §75 2220 2613 Passcode: 896292

I. OPENING OF THE MEETING

This meeting was called to order by Mr. Hartt at 5:30 pm. This meeting is being recorded
for the purpose of minutes only. Flag Salute

Roll Call by Secretary '
Mr. Hartt " Herev -Mr. Derma Here v' arrived  Ms. Dominguez  Here v
at 5:31
Ms. Delgadillo  Here v/ Ms. Owl Here v/ Miss Numkena  Here v
arrived at !
g 5:33
Executive closed session Time: 5:32 PM

Ms. Owl made a motion to move in to executive closed session; Ms. Dominguez seconded.
Motion carried unanimously.

¥

-

Reconvene Time: 5:59 PM
Mr. Derma made a motion to reconvene into open sesston; Ms. Owl seconded. Motion
carried unanimously.

1. Adjustment to the Agenda
The Superintendent may recommend a change in order of agenda items or deletion of items
at this time. Mr. Cordero removed II1.5 and VII.2a.

Approve 1.13.26




SAN PASQUAL VALLEY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

Joint Impact Aid Committee Report
2025-2026
(Data from multiple years)

District Committee Members.:

Karen Aguilar, Guidance and Family Coordinator
Adina Alvarez, Community Liaison
Rigel Dominguez, Licensed Therapist
Veronica Gallardo, Attendance Clerk
Tamy Durham, Elementary Principal
Erin Grande, Middle School Principal
Kelley Hotel, Attendance Clerk
Richard Cordero, Superintendent
Rosa Meraz, Middle School Counselor
Cyndee Miller, American Indian Program Coordinator
Jeanette Montgomery, Elementary School Counselor
Johna Meek, Special Education Director
Anastasia Noriega, High School Principal
Alba Tudor, Counselor

Public Hearing Date for input: 12/9/2025



SPVUSD Board Presentation Date: 1/13/2026

Table of Contents

Pages 3-4
Page 5
Page 6
Page 7
Page 8-9
Page 10-11
Page 11-12
Page 12-13
Pages 14-15
Page 15
Page 16-17
Page 18
Pages 19
Page 19-21
Page 21
Page 21-22
Page 22-23
Page 23-26
Page 26-27

Pages 27-29

Purpose of Report

Enrollment

LCAP Goals

District Level Data

Chronic Absenteeism by Sub-Group

School Attendance Review Board (SARB)

CAASPP Achievement Data, English

CAASPP Achievement Data, Math

CAST Achievement Data, Science

Suspension Rates

School Specific Data

Chronic Absenteeism and Suspensions

Bill Manes Enrollment 83

Special Education

High School Senior Scholarship Recipients

San Pasqual Valley High School, College and Career Information
San Pasqual Valley High School, Post Graduation Plan
Counselors, Social Emotional and Mental Health Support Data
Mental Health Support and Services

Impact Aid General Budget



PURPOSE OF REPORT

This report is developed by the San Pasqual Valley Unified School District Impact
Aid Committee that has representation from certificated staff, classified staff,
administration, and the School Board. The information is shared with the Quechan Tribe
and feedback was requested through the District Indian Parent Advisory Committee and
conversations with the Quechan Indian Tribe to be in compliance with Board Policy 1270
Indian Policies and Procedures (IPP 's).

This report provides information on the achievement of American Indian or Alaska
Native students in relationship to other student populations that are served in the district.
Information that is contained in this report meets the Memorandum of Understanding
(MOU) between San Pasqual Valley Unified School District Board of Trustees and the
Quechan Indian Tribe by addressing the areas of measurement as listed in the MOU that
was established in 1996.

Introduction

San Pasqual Valley Unified School District applies for and receives Impact Aid
funds, in accordance with Public Law 107-110. Impact Aid is designed to assist local
school districts who have lost property tax revenue due to the presence of tax-exempt
Federal property or have experienced increased expenditures due to the enrollment of
federally connected children. San Pasqual Valley Unified School District includes within
their boundaries, parcels of land owned by the Federal Government or that have been
removed from the local tax rolls by the Federal Government, including Indian lands.

San Pasqual Valley Unified School District will receive $4,100,000 (current
estimate) in Impact Aid funds for the 2025-26 school year, based primarily on the number
of children residing on Indian lands and other federal properties such as Bureau of Land
Management (BLM), Imperial Irrigation District (IID), or anyone working on federal
property such as Yuma Proving Grounds (YPG). Impact Aid funds are utilized for a wide
variety of expenses, including the salaries of teachers; paraprofessionals; materials and
supplies; equipment; after school enrichment and core programs, tutoring; advanced
placement classes or community college courses; and additional costs for students with

special needs.



District Overview

In California schools administer the Smarter Balanced Summative Assessments in
English language arts/literacy (ELA) and mathematics in grades three through eight and
eleven. Also, California is administering the California Alternate Assessments in ELA
and mathematics to students with significant cognitive disabilities in grades three through
eight and eleven (students whose Individualized Education Program [IEP] designates the
use of an alternate assessment). Most recently, schools in California are administering the
CAST (California Science Test) in grades 5, 8, and once in high school. There is also an

alternative assessment for those students with significant cognitive disabilities. STAR

has been used, since 2022-2024, from third grade through twelfth grade as a consistent
measure of student achievement. Using the same test measure will allow SPVUSD to
calibrate instruction, support, and provide interventions across the district.

Based on the Local Control Funding Formula (LCFF), which was passed in 2013,
California has an accountability system that is based on multiple measures. These
measures are used to determine local educational agency (LEA) and school progress
toward meeting the needs of their students. The measures are based on factors that
contribute to a quality education, including high school graduation rates, college/career
readiness, student test scores, English learner (EL) progress, suspension rates, and parent

engagement. These measures are reported on the California School Dashboard.

DATA SOURCES

deeper into district data:

California Dashboard: https://www.caschooldashboard.org/

Ed-Data: http://www.ed-data.org/

Tableau Public: https://public.tableau.com/app/profile/rcoe/viz/CaliforniaK -
12Indicators/CAK-12Indicators

These websites have current data and allow educational partners to look for trends and
progress in SPVUSD and around the state.

The State of California and the California Department of Education (CDE) utilize several data
sources to identify district, school, and student progress. One of these sources is the California
Dashboard. SPVUSD encourages educational partners to review the following links to dive




ENROLLMENT

California Dashboard

CASchoolDashboard.org
SPVUSD | Enrollment S‘gz::sz:zgg:;ly Iil;glnizl:s 1;(:)8‘::;11‘ Airrlle(:;;c:lm E{i{
s | i | o | o | o
m | ® | e | aw | w | e | oas
m | @ | e | | o | e | e

The District continues to focus on the elements necessary for student mastery of content
standards and recognizes the need for:

Targeted intervention based on data (e.g. STAR, IXL, CAASPP, IA’s, FIAB’s=)
Alignment to the California Standards

Improvement of Instructional Strategies and Materials (training by ICOE)
Collaboration and analysis of data

Extended Learning Times (Extended day Summer School, SEL Camp, tutoring)
Increased Educational Opportunities (College classes, CTE pathway development)
Positive, nurturing, safe school environment (Teaching and training in SEL)
Involvement of all stakeholders (Parents as partners in education)

Addressing the whole child, Social Emotional Learning (SEL)

Addressing the needs of the parents and community (Parent workshops)
Partnership with ICOE in the area of providing professional development for all staff.

Standards Aligned Textbooks:

College and Career Readiness Skills

e Distribution of textbooks and/or devices to access curriculum
e Focus on social emotional health

e Health curriculum

Local Control and Accountability Plan (LCAP)
The LCAP is a three-year plan that describes the goals, actions, services, and expenditures
to support positive student outcomes that address state and local priorities. The LCAP
provides an opportunity for local educational agencies (LEAs/districts) to share their how,
what, and why programs and services are selected to meet their local needs.

5




Goals must be developed by school districts based on the eight state priorities:

1. Basic Conditions 5. Pupil Engagement

2. State Standards 6. School Climate

3. Parent Involvement 7. Course Access

4. Pupil Achievement 8. Other Pupil Outcomes

LCAP Goals 2025-2026:

Goal 1: By June 2026, San Pasqual Valley Unified School District will reduce chronic
absenteeism by at least 10 percentage points overall and by at least 15 percentage points for
American Indian, Homeless, and Students with Disabilities, while increasing the percentage of
students who report feeling safe at school to 90% or higher across all grade spans. In addition, the
district will reduce suspension rates by 30% districtwide and eliminate Red Dashboard
designations in Priority 6 subgroups through site-based SEL programming, consistent attendance
monitoring, student incentives, re-engagement protocols, and equity-focused family outreach.

Goal 2: By June 2026, San Pasqual Valley Unified School District will increase educational
partner engagement in decision-making by ensuring at least 70% of families report feeling
informed and involved in school decisions, and will double participation in parent advisory
committees across all sites. The district will also increase participation in family workshops
focused on social-emotional learning, college and career planning, and school systems navigation
by 25% annually, with special outreach to families of English Learners, American Indian students,
and those experiencing homelessness.

Goal 3: By June 2026, San Pasqual Valley Unified School District will increase the percentage of
students meeting or exceeding standards on state assessments in ELA and Math by at least 10
percentage points overall and by 15 percentage points for American Indian, SED, SWD, and
Homeless student groups. The district will also increase the College/Career Indicator (CCI)
“Prepared” rate to at least 55%, ensure 90% of seniors graduate on time, and expand dual
enrollment, CTE, and Seal of Biliteracy opportunities so that at least 25% of graduates meet both
A-G and CTE completion requirements.

Goal 4: By June 2027, San Pasqual Valley USD will increase the percentage of students
graduating from Bill Manes High School to at least 80%, with a particular focus on increasing
credit recovery and on-time graduation rates among low-income and English Learner (EL)
students. The district will implement and monitor targeted interventions, including expanded credit
recovery programs and individualized graduation plans, and will track progress through monthly
transcript audits, semester credit recovery completions, and annual graduation rates disaggregated
by student groups.

SPVUSD created a single goal for the Equity Multiplier for Bill Manes focused on
increased graduation rates at the alternative education site. The addition of a multiple
subject teacher to be on-site during the day will allow consistency of programming for
students. This will benefit students by having a teacher who can focus on credit recovery
coursework at the 9th grade level as many alternative education students have credit
deficiencies from their freshman year of high school. This teacher will also monitor and
encourage students to follow their individualized education/graduation plan with frequent
conversations, updates, and edits as required.

References to the California Dashboard are based on information available and
released by the State of California.



DISTRICT LEVEL DATA

Graduation Rates # of Graduates
Student Groups
High School Bill Manes
2025 2024 2023 2025 2024 2023

All Students 86% 86.40% 79.50% 2 2 2
English Learners 93.30% 91.70% 81.80% -
Socioeconomically 87.20% | 85.70% | 79.10% -
Disadvantaged

Students with Disabilities 78.60% -- -

Hispanic or Latino 93.30% 90% 88.90% --
American Indian 80.00% 81% 66.70% --

Summary :

¢ Bill Manes graduation rate has decreased due to our efforts to move students back
to the high school environment. The reduced number of students at Bill Manes
also creates a situation where there are not always seniors in the school.

SPVUSD American Indian Graduation Rates, Average for District
Year Rate Year Rate
2011 87.5% 2019 72.7%
2012 71.4% 2020 61.3%
2013 57.1% 2021 74.1%
2014 50% 2022 60.9%
2015 53.9% 2023 66.7%
2016 90% 2024 81.0%
2017 50% 2025 80.0%
2018 02.5% I
Summary:

e American Indian Graduation Rates fluctuate each year without a clear pattern.
e Based on other Student Groups, chronic absenteeism may be a factor in graduation.



When Students are absent, they are not learning.

Chronic Absenteeism Rates by Sub-Group

Student Groups District Rates
2025 2024 2023 2022 2021
All Students 36.8% | 33.30% | 43.50% | 31.50% | 0.20%
English Learners 22.7% | 29.80% | 39.20% | 27.80% 0
Migrant Education -- -- -- 23.10% 0
Homeless Youth -- 52.20% | 62.50% | 47.10% 0
Foster Youth -- -- -- -- --
Socioeconomically Disadvantaged 36.6% | 34.80% | 44.50% | 32.30% | 0.20%
Students with Disabilities 41.5% | 38.10% [ 50.60% | 33.60% | 0.80%
Two or more Races -- 40% -- 21.70% 0
White -- 0% -- 27.80% 0
Hispanic or Latino 33.2% | 32.60% 40% 27.20% 0
American Indian 41.2% 36% 47.70% | 36.90% | 0.30%
Summary:

e Chronic Absenteeism rates, in 2025, were 33.2% for Hispanic students and
41.2% for American Indian youth.

e American Indian students are more likely to be chronically absent by 5.6%
over all students. The only subgroup with a high chronic absenteeism rate is
Students with Disabilities.

e There is a correlation between absenteeism and academic achievement.

SPVUSD American Indian Chronic Absenteeism Rates

Year Rate Year Rate

2017 25.6% 2022 36.9%

2018 23.3% 2023 47.7%

2019 22.9% 2024 36.0%

2020 COVID 2025 41.2 %

2021 COVID 3% ! |

Summary:
e The 2025 data showed an increase of 5.2% of Native youth chronically absent
based on dashboard data.

TRUANCY: Counts only unexcused absences. Emphasizes compliance with
school rules. Relies on legal and administrative solutions.



CHRONIC ABSENCE: Counts all absences, excused, unexcused, and
suspensions. Emphasizes academic impact of missed days. Uses community-

based, positive

strategies.

Chronic Absenteeism Rates by School Site

School Site 2024-25 2023-24 2022-23 2021-22 2021
District, All 36.80% 33.30% 43.50% 31.50% 0.20%
Students
Elementary 37.30% 35.80% 51.60% 43.10% 0.40%
Middle School 35.90% 28.70% 29.30% 24.90% 0%
The state does not track chronic absenteeism for high school aged students.
Summary:
e SPVUSD saw a slight increase in the Chronic Absenteeism Rate from
2023-24 and the 2024-25 school year.
Daily Attendance Averages Over 3 years
School Site 2025 2024 2023
Elementary 90.00% 91.00% 87.00%
Middle School 86.88% 88.90% 92.00%
High School 88.51% 91.21% 93.00%
SPVUSD American Indian Rate Comparisons DISTRICTWIDE
Absenteeism CAASPP CAASPP CAASPP
Year English Math Science Graduation Rate
Rate . . B
Proficiency | Proficiency | Proficiency

2019 22.90% 29.40% 13.10% 11.10% 72.70%

2020 COVID, Unavailable 61.30%

2021 COVID, .3% 12.10% 3.50% 1.90% 74.10%

2022 36.90% 28.30% 5.50% 10.60% 60.90%

2023 47.70% 26.32% 6.16% 11.76% 66.70%

2024 36% 21.52% 5.10% 6.17% 78.30%

2025 41.20% 22.30% 3.85% 8.57% 72.711%
Summary :

e Looking at district absenteeism and CAASPP level data American Indian

students increased their absenteeism rate by 5.2%, increased their CAASPP rate
in ELA and Science, however decreased their proficiency rate in Math.

9




School Attendance Review Board (SARB)

California requires everyone between the ages of six and eighteen to attend school. The
exception is if the students have passed the California High School Proficiency Exam or
graduated from high school.
Students who violate these education laws and have a pattern of unexcused absences are
put through the School Attendance Review Board (SARB). The idea is to keep students in
school and provide them with the resources to be successful. However, SARBs do have
the power to refer students and their parents/guardians to court.

TRUANCY: Counts only unexcused absences. Emphasizes compliance with
school rules. Relies on legal and administrative solutions.

CHRONIC ABSENCE: Counts for all absences, excused, unexcused, and

suspensions. Emphasizes academic impact of missed days. Uses community-

based, positive strategies.

Population Served by SARB 2024-2025
Number of
Grade Level éijadi:::ily:a??)s;fa Number of Chronic Stu::r::: '\::h%f are S:g?:%%?gg?d
System Enrollment Absentees (1) Chronic é;)sentees
Meeting (3)
K 37 18 48% 0
1 34 12 36% 6
2 41 12 30% 8
3 38 12 29% 7
4 48 15 30% 5
5 46 36 78% 4
6 39 9 22% 16
7 33 20 57% 24
8 47 12 24% 23
9 52 21 44% 18
10 29 13 36% 13
11 51 14 28% 18
12 45 12 29% 15
Alt Ed 15 10 67% 14
Grand Total 555 216 40% 171

10




Attendance Review Board (SARB) 2024-25

School Site # of Native Students
Elementary 65
Middle 25
CDS 0
High School 34
Bill Manes 9

The California Student Progress
System consists of assessments:

Smarter Balanced English language arts/literacy (ELA) and mathematics California Alternate
Assessments for ELA, mathematics, and science California Science Test (CAST)

Assessment of Performance and (CAASPP)

the following

CAASPP Standard Met or Exceeded Rate: English Language Arts
All students in grades three through eight and grade eleven.

Student Groups District Rates

2025 2024 2023 2022
All Students 23.03% 20.78% 23.02% 25.20%
English Learners 10.61% 5.00% 23.64% 9%
Migrant Education -- 7.69% -- 36%
Homeless Youth -- 11.54% 23.81% 7.10%
Foster Youth -- -- -- --
Socioeconomically Disadvantaged 22.84% 18.54% 22.59% 23.60%
Students with Disabilities 5.97% 4.45% 3.70% 0
Two or more Races -- -- 41.70%
White -- -- -- --
Hispanic or Latino 24.00% 16.93% 17.88% 20.70%
American Indian 22.31% 21.52% 26.32% 28.30%
Female 22.00% 22.64% 29.87% 29.70%
Male 24.03% 18.79% 15.33% 19.40%

11




Summary :
e Hispanic or Latinos had the largest gain (7.07) from 2024 to 2025.
o All students, English Learners, Socioeconomically Disadvantage, Students
with Disabilities, Hispanic or Latino, American Indian, and Male students

performed better in 2025.
SPVUSD American Indian
CAASPP Standard Met or Exceeded Rate: English Language Arts
All students in grades three through eight and grade eleven.
Year Rate Year Rate
2015 23% 2021 [2.1%
2016 27% 2022 28.3%
2017 22.9% 2023 26.32%
2018 31.7% 2024 21.52%
2019 29.4% 2025 22.31%
2020 vreeaacwcovn [T
Summary :

e American Indian increase on the ELA CAASPP by 0.79% from 2024 to 2025.

CAASPP Standard Met or Exceeded Rate: Mathematics

Student Groups | District Rates

2025 2024 2023 2022
All Students 6.93% 6.21% 5.61% 7.10%
English Learners 4.62% 5.08% 1.82% 1.50%
Migrant Education -- -- -- 20%
Homeless Youth -- 0% 9.10% 0
Foster Youth -- -- -- --
Socioeconomically Disadvantaged 6.25% 5.29% 5.28% 6.80%
Students with Disabilities -- 1.47% 0 0
Two or more Races -- -- -- 8.30%
White -- -- -- --
Hispanic or Latino 8.72% 6.21% 4.10% 8.60%
American Indian 3.85% 5.09% 6.16% 5.50%
Female 2.01% 4.73% 5.96% 7.80%
Male 11.69% 8.11% 5.23% 6.30%

12



Summary :

e American Indian children performed lower by 1.24% from the previous year.

e Four student groups slightly increased in performance over 2024.

SPVUSD American Indian

CAASPP Standard Met or Exceeded Rate: Mathematics

Students in grades three through eight and grade eleven
Year Rate Year Rate
2015 8% 2021 3.5%
2016 8% 2022 5.5%
2017 10.4% 2023 6.16%
2018 14.3% 2024 5.09%
2019 13.1% 2025 3.85%
2020 Not Recorded due to COVID. ;

Summary:

e Students are fluctuating in performance from year to year.
e Native American student decreased by 1.24%

e Only 11" grade is tested at the high school, so it is not a true growth
comparison from year to year.

13



California Science Test (CAST) Standard Met or Exceeded

Student Groups District Rates

2025 2024 2023 2022
All Students 6.52% 7.69% 8.26% 7.20%
English Learners 2.56% 2.44% 0 0
Migrant Education -- -- -- 8.30%
Homeless Youth -- 7.14% -- --
Foster Youth -- -- -- --
Socioeconomically Disadvantaged 6.90% 6.54% 8.91% 7.30%
Students with Disabilities 0 2.94% 0 0
Two or more Races -- -- -- --
White -- -- -- --
Hispanic or Latino 5.15% 6.67% 6.38% 5%
American Indian 8.57% 6.17% 11.76% 10.60%
Female 7.23% 9.38% 9.43% 7.10%
Male 5.94% 5.48% 7.14% 7.30%

Summary:

e Females are outperforming males in science.
e American Indian scores increased. To break the data down by school site, the
rates are as follows:

SPVUSD SCIENCE
California Science Test (CAST) Standard Met or Exceeded

School 2025 2024 2023
District Rate 7.00% 7.69% 8.26%
Elementary 8.89% 17.50% 9.38%
Middle School 2.33% 3.92% 7.50%
High School 9.09% 5.13% 8.33%

Summary:
e (Grade 5: American Indian students had 9.52% Met or Exceed Standard, 61.9%
Nearly Met Standard, 28.57% Standard Not Met
e (Grade 8: American Indian students had 4.55% Met or Exceed Standard, 45.45%
Nearly Met Standard, 50% Standard Not Met
14



e High School: American Indian students had 15.38% Met or Exceed Standard,
84.62% Nearly Met Standard, 0% Standard Not Met

SUSPENSION RATES
SPVUSD
Suspension Rates
District Rates

Student Groups 202425 | 2023-24 | 202223 | 2021-22
All Students 6.70% 8.50% 7.20% 6.90%
English Learners 10.70% 7% 6.40% 6.80%
Migrant Education - - - 2.50%
Homeless Youth 4.30% 13.60% 13% 2.90%
Foster Youth - -- -- --
Socioeconomically Disadvantaged 6.80% 9% 7.50% 7%
Students with Disabilities 5.00% 8.70% 5.30% 10.30%
Two or more Races 7.40% 0% 8.70% 12.50%
White 5.30% 0% 5.90% 5.60%
Hispanic or Latino 7.40% 7.40% 5.90% 5.70%
American Indian 6.10% 10.90% 8.30% 7.70%

Summary :

e Rates went down overall by 1.8%. SPVUSD is attempting restorative practices and

other Social Emotional Learning (SEL) strategies to support the well-being and

growth of students.
SPVUSD American Indian
Suspension Rate
Year Rate Year Rate
2012 26.8% 2019 25.2%
2013 24.4% 2020 7.1%
2014 25.6% 2021 Not recorded. COVID.
2015 20.9% 2022 7.7%
2016 22.3% 2023 8.3%
2017 7.6% 2024 10.9%
2018 7.7% 2025 6.10%
Summary :

e Suspension rates went down for American Indians by 4.8%. SPVUSD is
attempting restorative practices and other Social Emotional Learning (SEL)
strategies to support the well-being and growth of students.

15




SCHOOL SITE SPECIFIC DATA

Graduation Rates

School Site

2024-25

2023-24

2022-23

2021-22

High School

86.00%

86.40%

79.50%

78.70%

Bill M. Manes

Summary:

With the emphasis on high school completion and post-secondary choices, we are
anticipating rising graduation rates as we continue to implement support to guide high school

students.
SPVUSD
College and Career Indicator Preparation Rate
School Site 2024-25 2023-24 2022-23 2022
DISTRICT 30.80% 28.60% 20.40% 13.20%
High School 33.30% 31.80% 25% 13.50%
Summary:

As additional opportunities are created, the College and Career Indicator will continue

to rise.

SPVUSD

College and Career Indicator Preparation Rate by Student Group

Student Group 2025 2024 2023
All Students 30.80% 28.60% 20.40%
English Learners 31.30% 23.10% 16.70%
Migrant Education -- -- --
Homeless Youth -- -- --
Foster Youth -- -- --
Socioeconomically Disadvantaged 28.60% 29.80% 19.20%
Students with Disabilities 14.30% -- --
Two or more Races -- -- --
White -- -- --
Hispanic or Latino 39.00% 27.30% 22.70%
American Indian 28.60% 27.30% 13%

16




SPVUSD English Language Arts
CAASPP Standard Met or Exceeded Rate: ELA

School 2025 2024 2023 2022
District Rate 20.30% 20.78% 23.02% 25.20%
Elementary 19.80% 18.32% 16.38% 16.70%
Middle School 19.30% 19.85% 22.90% 27.20%
High School 36.84% 33.33% 37.50% 40%
Summary: High School increased by 3.51% in ELA over the previous year.
SPVUSD Mathematics
CAASPP Standard Met or Exceeded Rate: Mathematics
School 2025 2024 2023 2022
District Rate 6.93% 6.21% 5.61% 7.10%
Elementary 11.37% 11.45% 6.83% 7%
Middle School 3.00% 1.52% 2.27% 7.50%
High School 3.45% 4.88% 12.12% 7.50%

Summary: Mathematics continues to be a challenge for the entire district. Administration
focuses on student mathematic awareness and helping teachers gain a better understanding
or the rigor that is expected in the California Mathematics Standards.

American Indian
CAASPP Standard Met or Exceeded Rate
School 2025 2024 2023
ELA HS 50.00% 36.80% 41.17%
Math HS 0.00% 5.56% 18.18%
ELA MS 23.00% 21.92% 31.89%
Math MS 0% 0% 2.86%
ELA ES 16.67% 17.46% 12.70%
Math ES 8.34% 11.11% 6.35%

Summary: American Indian students have done better in ELA than in Mathematics. With a
standout 50% meeting or exceeding in high school. Unfortunately, as the rest of the district

subgroups, their mathematics performance continues to be a challenge.

17




CHRONIC ABSENTEEISM and SUSPENSIONS

Educational partners can access that information via
https://www.caschooldashboard.org/

TRUANCY: Counts only unexcused absences. Emphasizes compliance with school rules.
Relies on legal and administrative solutions. CHRONIC ABSENCE: Counts for all
absences, excused, unexcused, and suspensions. Emphasizes academic impact of missed
days. Use community-based, positive strategies. SUSPENSION RATES:

SPVUSD
Chronic Absenteeism
School 2025 2024 2023
District Rate 36.80% 33.30% 43.50%
Elementary 37.30% 35.80% 51.60%
Middle School 35.90% 29.30% 24.90%
High School The State does not track HS chronic absenteeism.

Summary:
Chronic absenteeism impacts achievement. When students are not in school, they are not

learning. SPVUSD has instituted interventions and incentives to encourage positive attendance

in the 2025-2026 and we saw success.

SPVUSD
Suspension Rate

School 2025 2024 2023 | 2022 2021 2020 2019
District Rate | 6.70% 850% | 7.20% | 6.90% | Notavailabie. 630% | 25.90%
Elementary | 2.90% | 3.60% | 630% | 4.40% |COVID 3.90% | 20.70%

Middle 7.50% 830% | 930% | 8.20% 1020% | 39.10%

School
High School | 1130% | 1570% | 5.70% | 8.60% 550% | 25.50%

Summary:

Suspension rates have remained steady. However, the rate did go down in the district and
the three schools. There is an effort to provide social emotional and mental health support
services to mitigate some of the behaviors presented in the school environment. This will
allow SPVUSD to continue to lower the suspension rate

Bill Manes High School Mission and Vision
The mission at Bill M. Manes Alternative High School is to provide a high-quality
standards-based education in an alternative setting from the comprehensive high school so
that a student can improve academic skills and successfully return to graduate from high

school.

18



Bill Manes Enrollment by Ethnicity

Ethnicity 2025 2024 2023 2022 2021
American Indian 71% 69% 76% 82% 60%
Hispanic 29% 15% 18% 6% 16%
White 0% 8% 0% 6% 12%
Two or more 0% 8% 6% 6% 12%

Due to the small number of students who generally participate in standardized testing, Bill Manes does not receive
performance indicators on the California School Dashboard.

SUMMARY: SPVUSD is encouraging students to return to the high school main
campus as the curricular expectations are the same as well as the teachers. Students
attending Bill Manes need to view it as a school to reestablish their focus and goals.

SPECIAL EDUCATION INFORMATION

The breakdown throughout all grade levels and disability categories is as follows:

Number of Students
ST GO 5 2024- | 2023- | 2022- | 2021- | 2020-
2025 2024 2023 2022 2021
Autism 29 18 18 12 11
Deafness - - - - -
Deaf-blindness - - - - -
Emotional Disability 3 2 4 4 5
Hard of Hearing 2 2 1 - -
Intellectual Disabilities 8 5 6 7 7
Multiple Disabilities 1 1 1 1 1
Other Health Impairment 15 8 8 9 6
Orthopedic Impairment - - - - -
Specific Learning Disability 48 51 59 56 63
Speech-Language Impairment 38 40 14 28 30
Traumatic Brain Injury - - - - -
Visual Impairment - - - - -
Total 144 127 111 117 123

19




Number of Students

Special Education Grade Level 2024- 2023- 2022- 2021- 2020-

2025 2024 2023 2022 2021
Pre-Kindergarten - Second 30 12 14 27 27
Third — Fifth 30 28 23 23 30
Sixth — Eighth 38 37 31 31 33
Ninth — Twelfth 46 50 43 36 33
Total 144 127 111 117 123

SPVUSD students with disabilities fluctuates from year to year. Currently, the District has a
Special Education Director, a contracted Speech-Language Pathologist (2) for preK-12 on-
campus students, seven (7) Special Education Teachers, nine (11) Paraprofessionals, and a full-
time School Psychologist.

SPVUSD also works with Quechan Head Start which is located within its geographical
boundaries that are in need of early intervention or special education services to meet
components of the Individuals with Disabilities Education Act (IDEA) that requires SPVUSD to
locate, identify, and evaluate all children with disabilities, aged birth through 21.

SPVUSD also receives Imperial County Office of Education (ICOE) occupational therapy,
transition services, hearing impairment services, behavioral support, visual impairment,
orientation & mobility, early childhood support, and adapted physical education therapy services
to support needs of SPVUSD’s students with disabilities. Students are also referred to Imperial
County Behavioral Health Services 2

(ICBHS), California’s Children Services (CCS), Child Abuse Treatment Program (CHAT), or
any other District, County, and Tribal resources or organizations.

Section 504

Congress enacted Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 as a civil rights statute
designated to prevent discrimination against individuals with disabilities. Section 504 is a federal
law designed to protect the rights of individuals with disabilities in programs and activities that
receive Federal financial assistance from the U.S. Department of Education (ED). Section 504
provides: “No otherwise qualified individual with a disability in the United States ... shall, solely
by reason of her or his disability, be excluded from the participation in, be denied the benefits of,
or be subjected to discrimination under any program or activity receiving Federal financial
assistance...”

20



Special Education Budget Information

) SRR I DR 2024-25 | 2023-2024 | 2022-2023 | 2021-2022 | 2020-2021
Revenue

Federal IDEA $161,640 | $161,156 | $160,114 | $160,114 $156,516
State SELPA $256,771 | $128,570 | $129456 | $105,624 $85,645
Total Funding $418,411 | $289,726 | $289,570 | $265,738 $242,161
Total Expenses 2,142,543 | $2,138,748 | $1,796278 | $1,695,689 |  $1,523,999
Additional District

Contribution (MOE) $1,657,093 | $1,849,022 | $1,506,708 | $1,429,951 | $1,281,838

* 567,039 difference in 24.25 due to reimbursements by SELPA for mileage and Menta expenses

2024-2025 Senior Scholarships

ELKS $2,000
Vatianna Lopez-Owl

Strong Hearts Scholarship $800

Irie Charles

Dasan Lynch
Vatianna Lopez- Owl
Elena Ramirez

Rufus and Celia Espino Memorial $750

Vatianna Lopez- Owl

American Legion Auxiliary Post 802 $200

Vatianna Lopez- Owl
CSEA Scholarship $500
Vatianna Lopez- Owl

Andy and Natalie Erickson Scholarship $2.000

Lena Taylor

College and Career Activities Provided to High School Students

Financial Aid

Parent Senior Night- FAFSA Update and FSAID- October 2024- 19 participants

FSA ID Night

e November 2024- 19 participants
e December 2024- 24 participants

FAFSA Night

e January 2025- 47 participants
e February 2025- 21 participants
e May 2025- 4 participants

Scholarship Sessions / Presentations

21




Scholarship Information- October 2024 through April 2025
IVROP Scholarship Session- December 2024

Quechan Higher Student Presentation- Scholarship- October 2024,
February 2025, April 2025, May 2025

SPVHS Scholarship and Award Night- May 2025

Post Ed:

San Diego State University RISE Program (Research, Innovation, Student
Engagement)- Imperial Valley

Program Introduction Presentation- August 2024

SDSU RISE Student Meetings (Twice a month)- September 2024 through
April 2025 — 28 student participants

Grand Canyon University Presentation- May 2025 — 29 students

Arizona Western College Admissions and Major Presentation- September
2025 — 30 students

Arizona Western College Admission Rep Visit- Once a month (September
2024 through April 2025)

Arizona Western College- College Assistant Migrant Program
Presentation- September 2025-12 students qualify to apply for the
program- 3 accepted into the program.

Arizona Western College- TRIO KEYS Program Presentation- September
2024

IVROP Resume Workshop- December 2024

Arizona Western College Admissions Day- October 2024- 26 students (all
applied for admissions at AWC)

Arizona Western College- Senior Day- November 2024— 25 students
IVROP Mock Interviews (Seniors)- April 2024

SDSU RISE- Imperial Valley: Technology Nursing School of Nursing
Tour (Brawley)- October 2024— 10 students

Arizona Western College Warrior to Matador Event- April 2025: Register
for classes for Fall 2025 semester, and attended a resource fair, campus
tour and presentations- 28 students

Arizona Western College TRIO KEY'S Advising Sessions for Fall 2025-
June 2025

Career Expos / Higsher Ed Week

Imperial Valley College- Career Expo- March 2025- 13 students
Higher Ed Week I- September 2024- Juniors and Seniors

Arizona Southwest Career and Trade Expo (11th-12th)- March 2025- 31
students

SPVUSD Career Fair- May 2025- 9- 12" Grade

Higher Ed Week II - May 2025- 11% Grade

22



Workshops
e The effects and use of smoking vapes and resources for quitting-
September 2024 (Collaboration with Mrs. Alvarez)
¢ Financial Literacy Presentation- June 2025

Educational Opportunities for Students

e Arizona State University Inspire 2025- 1 Junior student accepted

e Imperial Valley College Talent Search Program- 10 Senior Participants

e SPVHS Student Service-Learning Program- Community Service- Food
Box Distribution- 5 to 9 students each month (varies)

e 27 students registered at AWC, one student registered at U of A and one
student registered at GCU in the Fall of 2025.

e Museum of Latin American Art and beach trip- students attended via a
grant offered through San Manuel Band of Indians- 34 students.

e Healthy Futures Symposium: Building a Career in Food, Nutrition, Health,
and Wellness- AWC- April 2025- 10 students

e Admit Reception- IV Fairgrounds- April 2025- recognition ceremony
honoring High School Seniors that have been accepted to a 4-year college
or university.

e (Cal State Humboldt Presentation- September 2024- Juniors and Seniors

e (al State University Fullerton Presentation- September 2024- Juniors and
Seniors

e Campesinos Sin Fronteras Youth Conference- Rise and Thrive: Building
Connections Through Advocacy- May 2025- 14 students

e UC San Diego- Comienza Con Un Sueno 2025 Conference- April 2025- 4
students

SPVUSD SOCIAL EMOTIONAL LEARNING and MENTAL HEALTH
SUPPORT

SCHOOL SITE COUNSELORS

During the 2024-2025 school year, the Counseling Team supported 100% of SPVUSD’s student
population. Synergy is currently showing that at the elementary and middle school all students
received

Tier 1 counseling services (including Minute Meetings, Counseling Classroom Lessons,
schoolwide initiatives and activities in all 3 domains: academic, social-emotional, and college &
career readiness).

23



lﬁ e
= uc\—

FX

RE)

=B

R

Bman

=i

85 34

- gt

N

% S

=t

a5 cLassroom Grour INDIVIDUAL CAarFecCITO CHATS

50 Lessons sessions sessions
H ) (i
B . ;
S 26 1 i)
i a0l
'| SCHOOL ACTIVITIES RESPONSES ﬂ
pIT TO CrisiIs 45
: =

"* u(-( , ;\--}* .“-". S m: TS u;« . = h--v—-: = “". m}: o‘j‘ I '-'Q' =

TATSTU

AL TR~

gherape  +anlge:
MONTHLY THemes & Dates

August | Positive Behavior; Zones of Regulation; Peace Corners
September | Positive Cholces
October Problem-Solving
November | Self-Control
December Empathy
January 7‘\ Communication
February Kindness
March | Personal Growth
April College 8 Career Exploration
May | Taking Care of Myself
June | Taking Care of Myself

one-CLICK TeacHer Lessons

| Mindfal Momdags Talk Alewt ¥ Toerbogt Ml(uM; Throghtfal Tharsdeg:
. Y

r ‘ TH-2ré Fragrimde e |
44 1’.';.-.-:(«‘&1_&;3:!' |

‘ (‘k-wn(mta,,m
;,’i‘hn{d&:.’mw Sharmwg, and cor
11 | Coogl Chuooss | Activity every Friday!

<

o) AL PTELLE LN F P LN

2

[~
g .

= u " Jhm o] P
{'{ "'Q' ~1 ~_-:.‘ L L0 o0 K

o 0 ﬂ?cj:'fa"

Counseling Dates. =
9/10: You Matter Day (wear teal or purple)

9/19: Cafecito Chat I, 8am, Building 307

10/10: World Mental Health Day

10/16: Unity Day (wear orange)

11/13: World Kindness Day

11/14: Calecito Chat I, Bam, Building 307

2/18 21*: Random Acts of Kindness Week

2/20: Cafecito Chat I, 8am, Building 307

3/14: SEL Day

3/20 SEL Night (during conferences in cafoteria)
A/17: ES Peace Picnic

5/1: Calecito Chat IV, 8am, Building 307

5/9: MS Peace Picnic

5/22: Career Day Expo

5/28: Incoming 6* Graders MS Orientation

August.
| TAexkTesten | -!!!‘!!-v Mot Nt

i Ty ey

Nisdtaliess Mooy 38 S Gogie G u-r.m Sexand S0 uit 3 P St w ManisgMentieg ol

Mndiues, :,

Wnihioes Ven CRISRPARS S A

| MihiMwen pameree ]

Well Betag Chach & o0 Thetoeyy (et} ]

T £

1

—f

A

~-'.'4

o = = = N *
T Rn ) ke Al e e T [T 4 (e T e n f Spke Al

DRSS ] Al =l oot 1 2 e A A e AR Xkl A=

24



&'55"3::5;. SR Sl e U S TR A= 2R

=) SAN PAS RsQU oL }« T

A Sc\-\o ¥,

%‘32-2025 pata . o<

b Counseling Lessons

o =

P Focus Skills

TR Meet the Counselor ) N
'f ; Positive Behavior Study Skills §:'

& HEW | Frontloading Attendance !

llig Emotional Intelligence §R
.. Developing Self-Compassion CunchBunch ; "
45 Relaxation Thermometer Healthy Relationships LL i

Self Compassion and Growth Mindset
Discovering Your Path

Understanding & Supporting Mental Health
HEW Il Frontloading

1%

5=

i [
"

it

SR

\ 4

"l'f" .v lq.,.-ﬂ—um:‘."" l)f.( ' }_i- q...——-

Ala=*2 Als=*

o RS LAY 4

T v T T s ".‘—"- —qu
ﬁ@'ﬂﬁ}r. e )L U T PASQUAL HIGH SCHOOL

w5 MONTHLY THEMeS & DaTes
= - £
>h Wk — . School Activities 2025:  School Activities 202
r—=| August | Positive Behavior; Zones of Regulation; Peace Corners 9/04 Food Box Distribution 2/18 Random Acts of Kindness
B September Positive Cholces 9/10 You Matter Day 2120 Cafecito Chat Il
oy Cone | e 9/16 Higher Ed Week 2126 FAFSANight
= November | Self-Control 9/19 Cafecito Chat 3/04 Career Tradg ;xpgnence
=4 December ! Emparhy 10/02 Food Box Distribution 3/05 Food Box Distribution
|+ “J‘v Janvary Communication 3/20 Student Activity
P February T Kindness 10/10 World Mental Healh Day 5/07 FAFSA Night 3
(f March I Personal Growth 10146 Unity Day. 5/08 Wildcats to Warriors Welcome =
5 '; el T Cilliia® Cavoot Brphinsion 10//30 FSAID Senior Night 5/09 2Thrive Youth Conference <tT
> f{ May T Taking Care of Myself 11/13 World Kindness Day 5/19 Higher Ed Week )
' o 4 Yaking Care of Myself 11/15 Cafecnlo-Chal ] 5122 Carrer Day : J
19 e 1/29 FAFSA Night 5/29 Scholarship Night D ;J I
= i one-CLICK TeacHer Lessons 2/14 Healthy Choice Conference 6/06 Graduation Night ok
a9 - T = - L[ H
[ [ -
L Mond - Tuesd dnesday Thursd ‘
Hat onday uesday ednesday ursday  Jgs

e

: Mindfulness Music College & Career Classroom Circles
:-:' ! Circle Script
Fall 2 T = T

T April SEL Journal |  Everyday, Anyday Career Exploration | Shallow & Middle

Prompt First Five Task Cards Questions

CEURG

D

-:uf«" T o 11 AT R AT R A T AT 130 B AT

e Aice 1

Summary:
e The three school site counselors provided 550 individual student sessions in 2024-2025.
e The counselors facilitated 34 group sessions.
e Provided 85 classroom lessons/presentations across the district.
e Organized 26 school-wide activities.

25



e Managed 11 Crisis Intervention/Assessments for students, which can include
suicidal ideation, various forms of abuse, etc.

In addition to counselors there are tiered supports in-district and resources out of
district that students have access. Three Counselors, one Licensed Therapist, and
one Psychologist provide services to our students. Counselors also provide Social-
Emotional Learning opportunities within and outside of the classroom.

MENTAL HEALTH SUPPORT and SERVICES

LICENSED THERAPIST

The following data was collected by our Licensed Therapist from the 2024-2025 school year. The
Licensed Therapist is funded under the Victim of Crime and provides an array of mental health
and trauma-informed support services. She has advocacy and outreach obligations for SPVUSD
students that often involve coordination with CPS, law enforcement, and the judicial system.

Types of issues that the Licensed Therapist treats include problems related to mental health
diagnoses, child abuse, trauma, and community violence or crime victims.

Demographics
MS and
HS
Reporting # of Native Mixed Other | Elementary | (Ages
Period Clients | Hispanic | American | Race | Male | Female | Gender | (Ages 0-12) | 13-17)
July 24-Sept
24 36 0 6 13 23 0 7 29
Oct 24-Dec
24 34 3 3 15 19 0 6 28
Jan 25-March
25 35 8 6 16 19 0 6 29
April 25-June
25 35 4 4 11 24 0 4 31
Special Populations Primary Services
IEP/504/
Cognitive/ Case
Physical/ Mental Management | Therapy Group Crisis
Homeless | LGBTQ Disability Referrals Services Sessions | Counseling | Counseling
3 8 14 134 129 106 4 8
1 7 12 103 163 115 30 17
1 7 13 158 168 152 10 11
1 7 13 71 185 137 5 14

26




Victimization Type (at intake)

Physical
Abuse or Child Child Sexual Family Human Teen Dating
Bullying Neglect | Pornography Abuse Violence | Trafficking | Stalking Violence
31 35 1 19 34 2 7 2
29 34 1 15 33 0 5 3
28 35 1 15 34 0 6 3
28 15 1 15 34 1 6 3

IMPACT AID GENERAL BUDGET INFORMATION

The following pages include data pertaining to:
o General Budget Comments
o Impact Aid Application — Section 7003 Information
o Grant Information
o Indian Policies and Procedures BP 1270 (Updated 11/09/2021)

e During the 2024-25 school year both Unions were settled and received
increases. We used one-time CSI funding to staff a Teacher on Special

GENERAL BUDGET COMMENTS

(As of September 2025)

Assignment at the Elementary and Middle School. The district used grant

funding to purchase new cafeteria equipment, add a shade to the Pre K

playground, purchase a new bus, and plant new trees throughout the district.

e Currently in 2025-26, the district is fully staffed and settled with CSEA and has a
signed TA with SPTA. The district is currently working on the following projects:
Improvements to Softball Field, Replacing Football filed lighting with insurance

funding, completed paving projects at the Elementary School and Bus Barn funded by
the Imperial County Air Pollution Control Board.

e Student enrollment has decreased by 24% over the last ten years. This declining
enrollment greatly affects our LCFF, Impact Aid and categorical funding. As the

community decreases in the number of RV parks and other alternative housing,
SPVUSD’s enrollment is greatly impacted.

L]

L] L] L] L] L] L] L] L] L] L]

2015-16:
2016-17:
2017-18:
2018-19:
2019-20:
2020-21:
2021-22:
2022-23:
2023-24:
2024-25:
2025-26:

725 students
712 students
690 students
686 students
653 students
609 students
605 students

591 students, 605 with Pre-Kindergarten included
600 students, with Pre-Kindergarten included

580 students, with Pre-Kindergarten included

551 students with Pre-Kindergarten included

27




 The district will conduct the Annual Impact Aid count on October 31%,
2025, using the Source Document Process instead of the Survey Forms.

* The district has settled negotiations with SPTA through June 2025 and
the CSEA through June 2026.

IMPACT AID - SECTION 7003
APPLICATION INFORMATION

Impact Aid (Title VIII to Public Law 107-110) was enacted in 1950 as a reform
program to replace temporary payments intended to enable local school districts
to provide education for the children who live on federal property or have
parents/guardians who work on federal property. Title VIII authorizes a direct
general aid payment to the impacted school district's general fund for the
maintenance and operation of the educational program.

The San Pasqual Valley Unified School District received over $4,600,000 in
Impact Aid Revenue in 2024-25. This is approximately 24% of the total 2024-25
annual general fund revenues. This funding equates to the salary of thirteen
teachers, fifteen classified personnel and supports education programs,
construction of and general maintenance of the facilities and equipment purchases.

General information on the Impact Aid, Section 7003, 2025 application is as follows:

e Eighty -nine students with disabilities resided on eligible Indian lands (Fort Yuma
Reservation)

e Seven students resided on Federal property on which parents are employed. (Imperial
Dam Camp)

e Four hundred and eighteen students resided on eligible Indian lands. (Fort
Yuma/Quechan Indian Reservation) excluding students with disabilities mentioned
above.

Membership and Average Daily Attendance Data
Total number of children enrolled in the preceding school year was 604 for 2023-24
school year and 585 for 2024-25 on the respective survey date.

GRANTS SPECIFICALLY FOR AMERICAN INDIAN OR ALASKA NATIVE
STUDENTS

Title VI- Performance Grant 2024-25
Pre-Kindergarten through 12th grade, supports local educational agencies in their
efforts to reform elementary school and secondary school programs that serve
Indian students in order to ensure that such programs — (1) are based on
challenging state academic content and student academic achievement standards
that are used for all students; and (2) are designed to assist Indian students in
meeting those standards.

28



Annual Application
$116,138
American Indian Early Childhood Education (AIECE) Program 2024-25

Pre-Kindergarten through 4th grade, funding provided for the development and
testing of educational models that increase competence in reading, language arts,
mathematics and self- esteem.

Annual Application
$58,667

29



Page2 of 6

2. Presentations

a. The Heart of SPVUSD Award — Daniel Paz and Lisa Mendenhall
b. Student(s) of the Month
A. Elementary School — Rodrigo Barajas and Anayahlyn Hernandez
B. Middle School — Sophia Daleiza Lerma Dominguez
C. High School — Jayden Sisomphou and Kalika Smith-Waters
c. Associated Student Body
A. Blanket drive for community
B. Hot chocolate at elementary Christmas event
C. Winter Pep Rally 12.16.25
D. Chill out/block party after pep rally

3. The Superintendent recommends the Board review and update Board Bylaw 9100

Organization. Organization of the board either by full slate or rotation.

Ms. Delgadillo made the motion to elect full slate; Mr. Derma seconded. Motion carried
unanimously.

Reorganization of the board

Ms. Owl nominated Mr. Hartt for President; Mr. Derma seconded. Motion carried with 5
aves and one abstain (Hartt).

Ms. Delgadillo nominated Ms. Owl as Vice President; Mr. Derma seconded. Motion
carried unanimously.

1

Ms. Owl nominated Ms. Delgadillo for clerk; Mr. Derma seconded. Motion carried
unanimously. '

4. Public Comments

Comments shall be limited to three minutes per person and twenty minutes for all
comments, per topic, unless the board president, subject to the approval of the
Governing Board, sets different time limits

a) Are there any members of the public to be heard on items not appearing on agenda
that are within the jurisdiction of the District? None.

b) Are there any members of the public to be heard on items appearing on the agenda?
None. '

c¢) Are there any members of the public or parents/guardians of Indian children to be
heard on equal participation in educational programs provided by the district.

*Persons who have complaints against Board members or District stafl are encouraged to seek resolution to those complaints by using the San Pasqual
Valley Unified School District written complaint procedures before orally addressing them at 2 meeting. The Board will not respond to such complaints
until the applicable complaint procedure (BP/AR 1312.1) has been followed and has reached the Board level. Where a complaint concerns a District
employee identifiable by name, position, or other facts, the Board cannot respond until proper written notice has been given to-the employee pursuant to
Government Code Section 54957.

Approve 1,13.26




. ~Page 3 of 6
CALL TO ORDER PUBLIC HEARING Time: 6:26 pm

Myr. Derma made the motion to Open Public Hearing; Ms. Dominguez seconded. Motion
carried unanimously. ; o

% 4

PUBLIC HEARING: Joint Impact Aid Report. Seek input from parents of Indfanchildren,
tribal officials, the Impact Aid Committee and any other interested persons regarding the
development or review of education programs and services allowing for the participation of
Indian students on an equal basis in the district.

Pursuant to BP 1270.2, the Memorandum of Understanding between San Pasqual Valley
Unified School District and the Quechan Tribe, and Title VII, the Disttict will ensure the
equal basis participation of, and tribal and parental involvément in the educatlon of those
students who live on Indian lands and are claimed for payment under the Title VII of

Public Law 103-382. BP 1270.2 were approved by the board on 11/18/2025. Copies of the
Impact Aid Report 25.26 and the Indian Policy and Procedures are available at the District
Office upon request. The final Joint Impact Aid Repott will be presented in January.

We open the floor to Public Comuments regarding education programs and services of
Indian students at San Pasqual Valley Unified School District; please only speak on this
topic. No comments

Ms. Dominguez made the motion to declare the Public Hearing closed Ms. Owl seconded.
Motion carried unammously

Upon the Motion, the Public hearing is closed at 6:27 PM

II. CONSENT AGENDA,

All items under the Consent Agenda are considered 1o be of a routine nature and are acted
with one.motion. Any recommendation may be removed from the Consent Agenda at the
request of any board member and placed under Discussion/Action.

1. The Superintendent recommends approval of the November 18, 2025 Board Minutes.

2. The Superintendent recommends ratification of the November warrants in the amount of
$337,716.16 .

3. The Superintendent recommends the hiring of:
As Duty Monitor (4 positions) Jessica Tamp, Jalen Bohanon, Alexander Nunez and Isabella
Montijo
As Part Time Van Driver — Zayra Dominguez
As Full Time Bus Driver — Jonathon Bay with Lorena Millian as alternate - ,

4. The Superintendent recommends approval of Travel/Training for Ms. Johna Meek to attend
Crisis Prevention Institute Renewal training on December 11-13, 2025. R

5. The Supermtendent recommends approval of the. Codestack Memorandum of Contract July
1, 2025 through June 30, 2028 Programming and Maintenance of SEIS/SIS Integration
‘Components and Services

6. The Superintendent recommends approval of surplus items for auction sale, date to be
determined

7. The Superiniendent recommends the approval of the Board Calendar for 26-27

8. The Superintendent recommends the approval of the District Calendar for 26-27

Approve 1,13.26




Page 4 of 6

Ms. Dominguez made the motion to approve the consent items; Mr. Derma-seconded. The
motion carried unaniniously.
III. MONTHLY REPORTS
1. San Pasqual Teacher Association (SPTA) —Ms., Amanda Beck
2. California School Employees Association (CSEA) — Ms. Adina Alvarez
3. Principals’ reports
«e Elementary — Ms. Tamy Durham
e Middle School — Ms. Erin Grande
» High School — Ms. Anastasia Noriega
Business Services ~ Ms. Kish Curtis
Technology — Mr. Danicl Paz
Superintendent — Mr. Richard Cordero
Board
a. Looking forward to the winter program '
b. Mr. Derma, Mr. Hartt and Mr. Cordero attended CSBA conference

Nk

1. Safety and aerial mapping of district long with numbering of buildings
2, Campaign discussions \
3. Plaques inside classrooms so student know where they are
4. Special Education improvements
5. Good ideas from other board members
6. Training was beneficial
Mr. Derma Aye_ Ms.Dominguez Aye  Ms. Delgadillo Aye
No No N t No
Abstain Abstain Abstain
Ms. Owl Aye __ Mr. Hartt Aye  Miss Nuinkena Aye
' No No _ Student Board No
Abstain Abstain Abstain
Mr. Derma Aye_ Ms.Dominguez Aye  Ms. Delgadillo Aye
No _ . No No
Abstain Abstain Abstain
Ms. Owl Aye ,  Mr. Hartt Aye_ Miss Numkena Aye
No No _ Student Board No
Abstain Abstain Abstain

IV. INFORMATION ITEMS

All items under the Information agenda are for informational purposes only and not action
items. Any recommendation may be removed from the Information Agenda at the request of
. any board member and placed under Discussion/Action.

1. CSBA November Board Update .

a. Board Policy 1000'— Concept and Roles

b. Board Policy/Administrative Regulation 1114 — District Sponsored Social
Media

foprove 113,26




Page 5 0of 6

Board Policy 2120 — Superintendent Recruitment and Selection
Administrative Regulation 3311.3 — Design-Build Contracts

Board Policy 3470 — Debt Issuance and Management

Board Policy 4000 — Concept and roles

Board Policy 5000 — Concept and Roles

Board Policy/Administrative Regulation 5020 - Parent Rights and
Responsibilities

Board Policy/Administrative Regulation 5117 — Interdistrict Attendance
Board Policy 5138 Conflict Resolution/Pecr Mediation

Board Policy/Administrative Regulation 6020 — Parent Involvément
Board Policy/Administrative. Regulation 6143 — Courses of Study
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation/Exhibit 6146.2 — Certificate of'
Proficiency/High School Equivalency

Board Policy 7000 — Concepts and Roles

Board Policy 7131 — Relations with Local Agencies

Board Bylaw 9310 — Board Policy

Board Bylaw/Exhlblts 9321 — Closed Session

Seniority Llsts First Read ! \

Board Bylaw 9250 Remuneration, Reimbursement and Other Benefits an increase in
monthly compensation amount per board member of up to $600 per month per board
mernber.

BEr-rmer FRmo Ao

»o*ps:.d

W

-

a. Up to $600 per month per board member
b. Increase of 5% per year

V. DISCUSSION/ACTION ITEMS
1. The Superintendent recommends approval of 1* Interim report 2025-2026.

Ms. Dominguez made a matzon to approve I* inter zm report 2025-2026; Ms. Owl seconded.
The motion carried unanimously. .

[l

2. The Superintendent recommends adoption of Resolution #25.26 11 acknowledging six
certifications for applications received beyond bond authority required to submit
modernization and new construction funding applications to the Office of Public School
Construction ’

3. The Superintendent recommends adoption of RESOLUTION # 25.26 12, acknowlédging the
five-year Facilities Master Plan certifications required to submit modernization and new
construction funding applications to the Office of Public School Construction.

. 4. The Superintendent The Superintendent recommends adoption of RESOLUTION # 25.26 =
13, supporting the designation of district representatives and authorization to file
applications for the School Facility Program

Mr. Derma made a motion to combined 2-4 and approve with one motion; Ms. Dominguez
seconded. The motion carried unammously

* ?

Approve 1.13.26




Page 6 of 6

VI. ITEMS FOR FUTURE AGENDA

Board Policies recommended by CSBA
Board Policy Remuneration

Seniority Lists

Readmission of Student ID 6000931 »

=

VII. CLOSED SESSION . Time: 7:26P.M.

Mr. Dermna made the motion fo move into closed session; Ms. Dominguez secovided.
The motion carried unanimously.

1. CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATOR (Superintendent) - Pursuant to
Government Code 54957.6.
2. PERSONNEL MATTERS - Pursuant to Government Code 54957
a. Certificated
b. Classified . .
3. PENDING LITIGATION — Pursuant to Government Code 54956.9
4. PUBLIC EMPLOYEE PERFORMANCE EVALUATION — Pursuant to Government
Code 54957
a. Superintendent Evaluation

RECONVENE Time: 8:56 P.M.

Mr. Derma made a motion to reconvene; Ms. Dominguez seconded. The motion carried |
unanimously.

During the Executive Session of the Regular Board Meeting on December 9, 2023, the
Board took the following reportable action:

1. CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATOR (Superintendent) — Pursuant to
Government Code 54957.6 — Information given, no action taken.

2. PERSONNEL MATTERS — Pursuant to Government Code 54957 - Information given
no action taken.

a. Certificated
. b. Classified

3. PENDING LITIGATION — Pursuant to Government Code 54956.9 — Information given,

no action taken.

4. PUBLIC EMPLOYEE PERFORMANCE EVALUATION - Pursuant to Government
Code 54957 — No action taken
a. Superintendent Evaluation

VIII. ADJOURNMENT Time: 9:00 P.M.

Ms. Dominguez made a motion to adjourn; Mr. Derma seconded. The motion carried
unanimously. ~

Next regular board meeting is scheduled for Tuesday, January 13, 2026 5:30 P.M.
in the Middle/High School Library or via zoom if necessary.

Signed: COdg/ H@Vtt Board President

Approve 1.13.26




Page 1 of 1

San Pasqual Valley Unified School District
BOARD OF TRUSTEES
. SPECIAL BOARD MEETING AGENDA :
Wednesday, December 17, 2025 5:00 PM
Middle-High School Library

1. OPENING OF THE MEETING

1. ‘'This meeting was called to order by Mr. Harit at 5:02 P.M. This meeting is being recorded.
Flag Salute

2. Roll Call bv Secretary

Mr. Hartt Here v/ Mr. Derma Here v Ms, Dominguez Here v
Ms. Delgadillo Here v arrived  Ms. Owl Here v Ms. Numkena Here v’
at5:12 pm

3. Public Comments

Persons who have complaints against Board members or District staff are encouraged to seek resolution to
those complaints by using the San Pasqual Valiey Unified School District written complaint procedures
before orally addressing them at a meeting. The Board will not respond to such complaints until the
applicable complaint procedure (BP/AR 1312.1) has been followed and has reached the Board level.
Where a complaint concerns a District employee identifiable by name, position, or other facts, the Board
cannot respond until proper written notice has been given to the employee pursuant to Government Code
Section 54957. Because this is a special board meeting with a limited agenda, public comment shall be
limited to only those subjects described in the agenda.

Comments shall be limited to three minutes per person and twenty minutes for all comments, per topic,
unless the board president, subject to the approval of the Governing Board, sets different time limits. !

II. Presentation :
1. Solar Panels *

i. SiteLogiQ and Isom Advisors

. ADJOURNMENT Time: 6:22 P.M.
Mr. Derma made the motion to adjourn; Ms. Dominguez seconded. The motion carried unanimously.
. /

Next regular board meeting is scheduled for Tuesday, January 13, 2026 5:30 P.M.
in the Middle/High School Library. * -

Signed: COdy Hmt, ’BWd/PVM

Posted:

' Winterhaven & Bard Post Offica
Wintarhaven & Bard Weder District Ofico

San Pasqual School Distict Office & School Sttes




. ReqPay12c

Board Report

Checks Dated 12/01/2025 through 12/31/2025

Check Check Expensed Check
_Number Date Pay to the Order of Fund-Object Comment _ Amount Amount
26351050 12/04/2025 ALEXANDER COLLISION CENTER 0104360 Door repairs for van V16-1 - 1,069.74
UToE3510581 7 1200472025 ALVAREZ, ADINA M T 010-5200 CHAPERONE WRESTL]NGM Commmmmmmmmmm "n’iﬂfﬁf}-mv;
C e e e e e e e e 12111-12113/2025 U S
26351052 1210412025 AMAZON 010-4300 Ar Supplies 80.14
i Elementary Site Supplies 128.98
Floor Protection 118.50 .
e _ T T ':L_:m_f‘ - ) Senior Night Supplies Wenter Season 43221~ 777"
T e © 7770104400 Mic and stand for Board meetings -~ 7 Tazrrae T 73893
26351053 12/04/2025 AZ INTERSCHOLASTIC ASSOC 010-5800 REGULAR OFFICIALS PAYMENT 6,000.00
26351054 12/04/2025 BUS WEST 0104360 BUS PARTS 102.57
""38351065  12/04/2025 CINTAS S T B10-5504 Laundry services - DO o 2847 T
e o T o B N Laundry services-ES 14183 T
h . - Laundry services - Grounds 15.01
Laundry services - HS 216.13
[ i e Laundry services.- Maintenance 840,15 |
Laundry sefvices - MS 25,35
Laundry setvices - Transportation 37.50
130-5504 Laundry services - Cafeteria 149,05 1,453.49
. 26351056 " TT12/04i2025 CKEPUSA 130-6400. Equipment for fresh plant-based cafeferta < 31,270.15
1 . R meals .
26351057 12/04/2025 EFR ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES 010-5800 REMOVAL OF HAZARDOUS WASTE 89.00
\ 26351058 12/04/2025 ENTERPRISE / EAN SERVICES LLC 010-5200 GIRLS BASKETBALL - WHITE FLEET 154.36 4
- UNAVAILABLE
. TAM! DURHAM - WHITE FLEET 192.85 347.21
UNAVAILABLE
" 26351059 12/04/2025 FEDEX ! 010-5501  POSTAGE _ 1930 |
" 26351060 12/04/2025 GONZALEZ, ABIGAILB 010-5200 WRESTLING CHAPERONE MEALS 12/4- 126.00
*12/6/2025
26351061 12/04/2025 JACK SCHREDER & ASSOCIATES 010-5800 OCTOBER 2025 ACTIVITIES SCHOOL 2,511.25
FACILITY PROGRAM
26351062 12/04/2025 PRIMO BRANDS BLUE TRITON BRANDS INC 010-5503 8730278833 POTABLE WATER FOR ES 396.98
e N oARAms w WL tmtmemme = e aas rome imeieimmre S IR s b o R A LT R ma Ak fe e A 3 e bl = kUM, £ TR s WA n  amiar S = N U PO 10"05!25-1 1104!25 - i aram rent Ao r e e e a1 aa- anmn .
. 26351063 12/04/2025 S-NET COMMUNICATIONS INC 010-5800 SERVICE LEVEL AGREEMENT FOR VOQICE 272862
26351084 12/04/2025 SAN PASQUAL HS ASB 010-5200 REIMBURSE FOR STUDENT MEAL: ' 1,080.00
WRESETLING 12/4-12/6/2025
26351065 12/0412025 SAN PASQUAL VALLEY USD 010-5200 BOYS BASKETBALL ANTELOPE 12.20.25 165.00
BOYS BASKETBALL EPIC TOURNEY 891.c0

1.1-1.3.26

preceding Checks be approved.

The preceding Checks have been issued in accordance with the District's Policy and authorization of the Board of Trustees. It is recommended that the

»

048 - San Pasqual Valley Unified School Disfrict

Generated for Karen Medel {(KMEDEL), Jan 6 2026 2:18FM

& ERP for California
"‘ Page 10of 6




. ReqgqPay12c Board Report

Checks Dated 12/01/2025 through 12/31/2025

Check Check Expensed Check
Number Date Pay to the Order of Fund-Object Comment _ Amount ~ Amount
26351065 12/04/2025 SAN PASQUAL VALLEY USD 010-5200 BOYS BASKETBALL MARYVALE 1.9.26 297.00
BOYS BASKETBALL PHOENIX DSD 267,00
12,18.25
GIRLS BASKETBALL ANTELOPE 12.20.25 225,00
| B GIRLS BASKETBALL EPIC TOURNEY 1,215.00
’ 1:1-1.3.26° .
GIRLS BASKETBALL MARYVALE 1.9.26 405.00
GIRLS BASKETBALL PHOENIX DSD 405.00
12,18.25
i e i ..., STUDENT MEALS WRESTLING 117/2026 ~ = 30000
T - o
- ) ] i S . LyB-ud202s e e Bt e e e
STUDENT MEALS WRESTLING 1,080.00 6,360.00
_ 1211-12/1312025
26351066 12/04/2025 SCHOOLS EXGESS LIABILITY FUND 010-5400 AB218 REVIVED LIABILITY FUNDING PLAN 27,642.15
26351067 12/04/2025 SHAMROCK FOODS 1304370 NSLP CEP CAFE FOOD ITEMS 143,02
e N T T 1304700 CACFPDINNER CAFEFOODIEMS — ~ " 3gsgi T
- ' NSLP CEP CAFE FOOD ITEMS T 516004 6,638.97
26351068 12/0412025 SUNSTATE ENVIRONMENTAL 010-5503 COLIFORM WATER TESTING MONTHLY 206.10
26351069 12/04/2025 SWRCB 010-5503 ANNUAL PERMIT FEE 7/1/25-6/30/26 1,973.00
e .. .., ANNUALPERMITFEE7A/Z560026BUS " 443900 641200
26351070 12/04/2025 USBANKEQUIPMENTFINANCE 0105800  District wide copiers - equipment finance - T T 230037
. 1112/25-12112/25
26351071 12/04/2025 WAXIE SANITARY SUPPLY 0104390 Soap, Sanitizer, and Cleaning Supplies 2,534.93
26351072 12/04/2025 YUMA CATHOLIC HIGH SCHOOL/JEF F WELSING AD 010-5800 BOYS/GIRLS WRESTLING TEAM AID BODY 100.00
O .. FATANDHYDRATIONTESTING = = I
26351073 12/04/2025 YUMA NURSERY SUPPLY 010-5600 REPLACEMENT VALVES PIPES ) ' 199.22
v e e e e b . SPRINKLERS ES PREKAREA Y e e
010-6170 SOFTBALL PROJECT IRRIGATION 515.61 714.83
MATERIALS
26351074 12/04/2025 Z TRENDZ 130-4380 ADD 1LOGO TO CAFETERIA UNIFORMS 60.00
26352307 12/11/2025 A-Z BUS SALES . 010-4360 MOT BUS PARTS (ANNUALLY) 91.94
| 26352308° 1211172025 ACSAMEMBERSERVICES =~ ™7~ ™ """ " "gig5s00  ACSAMEMERSHIPFEES ~~ T U T 000,00,
26352309 12/11/2025 AMAZON o T T T T a10-4300 Wrestiing Shoes Resteck =~~~ 41883
- 010-5600 AMAZON ORDERS - MAINTENANCE ONLY 116.01 534.84
replacement timing belt
26352310 12/11/2025 AUNT HATTIES 1304700 Bread for cafeteria 670,46 -
[ 26352311 12/11/2025 BILL ALEXANDER FORD 010-436D WHITE FLEET MAINTENANCE AND'PARTS 222,58
i _ . . ~ V16-2
The preceding Checks have been issued in accordance with the District's Policy and authorization of the Board of Trustees. It is recommended that the ’ — ERP for Callfornia
preceding Checks be approved. Page 2 of 6

048 - San Pasqual Valley Unified School District Generated for Karen Medel (KMEDEL), Jan 6 2026 2:18PM




ReqPay12c R

Checks Dated 12/01/2025 through 12/31/2025

Check

Check

Number Date

»

.

Pay to the Order of

Fund-Object

Board Report

Comment

Expensed

Amount

BUS PARTS

preceding Checks be approved.

The preceding Checks have been issued In accordance with the District's Policy and authorization of the Board of Trustees. It Is recommended that the

26352312 12/11/2025 BUS WEST 010-4360 385.19
26352313 12/11/2025 CINTAS 010-5504 Laundry services - DO . 28.47 ! .
Laundry services - ES 157.83
[ Laundry services - Grounds 1501 '
Laundry sepvices - HS 216.13
Laundry setvices - Maintenance 4218
Laundry services - MS 2535
_" B N ) Laundry services - Transportation 37.50
130-5504 Laundry services - Cafeteria 149.05 671.49
26352314 12/11/2025 CURRIER & HUDSON - 010-5830 LEGAL SERVICES 990.00
26352315 12/11/2025" D & H ELECTRIC ’ 010-5600 EXPOSED WIRE AT FOOTBALL FIELD 75.00
: 26352316 12/11/2025 DIAMONDBROOKS ~~~ "~ ~010-8503  POTABLEWATER ) 4300
26352317  12/11/2025 DOMINQS PIZZA o 130-4700  Pizza for student lunches 25-26 T 76347
26352318 12/11/2025 FERGUSON ENTERPRISES LLC 010-5600 FILTERS DISTRICT WIDE 217.53
26352319 12/11/2025 FORENSIC DRUG TESTING 010-5850 MONTHLY DRUG PREVENTION 2,032.40
_ SERVICES
[ 26352320 12/11/2025 HOPE BILINGUAL SPEECH AND FEEDING THERAPY 510-5800 Speech Therapy Services - Special Ed 7,402.50
| Program
26352321 12/11/2025 IMPERIAL IRRIGATION DIST 010-5502 ELEQCTRIC BILLS 2,550.23
26352322 12/11/2025 MecNEECE BROS. OIL 010-4361 GAS & DIESEL FOR BUSES AND 7,825.26
DISTRICT VEHICLES
26352323 12/11/2025 NAPA AUTO PARTS 010-4360 MOT BUS PARTS 306,59
77726362324 121172025 NAVIABENEFIT SOLUTIONSING 7 T p10-3701 NOVEMBER 2025 PAYROLL ©4g4za T T T
JE o 010-9524  NOVEMBER 2025 PAYROLL 843117
. 120-9524 NOVEMBER 2025 PAYROLL 84.64
130-9524 NOVEMBER 2025 PAYROLL 242.28 9,252.33
7726352325 ° A2MAf2025 QUILL T T T T 0104300 BM Printer Ink [ - - -
T e - 0104310 WAREHOUSE RESTOCK THROUGHOUT 581.79 803.85
‘ THE YEAR DESK CHAIRS X 6 .
26352326 12/14/2025 RWC INTERNATIONAL ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE 010-4360 MOT BUS PARTS 1,944.39
26352327 12/11/2025 SDCOE 010-5800 40% SIS SYNERGY FEE 23-24 3,195.58
r N 70% FEES 24-25 SIS SYNERGY 7.576.32 ]
PROGRESS AND REPORT CARDS 3,246.99 14,018.89
26352328 12/11/2025 SHAMROCK FOODS 130-4370 CACFP DINNER CAFE FOOD ITEMS 147.41
NSLP CEP CAFE FOQD ITEMS 1,014.27
T R o 130-4700 CACFP DINNER CAFE FOOD ITEMS. - 850,41 o
T S NSLP CEP CAFE FOOD [TEMS T 620375 831554
26352329 12/11/2025 ST FRANCIS BOOSTER/OSCAR CHAV EZ JR 010-5800 SOFTBALL TOURNAMENT ) 150,00

& ERP for California
Page 3 of 6

048 - San Pasqual Valley Unified School District

-

Generated for Karen Medel (KMEDEL), Jan 62026 2:18PM



~

ReqPayi12c Board Report

Checks Dated 12/01/2025 through 12/31/2025

Check Check _ Expensed Check
Number Date Pay to the Order of Fund-Object Comment Amount Amount
26352330 12/11/2025 TEGCHNIC BUSINESS SOLUTIONS 010-5800 CONTRACT RATE 0101-01/31/2026 AND 1,145.31
OVERAGE 9/1-11/30/2025
26352331 12/11/2025 US BANK 010-4300 Dinner for 11/18/2025 board meeling 81.82
ELQ-P Robotics Field Trip 756.79
. - T SPECIALED SUPPLIES = 7559 =
'WALMART BOARD MEETING 17.73
WALMART DA MEETING 44.82
0104380 CLEANING SUPPLIES BOX OF RAGS 904.07
010-5200 CHEVRON ES-CONFERENCE PLC AT 82.20 i
WORK
CIRCLE K GAS PLC CONFERENCE 14.75
HILTON CCAC CONFERENCE 1,070.50
HOTEL PLC CONFERENCE 1,610,34
C T e i o e HS'SPORTS BOYS BASKETBALLGAS 153.92 ’ ‘
T HS SPORTS GIRLS BASKETBALL GAS 106.80
HS SPORTS VOLLEYBALL GAS 51.52
N SUPER SHUTTLE CCAC CONFERENCE 143.30
. 010-5300 ADOBE INC X 12 MONTHS _ o 288.83 |
FORM PUBLISHER DISTRICT WIDE 580.00
ZOOM MONTHLY CHARGES 219.90
010-5800 46TH ANNUAL CCAC REGISTRATION 600.05
[ ' ELOP Robotics 50,50 687262 |
26352332 12/11/2025 US BANK EQUIPMENT FINANCE 010-5800 District wide copiers - equipment finance 2,719.26
TM7-121712025
26352333 12/11/2025 VERIZON WIRELESS 010-5800 Monthly data costs for board members, 363.80
admins, tech
26352334 12/11/2025 WALMART: CAPITAL ONE 010-4300 CANDY FOR BOOTH AT HALLOWEEN 45.60
26352335 | 121112025 WILKINSONFADLEYKING ~~ ~ 77" 7T UGipTERi0 | PROGRESS BILLFOR 2425 AUDIT T T B 26,00
| 26353383 12/18/2025 4IMPRINT o ' T 0104300 ITEMSFOR COMMUNITY BVENTS -~ 7 185510
26353384 12/18/2025 A-Z BUS SALES\ 010-4360 MOT BUS PARTS (ANNUALLY) 162.41
26353385 12/18/2025 AMAZON 010-4300 DESIGNATED ELD SUPPLIES 221.91
I , ) Winter Frogram/Health Office 7 68568 ]
. Wrestling Shoes Restock 64.60
010-4380 AMAZON ORDERS - INSTRUCTIONAL 99.30 1,071.49
WAREHOUSE RESTOCK
26353386 12/18/2025 BILL ALEXANDER TOYOTA 010-4360 WHITE FLLEET MAINTENANCE AND PARTS 2,443.45
. V13-1
The preceding Checks have been issued in accordance with the District's Policy and authorization of the Board of Trustees. [t is recommended that the

preceding Checks be approved. ~ Page 40f 6 |
. 048 - San Pasqual Valley Unified School District Generated for Karen Medel (KMEDEL), Jan 62026 2:18PM




ReqPayl2c

a

Board Report

Checks Dated 12/01/2025 through 12/31/2025

The preceding Checks have been Issued in accordance with the District's Policy and authorlzatlon of the Board of Trustees. It is recommended that the

preceding Checks be approved. - -

=3

Check Check - Expensed Check
Number Date Pay to the Order of Fund-Obfect Comment ) Amount Amount
26353387 12/18/2025 BRAWLEY GIRLS WRESTLING/BRAWL EY UNION 010-5800 ENTRY FEE QUEEN OF THE DESERT 350.00
HIGHSCHOOL
26353388 12/18/2025 BUS WEST 010-4360 BUS PARTS 1,384.99
26353389 12/18/2025 CA DEPT OF JUSTICE 010-5800 Fingerprints 147.00
26353300 2182025 CINTAS 010-5504 Laundry services - DO’ 28.47
T o B Laundry services - ES 141.83
' Laundry services - Grounds 15.01
Laundry services - HS 216.13
[ - T i ar B _ Laundry services - Maintenance .. .. 797.72
N Laundry services - MS 25,35
, Laundry services - Transportation 37.50
130-5504 Laundry services - Cafeleria 449.05 1,411.06
| 26353301  12/18/2025 ENTERPRISE/EANSERVICESLLC ~ " " 010-5200  RENTALVERICLEBOYSBASKETBALL 14909,
T 26353392 12M8/2025 FORENSIC DRUG TESTING o " 010-5850  MONTHLY DRUG PREVENTION B 55.00
SERVICES "
26353303 12/18/2025 G & T LOCKSMITH 010-5600 REPLACE BROKEN LOCK ON FFA 2,903,741
. CLASSROOM
26353394 12/18/2025 GRANDE, ERIN 010-4300 PI2ZA FOR FRIENDSGIVING 146,94
wildeat strong prints.and sweatshirts 300.31 447.25
26353395 12118/2025 HELENA CHEMICAL 010-5600 GROUNDS WEED SPRAY 499,10
26353306 121812026 HOPE BILINGUAL SPEECH AND FEEDING THERAPY 010-5800 Speech Therapy Services - Special Ed 7,402.50
Program
26353397 12/18/2025 IMPERIAL IRRIGATION DIST 010-5502 ELEgCTRIC BILLS 18,887.19
26353368 1271812025 MAC GC-ELECTRIC ST T 0108800 Replace exterior lights Fstedon GLOW 77 Zpgog.oo.
. Grant e
26353389 12/18/2025 MOTHER & DAUGHTERS T ~ 010-4380 Uniforms for Custodians, Technology and N - FE X1
Securi
26353400 12/18/2025 NORIEGA, ANASTASIA A 010-4300 STUDltEyNT LEADERSHIP LUNCHECN. 132.16
26353401 12/18/2025 PITNEY BOWES 371887 010-5801 Postage meter rental 346.28
T26383402 7 12482025 T BYRAMID CONSTRUCTION™ T T T T 0106170 Create water retention area at the ES T Taggoooo T T
e e e e e e e e e e e parkinglot _ R —
Paving - ES and MOT area pmJect 490,467.00 517,067.00
26353403 12/18/2025 REPUBLIC SERVICES 456 010-5506 TRASH REMOVAL SERVICES 1,698.99
26353404 12/18/2025 REPUBLIC SERVICES 466 010-5506 TRASH REMOVAL SERVICES 3,008.10
26353405  12/18/2025 RICARDOLARA "7010-5800 BOYS VARSITY TIME'SCOREBOARD 1211 4800
e e e CANDAG
. GIRLS VARSITY BBALL TIME 40.00 80,00
‘ . SCOREBOARD 12/1 AND 12/9
263534058 12/18/2025 RUIZ, BRENDA M 010-4300 library supplies for ES 21066

— ERP for California
- Page 50of 6

. 048 - San Pasqual Vallhey Unified School District

Generated for Karen Medel (KMEDEL), Jan 6 2026 2:18PM




RegPay12c Board Report

Checks Dated 12/01/2025 through 12/31/2025

Check Check ' - Expensed Check
Number Date Pay to the Order of Fund-Object Comment _ Amount Amount
26353407 12M8/2025 SAN PASQUAL VALLEY USD 010-5200 QUEEN OF THE DESERT WRESTLING 481.00
MEALS
26353408 1211812025 TDS 010-5900 PHONE SERVICES 12/04-01/03/26 1,222.50
26353409 12/18/2025 WRIGHT, ANGELA 010-4300 FOOD DISTRIBUTION LUNCH FOR 70.44
e e e e o L i ... VOLUNTEERS o R
VCO480000719 12/04/2025 ADVANCED PLUMBING SOLUTIONS ) 010-6170 SOFTBALL FIELD PROJECT BACKFLOW 9,588.03 - w
... PIPEANDFITTINGSINSTALLED e
SOFTBALL FIELD PROJECT INSTALL 2,160.00 11,748.03
VALUES FOR IRRIGATION
VC0480000720 12/04/2025 CRISIS PREVENTION INSTITUTE 010-5200 CPI conference in San Gabriel CA JOHNA 528.91
MEEK *
010-5800 CP| conference in San Gabriel CA JOHNA 1,820.09 2,349.00
- MEEK
~VC(4B0000721 12/04/2025 HILLYARD / PHOENIX T T 010-4380 CLEANING SUPPLIES (ONLY) 161246
VC0480000722 12/11/2025  ADVANCED PLUMBING S8OLUTIONS 7" "0io-s600  TURNED OFF GAS TO CAFETERIA 13500
WEEKEND
VC0480000723 12/18/2025 HILLYARD / PHOENIX 010-4390 DRAIN HOSE AND STATIC DISSIPATING 137.78
HOSE
VC0480000724 12/18/2025 IMPERIAL VALLEY PRESS 010-5840 ADVERTISING HS SOFTBALL FIELD 8ID 354.61
- VIC04B0000725 12/18/2025 SCHOLASTIC T T T 0104300 ScholaficBook Order, T T 0 0 376774
VC0480000726 12/1B/2025 TERMINEX IMPERIALVALLEY 77 7" "0lo-ss500  PESTAND TERMITE CONTROL - 's7240
VCD480000727 12/18/2025 US GAMES 010-5800 FG SW LICENSE HOSTED RENEWAL 747,00
FITNESS GRAM
- Total Number of Checks 90 784,221.37
Fund Summary
Fund Description Check Count Expensed Amount
010 General Fund 84 735,728.71
120 Child Development Fund 1 84,64
130 Cafeteria Fund 10 48.408_.02
Total Number of Checks 80 784,221.37
Less Unpaid Sales Tax Liability .00
- Net (Check Amount) 784,221.37
L] -
The preceding Checks have been issued in accordance with the District's Policy and authotization of the Board of Trustees. *It is recommended that the
preceding Checks be approved. Page 6 of 6

048 - San Pasqual Valley Unified School District Generated for Karen Medel (KMEDEL), Jan 6 2026 2:18FPM




Consent
Exhibit: I11.4
Date: 01.13.26

SAN PASQUAL VALLEY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

TITLE:

The Superintendent recoomends the New hires for Pre-K Clerk, Sped Paraprofessional and
substitute teacher

EXPLANATORY STATEMENT:

The superintendent recommends approval of

California State Preschool Program Clerk (CSPP) — Alyssa Gutierrez
Sped Paraprofesional — Rosa Gonzalez with Maria Perez as alternate

Substtitue Teacher — Vianna Zamudio

STAFF MEMBERS INVOLVED:

Richard Cordero, Superintendent
Inteview committee

FISCAL IMPACT:

Per salary schedule

SOURCE OF FUNDING:

Budgeted — General

RECOMMENDED ACTION:

Approve New hires for Pre-K Clerk, Sped Paraprofessional, and substitute teacher

PREPARED AND SUBMITTED BY:

Alina Sanchez-Loera, Director of Human Resources

REVIEWED BY:

Richard Cordero, M.Ed., Superintendent




~

Consent
Exhibit: 1113
Date: 01.13.26

SAN PASQUAL VALLEY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

TITLE:
Classified and Certificated Seniority List SY 2025-2026

EXPLANATORY STATEMENT:

-~

The SPVUSD Certificated Seniority List is being presented as an information item

STAFF MEMBERS INVOLVED:

Classified and Certificated employees

FISCAL IMPACT:
N/A

SOURCE OF FUNDING:

N/A

RECOMMENDED ACTION:

Approve classified and certificated seniority lists

PREPARED AND SUBMITTED BY:

Alina Sanchez-Loera, Director of Human Resources

1

REVIEWED BY: ‘

Richard Cordero, M.Ed., Superintendent




SAN PASQUAL VALLEY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
CLASSIFIED SENIORITY LIST SCHOOL YEAR 25/26

- S RIre Dats LastiName]

i 2/12/1992|Wright Angela

2 8/13/1996{Garcla |Stacey**

3 10/16/1956|Gallardo |Veronica

4 1/23/1998 santinl Carmen*

5 1619993 Rulz Brenda

[ 8/20/2003 | Hotel Kelly

7 11/16/2004{Sanchez-Loera Allna*

B 2/24/2005]Espinoza Georgla®

9 1/25/2006|berma Diana®*
10 0/21/2007 | Sabori Monica
11 12/3/2007|Mendenhalt Lisa*

12 1/8/2008|Moe Nadia*
13 1/5/2009|Alvarez. Adina
14 4/16/2009|Curtis Cristin®
15 2/17/2011{Morales Alba

16 12/5/2011| Hurtado Marla
17 B8/20/2012 | Hernandez. Afram
18 8f24/2012|Briseno Mike
19 10/1/2012}Weekes Jamie
‘20 10/15/2012{Medina loe
21 8/16/2013|Arana Mzanuela
22 8/16/2013|Feet [melody .
23 9/23/2013[Sanchez [Exlka
24/ 11/6/2013[Munoz {Jorge™ .
25 1/6/2014|Medel jKaren®
26 11/17/2014|Mejta JJosue
27 3/12/2016}Elizarraras Rosarle
28 11/18/2016|Rueda Ana Denise
29 12/1/2016}Martinez Connie
30 1/17/2017)Agullar Karen
31 4f17/2017 |Miller Olvia**
32 B8/1/2017|5chaffer Erlc
33 9/11/2017|Armenta Aracell
34 1/22/2018{Lawrence Hailey
35 3/1/2018 | Valdez Pedro
36 5/21/2018|Fernandez Thomas
37 8/10/2018|Frazier Kristina
38 12/4/2018) Gonzalez Cristian
39 87172019} Galvez Rigoberto
40 3/8/2021Montes de Oca ulio
41 5/10/20211Flores Oscar
42 7/12/2021]Beltran Inmna
43 8/9/2021]Llopez Alejandra
44 8/10/2021 |Lopez Martos
45 9/3/2021 |Rosatio Lopez Onaney
46 11/30/2021}Martinez Irma
47 6/1/2022|PolkEstrada Andre
43 7/11/2022|Paz Daniel*
49 B/15/2022|Rios Cecilla
50 8/22/2022}Kish Valerie*
51 9/1/2022}Dominguez-Hetrrera Zayra
52 10/31/2022 | Montanez Javier
53 171572023 | Lopez Martin
54 7/5/2023}Flores Jose
55 10/2/2023§Diaz Lamas. Damaris
56 6/14/2024]Hemandez Gerardo
57 B/1/2024{Hill Tracy
58 8/1/2024|Miranda Ingrid
59 8/1/2024|0rtega Guadalupe
60! 1/6/2025]Beck Sydney
61 7/31/2025!Canedo- Zamudio Karime
62 71312025 vatlar Michella
63 gJ2/2025|Munoz Fonseca Hector
64 10/14/2025| Dominguez Melissa
65 10/27/2025]5ancher Lara Eloy
66 11/17/2025{Gonzalez |Leoneel
67 12/1/2025|Cdonnel tohn

* Confidential
** Non Represented

=k it Ty

pree

<

e L I T TR T




SAN PASQUAL VALLEY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

CERTIFICATED SENIORITY LIST SCHOOL YEAR 25/26 r
[ CTebes TastName IR B tsOName
1 8/27/1992 Hartman Margie
2 8/26/1996 Smith Taune
3 8/20/2002 Polk Lucia
4 8/20/2002 Rutledge Sarah
5 8/18/2004 Beck Amanda
6 8/18/2004 Geraurd Bonnle
7 8/18/2004 Morales Juan
8 8/15/2006 Gonzalez Ablgait
9 8/18/2006 Turner Shelly
10 8/14/2007 Rodriguez-topez laqueline
11 8/18/2009 leffers Sarah
12 8/13/2010 Herrera Loni
13 8/13/2010 Wallace Jennifer
14 8/10/2012 Copeland Leah
15 B8/16/2013 Arias Luis
16 9/24/2013 Dornstedter Kerri
17 10/14/2013 Grande Erin*
18 8/15/2014 Pliego Shannon
19 8/15/2014 Rodriguez Yukelry
20 8/9/2016 Miranda Melissa
21 8/9/2016 Montgomery Jeannete
22 8/11/2017 Rush Timaothy
23 1/17/2018 Meraz Rosa
24 8/9/2019 Kuhz Alan
25 8/9/2019 Sotelo Isalzh
26 8/9/2019 Winterholler Jason
27 8/7/2020 Castillo Alma
28 8/5/2021 Casian Marca
29 8/13/2021, Arredondo Vanessa
30 8/13/2021 Duggan Thomas
31 8/13/2021|Munoz Udia
' 32 1/10/2022 |Gentry-Thrower Jahan
‘233 8/1/2022 Norlega Anastasia*
34 8/12/2022 Martinez Marla
35 8/12/2022|Mccall Peter
36 10/26/2022|Garcia Luisa
37 7/24/2028|Meek Johna*
38 7/24/2023Tudor Alba
39 8/1/2024|Calderon Anel
40 8/1/2024]|Escobedo Luis
41 8/1/2024{Layne Andrew
42 8/1/2024|0rozco Yuritsi
43 8/1/2024]Zaragoza Barragan Clarisa
44 8/5/2024 Knutsen Richard
45 0/6/2024|Bouts Larissa
46 9/24/2024Medina tvet
47 2/1/2025|Barak Juan
48 4/22/2025|Narvaez (PT) Jeanette
49 7/22/2025{Durham Tamy
50 7/31/2025|Castra Francisco Ir
51 7/31/2025|Figueroa Alex
52 7/31/2025|Goodrich Dalila
53 7/31/2025|Miller Alyssa
54 7/31/2025]0ntiveros inda
55 7/31/2025|5anchez Emanuel
56 8/19/2025{Gonzalez De La Teja Vivian
57 10/3/2025|Ford Emma

* Administration

i e

it




Consent ~
Exhibit: I1.6
Date: 01.13.2026

SAN PASQUAL VALLEY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

TITLE:

Donation: San Pasqual Valley High School Strong Hearts Club from Quechan Indian Tribe

Paradise Casino & Quechan Casino \ '

EXPLANATORY STATEMENT:

The Quechan Indian Tribe has donated $250 from the Quechan Casino Resort and $250 from
Paradise Casino Operating for a total of $500 to the Strong Hearts Club. The donation will go to
help with club expenses for the light parade. .

STAFF MEMBER INVOLVED

Sarah Jeffers — Teacher San Pasqual Valley High School - Advisor
Andre Polk — Paraprofessional San Pasqual Valley High School - Advisor

FISCAL IMPACT: -

No fiscal impact — donation

SOURCE OF FUNDING:

N/A

RECOMMENDED ACTION:

Accept Donation: San Pasqual Valley High School Strong Hearts Club from Quechan Indian -
Tribe Paradise Casino & Quechan Casino

PREPARED AND SUBMITTED BY:

Anastasia Noriega, SPVHS Principal

i

REVIEWED BY:

Richard Cordero, Superintendent




o

Quechan Indian Tribe T, .- 80392
VENDOR NO: A _AEﬂl K NAME:  AMITRE BOLK _ _ CHE_CK DATE: 491112025 “
« |--~-REFERENCE... NVOATES. 170 INVDESCRIEHON. .~ . |* GROSS AMOUNT...... | DISCOUNETSKEN.C | NET.AMOUNERAID_ %]
- 121125-$PON 121112025  SPONSORSHIP - LIGHT PARADE T 250.00 o000 260.00
7 ! . ' ) :
(Y r ¢ ! ‘5. . .
B " «‘i - ) ¢
[ T
e PEES S i v ! . ¥
f s " ! . - ’
¥ e T !
H n
) ’(_’ FR Fl
S 4 ’;« N "‘!T
¢ al
»
e e
TOTAL> ., 250.00 |

T . Paradise Casmo Operatuig Account T 300S4th St

s P.O.Box 2737
E @Yuma. Az 85364 =
(760) 572—3900

.—g

Tk

> Two Hundred Flﬁy and 00/100“****

Bank of Amerlca

Las Vegas, NV 88101
94-72!1224 NV *

2nd fioor

N ELE
GETE

mOB03Gdr RLRZZLOOT Ehis

S0L04LERTYDSON

- .

IR,

S




Wuechan indian 1 ribe 42u4d

VENDURNO‘ QCRAPOIK . NAME: ANDREPOIK. . . _ CHECK DATE: 4914005 :
T IREEFRENCE. . . C[|SINVIATE: fs.t e INVDESGRIBTION. b ol ZGROSSAMOUNT. .2 JISCQHNHAKEN; . NETAMOLNG PAID 2.
! 121125-SPONSOR » 12111/2028 < SFONS_ORSHIP;LIGHT PARADE o - 250.00 . 0.00 v " 250.00
—_— ne s R . ¥ L .
! ; H ; $ :
’ . - . ,
3
M "
}v - b
- : & 5 ow !
\ # ., ‘:‘ !
i? R 4 ¢ oa
* #oa s s T : ! ‘j'
y o b1 E ‘
. '!: -r.§:ag..\"'f-,x @ N "il 5 ‘}
i ¢ 0.00f X~ . 250.00] -
i - s ey '

o ~u

, Quechan [ndlan Tr:be Barik &mm.. ’

. Quechan Casino Resort f.;‘:"
' Operating Account - '

yh 525 Algodones Road

¢ ;Winterhaven, CA 92283 "

v(?ﬁﬂ) 572—3900 % i

Las Vegas, 89101
94~72[1 224 NV

oo Fe 1 Y
{ TOTHE ‘i\‘f‘

%% ORDER 4
. OFS

why

WOLSELSG L2200 7 LI SOL0LLERESRS 3

o

— B ey et p—— - —— - —— s e . RPN [PCE . -~ == e A i




Consent
Exhibit: IIL.7
Date: 01.13.2026

— N

SAN PASQUAL VALLEY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

TITLE: -
Donation: San Pasqual Valley High School Strong Hearts Club from Quechan Indian Tribe

EXPLANATORY STATEMENT: ~

The Quechan Indian Tribe will be donating $300.00 to the San Pasqual Valley High School
Strong Hearts Club, for the 2025 Holiday Season. The donation will go to help with club
expenses and end of the year trip.

STAFF MEMBER INVOLVED

Sarah Jeffers — Teacher San Pasqual Valley High School - Advisor
Andre Polk — Paraprofessional San Pasqual Valley High School - Advisor

FISCAL IMPACT: ,

No fiscal impact — donation

SOURCE OF FUNDING:

N/A

Ay

RECOMMENDED ACTION:

Accept Donation: From The Quechan Indian Tribe to the San Pasqual Valley High School
" Strong Hearts Club.

PREPARED AND SUBMITTED BY:

Anastasia Noriega, SPVHS Principal

REVIEWED BY:

T
Richard Cordero, Superintendent




7 'QUECHAN INDIAN 1KIsE ™ — e ~—— e

Payee Strong Hearts Native Society . . 325920
VendoriD 13188 ~ Account #: 12182025
Invoice | Description | Discount [ Amount
13188-12/0/12025 PO#145803 DONATION: 2025 HOLIDAY SEASON $0.00 $300.00
s : *
Total - $0.00 $300.00

iy A
{o LF ’1 e
" QUECHAN IND]AN TRIBE -
o 1 P.0O.BOX1899 * ., 4 -
poae™ ;.p’ YUMA, A7 85366-1899
L e (760)919-3500 s * G L e
{8 .
) T b s
BRI
* : & T
§ ¢ > 1

yw“a T s h{ = ‘ e
£ iy 121072025 + i S ssoo oo o«
- PAY *, N5 AT T . ‘

&= TO THE

. Rt 1676 Baseline Road
Wmterhaven, CA 92283

m3259 30" 15122000 2L Dag?ZeOgam

Shrorg MearB

QX
va clo no)ru\\

—h —E - e e — AN L e e, e e 4 e 5, (et s

PN

e



Consent
Exhibit; II1.8
Date: 01.13.26

SAN PASQUAL VALLEY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

1 s

TITLE:

Donation: San Pasqual Valley High Boys Basketball from Chapman Dodge Chrysler Jeep Ram
Yuma

EXPLANATORY STATEMENT:

“

Chapman Dodge Chrysler Jeep Ram Yuma has donated $500.00 to the boys basketball club to
support off season tournaments and additional expenses.

STAFF MEMBER INVOLVED

Willis Hawkins — Head Coach — Boys Basketball

FISCAL IMPACT:

No fiscal impact — donation

SOURCE OF FUNDING: )

N/A _ )

RECOMMENDED ACTION:

1

Accept Donation: San Pasqual Valley High Boys Basketball from Chapman Dodge Chrysler
Jeep Ram Yuma

PREPARED AND SUBMITTED BY:

Anastasia Noriega, SPVHS Principal

REVIEWED BY:

Richard Cordero, Superintendent

i




[P L

o s o

P

[

e

A

dﬁ!f‘m
Pop

By "s' : % w7 LI ot AV Nt‘"jm vyt & ‘
- ; kS by 4 » ’\ ey . a8 E ol - T
; . s, E‘ev, " .‘t:y i. e i . »;A;"‘L‘ _‘:.;V "'-‘wi' £ ’ ‘*:"f'};‘:“‘” . ‘h- 4 o > - <
R . CHAPMANDODGE ' ' _ ° . BANKOF AMERICA “U% ¥ ° 5 o
o ; CHRYSLER JEEPRAMYUMA = | .. WS oy w‘“-‘» - 1 \\u’i’: AL,
Y cmmmmammew | 349 32nd Street -, T T T ‘;;‘:‘:M_’.’:h E N 41089
+ o Yuma AZB5364 - T T E Ty e IR T S B 4 N
i . Y : &
DATE (628) 344 - 2650 PAYTHIS AMOUNT e +™ [~ AMOUNT OF CHECK
FINOVIS L ‘ o % srsssnrienng | DOL{ARS 00 CENTSH n"j,- a3 x [ewsenersn00.00
Aw » ¥ _«2' - " - AT - " D K -
£y ) - L e “"h.\‘f- e ;‘}ir . ks Lo S e ot .
- ’ i . 2 - W, ‘\r“ M ) .,qu
- W " VOID AFTER 180 DAYS
FlE L - o ! N . W b3 , ) .
TO S v ’ . DM‘\ Y\ il
- THE SPVHS BOYS BASKETBALL TEAM Ry M X ;
ORDER . S S S BY M\J Ve é
~ ; ¥ N ' AUTHORIZED SIGNATURE :
A . P N .!
tr00000L L85 L k22di0k70BE, LEP02LB30C3EM

Beo bt bl

.
. .
L
%
1
+
T ——




Consent
Exhibit: I1.9
- Date: 01.13.2026

SAN PASQUAL VALLEY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
TITLE:

Arizona First Lego League Explore Festival

EXPLANATORY STATEMENT:

Students will participate in the Arizona First Lego League Explore Festival in Phoenix, Arizona
on January 10, 2026. The event will provide hands-on STEM learning opportunities and support
student collaboration, creativity, and problem-solving skills. Students and staff will travel from 6:00
AM to 7:00 PM on the day of the event. !

STAFF MEMBER INVOLVED:

Vanessa Arrédondo

FISCAL IMPACT:

e Parking: $76.00
« Registration $25.00
» Transportation: $250.21
Total Estimated Cost: $ 351.21

SOURCE OF FUNDING:

ELO-P

RECOMMENDED ACTION:

It is recommended that the Board approve the field trip to the Arizona First Lego League Explore
Festival in Phoenix, Arizona on January 10, 2026.

PREPARED AND SUBMITTED BY:
Tamy Durham, Elementary Principal

REVIEWED BY:

Richard Cordero, M.Ed., Superintendent




N i

SAN PASQUAL VALLEY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

FIELD TRIP REQUEST
{Overnight and/or Out-of-State Field Trips must be approved by the Board)
Teache_r/Adv1sorlCoach:V anessa An. e d on d o Activity Namez, . L ogo Lesqus Explore Festival
School: ] Location: . »
San Pasqual Elementary Phoenix, Arizona
#of Student6 | Grade Class:Elem Depart Date: 01/10/2026
Registration/Entrance
Cost 25 . 0 O ’ d
Hotel Cost (Room & | Nights: Rooms: Parking: 75 Total Cost:
Tax) Male
[ Fe]:mlle

Adult (male) - .

Adult

(female)

Tota]
Staff Meals($64/day) | Breakfast ($16): " Lunch ($18): Dinner ($30): Total Costz
Student Meals Breakfast ($10) Tunch (312) Dinner (315) Total Cost:
($37/day) .
Transportation: i
Van S;GISJBuSSG.SB 250.21 L
Total: 351.21 -
ALL backup material must be provided. . -
Source of Funding: ELOP - N
Will you use a District Bus or Van‘? Y&c. NE
School Dude Request Date: 1 2l 04] 2025 ____(provide a copy of transportation request) .
Will you require a substitute: Yes, DNO .lf yes, please follow up with District Clerk) -
Student Permission Form: Yes . No o i T .
Signature of Employee/Staff Member: Vé,n essa Arredondo Date: 12/04/2025 '
TS A R e Bk R :""‘“U"x "é::&@‘-s_\, :—u«- P APPROVAL S PR e u»ﬁ:.@..._._-‘-,:j.s;,_a.m,m‘_ L Lt ol P SRS A T
.{ ed [IDisapproved N
Principal/Supyrvisor Dat . -
B T .os?*;g,.:m D[STR!CT OFFICE USE e B =
OApproved  [iDisapproved h ' 7
Superintendent Date Date Reviewed By Board
*

ekt I e et T -




Print Trip Report

San Pasqual Valley Unified School Distict

Trip ID 2375

Booked By |

Baoked By Mendenhall, Lisa

. Email Imendenhall@spvisdorg e Pager

- Phone 7605720222

Callular

Booking Details

Trip Name ArlzonaFirstLego League

Status Submitted
- Trip State Inaclive

I
Created Date 12/4/2025 1:23:00 FM

Departing Location Elementary
Organization Elementary
Trip Destination Phoenix
Trip Type Round Trip
Telp Package

Trip Departure Date Time 1/10/2026 6:00:00 AM l Trip Return Date Time 1/10/2026 7.00:00 PM

Driver Departure Time
Partiéipant Drop Off Time

Destination Amrival Date Time

Driver Start Locatlon "

Participant Drop Off Loeation
Estimated Round Trip Mileage 0

Briver Return Time
Participant Pick Up Time
Destination Departure Date Time .

Briver End Location
Participant Pick Up Location

Trip Contact . i

Name Mendenhd,

Lisa

Emali Imendenhall@spvsdomg Pager

Phone 7605720222

Cellular

Aftendees

Faculty Arredondo
Supervising Adults 1
Numbercf students 8

Numberof adults 1
Totals Attendees 9

Costperstudent $0.0000
Cost peradult $0.0000

Categorization |
Budget Code Vi
Budget Code Description .
Recommended Min Age 0 Recommended Max Age 0
EducationalObjective
| Notes .
Spocial Needs and/or

Tsip Requirements
Driving Directions

Required Services ' v

Transportation Type Van
Number Of Vehicles 0

12/5/2025 1:36:30 PM

o

Page 1 of1

ey 4 e p—— SRV RFNETUTR Y B . — — eV e e aar




Erroi" There are problems u.mh the fields in red

- s FLL
’ A

2025-2026 Arizona FLL Expl_ore UNEARTHED

b Requ;red Fe!d

sy

‘-.,f foeb

. Reference Number 92757968 - w
Emalil Address varredondo@spvusd org

:‘ COach First NamaVanessa e

~* GCaach Last Name Arredondo T

.~ 'Cell #6238060640 ..

Selection

Saturday, January 10, FLL Explore Festival @ ASU West Valley Campus  ©

v - 2026 (Glendale) *+ <. & A :_ R
, 10:00 am - 300pm L L. oL
. AL " ' B ¢" - N *
O Date
Thursday. December 4, ‘
2025 _ R TransaclianAmounl. o %
;r ) J . - WL - 2 } .
i . i Ten'ns and Conditlons
TmmmﬂthMmemmmmmmmwmumummmmmmm ueasecmtadusai y K} '
v, AizonaFLLGast edu - *
ra
I N
#
E
H
r -
¥
r
L




% Arizona State
University
Arizona FIRST LEGO® League .

B e T

—_— . o —~ e - P

FLL-E: Arizona FLL Explore Festival @
ASU West Valley Campus

- —-—

Pl
TEos
PER- R
&

P
]

: 1* By emichau3
. .7 September 9, 2025

- e ed b ——r b -— ——ar e . r— ow . P e e

Date: January 10, 2026 Add to Calendar ¥
Time: 9:00 am -4:00 pm
Location: ASU West Valley Campus 4701 W Thunderbird Rd Glendale, AZ 85306

Calendar: FLL Explore
Hosted by FTC team # 10984 Beep Patro!

https://heeppatrolrobotics.org/




Consent
Exhibit: 11.10
Date: 01.13.2026

SAN PASQUAL VALLEY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

TITLE:

Donation: San Pasqual Valley High FFA Club from T & P Farms INC

EXPLANATORY STATEMENT:

T & P Farms INC has donated $5000.00 to the FFA Club to help cover the cost of the loans for
the students’ animals.

STAFF MEMBER INVOLVED

Tim Rush — FFA Advisor

FISCAL IMPACT:

No fiscal impact — donation

SOURCE OF FUNDING:

N/A

RECOMMENDED ACTION:

Accept Donation: Donation: San Pasqual Valley High FFA Club

PREPARED AND SUBMITTED BY:

Anastasia Noriega, SPVHS Principal

REVIEWED BY:

Richard Cordero, M.Ed., Superintendent

.




P e A A e s

T & P FARMS INO.
GENEHALAGCOUN'I' ‘,g. i
P.O.BOX3230 T,
SOMERTON, AZ 85350
PH. 928-627-1803 OFI 928-920-4930 »g‘s~
CaS 3 W s - s T
¢ \ i . Wy

PA'{ )

oanrsaoLS'A-'u‘ Pnsoun/ H,S F'F#
/:/Vé‘ T30S Ald: s

o 4“\ O &
- Hiate

R

T D) NATIONAL BANKOF ARIZONA ; P 1
T oy, WWW.NBARZONACOM | 8004978168 | .., L L @E T
~F ko#ﬁ 74 04.; Sk W B W
- PN e ]

*00003EL A Lid2i053 200

.
. .
'
*
t L] -
-
. L1 .
N . -
¥ -
'
Fl
-
1 o
f
f
K]
.
: f
- -~
r * .
¥ ’
P
S e s —————— - - e e ——— s [ S




R

—

B - - Lk e e e aman pae ik ey o i 3 -

WROP COMMUNITY FOUNDATION R T e TR p 290
687 W STATE ST, v B ai ’ @;,ﬂ 2R g g i lod? %
. EL CENTRO, CA 82243.2043 o M 20085) 4,
s, 3 o “ g ’ 5 e .K::f_;ﬂ;*_ . g
@Mechamcs Bank A W Y A A K S
psom:rxm et S R
oy 11020388 T
-
e C78 *
v ) 4




Consent
Exhibit: 11.10
Date: 01.13.2026

SAN PASQUAL VALLEY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
TITLE:
Donation: San Pasqual Valley High School FFA Club

EXPLANATORY STATEMENT:

The IVROP Community Foundation will be donating $1000.00 to the San Pasqual Valley High
School FFA Club. The donation will go towards various events and animal care in preparation of
the fair.

STAFF MEMBER INVOLVED

Ana Noriega — Principal San Pasqual Valley High School
Tim Rush — FFA Advisor San Pasqual Valley High School

FISCAL IMPACT:

No fiscal impact — donation

SOURCE OF FUNDING:

N/A

RECOMMENDED ACTION:

. Accept Donation: From The IVROP Community Foundation to the Winterhaven FFA Club

PREPARED AND SUBMITTED BY:

Anastasia Noriega, SPVHS Principal

REVIEWED BY:

Richard Cordero, M.Ed., Superintendent



Consent
Exhibit: I1.12
Date; 1,13.26

~

SAN PASQUAL VALEEY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
TITLE: ! )

The Superintended recommends approval of Surplus Requests: Add Obsolete and Unused Items
to Surplus for Auction

EXPLANATORY STATEMENT:

Items from school sites that are no longer used and can be surplused. The auction will be held in
the spring. These items will be included in the auction and the advertisement of the auction.

STAFF MEMBER INVOLVED:

Leadership team

FISCAL IMPACT:

N/A.

SOURCE OF FUNDING:

NA

RECOMMENDED ACTION:

Approve items to district surplus area.

PREPARED AND SUBMITTED BY:

Jorge Munoz, Director of Facilities and Operations

REVIEWED BY:

Richard Cordero, M.Ed., Superintendent




TN

SAN PASQUAL VALLEY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
SURPLUS REQUEST

DATE: { 1/&25

FROM (setectsice/Dept): Iransportstion

PNNGPAUSWESUPERWSORAPPROVAL:%—.:S——
DESCRIPTION/TILE MAKE/MODEL/ISBNS _ TAG/SERIAL NO

CONTACTNAME: Cristian Gonzalez

QTY  CONDITION

CONDITION CODES:

0O=0BSOLETE G=GOOD F=FAIR P=POOR

Leas Lf-g&gh g ez Z 0
Lqup Baca~P C"/::% 88 | 13?2075 J 9
Lame Led Gorobe 189585 | & | ©
Gasmo# Lame 86 234347 |23 0
Modul e Signe) =3 Lot l2qy Yeoo f o
Red Lrigir b lyog fegs/ etz | IS0 12 | o
Red lews  5050/°%° 3393 ||, (g, 5020 g | o
Red  Led Trgln olists | & o
Aober Led  tophy X 0.30 16 & 0
Ouber  [ong - Beldon  loatozuss | | o
ILED  Laog 082z 18 N 0
Laop, morgor- v/ Geard, Amle | Inbrvatranal |BZ30307¢/ | 2 0
NLang, Moger st Oval Reabbe [Sund— Stat | 101049 / o
Lqu, Macker ~ Led Quaf AML&F rtenajenaf 3842822691 ) | o

: La“tﬂ, Mater~led  ovef Qo tatevofonces 138428219/ | o
~ Lens, Nober Warnmg 74 heonghene/  2o0g3pacr 2 o

FEIHCSEPI2 TSR RES R tt‘ﬂﬂ!mRmmANCWAﬂmouss USEONLV*O VEXREITITLVRL BERACT L RN

,\J(f,'(- MU\A&

RECEIVED BY:

NOTES:

pate;_{ 2~ §-2%

SUBMITFORM TO BUSINESS OFFICE FOR BOARDAPPRAL




SAN PASQUAL VALLEY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

SURPLUS REQUEST

DATE: _‘L/?é‘i

FROM (selectSite/Dent); Iransportation CONTACTNAME: Cristian Gonzalez
PRINCIPAL/SITESUPERVISORAPPROVAL: ez

DESCR!PHQNIT!T‘.E MAKE!MODWISBN__?_ TAG/SERIAL NO Ty CONDITION
Plysk  Gonheck  Bushing  Wrhsqn w®a sp3 | | o
Lok Repair Kb Halde 8 Y1 225 | 8 0
nl—ennﬂ Cde %@LQ:P‘J [ 0

' f)em /”h.’n Faor 030 ' o’

Lm 4 Arse “Q’J? K ) LIB/GU 28 | o
UsBolt " 97%x 8.5" gl |2 | o
U—G (e 3'%x 9.8" . J—6d- | 2 o
Roller Tydle ! 0
Swileoh (ote k0289 | 0
Washor @ crmg Lk 7052 | | o
| Switche HEHolizz7 € o
| Scal,_cltng (puw wan) B R |o7szsg |22 | o
R el Bo 2ig 2905 | 3 o
Leus An, \‘Jer— s 042g190y | 2 o
85" Rectongle  Vellon/ [ens. Sf"” ECWRtaet bty | | o
Lens KA 70 Fineonafrd 259G312¢( 2 o

CONDITIONCODES: O=O0BSOLETE G=GODD F=FAIR P=PODR

KRR P THEESOTREIRD ERE GwAY $*F°R MNWNMCEIWAREHOUSE USE oml_yt P ERTFL TN SRR TTFEOTE N

RECEIVEDBY: \J o‘(‘fv(_ Mwmo pATE:_ {2 ~§-29S

NOTES:

SUBMITFORM TO BUSINESS OFFICE FOR BOARD APPRAL




SAN PASQUAL VALLEY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

SURPLUS REQUEST

DATE: [2/8/25 >

FROM (select Site/Dept}: Iransportation CONTACT NAME: Cristian Gonzalez
P.RINC!PALIS]TESUPERVISORAPPROVAL:7‘:2QS\
_ DESCB]FTIDN/ TITI;E MANE/MIODEL/ISBN#  TAG/SERIAL NO Ty CONDITION

Pin 8 , 06633“(? ¢ o
Valye , 1\ ai_nlesc/"‘% Rkv 32005 | | o
fhol Ha [deg KV 20 90( ¢ o
alve  Plipper | Halded  |Knzomy | 1 o
K Wwob (19 n.rlu,.(_} &) J- C&J dey ’ 6 o
Air ﬁe aulater Dr—y e ML AwWzg-wgiEtere l o
Seal ¥ Stemco 308-083¢ | 2. o
Sed | HB//'W b lzi2(699 | £ 0
Pf 835 Seasor /'Lm frr A 2z37Flssg| ) 0
Seal - o« lonal 38dig 34 | | °
| Exhamst  belr d-? Mo Easy v af =2 o
wige— R * N‘oc? q b0-oH—2 ( 0
B¢ Qul Felfer NA eA. \38¢ L | o
' Rmcm# | B8 001039(2 °
Bdff‘{'tf‘s-' cable 1 Delco - =22 |/ o

];:
CONDITIONCODES:  O= OBSOLETE G=GO0DD F=FAIR P=POOR

Mppednpddor 2y Ry fil $#FQR MA[NTENANCEIWARE‘HOUSEUSE ONL‘)“% FRm R g g Rl kg o

RECEIVED BY: J A9C Mooz DATE_12.~€- 25

NOTES:

SUBMITFORM TO BUSINESS OFFICEFOR BOARDAPPRAL
]




i
1
i

i

SAN PASQUAL VALLEY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

SURPLUS REQUEST

DATE: 131/25/25

FROM (select Site/Dept): High School Site —

PRINCIPAL/SITE SUPERVISOR APPROVAL:

NA!VIE: Valerie Kish

MAKE/MODEL/ISBN#  TAG/SERIALNO Qry CONDITION

DESCRIPTION/TITLE.

Carpentry Textbook " 9780826908001 29 0
Modern World History 9780613184880 71 o]
Collier Encyclopedia 1981 24 0

| Decoding Strategies 5780026747790 155 o
Decoding Strategies 9780026747868 146 O
| Elements of L{teraturé (Annntaged Teacher’s Edition) 9780030277283 3 i o
Elements of Literature Student Textbook 9780157175202 4 o]
| Medieval and Early Modern Times 9780131817470 3 o
Holt Li'_teramre &kilaznguage Arts Reading, Writing, 9780030564949 2 0
Holt I.lte;'ature and Language Arts 978003055495’0 _ 2 0
Elements of Literature 9780157175400 3 0
Grammar and Composition ' 9780395314050 1 o
Themes in American Culture 9780395200834 3 o
United States Govemnment 9780544742680 1 )
United States Government Teacher's Edition 9780544742857 1 0

:
k
4

CONDITION CODES: 0=08SOLETE G=GO00D F=FAIR P=POOR

EFASEE SRR S E AL EEOR VIAINTENANCE/WAREHOUSE USE ONLY

RECEVED BY:_—97 C M wwl

NOTES: -

DATE;_t2-11-25

SUBMIT FORM TO BUSINESS OFFICE FOR BOARD APPRAL

3




13

SAN PASQUAL VALLEY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

SURPLUS REQUEST

DATE: 11/25/25

FROM {Select site/Dept):  High School Site =

PRINCIPAL/SITE SUPERVISOR APPROVAL:

{~—

ACT NAME: Valerie Kish

N7
Mmml&onm;ssm# TAG/SERIAL NO

DESCRIPTION/TITLE Q1Y CONDITION
Economics 9780544859296 1 O
Holt Literature & Language Arts 9780030992803 i o]
Literature & Language Arts 978030592827 i, 0]
McDougal Littell Literature California 7% grade 9730618933940 i o )
‘McDougal Littell Literature California 6% grade 9780618983964 1 0
McDougal Littell Literature California 8% grade 9780618983544 i o .
Perceptions In Literature 97_'80395112007 2 0
California Holt Literature & Language Arts 1% Course 9780030564925 2 &)
California Holt Li:terature & Language Arts, 2™ Course 9780030564932 1 o
Californla Annotated Teacher Edition Holt Handbook 9780030652536 4 o
California _Annotated Teacher Edition Holt Lit & Lang Arts 9780030573729 1 0
Holt Literature and Language Arts 9780030564963 2 O
Algebra 1 9780130442635 1 o
Conceptual Physics 9780201332872 10 (s}
Holt California Mathematics 5780030923166 1 0

CONDITION CODES: O=0BSOLETE G=GOOD F=FAIR P=POCR

rexsans *s*++FOR MAINTENANCE/WAREHOUSE USE ONLY

RECEIVED BY: ._\a-f‘sc- Moot

NOTES:

DATE; 1 2 -2

SUBMIT FORM TO BUSINESS OFFICE FOR BOARD APPRAL

Y e




SAN PASQUAL VALLEY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
SURPLUS REQUEST

DATE: 11/25/25
FROM (Select Site/Dept): High School Site — CONTACT NAME: Valerie Kish
/P {p~

PRINCIPAL/SITE SUPERVISOR APPROVAL:

uw b} ‘ [
__ DESCRIPTION/TITLE ‘MAKE/MODEL/ISBN#  TAG/SERIALNO:  QIY  CONDITION
. 9780766816640 1 (o)
|_Apriseience Fundamentals & aninlieatinne
Agricultural Mechanics Fundamentals & Applications - 9780766814103 2 0
California Annotated Teacher Edition Handbook 9780030652943 1 0
Modern Livestock & Poultry Production 0781478318083 1 0
Language! The Comp[ehensivg Literacy Curriculum « 9‘_)81602188426 _ 7 0
Focus on Life Scence California 9780132012720 ' ' 1 o. '
Holt McDougal Literature 9780547618395 1 0.
Holt Earth Science Holt Earth S?:ience 9780030922077 1 O
America, History of Qur Nation Independence Through 9780131307315 1 0
1914 - _
High Point Level B 9780736209335 30 0
High Point Success in Language, Literature, Content, The 9780736212236 61 o
High Point Level A 9780736209014 27 0
High Point Level C - 9780736209656 26 0
Ven Conmigol Holt Spanish. Level 2 9780030939907 15 o
Ven Conmigo! Holt Spanish. Level 1 \ 9780030965227 30 o
CONDITION CODES: 0= C}BSOLETE G=G00D F=FAIR P=POOR .
- A ***F0R MAINTENANCE/WAREHOUSE USE ONLY** * *
I
=25
RECEIVED BY: Ja(”!t. M\MD?— DATE: t2-Y" ™ -
NOTES:

SUBMIT FORM TO BUSINESS OFFICE FOR BOARD APPRAL

- e




SAN PASQUAL VALLEY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
SURPLUS REQUEST

DATE: 11/25/25

FROM (select ste/Dept):  High School Site—

PRINCIPAL/SITE SUPERVISOR APPROVAL:

CONTACT NAME: Valerie Kish

DESCRIPTION/TITLE ‘MAKE/MODEL/ISBN# TAG/SERIALNO  -QTY CONDITION
Ven Conmigol Holt Spanish. Level 2 9780030939907 14 _
Ven Conmigot Holt Spanish. Level 1 _9780030965227 9
Western Garden Book . 9780376038845 11
| Modern World History Patterns of interaction 9780547491141 1
Modern Livestock & Poultry Production 9781401827373 1 .
Sm_all Animal Care and Management ! 9781418041052 1
Metal Fabrication '_l‘e;hnotogy for Agriculture 9781401815639 | 2
Landscaping Principles and Practices 9781428376410 | 7 2
Agriscience Fundamentals & Applications 9780766816640 1 N 1
Modem Livestock & Poultry Preduction ‘ 97814283;18083 - x|
Leédership PersoﬁaI'Develﬁpment and Career Success .: : l 9780766825369 ’ 2
Managing Our Natural Resources 9?81428318587 I 2

CONDITION CODES: O =0BSOLETE G=G0O0D F=FAIR P=POOR

b ** FOR MAINTENANCE/WAREHOQUSE USE ONLY

RECENVEDBY: Yo qC Moot

DATE: | 21125

NOTES:

SUBMIT FORM TC BUSINESS OFFICE FOR BOARD APPRAL




T e St

Consent
Exhibit:11.13
i - Date: 01.13.26

SAN PASQUAL VALLEY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

!

TITLE:
Travel/Training: San Pasqual Valley High School Principal to WASC Accreditation Committee

EXPLANATORY STATEMENT:

L]
The SPVHS Principal Mrs. Noriega has been selected to participate on a WASC Accreditation
Committee in San Diego California for Kearney Engineering, Innovation and Design School on
March 15-18, 2026.

STAFF MEMBER INVOLVED:
Ana Noriega — SPVHS Principal

FISCAL JIMPACT: :
Transportation & Substitute Teacher Cost Only - Meetings

ltemized List QaTy Cost Total Paid By:

Van Cost (est. 394 miles) 394 S .70 S 275.80 General Travel

Staff Hours - (est. 6 hours extra) 6 S 4222 S 253.32 General Travel

Hotel Cost — 3 Nights 1 Room -

$154.98 per night +‘Tax JFees 1 S 53441 ) 534.41 General Travel
Staff Meals- 3 Lunch &4 1 $  174.00 $ 17400 | General Travel
Dinner

s 1,237.53 | General Travel
SOURCE OF FUNDING:
Budgeted - General ;- Travel
RECOMMENDED ACTION:

Approve the Travel/Training: San Pasqual Valley High School Principal to WASC Accreditation

Committee | -

PREPARED AND SUBMITTED BY:
Valerie Kish, High School Secretary

REVIEWED BY:
Richard Cordero, Superintendent




iy ot g o i e — ey

A
SAN PASQUAL VALLEY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
REQUEST FOR CONFERENCE/FIELD TRIP/VIRTUAL MEETING
Conference Title: WASG Accreditation Committee Conference Type: In County Out of Town Zoom

W

Staff Attending: Ana Noriega

Confarence Dates: March 16-18, 2026 . Travel Dates: March 15-18, 2026

Location: San Diego CA

Registration: {Conferance matesials must be provided) NO Registration

Hotel Cost: (including tax} Nights- 3 (1 Room) Rooms Cost- $154.98 plus tax/fee Parking Cost included 534.41

Staff Meals: 0- Breakfast ($16) 3- Lunch ($18) 4- Dinner ($30) 174.00

Same day trips will require meal receipts and a reimbursement form

Transportation fuel cost per mile van=3.70 394 miles X .70 4 275.80

Flights / Shutitles - NA -

Parking / Other additianal cost. Additionalfovertime pay- Exira Time Travel Hours 6hr 253,32 253,32

TOTAL 1237.53

Will you use a District VehicleYes No (If no. mileage, gas ar parking will not be reimbursed unless a district vehicle is not avallable)
School Dude Transportatioprgquested dafe:  12/9/25 {Include a copy of school dude submission.)
Will you require a substi S , if yes, submit jesson plans to office and request coverage to District clerk.)

Date: }Q’flo

Signature of Employee

OFFICE USE

i DISTRICT OFFICE USE .

JApproved [ODisapproved

District Office Date

1

Date reviewed by Board

Registration Paid _‘
Hotel Booked ?
Air Fare (if applicable)

INSTRUCTIONS: This form is to be complated prior o corferenceiworkshop allendance. Submit all copées to immediate supervisor wha will give initial approval and forward
all copies to superintendent for fina] approval. No trave! clalms, advances, or credit card charges will be pald without submissien of this foym in advance. 772572025

L3

1

i

e b b AT g e SMTERSER ot s e S b




1

San Pasqual Valley High School
Conference/Field Trip Request Proposal

) Virtual Zoom Meeting
Staff Member(s) Name: Ana Noriega v
Site: HS
Date Submitted: 12/9/25
Name of Conference: WASC Accreditation Member
Date and Location of conference/field trip:
March 16-18, 2026

Kearney Engluneering Innovation and Design School San Diego CA

What is the purpose/justification of your attendance at this conference?
Visiting commitiee members for WASC Accreditation v
How does this conference impact student learning?

N/A

How does this fit with our Schoolwide or LCAP goals?

Goal # 3 - San Pasqual Valley Unified Schoal District will graduate students who are college and
career ready, meet the A-G requirements, and meet at least one {1) other College and Career
Readiness Indicator. San Pasqual Valley Unified School District promote 8th grade students by
preparing students for high school by providing a challenging and rigorous curriculum. SPYMS
will provide college and career related curriculum through Get Focused, Stay Focused.

What is your plan to utilize this information when you return to your classroom?

N/A

e e e R . . - - v S ap—

T~ ek A A




§2 outlook

y

Fwa: ACS WASC Visiting Cc;mmittee Acceptance

From Anastasia Noriega <anoriega@®spvusd.org>
Date Tue 12/9/2025 1:15 PM
To Valerie Kish <vkish@spvusd.org>
k
I will be attending this event in San Diego for WASC accreditation. | will require hotel stays. Arrive March
15 and check out March 18. _

Ana Noriega

From: ACS WASC <membersdesk@acswasc.org>
Sent: Tuesday, December 9, 2025 1:13 PM

To: Anastasia Noriega <anoriega@spvusd.org>
Subject: ACS WASC Visiting Committee Acceptance

ACCREDITING COMMISSION FOR S5CHOOQLS

Dear Anastasia Noriega,

Thank you for accepting the invitation to serve as a Member on a WASC
visiting commitiee to Kearny Engineering, Innovation and Design. Visit
details are as follows:

School: Kearny Engineering, Innovation and Design
Address: San Diego, Califomnia

Visit: Self-Study

Visit Dates: March 16-18, 2026

Chair Information:

Name: Ruzanna Hernandez

Email: ruzanna_hernandez@cjusd.net

Note: If chair information is blank, there is no assigned chair yet.

Even if you're a returning or experienced team member, please take time
to review the training videos available under the Training tab in

your Member Portal. These resources ensure we remain consistent and
aligned with current protocols and expectations.

[ ————




As a Visiting Committee member, you play a vital role in supporting
schools through the accreditation process. Key responsibilifies include
thoroughly reviewing the school’s seli-study, contributing io the team’s
analysls and evidence gathering, engaging with the school team in
meaningful dialogue about continuous improvement opportunities, and
collaborating on the writing of the Visiting Committee report.

Thank you,

Accrediting Commission for Schools, WASC ;

~

’

]
——— sy S - = S o -
= pan . - + e - e R - SR Uk S et B o L i T AT R




S A ey WL e SR oy A e o e b et mpy o e gz At » g e v L e w - AN g Cn ey e r——

£ P'é"
i

" .
L T -

5
[

+ Courtyard by Marriott San Diego Central

+ 85 Exceflent . 1
@ Hotels.com 1,004 reviews ‘ v
Check-In \ Sunday, March 15, 2026
Chack-out | Wednesday, March 18, 2026
- ';' . ‘Brights, Jroom
!:
i Property highlights i
I 28 Poal (B Parking avallable i
@) Restaurant Bl Connecting roomns available

Room, TKing Bed with Sofa bed (Mobility Accessible, Tub)
% Free WIFl i ‘
- ‘! |

Any special/accessiblllty recuuests? >

s . - b P

e

i . % }
@ You have good taste! Baok now before someona elso grabs It k
1

- i'— b = e By ™ . —m - -
- |
¢ Price details ,

) t
* 3nightsx1room x §154.98 ; $46495 |
. Texesfoes ) $69.46 |
i
i
i . v I
Total $534.41 }
! ‘ All taxes and fees included In total [
} What you see is what you pay ;
T .
1 ]
T
j. Rates are quoted In USD ($). t |
s 3
{ i .

}

1

e e S RS, m e e ey ST, e e e e ht RGP ek AT TN e T bt e e e e




Trip Request:

Vehicle Trip Request

request form.

Booked By

} | First Name
Valeria

Pkone
760-572-0222

1 Booking Details

= Trip Name

7t Trip Destination
Departing Location
= Organization

Teip Package

| Departure Date

f] Trip Departure Time

Transpertation Type

==
® School Bus

A

Thank you for using our intemet service to submit tip requests. This service helps us to promptly aitend to your trip requests. Please complete this

Please be yourself, click hete if you are not Valerie Kish
] Need Assistance? Contact Monica Saborj at ext.2415 or msabori@spvusd.org,

+ IS

7] Last Name 7 Email
Kish vkish@spvusd.org
' Pager . Maobile
O Yes, submit for estimate only.
IWASC Accreditation Commitiee E
S_q.!ﬁ&j;nf Engineering Innovation and Design gges'i?sse, Komet. .
High Schooi 7 v
HighSchool ____ v|
QO One Way ® Round Trip
- Selec! Trip Package-- ~ View Trp Package
311812026 | 7] Return Date anez026 |
[3 vioov!PM+ 71 Trip Return Time {6/ V100 v|PM v

] Click on the transportation type below that best suits your needs:

D .

‘ Number Of Vehicles
£
i e s e
Trip Contact
£ Yes, the Booked By requester information js the sameas the "Trip Contact' information, -
o First Name 7] Last Name [7] Eroail
Ana Norisag } anoﬂaga@saagafé}a o
Phone Pager Ceilular
N ; | i |
N b e e o . ST
"fAttend_ees
i — e
5 Faculty ‘Ana Noriega )
i
' Supervising Adults :n;—“ ) S T T
!
. - - R S - - P, I \
i (7t Numberofstudents o~ T Cost per student | |
" Numher of aduliz 11 " Cast ner adult [ -~ ‘:l

e - - - - PR

Tyl A—— —

o U




SAN PASQUAL VALLEY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
MEAL REIMBURSEMENT CLAIM

Employee Name: Ar\a ‘\)Dgl’ea& Date: 'a' / O[ /3‘6_
Conference Title: LA )PﬂSC ACQ(@ &‘{QJCTDM

ocation: : h Date: '. I%
orsion: SO0 DIEGD CH _pwe Z15[200 4 2]1B[200

MON | TUES WED THUR FRI SAT SUN Total

Breakfast/$16 b
{7am-9am)

Lunch/518

sz | 1% | 1% 1€ Sh

smom | 30 |20 |20 30 | 120

Total Expenses % ﬁ ; l.—] L.{

Board Policy 3350

For one day travel, meal reimbursement is considered a taxable fringe benefit per the IRS Code Section 132 and
262. Therefore, meal expenses for one day travel will be included In the employee’s wages for Federal
employment tax purposes. If hotel/conference provides breakfast with a protein, then breakfast wili not be
included in par diem allowance. If conference provides breakfast/lunch/dinner, then these will not be included in

per diem allowance.

¥

Employee Signature; ( )‘\M\A it Date: D{ Lb |

1 ‘ At} “ \ ‘
Principal/SupervIsor-Signature Date:
f}
District Office Use:
Fund ' Resource Y Goal Function Object Site
Approved by: Date:

5/16/2018

i P ) . » oy

i —




e s T 1 b Ty

-

From: Sarah Jeffers <sjeffers@spvusd.org>
Sent: Friday, December 19, 2025 11:01 AM
To: Alina Sanchez <asanchez@spvusd.org> -
Subject: Re: Phone Call 12/17/25

1
San Pasquat Valley Unified Scheol District
676 Baseline Road
Winterhaven, California

92283

Dear San Pasqual Valley Unified School District Administration,

i

i

Sincerely, ; ~

Sarah Jeffers

High School Teacher

Get Qutlogk for i |

-

R e, pemsy




Discussion/Action Item
Exhibit; V.15
Date: 1,13.26

SAN PASOQUAL VALLEY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

TITLE:
Con App Executive Summary Winter Data Collection
EXPLANATORY STATEMENT:

The Consolidated Application must be submitted to the California Department of Education for the SVSD
to receive funds for categorical programs. The application is submitted online through a web-based
Consolidated Application Reporting System (CARS). For 2025-26, the application requires two data
collections to be submitted online Spring and Winter. This year’s Winter Data Collection must be
submitted online by January 15, 2026 indicating the number of current year pupil participants and funding
allocations for each program and school site. Information reporting from previous years’ program
participation is also collected. Federal guidelines also allow local non-profit private schools to participate
with the public school district in federal programs. Participating eligible schools and allocations are
including in the CARS Winter Data Collection.

STAFF MEMBERS INVOLVED:

Kish Curtis, Chief Business Official

FISCAL IMPACT: g

$852,392 in revenue

SOURCE OF FUNDING:

General -

RECOMMENDED ACTION:

Superintendent recommends approval of Con App Executive Summary Winter Data Collection.

PREPARED AND SUBMITTED BY:

Kish Curtis, Chief Business Official -

REVIEWED BY:

Richard Cordero, M.Ed.,Superintendent




California Department of Education San PasqualValley Unified School District
Consolidated Application Reporting System . Winter DATA Collaction 2025-26

| CON APP EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
WINTER DATA COLLECTION

Consolidated Application Reporting System
Executive Summary for Board Information

The Consolidated Application must be submitted to the California Department of Education
for the San Pasqual Valley Unified School District to receive funds for categorical programs.
The application is submitted online through a web-based Consolidated Application Reporting
System (CARS). For 2025-26, the application requires two data collections {o be submitted:
Spring and Winter.  This year's Winter Data Collection (released December 2025) must be
submitted online by January 15, 2026, indicating the number of current year pupil participants
and funding allocations for each program and school site. Information reporting from previous
years' program participation is also collected. Federal guidelines also allow local non-profit
private schools to participate with the public school district in federal programs. Participating
eligible schools and allocations are included in the CARS Winter Data Collection.

The district is receiving the following funding entitlements for the 2025-26 school year:

Federal Funds: Entitlements
Title | Part A: Basic Grant $ 745,940

A federal program that ensures all children have a fair, equal, and significant opporfunity fo

obtain a high-quality education and reach, at a minimum, proficiency on challenging state
academijc achievement standards and state academic assessments.

Title | Part D: Nealected or Delinguent $ 0
A federal program that provides financial assistance fto local education agency's (LEAs)

educational programs that serve studenis who are neglected, delinquent, or at-risk; including
programs involving collaboration with locally operated correctional facilities.

$ 32,761

A federal program that increases student academic achievement through strategies such as
improving teacher and principal quality and increasing the number of highly qualified teaches
in the classroom and highly qualified principals and assisfant principals in schools.

Title 1ll: _Program for LEP Students $ 14,951

A federal program that provides supplementary programs and services {o assist Limited English
Proficient (LEP) students known as English learners (ELs) in acquiring English and achieving
grade-level and graduation standards.

Title lli: Program for Immigrant Students $ 558
A federal program that provides supplementary programs and services to assist immigrant

students in acquiring English and achieving grade-level and graduation standards.

Title IV: Part A Student Support $ 58,182

Funding provided to increase the capacily of LEAs fo meet these goals 1) providing students with
a well-rounded education, 2} supporting safe and healthy students, and 3) supporting the effective
use of technology in order to improve the academic achievement and digital literacy of all students.

1




San Pasqual Valley Unified School District

California Department of Education
Winter DATA Collection 2025-26

Consolidated Application Reporting System

CON APP EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
WINTER DATA COLLECTION

Title [V: Part B 215t Century Community Learning Centers $ 0

Funding provided for 21st Century Community Learning Centers to provide academic enrichment
and recreational acfivities fo students before and after regular school hours.

1

4

Total Consolidated Federal Funding: $ 852.392




California Department of Education San Pasqual Valley Unified School District
Consolidated Application Reporting System Winter DATA Collection 2025-26

CON APP EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
WINTER DATA COLLECTION

School Site Responsibilities

Each school receiving Federal Funds through the consolidated application is required to have
a comprehensive school plan known as the Single Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA)
describing strategies and activities to improve student achievement and meet district adopted
standards. Supplementary services are provided by these programs to support the district's
core program. Title | Schoolwide schools must address the ten components described in the
Title | law, section 1114. Program Improvement schools must address the ten requirements
in the Title I law, section 1116. Based on the school's comprehensive needs assessment,
schools may utilze additional special highly qualified teachers, coaches, counselors,
instructional aides, tutoring assistance, scientfically research-based intervention programs,
instructional technology, supplemental materials and equipment, professional development,
district provided training, conferences and workshop attendance, expert consultants, and
parent/community engagement activities to meet the identified needs of the students requiring
supplemental services. Each school's School Site Council (SSC) is required to provide
input, assist in the plan/budget development and recommend to the Board annually for
approval the planned program activities and budgets as part of the Single School Plan for
Student Achievement. The Chief Business Official reviews program regulations and
guidelines with all administration, site staff, and School Site Councils to ensure appropriate
planning, implementation and evaluation and to maintain compliance for each program. All
site plans are reviewed for compliance along with goals and activities to improve student
achievement and parent involvement before being forwarded to the Board for approval.

Con App Workshop Kish Curtis CBO
Imperial COE Board Agenda Approval
February 2016 (01/13/2026)




California Department of Education .Consolidated Application

San Pasqual Valley Unified (13 63214 0000000) Status: Certified
i Saved by: Kish Curtis
Date: 1/8/2026 6:53 AM

2023-24 Title Il, Part A Fiscal Year Expenditure Reporf, Closeout 27
Months

A report of year-to-date expenditures by activity. Activity period covered is July 1, 2023 through September 30,
2025.

CDE Program Contact: ~

Alice Ng (Fiscal), Division Support Office, ANe@cde.ca.gov , 916-323-4636
Lisa Fassett (Program), Professional Learning Support & Monitoring Office, LEasseti@cde.ca.gov, 916-323-4963

2023-24 Title Il, Part A allocation $34,789
2023-24 Title ll, Part A total apportionment issued $34,789
Transferred—in amount 50
Transferred—out amount 50
202324 Total allocation $34,789
Professional Development Expenditures
Professional development for teachers $25,272
Professional development for administrators $1,223
Consulting/Professional services 30
Induction programs $5,000
Books and other supplies N $0
Dues and membership $0
Travel and conferences $0
Persohnel and Other Authorized Activities
Certificated personnel salaries $0
Classified personnel salaries . 30
Employee benefits 50
Developing or improving an evaluation system $0
Recruitment activities 50
Retention activities 50
Class size reduction $0
Program Expenditures )
Direct administrative costs $0
[ndirect costs $3,294
Equitable services for nonprofit private schools $0
Total expenditures , ! $34,789
2023-24 Unspent funds $0
“**Warning***

The data in this report may be protected by the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA)

and other applicable data privacy laws. Unauthorized access or sharing of this data may constitute a
Report Date:1/8/2026 viclation of both state and federal law. Page 1 of 4

RoO2




California Department of Education Consolidated Application
San Pasqual Valley Unified {13 63214 0000000} Status: Certified

Saved by: Kish Curtis
Date: 1/8/2026 6:53 AM

2023-24 Title I, Par;: A Fiscal Year Expenditure Report, Closeout 27-
Months

A report of year-to-date expenditures by activity. Activity period covered is. July 1, 2023 through September 30,
2025.

CDE Program Contact:

Alice Ng (Fiscal), Division Support Office, ANg@cde.ca.gov , 916-323-4636
Lisa Fassett (Program), Professional Learning Support & Monitoring Office, LFasseti@cde.ca.gov, 916- 323—4963

Note: CDE will invoice the LEA for the unspent 2023-24 total allocation

**Warning™*
The data in this report may be protected by the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA)
and other applicable data privacy laws. Unauthorized access or sharing of this data may constitute 2

Report Date:1/8/2026 viclation of both ;(t;te and federal law. Page 2 of 4




California Department of Education Consolidated Application

San Pasqual Valley Unified {13 63214 0000000) < ?Latu}s(:_ (r:‘e(r:liﬁ;d
aved by: Kish Curtis
- Date: 1/8/2026 6:53 AM

2023-24 Title Il English Learner YTD Expenditure Report, Closeout 27
Months )

A report of yearto-date (YTD) expenditures by aclivity. Activity period covered is July 1, 2023 through
September 30, 2025.

CDE Program Contact:

Annie Abreu Park, Language Policy and Leadership Oifice, AAbreuPark@cde.ca.gov, 916-319-9620 .
Geoffrey Ndirangu, Language Policy and Leadership Office, GNdirang@cde.ca.gov, 916-323-5831

Required and authorized Title 1l Engli:sh Learner (EL) student program activities

An eligible entity receiving funds under the Every Student Succeeds Act section 3115 (c)-(d} shail use the funds
for the supplementary services as part of the language instruction program for EL students.

Refer to the Program Information link above for required and authorized EL student prograt activities.

Refer to the Data Entry Instructions link above for Expenditure Report Instructions.

2023-24 Title Il EL student program allocation $16,369
2023-24 Title 1ll EL total apportionment issued amount $16,369
Transferred-in amount $0
2023-24 Total allocation $16,369
Object Code - Activity

1000-1999 Certificated personnel salaries $0
2000-2999 Classified personnel salaries $0
3000-3999 Employee henefits 50
4000-4999 Books and supplies $5,990
5000-5998 Services and other operating expenditures 58,829
Direct administrative costs (amount cannot exceed 2% of the total 30
apporiionment issued amount plus transferred-in amount)

Indirect costs (LEA can apply its approved indirect rate to the portion of the $1,550
subgrant that is not reserved for direct administrative costs) !

Total year-to-date expenditures $16,369
2023-24 Unspent funds $0
Note: CDE will invoice the LEA for the unspent 2023-24 total allocation

“**Warning™*
The data in this report may be protected by the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA)
and other applicable data privacy laws. Unauthorized access or sharing of this data may consfitute a

Report Date:1/8/2026 violation of both ;;te and federal law. Page 3 of 4




California Department of Education Consolidated Application

San Pasqual Valley Unified (13 63214 0000000) < éit;tu}s(g ﬁ:]egiﬁr?id
aved by: Kish Curtis
Date; 1/8/2026 6:53 AM

2023-24 Title V, Part B Subpart 2 RLIS LEA Closeout Report

The purpose of this data collection is {o report final expenditures and calculate unspent Title V, Part B Subpart 2
Rural and Low Income Schools (RLIS) funds.

CDE Program Contact:
Patricia Ramirez, Rural Education and Student Support Office, REAP@cde.ca.qov, 916-319-0787

2023-24 Title V, Part B Subpart 2 RLIS LEA allocation $21,813
Funds transferred-in amount 30
202324 Title V, Part B Subpart 2 RLIS LEA available allocation $21,813

Final Expenditures

Administrative and indirect costs $1,615
Activities authorized under Title |, Part A $20,198
Improving basic programs operated by the LEA
Activities authorized under Title |1, Part A . $0
|Supporting Effective Instruction
Activities authorized under Title }lI S0
Language instruction for English learner and immigrant students '
Activities authorized under Title [V, Part A 50
Student Support and Academic Entichment - .
Parental involvement activities . 50
Total expenditures B $21,813
Amount of unspent funds $0
Note: CDE will invoice the LEA for the unspent funds . .
E
=*Warning™** .

The data in this report may be protected by the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA)

and other applicable data privacy laws. Unauthorized access or sharing of this data may constitute a
Report Date:1/8/2026 violation of both state and federal law. Page 4 of 4

R0O2




California Depariment of Education Consolidated Application

San Pasqual Valley Unified (13 63214 0006000) - dStt;atu;: ?leniﬁed
Saved by: Kish Curtis
Date: 1/8/2026 6:53 AM

" 2024-25 Title |, Part A LEA Carryover

Report only expenditures and obligations made through September 30 for fiscal year 2024-25 allocation to
determine funds to be carried over.

CDE Program Contact:
Rina DeRose, Title | Policy, Program, and Support Office, RDeRose@cde.ca.gov, 916-323-0472

Carryover Calculation

2024-25 Title |, Part A LEA allocation . $779,305
Transferred-in amount N 30
202425 Title |, Part A LEA available allocation $779,305
Expenditures and obligations through September 30, 2025 $779,305
Carryover as of September 30, 2025 30
Carryover percent as of September 30, 2025 0.00%
+
3
¥
»*“Warning™*

The data in this report may be protected by the Family Educationat Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA)
and other applicable data privacy laws. Unauthorized access or sharing of this data may constitute a

Report Date:1/8/2026 violation of both !:ézte and federal law, Page 1 of 4




California Department of Education Consolidated Application

San Pasqual Valley Unified {13 63214 0000000} S ?Ii’atu;s(:' %egiﬁr?id
aved by: Kish Curtis
Date; 1/8/2026 6:53 AM

2024-25 Title llt English Learner YTD Expenditure Report, 18 Months

A report of year-to-date (YTD) expenditures by activity. Activity pericd covered is July 1, 2024 {hrough December
31, 2025.

CDE Program Contact:

Annie Abreu Park, Language Policy and Leadership Office, AAbreuPark@cde.ca.gov, 916-319-9620
Geoffrey Ndirangu, Language Policy and Leadership Office, GNdirang@cde.ca.gov, 916-323-5831

Required and authorized Title lll English Learner (EL) student program activities

An eligible entity receiving funds under the Every Student Succeeds Act section 3115 (c)-(d) shall use the funds
for the supplementary services as part of the language instruction program for EL students.

Refer to the Program Information link above for required and authorized EL student program activities.

Refer to the Data Eniry Instructions link above for Expenditure Report Instructions. -
2024-25 Title Il EL student program allocation $17,316
Transferred-in amount $0
2024-25 Totat allocation $17.316
Object Code - Activity
1000—1999 Cerlificated personnel salaries $6,829
2000-299¢ Classified personnel salaries 50
30003999 Employee benefits $793
4000-4999 Books and supplies $7,646
5000-5999 Services and other operating expenditures $432
Direct administrative costs {amount cannot exceed 2% of the student $0
program allocation plus transferred-in amount)
Indirect costs (LEA can apply its approved indirect rate to the portion of the $1,616
subgrant that is not reserved for direct administrafive costs)
Total year-to-date expenditures $17.316
2024-25 Unspent funds $0
!
**Warning*™* - ,
The data in this report may be protected by the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA)
and other applicable data privacy laws. Unautharized access or sharing of this data may. constitute a
Report Date:1/8/2026 violation of both state and federal law. Pagé 2 of 4

R0O2




California Department of Education Consolidated Application
San Pasqual Valley Unified (13 63214 0000000} Status: Certified

Saved by: Kish Curtis
Date: 1/8/2026 6:53 AM

2024-25 Title Ill Immigrant YTD Expenditure Report, 18 Months

A report of year-to-date (YTD) expenditures by activity. Activity period covered is July 1, 2024 through December
31, 2025.

CDE Program Contact:

Annie Abreu Park, Language Policy and Leadership Office, AAbreuPark@cde.ca.qov, 916-319-9620
Geoffrey Ndirangu, Language Policy and Leadership Office, GNdirang@cde.ca.gov, 916-323-5831

- =

Authorized Titfe It Immigrant student program activities

An eligible entity. receiving funds under the Every Student Succeeds Act section 3114(d)(1) shall use the funds to

¢

pay for supplemental activities that provide enhanced instructional opportunities for immigrant children and youth.

- -

=

Refer to the Program Information link above for authorized Immigrant student program activities.

Refer to the Data Entry Instructions link above for Expenditure Report Instructions.

2024-25 Title Il immigrant student program allocation $630
Transferred-in amount - $0
2024-25 Total allocation $630
Chject Code - Activity .. L

1000-1999 Certificated personnel salaries 30
2000-2999 Classified personnel salaries - N $0
3000--3999 Employee benefits - $0
40004999 Books and supplies - - . $571
5000-5999 Services and other operating expenditures $0
Direct administrative costs {amount should not exceed 2% of the student o
program allocation plus transferred-in amount)

Indirect costs (LEA can apply its approved indirect rate to the portion of the $59
subgrant that is not reserved for direct administrative costs)

Total year-to-date expenditures $630
2024-25 Unspent funds %0

**Warning**
The data in this report may be protected by the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA) and
other applicable data privacy laws. Unauthorized access or sharing of this data may constitute a .

Report Date: 1/8/2026 . violation of both Rségte and federal law. . Page 30f 4

s

b e




California Department of Education Consolidated Application »
San Pasqual Valley Unified (13 63214 0000000) Status: Certified

Saved by: Kish Curtis
Date: 1/8/2026 6:53 AM

2024-25 Title V, Part B Subpart 2 RLIS LEA Use of Funds and Carryover

The purpose of this data collection is to rebort year-to-date expenditures and calculate Title V- Part B Subpart 2
Rural and Low-Income School (RLIS) carryover funds.

CDE Program Contact:

Patricia Ramirez, Rural Education and Student Support Ofﬂce: REAP@cde.ca.gov, 916-319-0787 ! i
2024-25 Title V, Part B Subpart 2 RLIS LEA allocation $28,725
Funds transferred-in amount _ $0
2024-25 Title V, Part B Subpart 2 RLIS LEA available allocation 528,725
Expenditures - ;
Administrative and indirect costs $2,696
Activities authorized under Title |, Part A ' $26,029
Improving basic programs operated by the LEA \

Activities authorized under-Title 1, Part A- $0

¥

Supporting Effective Instruction
Activities authorized under Title [ll ’ : 30

Language instruction for English learner and immigrant students : -
Activities authotized under Title IV, Part A - . - - $0

Student Support and Academic Enrichment - -

Parental involvement activities - 30
Total expenditures - : - $28,725
Carryover as of September 30, 2025 - - - - 30

**Warning*™*:
The data in this report may be protected by the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA} and
other applicable data privacy laws. Unauthorized access or sharing of this data may constitute a s

Report Date:1/8/2026 violation of bath :;azte'and federal law. Page 4-0f 4




California Department of Education Consolidated Application

San Pasqual Valley Unified (13 63214 0000000) Status: Certified
Saved by: Kish Curlis
Date: 1/8/2026 6:53 AM

2025-26 Federal Transferability -

§
Federal transferability of funds is governed by Title V in ESSA Section 5102. An LEA may transfer Title ll, Part A
andfor Title IV, Part A program funds to other allowable programs. This transferability is not the same as Title V,
Part B Alternative Fund Use Authority (AFUA) governed by ESEA Seclion5211.

Note: Funds utilized under Title V, Part B AFUA are not to be included on this form.

CDE Program Contact:

Lisa Fassett, Professional Learning Support & Monitoring Office, LEasselt@cde.ca.goy, 916-323-4963
Kevin Donnelly, Rural Education and Student Support Office , TillelV@cde.ca.gov, 916-319-0942

Title I1, Part A Transfers

2025-26 Title [, Part A allocation $32,761
Transferred to Title |, Part A $0
Transferred to Title 1, Part C " $0
Transferred to Title |, Part D 30
Transferred {o Title |Il English Learmner $0
Transferred to Title [l Immigrant 80
Transferred to Title 1V, Part A 50
Transferred to Title V, Part B, Subpart 1 Small, Rural Schoo! Achievement 50
Grant
Transferred fo Title V, Part B, Subpart 2 Rural and Low-Income Grant 30
Total amount of Title If, Part A funds transferred out . $0
2025-26 Title I, Part A allocation after transfers out $32,761
Title IV, Part A Transfers
2025-26 Title IV, Part A allocation $58,182
Transferred to Title 1, Paft A . 50
Transferred to Title |, Part C - $0
Transferred to Title |, Part D . - " $0
Transferred to Title I, Part A - . : 30
Transferred to Tifle lll English Learner $0
Transferred to Title Il immigrant " 7 50
Transferred to Title V, Part B Subpart 1 Small, Rural School Achieverment $0
Grant v
Transferred to Title V, Part B Subpart 2 Rural and Low-Income Grant $0
Total amount of Title IV, Part A funds transferred out . . 50
2025-26 Title iV, Part A allocation after transfers out . T $58,182
¢
**Warning***
The data in this report may be protected by the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA} and
other applicable data privacy laws. Unauthorized access or sharing of this data may constitute a
Report Date:1/8/2026 violation of both state and federal law. Page 1 of 9

RO2 b




California Department of Education Consolidated Application

San Pasqual Valley Unified (13 63214 0000000) . Status: Certified
Saved by: Kish Curtis
Date: 1/8/2026 6:53 AM

2025-26 Title I, Part A LEA Allocation and Reservations

To report LEA required and authorized reservations before distributing funds {o schools.

CDE Program Contact:

Sylvia Hanna, Title | Policy, Program, and Support Office, SHanna@cde.ca.goy, 916-319-0948
Rina DeRose, Title | Policy, Program, and Support Office, RDeRose@cde.ca.goy, 916-323-0472

2025-26 Title |, Part A LEA allocation (+) $745,940
Transferred-in amount (¥} $0
Nonprofit private school equitable services proportional share amount {-) 50
2025-26 Title I, Part A LEA available allocation $745,940

Required Reservations

Parent and family engagement $7,460

(If the allocation is greater than $500,000, then parent and family
engagement equals 1% of the allocation minus the nonprofit private school
equitable services proportional share amount.)

Schoo! parent and family engagement $7.460
LEA parent and family engagement - $0
Local negiected institutions No

Does the LEA have local institutions for neglected children?

Local neglected institutions reservation $0

Local delinquent institutions No

Does the LEA have local institutions for delinquent children?

Local delinquent institutions reservation 50
Direct or indirect services to homeless children, regardless of their school $13,506
of attendance

Authorized Reservations

Public school Choice transportation $0
Other authorized activities $0
2025-26 Approved indirect cost rate .. 8.50%
Indirect cost reservation $58,438
Administrative reservation 50

Reservation Summary

Total LEA required and authorized reservations . $71,944
School parent and family engagement reservation ~ ’ $7,460
Amount available for Title [, Part A school allocations $666,536

**Warning™*
The data in this report may be protected by the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA)
and other applicable data privacy laws. Unauthorized access or sharing of this data may constitute a

Report Date:1/8/2026 viclation of both :(t;te and federal {aw. - Page 2 of 8




California Department of Education Consolidated Application

San Pasqual Valley Unified (13 63214 0000000) Status; Certified

Saved by: Kish Curtis
Date; 1/8/2026 6:53 AM

2025-26 Title I, Part A LEA Allocations

The purpose of this data collection is {o calculate the fotal allocation amount available to the local educational
agency (LEA) for Title I, Part A Supporting Effective Instruction,
CDE Program Contact:

Alice Ng (Fiscal), Division Support Cffice, ANg@cde.ca.gov , 916-323-4636
Lisa Fasseti (Program), Professional Learning Support & Monitoring Office, LFasseft@cde.ca.gov, 916-323-4963

2025-26 Title [, Part A allocation $32,761
Transferred-in amount 50
Total funds transferred out of Title 1, Part A : $0
2025-26 Total allocation .. $32,761
Administrative and indirect costs $2,567
Reservation for equitable services for nonprofit private schools 30
2025-26 Title 11, Part A adjusted allocation $30,194

*Warning™*
The data in this report may be protected by the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA} and
other applicable data privacy laws. Unauthorized access or sharing of this data may constitute a

Report Date:1/8/2026 violation of both :{t}zte and federal law. Page 3 of 9

’




California Department of Education Consolidated Application
San Pasqual Valley Unified (13 63214 0000000) Status: Certifiled

> Saved by: Kish Curtis
Date: 1/8/2026 6:53 AM

2025-26 Title Il English Learner LEA Allocations and Reservations

The purpose of this data collection is to show the total allocation amount available to the local educational
agency (LEA) for the Title Il English Learner (EL) student program and to report required reservations.

CDE Program Contact:

Annie Abreu Park, Language Policy and Leadership Office, AAbreuPark@cde.ca.gov, 916-319-9620
Geoffrey Ndirangu, Language Policy and Leadership Office, GNdirang@cde.ca.gov, 916-323-56831

Total Allocation

2025-26 Title Il EL student program allocation $14,951
Transferred-in amount B $0
Repayment of funds 50
2025-26 Total allocation v $14,851

Allocation Reservations

Professional development activities - 50
Program and other authorized activities S0
English proficiency and academic achievement $13,780
Parent, family, and community engagement $0
Direct administrative costs (amount cannot exceed 2% of the student $0
program allocation plus transferred-in amount})

Indirect costs (LEA can apply its approved indirect rate to the portion of the $1,171
subgrant that is not reserved for direct administrative costs)

Total allocation reservations $14,951

**Warning***
The data in this report may be protected by the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA) and
other applicable data privacy laws. Unauthorized access or sharing of this data may constitute a

Report Date:1/8/2026 vialation of both :ct}e;te and federal law, Page 4 of 8




California Depariment of Education Consolidated Application

San Pasqual Valley Unified (13 63214 0000000} Status: Certified
Saved by; Kish Curtis
Date: 1/8/2026 6:53 AM

2025-26 Title Ill English Learner YTD Expenditure Report, 6 Months

A report of year-to-date (YTD) expendifures by activity. Activity period covered is July 1, 2025 through December
31, 2025.

CDE Program Contact:

Annie Abreu Park, Language Policy and l.eadership Office, AAbreuPark@cde.ca.gov, 916-319-9620
Geolffrey Ndirangu, Language Policy and Leadership Office, GNdirang@cde.¢a.gov, 916-323-5831

Required and authorized Title llf English Learner (EL) student program activities

An eligible entity recsiving funds under the Every Student Succeeds Act section 3115 (¢)-(d) shall use the funds
for the supplementary services as part of the language insfruction program for EL students.

Refer to the Program Information link above for required and authorized EL student program activities.

Refer to the Data Eniry Instructions link above for Expenditure Report Instructions.

2025-28 Title lil EL student program allocation $14,951
Transferred-in amount $0
2025-26 Total allocation $14,951
Object Code - Activity

1000-1999 Ceriificated personnel salaries $929
2000-2999 Classified personnel salaries $0
3000-3999 Employee benefits - $100
4000—-4999 Books and supplies %418
5000-5999 Services and other operating expenditures $0
Direct administrative costs {amount cannot exceed 2% of the student $0
pragram allocation plus transferred-in amount)

Indirect costs (LEA can apply its approved indirect rate to the portion of the $0
subgrant that is not reserved for direct administrative costs)

Total year-to-date expenditures $1,445
2025-26 Unspent funds’ N ' $13,506

**Warning***
The data in this report may be protected by the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA) and
other applicable data privacy laws. Unauthorized access or sharing of this data may constitute a

Report Date:1/8/2026 violation of both F?Otzte and federal law. Page 5 of 8




California Department of Education Consolidated Application

San Pasqual Valley Uniffed (13 63214 0000000) Status: Certified

Saved by: Kish Curtis
. Date: 1/8/2026 6:53 AM

2025-26 Title Ill Immigrant LEA Allocations and Reservations

The purpose of this data collection is to show the total allocation amount available to the local educational
agency (LEA)} for the Title Ill Immigrant student program and to report required reservations.
CDE Program Contact:

Annie Abreu Park, Language Policy and Leadership Office, AAbreyPark@cde.ca.gov, 816-319-9620
Geoffrey Ndirangu, Language Policy and Leadership Office, GNdirana@cde.ca.gov, 916-323-5831

Total Allocation £

2025-26 Title 1l Immigrant student program allocation $558
Transferred-in amount $0
Repayment of funds 30
2025-26 Total allocation $558

Allocation Reservations

Authorized activities $515
Direct administrative costs (amount should not exceed 2% of the student 50
program ailocation plus transferred-in amount) . _
Indirect costs (LEA can apply its approved indirect rate {o the portion of the $43
subgrant that is not reserved for direct administrative costs) .

Total allocation reservations $558

**Warning***
The data in this report may be protected by the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA) and
other applicable data privacy laws. Unauthorized access or sharing of this data may constitute a

Report Date:1/8/2026 violation of both Rs;zte and federal law. Page 6 of 9




4
California Department of Education Consolidated Application
San Pasqual Valley Unified (13 63214 0000000) Status: Certifled

Saved by: Kish Curtis
Date: 1/8/2026 6:53 AM

2025-26 Title 1l Immigrant YTD Expenditure Reﬁort, 6 Months

A report of year-to-date (YTD) expenditures by activity. Activity period covered is July 1, 2025 through December
31, 2025.

CDE Program Contact:

Annie Abreu Park, Language Policy and Leadership Office, AAbreuPark@cde.ca.gov, 916-319-9620
Geofirey Ndirangu, Language Policy and Leadership Office, GNdirang@cde.ca.gov, 916-323-5831

Authorized Title Ill Inmigrant student program activities -

An eligible entity receiving funds under the Every Student Succeeds Act section 3114(d)(1) shall use the funds to
pay for supplemental activities that provide enhanced instructional opportunities for immigrant children and youth.

Refer to the Program {nformation link above for authorized Immigrant student program activities.

Refer to the Data Entry Instructions link above for Expenditure Report Instructions.

2025-26 Title Hll immigrant student program allocation ‘ - $558
Transferred-in amount L 50
2025-26 Total allocation $558
Object Code - Activity
1000-1999 Cerfificated personnel salaries 30
2000-2999 Classified personnel salaries 50
3000-3999 Employee benefits 50
40004298 Books and supplies 30
5000--5899 Services and other operating expenditures 30
Direct administrative costs (amount should not exceed 2% of the siudent $0
program allocation plus transferred-in amount)
Indirect costs (LEA can apply its approved indiréct rate to the portion of the 50
subgrant that is not reserved for direct administrative costs)
Total year-to-date expenditures $0
2025-26 Unspent funds / /8558

, -

**Warning™*

The data in this report may be protected by the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA)
\, and other applicable data privacy laws. Unauthorized access or sharing of this data may constitute a

ji i th d federal law.
Report Date:1/8/2026 viclation of both state and foderal law Page 7 of 9




California Department of Education Consolidated Application

San Pasqual Valley Unified (13 63214 0006000) s (;sgatu;:_ %egiﬁr?‘d
aved by: Kish Curtis
Date: 1/8/2026 6:53 AM

2025-26 Title IV, Part A LEA Allocations

L3
The purpase of this data collection s to calculate the allocation available to the local educational agency (LEA)
and report reservations of Title 1V, Part funds.

CDE Program Contact:
Kevin Donnelly, Rural Education and Student Support Office , TitlelV@cde.ca.gov, 916-318-0942

2025-26 Tille IV, Part A LEA éllocation $58,182
Funds transferred-in arnount } . ‘7 50
Funds transferred-out amount 50
2025-26 Title IV, Part A LEA available alldcation $58,182
Reservations

Indirect cost reservation / . : $4,558
Administrative reservation ! ' $0
Equitable services for nonprofit private schools ‘ $0
2025-26 Title |V, Part A LEA adjusted allocation $53,624

r

**twarning*** .
The data in this report may be protected by the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA)
and other applicable data privacy laws. Unauthorized access or sharing of this data may constitute a

Report Date:1/8/2026 violation of both ;{tj:;te and federal law. Page 8 of 9




California Department of Education Consolidated Application

San Pasqual Valley Unified (13 63214 0000000) < dsgatu}s(:_ %egiﬁr%d
aved by: Kish Curtis

Date: 1/8/2026 6:53 AM
2025-26 Consolidation of Administrative Funds

A request by the local educational agency (LEA) to consolidate administrative funds for specific programs,

CDE Program Contact:
Hilary Thomson, Fiscal Oversight and Support Office, HThomson@cde.ca.gov, 916-323-0765

Tille |, Part A Basic No
SACS Code 3010
Title |, Part C Migrant Education No
SACS Code 3060
Title |, Part D Delinquent® No
SACS Code 3025
Title lf, Part A Supporting Effective Instruction No
SACS Code 4035
Title (Il English Learner Students - 2% maximum No
SACS Code 4203
Title [l immigrant Students No
SACS Code 4201
Title 1V, Part A Student Support - 2% maximum No
SACS Code 4127
Title IV, Part B 21st Century Community Learning Centers No
SACS Code 4124

***Warning™*
The data in this report may be protected by the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA)
and other applicable data privacy laws. Unauthorized access or sharing of this data may constitute a

Report Date:1/8/2026 violation of both :(t);te and federal law. Page 9 of 9




California Department of Education
San Pasqual Valley Unified (13 63214 0000000)

CDE Program Contact:

2025-26 Title |, Part A School Student Counts

This data callection contains schoal-level student data. The information in this data collection will be used by the local educational agency (LEA} to calculate eligibility and
ranking for Title 1, Part A school allocations.

Rina DeRose, Titla | Policy, Program, and Support Office, RDeRose@cde.ca.gov, 916-323-0472

School ranking options Within the LEA
Select the highest to lowest school ranking method
Select a low income measure FRPM
Comment B
If composite s the low income measure selected, then an explanation must be :
provided detatling how the student count is derived.
Explanation of Pre-populated Student Counts
The data fields in this form, containing total student enrollment counts and eligible
low income students counts, were pre-populated with PRIOR year (Fiscal Year
2024-25) certified data from CALPADS Fall 1 data submission.
Note: The LEA may use prior year data or current year data to calculate eligibility
and ranking for Title I, Part A schoot allocations. The LEA may choose to manually .
enter current year data in place of prior year data.
School Name School Code Low Grade Offered | High Grade Offered | Grade Span Group | Student Enrotlment | Eliglble Low Income
Studants
Bill M. Manes High 4330018 9 12 3 14 14
San Pasqual Middie 6106298 6 8 2 125 118 -
San Pasqual Valley 6008635 K 5 1 259 246
Elementary
San Pasqual Valley High - ¥ 4337609 <] 12 3 177 160 |
San Pasqual Vocational 0120881 T 12 3 0 o}

Academy

Report Date:1/8/2026

**Warning*™*

The data in this report may be protected by the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA) and
other applicable data privacy laws. Unauthorized access ar sharing of this data may constitute a
violation of both state and federal law,

Ro8

=

Consolidated Application

Status: Certified
Saved by: Kish Curlis
Date: 1/8/2026 6:53 AM

Page 10f1




California Department of Education
San Pasqual Valley Unified (13 63214 0000000)

CDE Program Contact;

2025-26 Title I, Part A School Allocations

This report identifies the amount of Tille |, Part A funds to be allocated to eligible schools.

-

Rina DeRose, Title | Policy, Program, and Support Office, RDeRose@cde.ca.gov, 916-323-0472

LEA meets small LEA criteria.

k!

A local educational agency (LEA) is defined as a small LEA if, based on the school
list and the data entered in Title 1, Part A School Student Counts, the LEA meets cne

or both of the following:
Is a single school LEA

Has enrollment total for all schools less than 1,000

If applicable, enter a Discretion Code, Use lower case only.

Allowable Discretfon Codes

a - Below LEA average and a! or above 35% student low income
d - Waiver for a desegregation plan on file

e - Grandfather provision
-f - Feeder pattemn

Consolidated Application

Status: Certified
Saved by: Kish Curlis
Date: 1/8/2026 6:53 AM

Law income measure FRPM
Ranking Schools Highest to Lowest Within the LEA
LEA-wide low income % . 93.57%
Available Tille |, Part A school allocations $666,536
Available parent and family engagement reservation 57,460
Schoaol Name School |Grade | Student | Ellgible Low | Eligible | Required | Ranking |$ Per Low TA 2024-25 { Parent Total Discrotion
Code | Span |Enrclimant} Low Incoma | tobe tobe tncome | School |Catryover] and School Coda
Group Income | Studant | Served | Served Student [Allocation Family | Allocation
Studanis % Engage
ment

Bill M, Manes High 1330018 3 14 14 160,00 . . 1 1238.88 | 17344.32 $0 £3411 | 2075532
San Pasqual Valley G008G3S 1 259 248 94.98 - 2 1238.91 |304771.86 50 $1,636 | 306407.86
Elementary

Report Date:1/8/2026

.

lilwam]ngt.t
The data In this report may be protected by the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA)
and other applicable data privacy laws. Unautherized access or sharing of this data may constitute a
violation of both state and federal law.

RO

Page 1 of 2




Catifornia Department of Education Consolidated Application
San Pasqual Valley Unified (13 63214 0000000} Status: Certified
Saved by: Kish Curlis

Date: 1/8/2026 6:53 AM
2025-26 Title 1, Part A School Allocations

This report identifies the amount of Title 1, Part A funds {o be allocated to eligible schools.

Schoel Name School |Grade | Studeant | Eligible Low Ellgible | Required | Ranking [sPerLow| TA 2024-25 | Paront Total Discration
Code | Span |Enrollment] Low Income | tobe to be Income | School |Carmyover| and School Code
Group Income |Student | Sarvad | Served Student JAllocaticn Family | Allocatlon
Students Yo Engage
ment ;
San Pasqual Midcla 6106298 2 125 118 94.40 = " 3 1238.92 }146192.56 50 52,219 { 148411.56
San Pasqual Vellay High  |1237609 3 177 160 80.40 . - 4 1238.92 |188227.20 50 $194 | 198421.20
San Pasqual Vocational  |0120831 3 4} 0 0.00 . - 5 0.00 0,00 0.00
Academy *
-
+
4
LY

) **Warning***
The data in this report may be protected by the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA) and
othier applicable data privacy Jaws. Unauthorized access or sharing of this data may constitute a
violation of both state and {ederal law.

Report Date:1/8/2026 Raa Page 2 of 2




£

California Department of Education Consolidated Application

San Pasqual Valley Unified (13 63214 0000000) Status: Certified
Saved by: Kish Curtis

Date: 1/8/2026 6:53 AM
2026—26 Title |, Part A Notification of Authorization of Schoolwide Program

~

This report provides nofification to the California Department of Education of a school's eligibility and local board approval to operate under and report as
Schoolwide Program.

CDE Program Contact:

Rina DeRose, Title ! Policy, Program, and Support Ofiice, RDeRose@ede.ca.gov, 916-323-0472
School Name School Code { Authorized SWP| Low Income % Lecal Board Local Board
Approval Date | Approval Date
SWP Plan SWP Waiver
(MM/DDIYYYY) | (MMIDDIYYYY)
Bill M. Manes High 1330018 Y 100.00 08/06/1998
San Pasqual Middle 6106298 Y 90.45 08/06/1998
San Pasqual Valley Elementary 6008635 Y 89.46 08/06/1998
San Pasqual Valley High 1337609 Y 86.91 08/06/1998
San Pasqual Vocational Academy 0120881 Y 83.34 08/06/1998

“*Warnihg"™
The data in this report may ba protected by the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA) and
ather applicable data privacy laws. Unauthorized access or sharing of this data may constitute a
violation of both state and federal law. -

Report Date:1/8/2026 Ros

Page 10of1




" i) Dapartment of

&
y EDUCATION

~

CONSOLIDATED APPLICATION AND REPORTING SYSTEM (CARS)
San Pasqual Valley Unified {13 63214 0000000)

I Home ” Data Entry Forms ” Certification Preview ” Certify Data ” Reports ” Users ” Contacts ” FAQs l

Home

Current Submissions and Deadlines

Data collection forms that are listed below are open, available for editing, have upcomling deadlines, andfor ate cverdue lo
be certified. Data collection forms that have been cerified, have had their deadlines pass, are open and avallable for editing
can be found under the Data Entry Forms tab. All data collection forms, if applicable to your local educational agency (LEA),
whether open or closed, cerified or unsubmitted, can be viewed as uneditable repatts under the Reports tab.

23 Data Collection(s) found.

Fiscal Year 2023-24 Deadline Status

Title [, Part A LEA Closeout Report Januaty 15, 2026 None

Title |1, Part A Fiscal Year Expenditure Repord, Closeout 27 January 15, 2026 Cortiffed

Months keurdis, 1/8/2026 6:53 AM

Title It English Leamer YTD Expenditure Report, Closeout 27 | January 15, 2026 Cenrtified
Months - keurtis, 1/8/2026 6:53 AM

Title V, Part B Subpart 2 RUS LEA Cl January 15, 2026 Certified
keurtis, 1/8/2026 6:53 AM

Fiscal Year 2024-25 Deadline Status

Title 1, Part A LEA Camyover January 15, 2026 Carlified
kcurlis, 1/8/2026 6:53 AM

the Il E r nditure R 18 Months | January 15, 2026 Certifisd
keuriis, 1/8/2026 6:53 AM

Title |1 Immigrant YTD Expenditure Report, 18 Months January 15, 2026 Certified
. keurtis, 1/8/2026 6:53 AM

Title V, Part B Subpart 2 RLIS | FA Use of Funds and January 15, 2026 Certified
Canyover keurtis, 1/8/2026 6:53 AM




Program

Fiscal Year 2025-26 Deadline Status
teral Transferablflity January 15, 2026 Certified
kcurtis, 1/8/2026 6:53 AM
Title 1, Part A Nonprofit Private School Low Income Count January'1 5, 2026 None
Title 1, Part A School Student Counts January 18, 2026 Certified
keurtls, 1/8/2026 6:53 AM
I locatt Resgervation January 15, 2026 Certified
kcurtis, 1/8/2026 6:53 AM
Title |, Part A School Allocations January 15, 2026 Certified
i keurtls, 1/18/2026 6:53 AM
Title |, Part A Notification of Authorization of Schoolwide Janvary 15, 2026 Certified

kecurtis, 1/8/2026 6:53 AM

P Ti fit Priv: icipation | January 15, 2026 Naone

Title |1, Part A LEA Allpgations January 15, 2026 Cenified
keurtls, 1/8/2026 6:53 AM

Title it English Leamer LEA Allocations and Reservations January 15, 2026 Certified
keurtis, 1/8/2026 6:53 AM

Tille 1t English Leamer YTD Expenditure Report, 6 Months | January 15, 2026 Cortified
keurtis, 1/8/2026 6:53 AM

Title |1l Immigrant LEA Allocations and Reservations January 15, 2026 Certified
- keurlis, 1/8/2028 6:53 AM

Tiile 1} imigrant YTD Expenditure Repor, § Months January 15, 2026 Certified

keurtis, 1/8/2026 6:53 AM

Title IV, Part A Nonprofit Private School Participation January 15, 2026 None
Title |V, Part A LEA Allocations January 15, 2026 Certified

kcurtis, 1/8/2026 6:53 AM
Cansolidation of Administrative Funds Januvary 15, 2026 Certified

keurtis, 1/8/2026 6:53 AM

-

General CARS Questions: Consolldated Application Support Desk | conappsupport@®cde.ca.gov [ 916-319-0297

California Department of Education = - <« o=
1430 N Street .
Sacramento, CA 95814

Web Pollcy




San Pasqua;l Valley Unified School District
Board Report . ,

School Site or Department Cafeteria

Date 1/7/26 Prepéred By Stacey Garcia

Number of Students Served Enrolled 554

Three Goals of Site/Department for Month Aligned to LCAP/SPSA Goalé:

1.
2.
3

Brief éummary Outlining Recent Successes:

Meals Served in December 13 days ( 1 day ELOP/SS)
Breakiast: 2525

Lunch: 5264

Snack: 1336 (140 enrolled in ASES)

Supper: 1607 (140 enrolled in ASES)

Areas of Focus for Next Month:
Keep Focusing on Second chance breakfast at the High School

Activities or Events Organized or Completed and Resulit:

Activity/Event Result, Participation




San Pasqual Valley Unified School District
Board Report

School Site or Department Technology

Date 1/7/2026 Prepared By Daniel Paz

Number of Studenis Served 948 ,

Three Goals of Site/Department for Month Aligned to LCAP/SPSA Goals:

Support staff with helpdesk tickets

1
2. |Support students with helpdesk tickets
3. |Winter Break maintenance - chromebook carts and-cameras

Brief Summary Outlining Recent Successes:
Provided excelient support to staff and students.

Areas of Focus for Next Month:
Multi-factor Authentication for staff

Activities or Events Organized or Completed and Result:

Activity/Event Result, Participation




SAN PASQUAL VALLEY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
REQUEST FOR CONFERENCE/FIELD TRIPIVIRTUAL MEETING

Conference Title:Counselor Induction Program Conference Type: In County Out of Town Zoom

Staff Attending: Ana Noriega & Alba Tudor

Conference Dates; 12/16/25 330- 530pm Travel Dates: 12/169/25 200-630pm

Location: ICOE - Imperial County

Registration: (Conference materials must be provided) Completed -

Hotel Cost: (including tax) Nights Rooms Cost Parking Cost - NA o -

Staff Meals: Breakfast ($16) Lunch {$18)Dinner {$30) -

Sa)r‘ne day trips will require meal receipts and a relmbursement form

Transporiation fuel cost per mile van=$.70 123 miles X .70 86.10

Flights / Shuttles - NA . -

Parking / Other additional cost. Additional/overtime pay- Extra Time 3hr X 2 253.32 253.32

TOTAL ' : 339.42

Will you use a District Vehicle Yes No (if no, mileage, gas or parking will not be relmbursed unless a district vehicle is not avallable)
School Dude Transportatio quggted date: 12/9/25 {inciude a copy of school dude submission.)
Will you require a substituté: Yes Np ff yes, submit lesson plans to office and request coverage to District clerk.)

Date: ‘9/]%{) b’

OFFICE USE

Signature of Employee:

(6 335"

DISTRICT OFFICE USE

CApproved ODisapproved

District Office Date

Date reviewsad by Board

Registration Paid I. )

Hoicl Booked } - B .
Ajr Fare (if applicable) i

INSTRUCTIONS: This form is fo be completed priar lo conferencefworkshop attendance. Submit all copies to immediate supervisor who will give initial approval and forward
all copies to stperintendant for final approval. No travel dlaims, advances, or eredit card charges will be pald without submisslon of this form In advance. 7/25/2025
Ls

i3

[ - an - P - s e max [P —— e R ] — .




San Pasqual Valley High School

Conference/Field Trip Request Proposal -
Virtual Zoom Meeting

!

Staff Member{s) Name: Ana Noriega, Alba Tudor
Site: HS

Date Submitted: 12/9/25 .
Name of Conference; 12/16/25

Date and Location of conference/field trip:

12/16/25 330-530pm
ICOE 1398 Sperber Road El Centra CA

What is the purpose/justification of your attendance at this conference?

Access to current strategies, resources, and tools that enhance counseling programs and student success,
Collaboration with other counselors and educational leaders across the county to share Ideas and build
partnerships.Updates on state and county requirements for counseling programs, ensuring our school

remalns compliant and effective.

How does this conference impact student learning?

The knowledge gained will directly benefit students through improved academic guidance, social-emotional

support, and college/career readiness initiatives.

Participation demonstrates commitment to continuous improvement and supports our school's mission to

provide comprehensive services that meet the needs of all students,

How does this fit with our Schoolwide or LCAP goals?

Goal # 3 - San Pasqual Valley Unified School District will graduate students who are college and
career ready, meet the A-G requirements, and meet at least one (1) other College and Career
Readiness Indicator. San Pasqual Valley Unified School District promote 8th grade students by
preparing students for high school by providing a challenging and rigorous curriculum. SPVMS
will provide college and career related curriculum through Get Focused, Stay Focused.

What is your plan to utilize this information when you return to your classroom? - NA




Manage OMS Account

Scheduled Events  Event Directory  Help [Search Galenidar J} Go !
* : ] [ L)
Imperial County School Counselor Induction Register
Pragram 2nd Annual Symposium’ .
* = =

12/16/2025 + ; Click Here to Reg‘ister t

( 3:30 pm - 5:30 pm ' I h—
A U gk M A g e, e —:1 R TR . L T N . W e A mar RegiStI‘EltiOI"l Dead"I'IE:

12/16/2025

End of Year 1

OMS Account Holders

Event Details F;:w“.? _I.ogin Here to
% ;1 Register for
Facilitator(s) Rosa Nava g0y Event
Location Imperial County Office of Education
1398 Sperber Road Pon’t have an OMS account?
El Centro, CA 92243-9621 " Click here to create one.
Map | Driving Directions =
Note: ICOE, Building E - ACC kN
Contact Stacey Arthur Share

P: (760) 312-6615

-

Add to Calendar | Help

Sponsor Higher Education and Adult Education
}

: ' Organization Management, System (OMS)
> Event Registration Management Software Designed by and for K12 Education

OMS v7.1 © 2003-2025 - All Rights Reserved —
Use of this site signifies your agreement to pur Terms of Use.
Web Site Requirements |

b

e gz ——

— . e e e es tm mETreeraewe e St AT e e 2 T




e —mreer

& Outlook

Fw: Imperial County School Counselor induction Program 2nd Annual Symposium Registration -
(CONFIRMED)

From Anastasia Noriega <anoriega@spvusd.org>
Date Tue 12/972025 1:26 PM '
To  Valerie Kish <vkish@spvusd.org>

Next week after school.

Ana Noriega

From: notifications@k12oms.org <notifications@k12oms.org> on behalf of OMS Notifications
<notifications@kl2oms.org>

Sent: Tuesday, December 9, 2025 9:21 AM

To: Anastasia Noriega <anoriega@spvusd.org>

Subject: Imperial County School Counselor Induction Program 2nd Annual Symposium Registration -

(CONFIRMED])

Anastasia Noriega, This letter is to inform you that your registration has been CONFIRMED for the following
event:

Participant Information

Participant : .
Name Anastasia Noriega ,

Participant
Email anoriega@spvusd.org
Address

Event Information

Event Imperial County School Counselor Induction Program 2nd Annual Symposium

Event Imperial County Office of Education
Location 1398 Sperber Road
El Centro, CA 92243-9621
Map [ Driving Directions

Note: ICOE, Bullding E - ACC

Event | @ /icoe.k120ms.ora/1158-267019

Details

Event Date 12/16/2025

Time 3:;30 pm - 5:30 pm
Status CONFIRMED

e e e — . e — St e, = i — e s
——— - R




Provided By Higher Education and Adult Education

Confirmation nOr-Xgavm *
Number gayms

if you need to CANCEL your registration or have any questions, please email or call me, Please include your
name, the event title, and your confirmation number in all carrespondence,. For information on the event, visit
http:fficoe.k12o0ms.org/1158-267019

Y

Sincerely, _

Stacey Arthur

Emall: sarthur@icoe.org
Phone: (760) 312-6615

Organization Management System {OMS)
# OMS © 2003-2025 - All Rights Reserved -

— T

e ke i i e E i e bk g S s e et e v rage——

O e g e e S




Vehicle Trip Request
Thank you for using our internetf-service to snbmit trip requests. This service helps us to promptly attend to your
trip requests. Please complete this request form.

Please be yourself, click here if yon are not Valerie Kish

Need Assistance? Contact Monica Sabori at ext.2415 or msabori@spvusd.org.

~

Booked By ,
] First Name 7] Last Name 1| Email
Valerie Kish vkish@spvusd.org
H

Phone Pager Mobile
760-572-0222 !

Booking Details
O Yes, submit for estimate only.
A Trip Name [ImEJ_erIal County School Counselor Induction Program _J
i Trip Destination {ICOE 1388 Sperber Rgaﬁc!_. El Centro, CA 92243 Building A;?gf]
7] Departing Location [HighSchool ~— 7~ 'v]
7] Organization ‘High School " v]
O One Way @ Round Trip
Trip Package -- Select Trip Package — ~ View Trip Package
] Departure Date (121672025 | 7] Return Date [12116/2025
7] Trip Departure Time {2 v{00v[PMv] [ Trip Return Time (6 v[d5v]PMv]
Transportation Type

[ Click on the transportation type below that best suits your needs:

s @
School Bus Van

Number Of Vehicles

-
Trip Contact

3 Yes, the 'Booked By' requester information is the same as the 'Trip Contact' information.

[ First Name [7] Last Name 7 Email

{ﬂrla» o ] {quiegg ' ] l anoriegé@é;vﬁég.o}g ' -__ 5

- ur o

Phone Pager Cellular

- - —— - ——— e - - - A o A . L 1 T b e, i




P e e st S LI

~

[-.—_-...._..........,... st o, _-.(4..-...-.-.4.—...,._-] '

Attendees

Facuity
Supervising Adults

& Number of students
Number of adults
Total Aitendees

Notes

Educational Objective

Special Needs and/or
Trip Requirements

Security
| Submittal Password

!

g A e

e o L

Ang Noriega

na

)

| Cost per student

| Cost per adult

]

W g

-.....'.. T -——.} o Fo!g tPaq W r ?

[ Submit Request |

L e g 7 o TR = AT TR L TR T T Ty

i

na
”
A 2
P e e g PR g g
na
"~
i
)
V. e e e " w s B i

e LN R A R e e B i e e




J
1
I3

’SAN PASQUAL VALLEY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

FIELD TRIP REQUEST
{Overnight and/or Out-of-State Ficld Trips must be approved by the Board)

»

Teacher/Advisor/Coach- " i s :
eacher/Advisor/Coac E LO P Activity Name Main Street Cinemas
School: : Location:
Elementary Yuma
#of Student30 [ Grade Class:Prek-6th = Depart Date:01/24/2026
Registiation/Entrance | -
Cost $26 7 a5 O
Hotel Cost (Room & | Nights: Rooms: Parking: Total Cost:
Tax) Male
. Female .
Adult (male)

‘ Adult

f (femmale)

! Total
Staff Meals($64/day) | Breakfast ($16): Lunch ($18): Dianer ($30): Total Cost:
Student Meals Breakfast ($10) Lunch($12) Dinner ($15) Total Cost:
($37/day)
Transportation: : ' t
Van s.ﬁg?sus 56.50 $20r00
Total:

ALL backup material must be previded.

k

Source of Funding: ELOP

Will you use a District Bus or Van? Yes NoD

School Dude Request Date: 12/15/2025 {provide a copy of {ransportation request)

Will you require a substitute; Yes, DNO If yes, please follow up with District Clerk)

Student Permission Form: Yes, H No -
Llsa Mendenhall Date: 12/15/2025

Signature of Employee/Staif Member:

P A B el e e R e R 4"31 £ ":7-"4 *I "'5 S i HE “APPROVAL - \'j';\ifﬂ(lF‘—‘?‘_'-f:wﬁw’:::fﬂj"t‘!‘ﬁ"‘.ﬁﬁ""-ﬁ"""ﬁ’;"-"‘%iﬁ?""{*'f-j.’?b;&‘;{ et Lizaiiies e

PnncxMSup‘l‘"lsor Date -

s gt .filesTR_lcT OFFICE USE,\ e SR

o wk;.s. B w1 ..p-,_, s r!_ . ’-7__‘__:-_;.\,

. }.‘:-nu\.\;.wﬂ L e

DAppmved DDlsapproved

Superintendent Date Date Reviewed By Board

- [N FIS S sy, -




b '
L Ll

SAN PASQUAL VALLEY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
REQUEST FOR CONFERENCE/VIRTUAL MEETING

Conference Title:

e Fine Motor and Sensory Skills Conference Type: Wlin County [ ]Out of Town []Zoom ]

Stalf Attending: alysha Miller, Larissa Bouts, Kerri Dornstadter

Conference Dates: ()1/23/2026 T 01/23/2026

Location: l C O E | '

Registration: (Conference matetials must be provided)

Hotel Cost: (including tax) Nights- Rooms Cost- Parking Cost-

Staff Meals: Breakfast (316}  Lunch ($18) Dinner {$30)
I(.

I}

Same day trips will regtiire meal receipts and a reimbursement form

Transportation fuel cost per mile Van=5.70 Bus=§ 6.50 38.00

Flights ‘ .

Shutlle ‘ ;

Parking / Other additional cost. Additional/overtinte pay,

Estimated Total : 3 [38.00

Will you use a District Vehicle [#]Yes | _No (If no, mileage, gas or parking will not be reimbursed unfess a district vehicle
is not available) School Dude Transportation requested date: Include a copy of school dude submisslon.

Will you require a subsﬁtutaYesDNo if yes, submit lesson plans to office and request coverage to District
clerk.

Signature of Employee: AMiller, LBouts, KDomstadt . 12/16/2025

o fgpenn” i, a3t

L .
e e i B L st e it e A—L_-,.,‘OFF:[CE. USE i e e L U i BB, e e AR T I e

mApproved '
[ |pisapproved -
Source of Funding:

12/16/2025
Princf;{aﬂ§uparvisor Date

»
E\),}%ﬁiu‘vﬁdr goom ¥ wlpn, o DISTRICT OFFICEUSE s oot S5l g,

R b ~ ¢

ClApproved _
{Disapproved

District Office . Date

Date reviewed by Board

[CIRegistration Paid
[[IHotel booked
JAir Fare (if applicable)

INSTRUCTIONS: This form is 1o be completed prior to conferencefworkshop attendance. Submit all coples to Immediate supervisor who will give Initlal
approval and forward all coples to superintendent for final approval. Na travel clalms, advances, or credit card charges will be paid without submission of
this form [n advance. ~ )

10/14/2015 :




L]

Al eI

@ QOutlook

'ﬁ _Ad e M][)er*? L@r ISS@ 9%’!3’

) \[\fﬂ r DQJQ/;H@(_ .
1 F [ g
Fine Motor & Sensory Skills Registration - (CONFIRMED)

From OMS Notifications <notifications@k12oms.org>
Date Mon 11/17/2025 9:21 AM N
To  Kerri Domnstadter <kdornstadter@spvusd.org>

Kerrl Dornstadter, This letter is to inform you that your registration has been CONFIRMED for the following

event:

Participant Information

Participant
Name

Participant
Email
Address

Kerri Dornstadter

kdornstadter@spvusd.org

Event Information

Event

Event
Location

Event
Details

Event Date
Time
Status
Provided By

Confirmation
Number

Fine Motor & Sensory Skills
Imperial County Offlce of Education
1398 Sperber Rd

El Centra, CA 92243

Map | Driving Directions

Note: Farrar Leadership Center (FLC-A}
Bullding C

htip://icoe . kiZoms.org/1168-266384
01/23/2026

B:30 am - 4:00 pm

CONFIRMED

Imperial County SELPA

dor-inhuh3

If you need to CANCEL your registration or have any questions, please emall or call me. Please include your
name, the event title, and your confirmation number in all correspondence. For Information on the event, visit
http://ficoe.k120ms.org/1168-266384

Sincerely,
Lynn Salcedo

Email: lynnrd@icoe.arg

B v e —— —




Imperial County

SELPA

Fine Motor

and Sensory -
Skills
Facli_litaf::r(s)'_: :

Patty McDonald & Kimberly Phillips
Registered Occupational Therapists

-

- -

£ -

- & -

r

Fine Motor Skills

Will focus on core fine motor
skills, pencil grips, cutting skills,
alternative types of paper,
alternative seating options, etc...

\ = - e

- Sensory Skills
;oL

~ Will focus on’sensory :
processing skills... what are they
~and how they relate to the

_ classroom setting? . .

A e -

)

. _ — . * Includes
AUDIENCE: TK-3rd Grade General Education & Materials

Special Education Teachers
Lunch on

January 23, 2026 <\:
8:30 am - 4:00 pm
ICOE-FLC-A (bldg. C).

1398Sperber Road, El Centro

b
P nle ol et i Sl Ll S PR WS WY WIS WY oy Wy

[

Contact: SELPA Office
(760) 312-6419 | lynnrd@icoe.org

The Imperial County Office of Education may take
photographs of participants at the event. These photographs
shall be used to document the event, promote events in
written materlals, and post on the ICOE website and soclal
media accounts.

VU S . e - o mer gt e v v o e ety e




.

San Pasqual Valley Unified School Distict

Print Trip Report-
Trip ID 2370
| Booked By |
Booked By Dornstadter, Kem
Email kdornstadfer@spusdon Pager
Phone 7605720222 Cellular
| Booking Details |
Trip Name Flne Motorand sensory skills taning -

Status Submitied
Trip State Inactive
Created Date 11/17/2025 8:19:00AM

Departing Location Elementary
Organization Elementary
Trip Destination Imperial County Selpa

Trip Type Round Trip

Tiip Package
Trip Departura Date Time 1/23/2026 8:00:00 AM

Driver Departure Time
Participant Drep Off Time
Destinatlion Arrival Date Time

~

Trip Roturn Date Time 1/23/2026 4:00:00 FM
Driver Return Time
Participant Pick Up Time
Destination Departura Date Time

Driver Start Location Driver End Location
Participant Drop Off Location Participant Pick Up Location
Estimated Round Trip Mileage 0
{ Trip Contact |
Name Dornstadler, Karrd
Emall kdormstadten@spvusdom Pager
Phone 7605720222 Cellujar 9282100443
Attendees [
Faculty Kerri Domstadler
Supervising Adults
Numberof students © Costperstudent $0.0000
Nomberof adults 2 Cost peradult $0.0000
Totals Attendees 2
| Categorization
Budget Code
Budget Code Deseription

Recommended Min Age 0

Recommended MaxAge O

EducationalObjectlve Tralning on working with students with fine motor and sensory processing skills dificuifes.

Notes ]

Special Needs andlor
Trip Requirements

Driving Diraections

Required Services

Transporfation Type Van
Numbar Of Vehiclas 1

12/16/2025 2:16:58 PM

* Page1of1




;,:
SAN PASQUAL VALLEY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

FIELD TRIP REQUEST N
(Overnight and/or Out-of-State Field Trips must be approved by the Board)

Teacher/Advisor/Coach: &mim , 99‘ L4 & mb ile gg 2 {C___#of Students; (ﬂ . .
School: San Pagqual Valley High School ____ } Grade/Class:&ﬂmg_.%‘f‘f‘S

Destination: Mg cinan Twvivad Headgunvters
Location: 250 P\ cathno QA MERMV’VIC(UQJ’) 4 o .
Depart Date:__ g ¢, . Y . AAS -

Registration/Tickets
/A
Hotel Cost (Room & Tax) Nights: Room: Total Cost:
N fA N /A NC/A None

Parking Feest; N/ A 4

Hotel Hold fees per night. N /A

Staff Meals($64/day) Breakfast: Lunch: { Dinner; . Total Cost:

Altach Staff Meal Form AJ / A - o

Student Meals($37/day) Breakfaét: Lunch: Dinner: Total Cost: §

Aftach Student Meal Form N / : — | .

Transportation VB ﬁ;uso N oM 4539 S—O

<7V S \VONe. aun\E. x '

Additional: N )

Total: § Nowe—2 Y .60
Source-of Funding: * N .
1 Will you use a District:Bus or Van? Yes\/ No A NGNS .
2 School Dude Request Date: \ (provide a copy of transportation request) = Ub Q_\!‘EOC&M

. . J otofas oy Sikells /.30

3 Will you require a substitute: Yes & No____ (If yes, please follow up with District Clerk) \ ] . %‘B - 9\ 1 }
4, Student Permission Form: Yes _\ No \/ :
5 . Requires District to pay using credit card {(attach specific information): Yes No
8.  ~ Willyou or busdriver require a district gas card Yes__ No_\/
Describe the objectives of the proposed activity and how they relate to the course/gradefprogram (Attach backup material):

e

Approved [Disapproved

/\ £ - -
. (3ks

fincipal/Stiperyisor Date
oo Dot oo o DISTRICT OFFICE USE,__
OApproved  [Disapproved

~]

-~

o S A M AL e et et ——

Superintendent Date Date Reviewed By Board

INSTRUCTIQNS: This form is to be completed prior to conferencelworkshop (CHECK CONFERENCE CHECKLIST) Submit all coples to
Immediate supervisor who will give Initial approval and forward all coples to superintendent for final approval. No travel claims, advances, or
credit card charges will be pald without submission of this form in advance.

Revised 7/1/2023




San Pasqual Valley High School

Conference/Field Trip Request Proposal
Virtual Zoom Meeting

Staff Member(s) Name: ﬁnd\f‘-e, \90 \\p ay 6;.{,%!1/\ ?S:EQ-CCTS

Site: HS
Date Submitted: l’;l) 6 ' A 5
Name of Confere;:ce:
Date and Location of conference/field frip:
,\sl)l,\ laS 4 @u&dﬂmn T oed H(ead werievs (%)
260 PlreacWho R4, m{-er\/\au@n
What is the purposeljustiﬁcatmn of your attendance at this conference? a5 haly g
Shudents Lot "l a pavx © ¢ an
o CAAal ik couneal w (ecrnine, move abodd
%m«a—e Puk-€s,.. j e\/pm.c,hunej pu_Johc 9\94 e e e
How does this conference impact student learning? Hetlilg Conne
> w,/ oux &uechaz_n =~

e Counced,

How does this fit with our Schoolwide or LCAP goals?

The Frudears iy e \Oui\cu/\ on O ?&A\Eﬁ
-

> Fulle i \g m pulelic
%; Opeve Li ?«Cééua,l 60%(?;5 ’

What is your plan to utilize this informatlon when you return to your classroom?

Jc,nmu\ LOWLVLCAN o@&fu' — 8 \\ovsin j

WL&_ OW\ &‘SM’@M . O%w m\(s}
o ey YL ronnedn ne, W/ Ut Ao d

[ounc | .




Sarah Jeffers

From: Valerie Kish ’ .

Sent: Wednesday, December 3, 2025 11:40 AM

To: Sarah Jeffers; Monica Sabori

Subject: Re: Tribal Council Request

Attachments: Conference-Trip Proposal (1) (37).docx; Field Trip Form Request eff 7.1.23 (23).docg

Conference Timelines 08.15.24 (15).docx

Hi

Attached are the paperwork for a iravel request.

From: Sarah Jeffers <sjeffers@spvusd.org>

Sent: Wednesday, December 3, 2025 12:20 PM

To: Valerie Kish <vkish@spvusd.org>; Maonica Sabori <msabori@spvusd.org> !
Subject: Re: Tribal Council Request’

It sounds like it'll be about 45 min max

Get ...

From: Valerie Kish <vkish@spvusd.org>

Sent: Wednesday, December 3, 2025 12:19:53 PM
To: Monica Sabori <msabori@spvusd.org>

Cc: Sarah Jeffers <sjeffers@spvusd.org>

Subject: Fw: Tribal Council Request -

Hi Monica

Strong hearts is requesting a vehicle for tomorrow at 1130am to go to the Quechan Tribal
headquarters for a presentation. | am not sure how long the event is for but | think we would
need one to two vans.

Please advise if there are any available for tomorrow?

From: Sarah leffers <sjeffers@spvusd.org>

Sent: Wednesday, December 3, 2025 11:44 AM

To: Anastasia Norlega <anoriega@spvusd.org>; Andre Polk <apolk@spvusd.org>
Cc: Valerie Kish <vkish@spvusd.org>

Subject: Tribal Council Request

Good afternoon,

| just received a call from one of Fort Yuma Tribal Councilman inviting the Strong Heart Advisors, HS
Officers, and HS Royalty to a tribal mesting tomorrow at 11:30am at the Quechan Tribal

- 1




\
’

Headquarters, 350 Picacho Rd, Winterhaven, CA 92283 . They
apologized for this last-minute invite/oversight. They would like to see us introduce ourselves, present
what they have been involved in this year, and make a connection with our club. Hopefully, this will lead
to more community support and positive movements for our club’s future.

Please let us know if it is possible for our advisors and students to attend this so we can request a van,
etc.

Thank you,




g SRR Sy - —

@ Cutlook

Fw: Tribal Council Request

From Valerie Kish <vkish@spvusd.org>

Date Wed 12/3/20252:32 PM :

To Monica Sabori <msabori@spvusd.org>

Cc  Sarah Jeffers <sjeffers@spvusd.org>; Andre Polk <apolk@spvusd.org>

Hi Monica

Strong hearts said if they can get a bus tomorrow to transport them it would be great. The
event is from 1130 to 1215 at Quechan Tribal Headquarters, 350 Picacho Rd, Winterhaven, CA
92283. '

Please advise if this will work out?

Thank You

From: Sarah Jeffers <sjeffers@spvusd.org>
Sent: Wednasday, December 3, 2025 1:57 PM
To: Valerie Kish <vkish@spvusd.org>; Anastasia Noriega <anoriega@spvusd.org>; Andre Polk <apolk@spvusd.org>
Subject: RE: Tribal Council Request

| am fine with a bus fransportingus. .

From: Valerie Kish <vkish@spvusd.org>

Sent: Wednesday, December 3, 2025 12:50 PM

fo: Sarah Jeffers <sjeffers@spvusd.org>; Anastasia Noriega <anoriega@spvusd.org>; Andre Polk
<apolk@spvusd.org>

Subject: Re: Tribal Council Request

Importance: High

Hi

| just got off the phone with Monica, and all of the vans are currently in usage. There
are no vans available for the rest of the week.

We have both boys/girls basketball out of fown overnight and wrestling is using the last two
vans to leave for an overnight tomorrow as well.

They can schedule a bus to take the group if that is what you want to do. Please advise.

~

From: Sarah leffers <sjeffers@spvusd.org>
Sent: Wednesday, December 3, 2025 11:44 A
To: Anastasia Noriega <anoriega@spvusd.org>; Andre Polk <apolk@spvusd.org>




Ce: Valerie Kish <vkish@spvusd.org>
Subject: Tribal Council Request

Goaod afternoon,

1 just received a call from one of Fort Yuma Tribal Councilman inviting the Strong Heart ‘
Advisors, HS Officers, and HS Royally to a tribal meeting tomorrow at 11:30am at the Quechan
Tribal Headguarters, 350 Picacho Rd, Winterhaven, CA 92283 . They apologized for this last-minute
invite/oversight. They would like to see us introduce ourselves, present what they have been
involved in this year, and make a connection with our club. Hopefully, this will lead to more
community support and positive movements for our club’s future.

Please let us know if it is possible for our advisors and students 1o attend this so we can request
avan, efc.

Thank you,

Sarah Jeffers




[P [ e e, PSR
- Vot bt e g o i e e -

San Pasqual Valley Unified School District
Permission Slip .

* PARENT PERMISSION:

I hereby give my permission for l\]mr-.:—p_}e Oomon
(Print student’sslame)

To attend a school activity as follows:
Description of Activity:
Dates: fa} b }3 S

me: 113213 Spm

\

Location: (Yu.e cinen T oad Jr}ecwubua vievrs, 3 50 Pl DV\CL&'\ O QC(

W2 intevhaven,
Please Note: 0L 2 8 3
Guardian-provided transportation to and from the school is required. Students must be
dropped off and picked up by a parent or guardian at the designated times. The advisors will ask
students to notify guardians of any updates regarding the returning times.
We appreciate your support in ensuring all students arrive and return safely.

Pétmission slips will need to be submitted on or before [ Z_’—_‘[ ! A5 to Mrs=Garcia or
Mss, Raiz me foly. 4=
' Itam nvs. e

AUTHORM-! TION FOR MEDICAL TREATMENT: I hereby authorize that medical andfor surgical care may
be provided for my child while he/she is on a field trip. I authorize such care to be provided through the facilities
of the nearest medical facility which will accept the student. I personally assume responsibility for any costs of

/7
g‘:rlencfgignamre: L% plly e 1/2

Address: N 282

Phone: 77/0 744 —"77¢4le Emergency Phone: 7G0 -0 - 74D

Insurance: ’
Policy/Group #; '.

Medical Alert (please list allergies or medical conditions):

A

R




San Pasqual Valley Unified School Dlstnct
Permission Slip

PARENT PERMISSION: .

I hereby give my permission for émo P T)e,mu%
(Print student’s name)

To attend a school activity as follows: v
Description of Activity:

Dates: laIL\ 135
nime: 1132 13 pm

. . . N

Location: (Y e cheey Vv 0o Heaﬂ%u.a vievs, 350 ¥ (‘_,[/\CLC"\ O QCL :

- W intevhaven, G
Please Note: A2233
Guardian-provided transportation to and from the school is required. Students must be
dropped off and picked up by a parent or guardian at the designated times. The advisors will ask
students to notify guardians of any updates regarding the returning times.
We appreciate your support in ensuring all students arrive and return safely.

Permission slips will need 1o be submitted on or before {2 / Ly ",:-l '5 to Mrs=&arcia or
DMisRuiz TV Mz PO\ a-
Ham Mvs, s
AUTHORIZATION FOR MEDICAL TREATMENT: I hereby authorize that medical and/or surgical care may .
be provided for my child while he/she is on a field trip. I authorize such care to be provided through the facilities

of the nearest medical f?@ which will accept thestudent. I personally assume responsibility for any costs of
such care,
Parent Signature: / /4 C)Zféf/(_ /

Address: _4 7. ¢ nerdh Corall ol

Phone: QQQ83“2L0~9V%%& Emergency Phone:{ _9%1 203 3’6

Insurance: _— T

Policy/Group #: T

‘Medical A e list allergies or medical conditions):
TN -




Conference/Field Trip Checklist and Timeline
Must be included with Packet

Date Completed |6-8 WEEKS PRIOR TO CONFERENCE NOTES
Gather Conference/Field Trip information
Fill out Request for Conference/Warkshop/Field Trip Form Include ta packet to District office

Speak to Supervisor for Approval

Supervisor mustsign request form

1f Approved, Give to Site Secretary to get board exhibit ready

L

Vendor Request in Escape for Conference Registration/Hotel
Accommodations

=  Use US Bank [0800367) as the Vendor

=  Incomment section of VR Type Name and Date of Conference

e  Initems, list Registration as each with how many attending

s Initems, list Hotel rooms as each with how many rooms are needed

-

Include VR# on the Hard Copy of the Request Form

Transportation Request

Include in packet to District office

Send Exhihit to Exec. Assistant to Superintendent

Include {n packet to Dlsﬁictoﬂice

Send Conference Form with materials atzached to District Secretary

Include in packet to District office

Date Completed |4-6 WEEKS BEFORE CONFERENCE |NOTES
Board Approved Follow up with EA or principal for approvat
Registration and Hote! Reservation [ District Secretary)

Date Completed |2-3 WEEKS BEFORE CONFERENCE INOTES _

Transportation Request (Employee)

If not included in packet to District Office

Travel Expense Form (Site Secretary }

Ifnot included in packet to Distyict Office

Arrange forsubstitutes (District Clerk & Secretarles}

Date Completed

1-5DAYS BEFORE CONFERENCE .

NOTES

Checkin with Transportation Department

Receive travel expense check (DO)

Revised 08.15.2024 N

b S



—material):

’ SAN PASQUAL VALLEY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
FIELD TRIP REQUEST
- {Overnight and/or Qut-of-State Field Trips must be approved by the Board)

Teacher/Advisor/Coach: 7— A~ (20 J L #of Students L
Schoal: ff‘m /94 hY 404[ Ué //ﬂ'—/ . [7! S Grade/Class /‘9‘{“#/2%ﬂ

Destination: -{_sg2 ~t o ( H: Location: \(\ Jﬂﬂﬂf*-’ ( ﬁ( g ’
Depart Date: [t~ 5~ 25 AHC:( %C’/hb'o {

Estimated Cost: §
' Registration/Tickets

Hotel Cost (Room & Tax) Nights: Room: / Total Cost: $
N\
N

Hotel Parking Fees per night: N P -
Hotel Hold fees per night; N\ _~ -
Brealfast: \<’ inner:

Staff Meals($64/day) Lunch: Dinner: Total Cost:
Attach Staff Meal Form

Student Meals{$37/day) Breel,fas{ Nunch: Dinner Total Cost:
Attach Student Meal Form .

e ] 12\ U MieS %70 3D
Additional: -

Total: $

Source of Funding: Gen Travel —
1. Will you use a District Bus or Van? Yes_X . No____ /} 9 Lve el

2o ‘
School Dude Request Date: ptngas {provide & copy of transportation request)
Will you require a substitute: Yes ___ No L/ (If yes, please follow up with District CIérk)

2

3

4. Student Permission Form: Yes " No

5 ' v,

Requires Bistrict to pay usirig credit card (attach.specificiinformation): Yes____ .~ No .

6. Wil you.or:bus driver require-a district.gas.card Yes_ ~ ‘No. (/
Describe the objectives of the pro osed activity and-hew-they-relate-tothe Tourselgrade/program (Attach backup

f ~ APPROVAL _ |

!. Disapproved N
ipegvi Date :

y1sor

L. -
Approved Disapproved

" DISTRICT OFFICE USE

Superintendent Date Date Reviewed By Board

INSTRUCTIONS: This form Is to be completed prior to conferonce/workshop (CHECK CONFERENCE CHECKLlST} Sl.lhmit all cop!es to
immediate supervisor who wiTf glve initial approval and forward all copies to superintendant for final approval. No fravel claims, advances, or
credit card charges will be pald without submission of this form in advance,

Revised 7/1/2023

s e T




San Pasqual Valley High School
Conference/Field Trip Request Proposal
Virtual Zoom Meeting

- Staff Viember(s) Name: T\ e I’ZJ I'e k

Site: HS A =S5 25—

Date Submitted: { -~ S - 25

ce: t""/"ﬁv—?c«{ HS‘ +" L“L {// Ca SIL‘E“‘&LK
o f

Name of Conferen
Yar. |
Date and Location of conferenceffield trip: ¢ 2. — 35— 2.8 / T e e / H. 5

.00 - 330 PN

What is the purpose/iustification of your attendance at this conference? /
T

\-\-e_ \"I’ Ao H(j +~€¢=Cu"— C,._JL.TL‘A Ca 5"7[““’"”& f

&L f 7 }
How does this conference impaci student learning? _

£ ! - t
Ve, ~ "(L’.,)"‘t CL-LQ_ < A~ (é.q,-,. ‘5“\."‘"“—;,{5
How does this fit with our Schoolwide or LCAP goals?

r,Ua/E.}y, A/K*l(l\ S e C“L{";-"\ /q"j '{TQC_L-c.—.

I

-

What Is your plan to utilize this information when you return to your classroom?

5%//-1_45 toh o 5 w7/

/'iSC(/fg 6}'7L o[- FAr _,\,
""‘ke%%

------




@ Outlook :

AG Truck

From Valerie Kish <vkish@spvusd.org>

Date Wed 12/3/2025 1:09 PM

To Monica Sabori <msabori@spvusd.org>
Cc  Tim Rush <trush@spvusd.org>; Jorge Munoz <jmunoz@spvusd.org>

~

b

Hi Monica,

Mr. Rush is requesting to use the AG truck on Friday to transport a couple of students to
Imperial High School to help with castration of that schools pigs. It would be after school about

1.00pm to 2:30/3pm. i

We are unable to submit the request into school dude since it is last moments notice.

)
Please let me know if this will be an issue.

Thank you, .

Valerie Kish

Secretary to the Principal
Secretary to the Athletic Director
San Pasqual High School

e s e e e B .

b




2025-2026

Open or needing certificated

9th Grade Adviser
Sth Grade Adviser
10th Grade Adviser Tracy Hill
.|10th Grade Adviser Jaqueline Rodriguez
11th Grade Adviser Karen Aguilar
11th Grade Adviser Shannon Pliego
12th Grade Adviser Abigail Gonzalez
12th Grade Adviser Marco Casian
HS ABS Advisor Patricia Malvido - retired.
HS ABS Advisor Sarah Jeffers eff 08/12/2025
HS ABS Advisor Shannon Pliego eff 1/6/2026

Drama Director -

Music Director

Art Director

Andrew Layne

District Science Fair Coord

HS Yearbook Photographer

Linda Ontiveros

HS Yearbook Advisor

Linda Ontiveros

Gear Up Coordinator

MS/HS Strong Hearts Advisor

Andre Polk/Sarah Jeffers splitting stipend

6th Grade Sponsor

7th Grade Sponsor Not hiring MS advisors.

8th Grade Sponsor

MS ASB Advisor Yuritsi Orozco-Arevalo = pending application
MS Yearbook Photographer Alma Castillo

MS Yearbook Advisor Alma Castillo

ES/MS Art Director

Jahan Thrower

Elementary Yearbook Advisor

Jeanette Montgomery

Elementary Yearbook Photographer

Damaris Diaz Lamas {classified)

ASES Middle School Coordinator

ASES Elementary School Coordinator

Taune Smith

ASES Clerk

Angie Wright




Discussion/Action Item
Exhibit: V.2
Date: 11.18.25

SAN PASOQUAL VALLEY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

TITLE:
\

‘The Superintendent recommends approval of updated board policies section 1000 Concepts and Roles
and BP/AR 114 District Sponsored Social Media

EXPLANATORY STATEMENT:

I
[}

Board Policy 1000 - Concepts and Roles

Policy updated as part of CSBA's process to regularly review policy documents that otherwise would not
be revised, due to no applicable changes to law, regulations, new guidance, or other directives, and
amended for timeliness, organization, and to add a reference to Board Bylaw 9005 - Governance

Standards. )

Board Policy/Administrative Regulation 1114 - District-Sponsored Social Media

Policy updated in conjunction with the accompanying administrative, with minor revisions. Regulation
updated to reflect NEW LAW (AB 2481, 2024) which (1) requires, beginning January 1, 2026, a large
social media platform, as defined, to create a process to verify certain individuals as "verified reporters,"
including a school principal and other district leaders, and to create a process by which a verified reporter
can make a report of a social media-related threat or a violation of the platform's terms of service that
poses a risk or a severe risk to the health and safety of a minor in the verified reporter's opinion, (2)
directs each school principal, or an individual in a position of similar responsibility, to register as a
verified reporter with each large social media platform on which the applicable school has an account
when directed by the Superintendent or designee, and (3) directs a verified reporter to inform the
Superintendent or designee of a social media-related threat or a violation of a social media platform's
terms of service that, in the opinion of the reporter, poses a risk or severe risk to the health and safety of a
minor who the reporter knows is enrolled in the reporter's school and report the threat or violation via the
process created by the applicable social media platform. Additionally, regulation updated to reference
"www.stopbullying.gov", which provides information from various government agencies related to
bullying and includes a list of online platforms, with links, for the reporting of cyberbullying which
violates the terms of service established by the online platforms. In addition, regulation updated to reflect
NEW LAW (AB 1785, 2024) which expands the prohibition for districts to publicly post specified
information of an elected or appointed official on the internet, without first obtaining the written
permission of that individual, to include the name and assessor parcel number associated with the
official's home address.

STAFF MEMBERS INVOLVED:

Karen Medel, EAS and Richard Cordero, Superintendent

FISCAL IMPACT:

None

SOURCE OF FUNDING:
‘ b

N/A

RECOMMENDED ACTION:

Approve updated board policies section 1000 Concepts and Roles and BP/AR 114 District Sponsored
Social Media

—



PREPARED AND SUBMITTED BY:
Karen Medel, Executive Assistant to the Superintendent

REVIEWED BY:

Richard Cordero, M.Ed.,Superintendent




CSBA Sample District Policy Manual
CSBA Policy Management Console

Policy 1000: Concepts And Roles Status: ADOPTED

Original Adopted Date: 06/01/1985 | Last Revised Date: 1011/01/19962025 | Last Reviewed
Date: 3011/01/29962025

The Governing Board desires to represent the community and provide leadership in addressing
community issuesinterests related to education. In order to identify community concerns and
enlistencourage support for the district and district schools, promote collaboration between the
district, parents/guardians, community members, and local organizations, and to identify and

respond to community priorities, the Board shall establish effective two-way communication
systems between seheelsthe district and the community.

collaberate as partners: The Board and the Superintendent or designee shall work together with
city and, county, and other local agencies and organizations to promote and facilitate coordinated
services for children, and shall seek to develop partnerships with local businesses and organizations.

The Board recognizes that district schools are an important community resource and encourages
community members to make appropriate use of school facilities. Community members are also
encouraged to attend Board meetings, participate in district and school activities, and take an active
interest in issues that affect the district and its schools. The Board and the Superintendent or
designee shall keep community members well informed about district programs, needs, and
accomplishments and shall ensure that they have opportunities to share in developing educational
policies; programs and evaluation preecessesthe development of district decisions, in accordance
with Board Bylaw 9005 - Governance Standards.

The Board recognizes that its ability to fulfill the community's expectations for a high-quality
educational program depends enis dependent upon the level of suppertfunding provided by the
state and federal government as wel as the and community: Fhe Beard therefore support. In an
effort to provide the best educational experience for district students, the Board shall study
legislative processes and issues, establish ongoing relationships with federal, state, and local leaders
and the media, adopt positions on key issues, set priorities for advocacy, and collaborate with other
organizations and coalitions in legislative and legal advocacy efforts.

Policy Reference UPDATE Service
Copyright 2025 by California School Boards Association, West Sacramento, California 95691

All rights reserved.

Policy Reference Disclaimer:

These references are not intended to be part of the policy itself, nor do they indicate the basis or authority for
the Governing Board to enact this policy. Instead, they are provided as additional resources for those
interested in the subject matter of the policy.

State Description




Ed. Code 35160
Ed. Code 35172

Management Resources
Website

Cross References

Code
0100

0510
0510
1112
1150
1160
1220
1220
1240
1240
1330
1330
1400

1700
2120
6020
6020
6141
6141
9000
2005
2010

Authority of governing boards

Promotional activities

Description
CSBA District and County Office of Education Legal Services

Description
Philosophy

School Accountability Report Card
School Accountability Report Card
Media Relations

Commendations And Awards
Political Processes

Citizen Advisory Committees
Citizen Advisory Committees
Volunteer Assistance

Volunteer Assistance

Use Of School Facilities

Use Of School Facilities

Relations Between Other Governmental Agencies And The
Schools

Relations Between Private Industry And The Schools
Superintendent Recruitment And Selection

Parent Involvement

Parent Involvement

Curriculum Development And Evaluation
Curriculum Development And Evaluation

Role Of The Board

Governance Standards

Public Statements



CSBA Sample District Policy Manual
CSBA Policy Management Console

Policy 1114: District-Sponsored Social Media Status: ADOPTED

Original Adopted Date: 07/01/2011 | Last Revised Date: 0911/01/20242025 | Last Reviewed
Date: 6911/01/20242025

" CSBA NOTE: The following optional policy is for use by districts that have created arone or more :
official district (i.e., district-sponsored) social media aceeuntaccounts. "Social media” is defined in '
the accompanying administrative regulation as an online platform for collaboration, interaction, or |
active participation, or that allows users to post content, including social networking sites such as ‘

 Instagram, TikTok, Facebook, X/Twitter, SnapChat, YouTube, or LinkedIn; ete.

District strategies for effective use of online social media may be incorporated into the district's
| comprehensive communications plan;. For more information related to informing the public, see BP

‘ 1100 - Communication With Fhewith the Public.
L -

The Governing Board recognizes the value of social media to share district information with families
and the community and promote community involvement and collaboration in district decisions.
The purpose of any official district social media account shall be to further the district's vision and
mission, to support student learning and staff professional development, and to enhance
communication and engagement with students, families, staff, and community members. The
Superintendent or designee shall ensure that the content posted by the district on an official district
social media account is accessible to individuals with disabilities.

| CSBA NOTE: To minimize liability to the district, it is important to clearly define the efficiatwhich

' social media accounts which theare official district spenserssocial media accounts and to specify the

: standards, guidelines, and protocols for their use. Board policies and administrative regulations do

| not apply to personal social media accounts that may be, such as those created by students, staff

| members, individual Governing Board members, or other individuals whiehsince those accounts are

! not sponsored by the district even though they may sometimes include discussion of district-related

Statements, BB 2012 - Board Member Electronic Communications, and BB 2320 - Meetings and
| Notices.

The Superintendent or designee shall devglop content guideli_n;as and pn;tocols for official district
social media accounts to ensure public access, appropriate and responsible use, and compliance
with law, beardBoard policy, and administrative regulation.

Guidelines for Content

| CSBA NOTE: Social media platforms typically allow user; to post or réply toicizcgntent posted on
users' accounts, which is or can be made viewable to other users and even the public. This may !
 create a "limited public forum," which grants individuals certain freedom of speech rights and limits |




the district's ability to remove comments or posts. Any removal of content by the district should be
based on viewpoint-neutral considerations to protect against possible legal challenges. This may
include, but is not limited to, removing content that constitutes discrimination, harassment, or
bullying, as specified in the accompanying administrative regulation, or that is unrelated to the
purpose of the account. Additionally, in order to help maintain the district's ability to remove
content, users should be informed of the purpose of the account(s) and the limited nature of the
discussion. District staff should regularly monitor all such accounts so that materials are promptly
removed as permitted by law. See the accompanying administrative regulation for language
regarding removal of posts and monitoring of accounts. It is recommended that districts consult
CSBA's District and County Office of Education Legal Services or district legal counsel to ensure
that any provisions related to removal of posts or discipline of students or staff are consistent with
law.

Official district social media accounts shall be used only for their stated purposes and in a manner
consistent with this policy and administrative regulation. This policy is not intended to create an
open public forum or otherwise guarantee an individual's right to free speech on any of the official
district social media accounts even if one or more features on the account that permit interaction
with and between members of the public are enabled.

The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that the limited purpose of official district social media
accounts is clearly communicated to users. Each account shall contain a statement specifying the
purposes of the account, that the account shall only be used for such purposes, and any other user
expectations or conditions as specified in the accompanying administrative regulation.

Official district social media accounts may not contain contentContent that is obscene, libelous, or
so incites students as to create a clear and present danger of the commission of unlawful acts on
school premises, violation of school rules, or substantial disruption of the school's orderly operation
shall not be permitted on official district social media accounts.

CSBA NOTE: Staff and students who post prohibited content on official district social media
accounts are subject to discipline in accordance with beardBoard policies and administrative
regulations. Pursuant to Education Code 48900(r), a student may be subject to suspension or
expulsion if the student engages in an act of bullying by means of an electronic act, as defined i
Education Code 32261:. For more information on student suspension and expulsion, including
when bullying is through an electronic act, see AR 5144.1 - Suspension and Expulsion/Due Process.
Pursuant to Education Code 3226148900, an "electronic act” includes, but is not limited to, posts
on a social networking site such as a social media platform.

When staff and students misuse the district's technological resources, they also may be subject to
cancellation of user privileges in accordance with the district's Acceptable Use Agreements. For
more information regarding acceptable use of the district’s technological resources, see BP/E 4040
- Employee Use of Technology and BP/E 6163.4 - Student Use of Technology.

Staff or students who post prehibited eententon, reply from, or otherwise engage withuse an official




district social media account in a manner that violates beardBoard policies and administrative
regulations shall be subject to discipline in accordance with sueh applicable policies and regulations.

Users of official district social media accounts, and anyone who posts on, replies to, or otherwise
leaves a digital footprint on an official district social media account, should be aware of the public
nature and accessibility of social media and that such information posted eron, replied with, or
otherwise left on an official district social media account may be considered a public record subject
to disclosure under the Public Records Act.

Privacy

To the extent practicable, the Superintendent or designee shall ensure that the privacy rights of
students, parents/guardians, staff, Board members, and other individuals are protected on official
district social media accounts.

As it pertains to the posting of student photographs and the privacy of telephone numbers, home
addresses, and email addresses, official district social media accounts shall eperate in
aceoerdancecomply with Board Policy 1113 - District and School Websites.

Social media and other online platforms shall not be used by district employees to transmit
confidential information about students, employees, or district operations.

Policy Reference UPDATE Service
Copyright 2025 by California School Boards Association, West Sacramento, California 95691
All rights reserved.

Policy Reference Disclaimer:

These references are not intended to be part of the policy itself, nor do they indicate the basis or authority for
the Governing Board to enact this policy. Instead, they are provided as additional resources for those
interested in the subject matter of the policy.

State Description

Bus. and Prof. Code 22588.2-22588.4 Youth Social Media Protection Act

Ed. Code 32260-32262 Interagency School Safety Demonstration Act of 1985
Ed. Code 35182.5 Contracts for advertising

Ed. Code 48900 Grounds for suspension or expulsion

Ed. Code 48907 Exercise of free expression; time, place, and manner rules

and regulations

Ed. Code 48950 Speech and other communication

Ed. Code 49061 Definitions; directory information

Ed. Code 49073 Release of directory information

Ed. Code 60048 Commercial brand names, contracts or logos



Gov. Code 3307.5
Gov. Code 54952.2
Gov. Code 7920.000-7930.215

Federal
17 USC 101-1101

20 USC 1232g

29 USC 157

29 USC 794

34 CFR 99.1-99.67

Management Resources
Court Decision

Court Decision

Court Decision

Court Decision

Court Decision

Court Decision

Facebook Publicaten

National Labor Relations Board Decision

18-CA-1908
Website
Website
Website

Website

Website
Website

Cross References

Publishing identity of public safety officers
Brown Act; definition of meeting
California Public Records Act

Description
Federal copyright law

Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA) of 1974
Employee rights to engage in concerted, protected activity
Rehabilitation Act of 1973; Section 504

Family Educational Rights and Privacy

Description
Lindke v. Freed (2024) 601 U.S. 187

Aaris v. Las Virgenes Unified School District (1998) 64
Cal.App.4th 1112

Board of Education, Island Trees Union Free School District,
et.al. v. Pico (1982) 457 U.S. 853

Page v. Lexington County School District (2008, 4th Cir.) 531
F.3d 275

Perry Education Association v. Perry Local Educators'
Association (1983) 460 U.S. 37

Downs v. Los Angeles Unified School District (2000, 9th Cir:
2000).) 228 F.3d 1003

Facebook for Educators Guide, 2013

Sears Holdings, Advice Memorandum 18-CA-1908,
(December 4, 2009)

Meta in Education

CSBA District and County Office of Education Legal Services
Facebook, privacy resources

Bullying Resources

(https:/www.stopbullying.gov)

California School Public Relations Association

CSBA




Code
0000

0410
0440

0441

0510

0510

1100

1112

1113

1113
1113-E(1)
1160

1230

1230

1260
1312.3
1312.3
1312.3-E(1)
1312.3-E(2)
1313

1325
3515.7
3516

3516

4030
4030
4040
4040-E(1)

Description

Vision

Nondiscrimination In District Programs And Activities
District Technology Plan

Artificial Intelligence

School Accountability Report Card

School Accountability Report Card
Communication With The Public

Media Relations

District And School Websites

District And School Websites

District And School Websites

Political Processes

School-Connected Organizations
School-Connected Organizations
Educational Foundation

Uniform Complaint Procedures

Uniform Complaint Procedures

Uniform Complaint Procedures

Uniform Complaint Procedures

Civility

Advertising And Promotion

Firearms On School Grounds

Emergencies And Disaster Preparedness Plan
Emergencies And Disaster Preparedness Plan
Nondiscrimination In Employment
Nondiscrimination In Employment

Employee Use Of Technology

Employee Use Of Technology



4118

4118
4119.21
4119.21-E(1)
4119.23
4119.25
4131

4132

4218

4218
4219.21
4219.21-E(1)
4219.23
4219.25
4231

4232
4319.21
4319.21-E(1)
4319.23
4319.25
4331

4332

5022

5022

5125

5125

5125.1
2125.1
5125.1-E(1)

Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action
Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action

Professional Standards

Professional Standards

Unauthorized Release Of Confidential/Privileged Information

Political Activities of Employees

Staff Development

Publication Or Creation Of Materials
Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action
Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action

Professional Standards

Professional Standards

Unauthorized Release Of Confidential/Privileged Information

Political Activities of Employees

Staff Development

Publication Or Creation Of Materials

Professional Standards

Professional Standards

Unauthorized Release Of Confidential/Privileged Information

Political Activities of Employees

Staff Development

Publication Or Creation Of Materials
Student And Family Privacy Rights
Student And Family Privacy Rights
Student Records

Student Records

Release Of Directory Information
Release Of Directory Information

Release Of Directory Information




5131
5142.2
5142.2
5144
5144
5144.1
5144.1
5145.2
5145.2
5145.3
5145.3
5145.7
5145.7
6020
6020
6145.5
6145.5
6162.6
6162.6
6163.4
6163.4-E(1)
9010
9012
9320

Conduct

Safe Routes To School Program

Safe Routes To School Program
Discipline

Discipline

Suspension And Expulsion/Due Process
Suspension And Expulsion/Due Process
Freedom Of Speech/Expression
Freedom Of Speech/Expression
Nondiscrimination/Harassment
Nondiscrimination/Harassment

Sexual Harassment

Sexual Harassment

Parent Involvement

Parent Involvement

Student Organizations And Equal Access
Student Organizations And Equal Access
Use Of Copyrighted Materials

Use Of Copyrighted Materials

Student Use Of Technology

Student Use Of Technology

Public Statements

Board Member Electronic Communications

Meetings and Notices

10



CSBA Sample District Policy Manual
CSBA Policy Management Console

Regulation 1114: District-Sponsored Social Media Status: ADOPTED

Original Adopted Date: 07/01/2011 | Last Revised Date: 0911/01/20242025 | Last Reviewed
Date: 6911/01/20242025

CSBA NOfEi Tﬁe following optional administrative regulation may be revised to reflect district -
practice and the types of social media accounts used by the district.

Definitions

Social media means any online platform for collaboration, interaction, or active participation, or that
allows users to post content, including, but not limited to, social networking sites such as Instagram,
TikTok, Facebook, X/Twitter, SnapChat, YouTube, and LinkedIn.

CSBA NOTE: To minimize liability to the district, it is important that the district to clearly define the
efficialwhich social media accounts ever which i has eentrel are official district social media
accounts and to specify the standards, guidelines, and protocols for their use. Fhe following
definition may be revised to reflect district praetiee: Board policies and administrative regulations
do not apply to personal social media accounts that may besuch as those created by students, staff
members, individual Governing Board members, or other individuals whiehsince those are not
sponsored by the district even though they may sometimes include discussion of district-related 7

Statements, BB 2012 - Board Member Electronic Communications, and BB 9320 - Meetings and
Notices.

The following definition may be revised to reflect district practice.

An official district social media account is an account on a social media platform authorized b;/ the
Superintendent or designee.

An account that contains content related to the district or comments about district operations but
that has not been created based on authorization or direction from the Superintendent or designee,
such as an account created by a parent-teacher organization, booster club, or other school-
connected organization or a student's or employee's personal account, is not an official district
social media account.

School-level employees such as teachers and coaches shall obtain authorization from the school
principal before creating an official social media account.

CSBA NOTE: Business ﬂ'Professions Code 22588.2-22588.4 (the Youth Social Media Protection
Act), as added by AB 2481 (Ch. 832, Statutes of 2024), requires, beginning January 1, 2026, a large
social media platform, as defined, to create a process to verify certain individuals as “verified

"




reporters,” including a school principal and other district leaders, and to create a process by which a
verified reporter can make a report of a social media-related threat or a violation of the platform's

position of similar responsibility, to register as a verified reporter and should be modified to include
other district leaders to reflect district practice.

position of similar responsibility, shall register as a verified reporter with each large social media
platform on which the applicable school has an account in accordance with Business and
Professions Code 22588.2-22588.4.

Guidelines for Content

Each official district social media account shall contain content that is useful and appropriate for all
audiences.

CSBA NOTE: Federal copyright law (17 USC 107) and the courts have generally provided that
teachers, students, and schools are allowed to make "fair use" of materials for instructional
purposes in situations which are not likely to deprive a publisher or an author of income;. For more
information regarding copyrights. including “fair use”, see BP/AR 6162.6 - Use of Copyrighted
Materials. However, as this is a fact-specific determination, it is recommended that districts consult
CSBA's District and County Office of Education Legal Services or district legal counsel.

District employees or agents in charge of posting or adding information to an official district social
media account shall ensure that copyright laws are not violated in the use of material on official
district social media accounts.

CSBA NOTE: Social media platforms typically allow users to post or reply to content on each other's
accounts, which is or can be made viewable to other users and even the public. This may create a
“limited public forum," which grants individuals certain freedom of speech rights and limits the
district's ability to remove comments or posts. Any removal of content by the district should be
based on viewpoint-neutral considerations to protect against possible legal challenges. This may
include, but is not limited to, removing content that constitutes discrimination, harassment, or
bullying, as specified in the accompanying BbeardBoard Policy, or that is unrelated to the purpose
of the account. Additionally, in order to help maintain the district's ability to remove content, users
should be informed of the purpose of the account(s) and the limited nature of the discussion.
District staff should regularly monitor all such accounts so that materials are removed as permitted
by law. It is recommended that districts consult CSBA's District and County Office of Education
Legal Services or district legal counsel to ensure that any provisions related to removal of posts or
discipline of students or staff are consistent with law.

In Sears, the National Labor Relations Board (NLRB) advised caution when establishing policy
related to employee use of electronic communications as it might interfere with an employee's right

12



to engage in protected, concerted activity granted by 29 USC 157. The NLRB has held that social
media policies can prohibit the disclosure of confidential information and address legitimate

concerns for managing the workplace, but cannot expressly or by implication prohibit employees
from talking with each other about wages, hours, and other terms and conditions of employment.

Additionally, Education Code 48907 grants students the right to freedom of speech except for
speech which is obscene, libelous, or which so incites students as to create a clear and present
danger of the commission of unlawful acts on school premises, violation of lawful school
regulations, or substantial disruption of the orderly operation of the school. AlseFor more
information, see BP/AR 5145.2 - Freedom of Speech/Expression and BP/AR 6145.5 - Student
Organizations and Equal Access.

Furthermeoreln addition, if the district chooses to post advertising of a commercial nature on an
official district social media account, then the ability to remove comments of a commercial nature
posted by others may be limited as removing some commercial content and not others may
constitute viewpoint discrimination. Districts should also be cautious about the use of district
resources, such as its official district social media account, for political purposes:. For more
information, see BP 1160 - Political Processes.

Pursuant to the U.S. Supreme Court's decision in Lindke v. Freed, a district official who limits or
prevents critics from speaking, such as by blocking them on social media or deleting their posts,
violates the First Amendment only if the official (1) has been granted the power to speak on behalf
of the district and (2) claims to be actually exercising that power. Because the determination as to
whether a public official's action meets these two conditions is a fact-specific undertaking, it is
recommended that districts with questions regarding this issue consult CSBA's District and County
Office of Education Legal Services or district legal counsel.

The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that official district social media accounts are regularly
monitored. Staff members responsible for monitoring content may remove posts or even suspend
users from interacting with the account only based on viewpoint-neutral considerations, such as
lack of relation to the account's purpose or violation of board policies or administrative regulations.

| CSBA NOTE: While Business and Professions Code 22588.2-22588.4, beginning January 1, 2026,
requires large social media platforms to create a process by which a verified reporter can make a
report of a social media-related threat or a violation of the platform’s terms of service as specified
below, the following paragraph adds that the verified reporter is required to notify the
Superintendent or designee of the threat or violation, and should be modified to reflect district

practice.

If a verified reporter becomes aware of a social media-related threat or a violation of a social media

health and safety of a minor who the reporter knows is enrolled in the reporter's school, the
reporter shall inform the Superintendent or designee and report the threat or violation via the
process created by the applicable social media platform as specified in Business and Professions
Code 22588.2-22588.4.

13




Each official district social media account shall, as appropriate, prominently display a link to this
regulation or a statement that includes Items #1-10, below:

1. The purpose(s) of the account, such as providing information to a class, school community,
athletic team, or student club; engaging with the public regarding district decisions and
Governing Board meetings; and sharing information regarding employment opportunities
with the district

2. Users shall use the site only for those intended purposes

3. The account is regularly monitored and any inappropriate interaction will be promptly
removed, blocked, or similarly addressed-

Inappropriate interactions include, but are not limited to, interactions that:

a. Are obscene, libelous, or so incite students as to create a clear and present danger of
the commission of unlawful acts on district premises, violation of district or school
rules, or substantial disruption to the district or school's orderly operation

b. Are not related to the stated purpose of the account, including, but not limited to,
threats, comments of a commercial nature, political activity, and comments
prohibited by board policies and administrative regulations

4. Users are expected to communicate in a respectful, courteous, and professional manner and
are personally responsible for their use of the account

5. The district is not responsible for the content posted by other users or how other users
interact with the account

6. The views and comments expressed by other users on the account belong to those users
and do not necessarily reflect the views of the district

7. Any user's reference to a specific commercial product or service does not imply
endorsement or recommendation of that product or service by the district

8. The individual(s) to contact regarding violation of district guidelines on the use of official
district social media accounts

CSBA NOTE:iThe Cﬁ)eirbu-llyin_g;rotecﬁon ;\ct@;sinéss and ProfessioBs Code 22589-22589.4) &
| requires a social media platform, as defined, to establish a mechanism that allows any individual,

14



including the district, to report cyberbullying or any content that violates the existing terms of
service. Although not directly applicable to districts, it is good guidance for districts seeking to
create a safe online space. For more information, districts may want to visit www.stopbullying.gov,
which provides information from various government agencies related to bullying and includes a list
of online platforms, with links, for the reporting of cyberbullying which violates the terms of service
established by the online platforms.

9. Violations may be reported to the appropriate social media platform, law enforcement, or
other third parties, as appropriate

CSBA NOTE: Item #10 details the length of and preconditions for a user's suspension and should be
modified to reflect district practice.

10. A user may be suspended from interacting with the account for one month upon three prior
violations and for six months upon two prior one-month suspensions

Appropriate Use by District Employees

CSBA NOTFE: CSBA NOTE: Pursuant to Government Code 7928.205, a district may not post a
Board member's home address, telephone number, or, as amended by AB 1785 (Ch. 551, Statutes of
2024), both the name and assessor parcel number associated with the home address, without first
obtaining the written permission of that individual. However, Government Code 7928.205 does not
prohibit a district from publicly posting a legally required notice or publication of an elected or
appointed official on the internet.

For policy language regarding appropriate employee communications and relationships with
students, see BP 4119.21/4219.21/4319.21 - Professional Standards and BP 4040 - Employee Use
Of Technology.

District employees who participate in official district social media accounts shall adhere to all
applicable board policies and administrative regulations, including; but net limited to; professienal
standards related to interactions with studentssuch as Board Policy 1313 - Civility and Board
Policy/Administrative Regulation 4119.25/4219.25/4319.25 - Political Activities of Employees, and
shall not share confidential information about students, employees, Board members, or district

operations.

When appropriate, employees posting, replying, or otherwise interacting with the public outside of
their professional duties or responsibilities on official district social media accounts shall identify
themselves by name and district title and include a disclaimer stating that the views and opinions
expressed in their post are theirs alone and do not necessarily represent those of the district or
school.

All staff shall receive information about appropriate use of the official district social media accounts.

15




Policy Reference UPDATE Service
Copyright 2025 by California School Boards Association, West Sacramento, California 95691
All rights reserved.

Policy Reference Disclaimer:

These references are not intended to be part of the policy itself, nor do they indicate the basis or authority for
the Governing Board to enact this policy. Instead, they are provided as additional resources for those
interested in the subject matter of the policy.

State Description

Bus. and Prof. Code 22588.2-22588.4 Youth Social Media Protection Act

Ed. Code 32260-32262 Interagency School Safety Demonstration Act of 1985
Ed. Code 35182.5 Contracts for advertising

Ed. Code 48900 Grounds for suspension or expulsion

Ed. Code 48907 Exercise of free expression; time, place, and manner rules

and regulations

Ed. Code 48950 Speech and other communication

Ed. Code 492061 Definitions; directory information

Ed. Code 49073 Release of directory information

Ed. Code 60048 Commercial brand names, contracts or logos

Gov. Code 3307.5 Publishing identity of public safety officers

Gov. Code 54952.2 Brown Act; definition of meeting

Gov. Code 7920.000-7930.215 California Public Records Act

Federal Description

17 USC 101-1101 Federal copyright law

20 USC 1232g Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA) of 1974
295G 157 Employee rights to engage in concerted, protected activity
29 USC 794 Rehabilitation Act of 1973; Section 504

34 CFR 99.1-99.67 Family Educational Rights and Privacy

Management Resources Description

Court Decision Lindke v. Freed (2024) 601 U.S. 187

Court Decision Aaris v. Las Virgenes Unified School District (1998) 64

Cal.App.4th 1112

Court Decision Board of Education, Island Trees Union Free School District,
et.al. v. Pico (1982) 457 U.S. 853

16



Court Decision

Court Decision

Court Decision

Facebook Rublication

National Labor Relations Board Decision

18-CA-1908
Website
Website
Website

Website

Website
Website

Cross References

Code
0000

0410
0440
0441
0510
0510
1100
1112
1113
1113
1113-E(1)
1160

Page v. Lexington County School District (2008, 4th Cir.) 531
F.3d 275

Perry Education Association v. Perry Local Educators'
Association (1983) 460 U.S. 37

Downs v. Los Angeles Unified School District (2000, 9th Cir:
2000).) 228 F.3d 1003

Facebook for Educators Guide; 2013

Sears Holdings, Advice Memorandum 18-CA-1908,
(December 4, 2009)

Meta in Education
CSBA District and County Office of Education Legal Services
Facebook, privacy resources

Bullying Resources

(https:/www.stopbullying.gov)

California School Public Relations Association

CSBA

Description
Vision

Nondiscrimination In District Programs And Activities
District Technology Plan

Artificial Intelligence

School Accountability Report Card

School Accountability Report Card

Communication With The Public

Media Relations

District And School Websites

District And School Websites

District And School Websites

Political Processes

17




1230

1230

1260
1312.3
13123
1312.3-E(1)
1312.3-E(2)
1313

1325
3515.7
3516

3516

4030

4030

4040
4040-E(1)
4118

4118
4119.21
4119.21-E(1)
4119.23
4119.25
4131

4132

4218

4218
4219.21

4219.21-E(1)-

4219.23

School-Connected Organizations
School-Connected Organizations
Educational Foundation

Uniform Complaint Procedures

Uniform Complaint Procedures

Uniform Complaint Procedures

Uniform Complaint Procedures

Civility

Advertising And Promotion

Firearms On School Grounds

Emergencies And Disaster Preparedness Plan
Emergencies And Disaster Preparedness Plan
Nondiscrimination In Employment
Nondiscrimination In Employment

Employee Use Of Technology

Employee Use Of Technology
Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action
Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action
Professional Standards

Professional Standards

Unauthorized Release Of Confidential/Privileged Information

Political Activities of Employees

Staff Development

Publication Or Creation Of Materials
Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action
Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action
Professional Standards

Professional Standards

Unauthorized Release Of Confidential/Privileged Information

18




4219.25 Political Activities of Employees

4231 Staff Development

4232 Publication Or Creation Of Materials
4319.21 Professional Standards

4319.21-E(1) Professional Standards

4319.23 Unauthorized Release Of Confidential/Privileged Information
4319.25 Political Activities of Employees

4331 Staff Development

4332 Publication Or Creation Of Materials
5022 Student And Family Privacy Rights
5022 Student And Family Privacy Rights
5125 Student Records

5125 Student Records

51251 Release Of Directory Information
51251 Release Of Directory Information
5125.1-E(1) Release Of Directory Information

5131 Conduct

5142.2 Safe Routes To School Program

5142.2 Safe Routes To School Program

5144 Discipline

5144 Discipline

51441 Suspension And Expulsion/Due Process
5144.1 Suspension And Expulsion/Due Process
5145.2 Freedom Of Speech/Expression

5145.2 Freedom Of Speech/Expression

5145.3 Nondiscrimination/Harassment

5145.3 Nondiscrimination/Harassment

5145.7 Sexual Harassment

5145.7 Sexual Harassment

19




Discussion/Action Item
Exhibit: V.2
Date: 1].1%.2lp

SAN PASQUAL VALLEY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

TITLE:

The Superintendent recommends approval of updated board policies section 2120 Superintendent
Recruitement and Selection .

EXPEANATORY STATEMENT:

Board Policy 2120 - Superintendent Recruitment and Selection

Policy updated to reference CSBA's, "California Consultants and Leadership” search services, which
provides guidance to districts recruiting and selecting a Superintendent. Additionally, policy updated to
remove from the list related to the Governing Board's search and selection process items which are rarely
carried out by the Board, and to add duties that a professional advisor may facilitate. In addition, policy
updated to clarify imaterial related to discussing, negotiating, and voting on the Superintendent's contract.
Policy also updated to reflect NEW LAW (SB 521, 2025), which prohibits the employment of a person as
Superintendent if within the past five years the candidate was convicted of any felony involving accepting
or giving, or offering to give, any bribe, conflict of interest, the embezzlement of public money, extortion
or theft of public money, perjury, or conspiracy to commit any of those crimes arising directly out of their
official duties as a public employee

STAFF MEMBERS INVOLVED:

Karen Medel, EAS and Richard Cordero, Superintendent

FISCAL IMPACT:

None

SOURCE OF FUNDING:

N/A

RECOMMENDED ACTION:

Approve updated board policies section 2120 Superintendent Recruitement and Selection

PREPARED AND SUBMITTED BY:

Karen Medel, Executive Assistant to the Superintendent

REVIEWED BY:

Richard Cordero, M.Ed.,Superintendent




CSBA Sample District Policy Manual
CSBA Policy Management Console

Policy 2120: Superintendent Recruitment And Selection Status: ADOPTED

Original Adopted Date: 07/01/2001 | Last Revised Date: 6311/01/20622025 | Last Reviewed
Date: 0311/01/20022025

CSBA NOTE: The foliowing optironal policy may be reviséd Eo feﬂect distgi;t;);cgc; téBAs : F

California Consultants and Leadership search service provides guidance to districts recruiting and |
selecting a Superintendent. J

The Governing Board recognizes that it has a direct respensibiliby to select and employis responsible
for selecting and employing the Superintendent. Whenever it becomes necessary for the Board to
fill a vacancy in the position of Superintendent, the Board shall work diligently to employ a person
whose management and leadership abilities are most closely aligned with district needs.

The Board shall establish and implement a search and selection process that includes consideration
of:

1. The district's current and long-term needs, including a review of the district's vision and
goals

2. The desired characteristics of a new Superintendent, including professional experience,
educational qualifications, leadership characteristics, philosophy of education, and other
management, technical, interpersonal and conceptual skills, as well as the priorities the
Board wants to place on different abilities, traits and levels of knowledge

3. The scope of the search, including whether to promote from within the district or broaden
the search to include both internal and external candidates and, if external candidates will
be considered, whether to conduct a statewide or nationwide search

4. The salary range and benefits to be offered

5. Basic elements to be included in the Superintendent's contract

6. Whether to hire a professional adviser to facilitate the hiring and contract negotiation
process and to ensure that verifications of the candidates’ gqualifications are obtained

7. How and when to involve the community in certain phases of the selection process

@ 8. The process for screening applications and determining how the screener(s) will be
selected

10- 9. Interview questions, processes, and participants

21




12.10. Other actions necessary to ensure a fair selection process and a smooth transition to
new leadership

Even if a professional adviser is used to facilitate the process, the Board shall retain the right and
responsibility to oversee the process and to review all applications if desired.

The Board shall select candidates to be interviewed based on recommendations of the screener(s}),
if applicable, and the Board's own assessment of how candidates meet the criteria established by
the Board.

CSBA NOTE: Pursuant to Government Code 54957, specified personnel matters, including
interviews and deliberation of the appointment or employment of an employee, may be discussed in
closed session as provided in the following paragraph. SeeFor more information regarding closed
session meetings, see BB 9321 - Closed Session Purpeses and Agendas.

The Board shall interview preliminary and final candidates and select a final candidate in closed
session and determine the most likely mateh for the distriet.. (Government Code 54957)

CSBA NOTE: Government Code 54954 provides an exception to the requirement that meetings of

outside of the district to (1) interview members of the public about the potential employment of an
applicant for superintendent, and (2) interview a potential employee from that district.

In general, if a quorum of the Board participates in an interview, the Brown Act open meeting laws
apply. If less than a qguorum of the Board participates in an interview, the Brown Act may not apply.

Because this is a complex area of law with significant consequences for violations, it is

recommended that Boards consult CSBA's District and County Office of Education Legal Services or
district legal counsel prior to visiting a candidate's district.

For more information about what constitutes a Board meeting, see BB 9320 - Meetings and
Notices.

Before offering the position to the selected candidate or making any announcements, Board
members may visit that candidate's current place of employment, as appropriate.

Pursuant to Board Policy 2121 - Superintendent's Contract, the Board shall discuss and negotiate
the Superintendent’s contract in closed session, but shall vote to approve the contract in open
session. (Government Code 53262, 54957, 54957.6)

The Board shall conduct any superintendent recruitment and selection process in accordance with
legal and ethical obligations regarding confidentiality and equal opportunity.

As necessary, the Board may appoint an interim or acting superintendent, to manage the district
when there is no permanent superintendent.

22



CSBA NOTE: Education Code 35029 authorizes the Board to waive the credential requirements of
Education Code 35028. However, Education Code 35029.1; added by AB 96 {Ch- 135; Statutes of
2001); prohibits a district from employing a superintendent whose credential has been revoked by
the Commission on Teacher Credentialing.

‘The selected eandidateSuperintendent shall hold both a valid school administration certificate and a
valid teacher's certificate. The Board may waive any credential requirement, but shall not employ a
person whose credential has been revoked by the Commission on Teacher Credentialing pursuant to
Education Code 44421-44427. (Education Code 35028, 35029, 35029.1)

CSBA NOTE: Gevernment Code 54954 as amended by SB 1771 (Ch. 257, Statutes of 2004},
authorizes a guoruin of the Board to meet in anether distriet to () interview members of the public
abeut the petential employment of an applicant for superintendent, and (2) intepview a potental
empleyee from that district: Previously, Gevernment Code 54954 anly authorized the Board to

interview members of the publie when the Board was considering hiring the superintendent from
the ether district See BB $320 - Meetings and Notices,

CSBA NOTE: Pursuant to Government Code 1021.5, as amended by SB 521 (Ch. 92, 92 Statutes of
2025), if a public employee is convicted of any felony involving accepting or giving, or offering to
give, any bribe, conflict of interest, the embezzlement of public money. extortion or theft of public
money, perjury, or conspiracy to commit any of those crimes arising directly out of their official

' duties as a public employee, the public employee shall be disqualified for five years from any public

i employment, including, but not limited to, employment with a city, county, district, or any other
public a gency of the state. The five- vear disqua|iﬁcaﬁon Deriod begins on the later of either the date

The Board shall not employ a person as Superintendent if, within the past five years, the candidate
was convicted of any felony involving accepting or giving, or offering to give, any bribe, conflict of
interest, the embezzlement of public money, extortion or theft of public money, perjury, or
conspiracy to commit any of those crimes arising directly out of their official duties as a public
employee. (Government Code 1021.5)

'Ee;mmﬁammawwimwemmmmmmm
‘eeuﬁselpﬂeftewahngaeand*da’ee-sdﬁtﬂet— L

Before offering the pesition to the selected candidate or making any anpouncements: Board
members may visit that candicgates current districh, as appropaiate: to oblain vesheation of histher

TFhe Board shall deliberate in closed session to affrm the selecton of the candidate and shall repert
the selecton in open session. (Gevernment Code 54957}

language in closed session; but the contract must be ratified in open session: see BR 2121 -
Superintendent's Contract

23




Fhe Board shioll conduet these proceedines i acoordance with leeal and ethical oblestions

selection process.

Policy Reference UPDATE Service

Copyright 2025 by California School Boards Association, West Sacramento, California 95691

All rights reserved.

Policy Reference Disclaimer:

These references are not intended to be part of the policy itself, nor do they indicate the basis or authority for
the Governing Board to enact this policy. Instead, they are provided as additional resources for those

interested in the subject matter of the policy.

State
2 CCR 11006-11086

Ed. Code 220

Ed. Code 35026

Ed. Code 35028

Ed. Code 35029

Ed. Code 35029.1

Ed. Code 35031

Ed. Code 44420-44440
Gov. Code 1021.5

Gov. Code 11135

Gov. Code 12900-12996
Gov. Code 53260-53264
Gov. Code 54954

Gov. Code 54957

Gov. Code 54957.1

Gov. Code 54957.6

Federal
20 USC 1681-1688

28 CFR 35.101-35.190
29 USC 794

Description

Discrimination in employment

Prohibition of discrimination

Employment of district superintendent by certain district
Qualifications for employment

Waiver of credential requirements

Superintendent credentials

Term of employment
Revocation and suspension of credentials

Public employment disqualification

Prohibition of discrimination

Fair Employment and Housing Act
Employment contracts

Time and place of regular meetings

Closed session personnel matters

Closed session; public report of action taken

Open session; superintendent contract

Description
Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972;
discrimination based on sex

Americans with Disabilities Act

Rehabilitation Act of 1973; Section 504

24



34 CFR 100.6

34 CFR 106.9

42 USC 12101-12213
42 USC 2000d-2000d-7
42 USC 2000e-2000e-17

Management Resources
CSBA Publication

Website

Website

Website
Website
Website
Website
Website

Cross References

Code
0000

0100
0200
1000
1220
1220
2000
2110

Title VI; Compliance information

Severability

Americans with Disabilities Act

Title VI, Civil Rights Act of 1964

Title VII, Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended

Description

CSBA Superintendent Contract Template

(https:/www.csba.org/-
/media/CSBA/Files/Advocacy/lLegalAdvocacy/201712Superi
ntendentContractlTemplate_Sample.ashx?la=en&rev=157b42
0ccc124961b2158efeed00ef348&hash=FBB8ABCA628AFFD
A7D44F07784A6910C)

CSBA District and County Office of Education Legal Services

CSBA California Consultants and Leadership

(csba.org/ProductsAndServices/CSBAProductsandServices/C
AConsultants#gsc.tab=0)

Association of California School Administrators
California Civil Rights Department

CSBA

U.S. Department of Education, Office for Civil Rights

U.S. Equal Employment Opportunity Commission

Description
Vision

Philosophy

Goals For The School District
Concepts And Roles

Citizen Advisory Committees
Citizen Advisory Committees
Concepts And Roles

Superintendent Responsibilities And Duties

25




2111
2121

4032
4111.2
4111.2
4112.5
4112.5-E(1)
4211.2
4211.2
4212.5
4212.5-E(1)
4311.2
4311.2
43125
4312.5-E(1)
9000

9011

9320

9321
9321-E(1)
9321-E(2)

Superintendent Governance Standards
Superintendent's Contract

Reasonable Accommodation

Legal Status Requirement

Legal Status Requirement

Criminal Record Check

Criminal Record Check

Legal Status Requirement

Legal Status Requirement

Criminal Record Check

Criminal Record Check

Legal Status Requirement

Legal Status Requirement

Criminal Record Check

Criminal Record Check

Role Of The Board

Disclosure Of Confidential/Privileged Information

Meetings and Notices

Closed Session
Closed Session

Closed Session

26



. Discussion/Action Item
Exhibit: V.3
Date: £-13.2{p
SAN PASQUAL VALLEY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT o

TITLE:

The Superintendent recommends approval of updated board policies section 3311.3 Design-Build
Contracts and 3470 Debt Issuance and Management

EXPLANATORY STATEMENT:

Administrative Regulation 3311.3 - Design-Build Contracts ’E
Regulation updated to reflect NEW LAW (SB 956, 2024) which extends indefinitely the authorization to
enter into a design-build contract for a public works project in excess of $1,000,000. Additionally,
regulation updated to add objective criteria for awarding a design-build contract, including the minimum
factors of price, technical design and construction experience, and life-cycle costs over 15 years or more.
In addition, regulation updated to clarify which occupations are subject to the 30 percent threshold for a
skilled and trained workforce.

Board Policy 3470 - Debt Issvance and Management

Policy updated to (1) add communication to the public to the list of debt issuance program activities that
the Superintendent administers and coordinates, (2) remove reference to Qualified Zone Academy Bonds
which are no longer authorized to be issued, (3) add types of temporary borrowing or short-term transfers
to the list of potential financing sources for the district, (4) add that the method of sale for any district-
issued debt be the most cost-effective, (5) add that before any sale of bonds, the Governing Board adopta’
resolution stating the Board's express approval of the method of sale and a statement of the reasons for the
method of sale selected, and (6) include additional information regarding the report to the California Debt
Investment and Advisory Commission, which the district is required to submit annually following a bond
issuance.

STAFF MEMBERS INVOLVED:.

Karen Medel, EAS and Richard Cordero, Superihtendent
FISCAL IMPACT: )
None

SOURCE OF FUNDING:

N/A

RECOMMENDED ACTION:

Approve updated board policies section 3311.3 Design-Build Contracts and 3470 Debt Issuance and
Management

PREPARED AND SUBMITTED BY:

Karen Medel, Executive Assistant to the Superintendent

REVIEWED BY: 1

Richard Cordero, M.Ed.,Superintendent




CSBA Sample District Policy Manual
CSBA Policy Management Console

Regulation 3311.3: Design-Build Contracts Status: ADOPTED

Original Adopted Date: 12/01/2016 | Last Revised Date: 0911/01/20232025 | Last Reviewed
Date: 0211/01/20232025

'CSBA NOTE: CSBA NOTE: The following optional Board policy may be revised to reflect district
practice.

As an alternative to the more traditional design-bid-build process (see BP/AR 3311 - Bids) or a
lease-leaseback process (see AR 3311.2 - Lease-Leaseback Contracts), the district may; until January
1, 2025; enter into a design-build contract for a public works project in excess of $1,000,000
pursuant to Education Code 17250.10-17250.55:52. Education Code 17250.55, which made this
authorization inoperative on January 1, 2025, was deleted by SB 256 (Ch. 177, Statutes of 2024),
thereby extending such authorization indefinitely. As defined by Education Code 17250.15, "design-
build" means a project delivery process in which both the design and construction of a project are
procured from a single entity. Additionally, pursuant to Education Code 17250.61, as added by AB
185 (Ch: 571; Statutes of 2022); the district may, until January 1, 2029, enter into an alternative
design-build contract for a public works project in excess of $5,000,000. As defined by Education
Code 17250.60, "alternative design-build" means a project delivery process in which both the
design and construction of a project are procured from a single design-build entity based on its
proposed design cost, general conditions, overhead, and profit as a component of the project price. |
Education Code 17250.15, 17250.25, 17250.60, and 17250.61 provide that such contracts may be |

awarded to either the low bid or best value, as defined. 1)

Until January 4; 2025; thelhe Governing Board may approve a design-build contract with a single
entity for both design and construction of any school facility in excess of $1,000,000, awarding the
contract to either the low bid or the best value as determined by evaluation of objective criteria-
{Education Cede 1725020 including the minimum factors of price; technical design and
construction experience; and life-cycle costs over 15 years or more. (Education Code 17250.20,
Education Code 17250.25)

Additionally, until January 1, 2029, the Board may approve an alternative design-build contract with
a single entity for both design and construction of any school facility in excess of $5,000,000. Such
contracts may be awarded to the low bid or the best value. If the selection is based on best value,
the Board shall evaluate competitive proposals, taking into consideration; at a the minimum; factors
of design cost, general conditions, overhead, and profit as a component of the project price;;
technical design and construction expertise;; and life-cycle costs over 15 or more years. The
district's determination of price shall be based on the open book evaluation of construction
subcontracts. The contract may be subject to further negotiations or amendment and may be
terminated by the district if the district and the design-build entity are unable to reach an
agreement. (Education Code 17250.61, 17250.62, 17250.65)

27




Design-build documents shall not include provisions for long-term project operations, but may
include operations during a training or transition period. (Education Code 17250.25, 17250.62)

Procedures for Awarding the Contract

The procurement process for design-build and alternative design-build projects shall be as follows:
(Education Code 17250.25, 17250.35, 17250.62, 17250.65; Public Contract Code 2600)

1. Performance Specifications: Fhe specifications, which includes the district shall
preparepreparing a set of documents setting forth the scope and estimated price of the
project:

___The documents may include, but are not limited to:

o

d.

The size, type, and desired design character of the project

Performance specifications that cover the quality of materials, equipment, and
workmanship

Preliminary plans or building layouts

Any other information deemed necessary to describe adequately the district's needs

The performance specifications and any plans shall be prepared by a design professional
who is duly licensed and registered in California.

2. Prequalification: Fhe, which includes the district shall preparepreparing and issueissuing a
request for qualifications in order to prequalify, or develop a short list of, the design-build
entities whose proposals shall be evaluated for final selection:

The request for qualifications shall include, but is not limited to, all of the following
elements:

a.

Identification of the basic scope and needs of the project or contract, the expected
cost range, the methodology that will be used by the district to evaluate proposals,
the procedure for final selection of the design-build entity, and any other information
deemed necessary by the district to inform interested parties of the contracting
opportunity

Significant factors that the district reasonably expects to consider in evaluating
qualifications, including technical design and construction expertise, acceptable
safety record, and all other non-price-related factors

28



c. Astandard template request for statements of qualifications prepared by the district,
which shall contain all of the information required pursuant to Education Code
17250.25 or 17250.62

CSBA NOTE: Rublic Contract Code 2600 adds a recuirement to incluge in all bid documents and
construction contracts, when aspleable o ponos that the project (s subiect 5 the slalled and
trained workforce requirements specified in Public Centract Code 2600-2603. Pursuant to

d. A notice that the project is subject to the skilled and trained workforce requirements
specified in Public Contract Code 2600-2603

The district also may identify specific types of subcontractors that must be
included in the statement of qualifications and proposal.

3. Request for Proposals: Fhe (RFP), which includes the district shall prepare a request for
propesals (RFP)preparing an RFP that invites prequalified or short-listed entities to submit
competitive sealed proposals in a manner prescribed by the district:

The RFP shall include the information identified in Items #2a, 2b, and 2d above and
the relative importance or weight assigned to each of the factors.

If the district uses a best value selection method for a project, the district may
reserve the right to request proposal revisions and hold discussions and negotiations with
responsive proposers, in which case the district shall so specify in the reguest for
prepesalsRFPs and shall publish separately or incorporate into the regquest for
propesalsRFPs applicable procedures to be observed by the district to ensure that any
discussions or negotiations are conducted in good faith.

4. Selection Basedbased on tew Bid: Ferlow bid, which includes for those projects utilizing low
bid as the final selection method, that the bidding process shall result in lump-sum bids by
the prequalified or short-listed design-build entities, and the contract shall be awarded to
the lowest responsible bidder

5. Selection Basedbased on Best Value: Ferbest value, which includes for those projects
utilizing best value as a selection method, that the following procedures shall be used:

a. Competitive proposals shall be evaluated using only the criteria and selection
procedures specifically identified in the reguest for propesals: RFPs

Criteria shall be weighted as deemed appropriate by the district. The proposal
for a design-build project, as specified in Education Code 17250.25, shall, at a
minimum, include price, unless a stipulated sum is specified; technical design and
construction experience; and life-cycle costs over 15 or more years. The proposal for
an alternative design-build project, as specified in Education Code 17250.62, shall, at
a minimum, include design cost, general conditions, overhead, and profit as a

29




component of the project price, unless a stipulated sum for the project is specified;
technical design and construction expertise; and life-cycle costs over 15 or more
years.

b. Following any discussions or negotiations with responsive proposers and completion
of the evaluation process, the responsive proposers shall be ranked on a
determination of value provided, provided that no more than three proposers are
required to be ranked

c. The contract shall be awarded to the responsible entity whose proposal is
determined by the district to have offered the best value to the public

d. The district shall publicly announce the contract award, identifying the entity to
which the award is made and the basis of the award:

____This statement and the contract file shall provide sufficient information to satisfy an
external audit.

Skilled and Trained Workforce

\ CSBA NOTE: Education Code 17250.25 requires the district to obtain an enforceable commitment

~ that the contractor will comply with the requirements to use a skilled and trained workforce, as
defined, in accordance with Public Contract Code 2600-2603. Pursuant to Public Contract Code
2600.5, failure to provide the notice described in ltems #2d and 3 above does not excuse the
district from the requirement to obtain an enforceable commitment that a contractor or other entity
will use a skilled and trained workforce to complete a contract or project.

| Pursuant to Public Contract Code 2602, as amended by SB 1162 (Ch. 882, Statutes of 2024), the

monthly compliance report is required to include the full name of, and identify the apprenticeship

program name, location, and graduation date of, each worker relied upon to satisfy the

apprenticeship graduation percentage requirements of Public Contract Code 2601.

A design-build entity shall not be prequalified or short-listed unless the entity provides an
enforceable commitment to the district that the entity and its subcontractors at every tier will use a
skilled and trained workforce to perform all work on the project or contract that falls within an
apprenticeable occupation in the building and construction trades. The entity may demonstrate
such commitment through a project labor agreement, by becoming a party to the district's project
labor agreement, or through an agreement with the district to provide evidence of compliance on a
monthly basis during the performance of the project or contract. (Education Code 17250.25,
17250.62; Public Contract Code 2602)

Skilled and trained workforce means that all the workers performing the work are either skilled
journeypersons or apprentices registered in a state-approved apprenticeship program. At least 60
percent of the skilled journeypersons employed to perform the work shall be graduates of an
apprenticeship program for the applicable occupation or at least 60 percent of the hours worked by

30



skilled journeypersons shall be performed by graduates of an apprenticeship program, with the
exception of eertainwork performed in the following occupations specified in Public Contract Code
2601, which are subject to a 30 percent threshold: : (Public Contract Code 2601)

1. Acoustical installer

2. Bricklayer

3. Carpenter

4. Cement mason

5. Drywall installer or lather

6. Marble mason, finisher, or setter

7. Modular furniture or systems installer

8. Operating engineer

9. Pile driver

10. Plasterer, roofer, or waterproofer

11. Stone mason
12. Surveyor
13. Teamster

14. Terrazzo worker or finisher

15. Tile layer, setter, or finisher

If the contractor fails to provide the monthly report demonstrating compliance with the skilled and
trained workforce requirements or provides an incomplete report, the district shall withhold further
payments until a complete report is provided. If a report does not demonstrate compliance with the
skilled and trained workforce requirements, the district shall withhold further payments until the
contractor provides a sufficient plan to achieve substantial compliance with respect to the relevant
apprenticeable occupation, prior to completion of the contract or project. in addifenAdditionally,
the district shall forward to the Labor Commissioner a copy of the monthly report, any plan to
achieve compliance, and the district's response to that plan. (Public Contract Code 2602)

Policy Reference UPDATE Service
Copyright 2025 by California School Boards Association, West Sacramento, California 95691
All rights reserved.

Policy Reference Disclaimer:

31




These references are not intended to be part of the policy itself, nor do they indicate the basis or authority for
the Governing Board to enact this policy. Instead, they are provided as additional resources for those
interested in the subject matter of the policy.

State Description

Ed. Code 17250.10-17250.5552 Design-build contracts

Ed. Code 17250.60-17250.69 Alternative design-build contracts

Pub. Cont. Code 2600-2603 Skilled and trained workforce requirements
Management Resources Description

Website ' CSBA District and County Office of Education Legal Services
Website California Association of School Business Officials
Website California Department of Education, School Facilities
Website CSBA

Cross References

Code Description

3311 Bids

3311 Bids

3312 Contracts

7000 Concepts And Roles

7110 Facilities Master Plan

7140 Architectural And Engineering Services

7140 Architectural And Engineering Services

32




CSBA Sample District Policy Manual
CSBA Policy Management Console

Policy 3470: Debt Issuance And Management Status: ADOPTED

Original Adopted Date: 12/01/2016 | Last Revised Date: 11/01/2025 | Last Reviewed Date:
4211/01/20462025

CSBA NOTE: Government Code 8855; as amended by SB 1022 (Ch: 307 Statutes of 2016);
mandates that the Governing Board adopt a debt management policy prior to issuing any debt, such
as general obligation bonds, tax and revenue anticipation notes (TRANs), and certificates of
participation. The policy saustis required to include (1) the purposes for which the debt proceeds
may be used;, (2) the types of debt that may be issued:, (3) the relationship of the debt to, and
integration with, the district's capital improvement program or budget, if applicable;, (4) policy goals
related to the district's planning goals and objectives;, and (5) internal control procedures to ensure
that the proceeds of the proposed debt issuance will be directed to the intended use. SB 1029
declares the intent of the Legislaturelt is recommmended that; consistent with the recommendation
written debt management policies that are reflective of local; state; and federal laws and '
regulations: Districts are encouraged to districts consult CSBA’s District and County Office of
Education Legal Services or district legal counsel, and their financial advisor, in developing this
policy. The following policy should be revised to reflect district practice.

The Governing Board is committed to long-term capital and financial planning and recognizes that
the issuance of debt is a key source for funding the improvement and maintenance of school
facilities and managing cash flow. Any debt issued by the district shall be consistent with law and
this policy.

CSBA NOTE: Article 16, Section 18 of the California Constitution contains the basic "debt
limitation" {-e; thewhich places constraints on discretionary borrowing} applicable to school
districts. Under se-ealledthe "traditional authority," a measure autherizingdistricts may authorize the
issuance of general obligation bonds may beif approved by two-thirds of the electorate; under.
Under Proposition 39, a reasure autherizingthe district may authorize the issuance of general
obligation bonds may befor the specific purpose of construction, reconstruction, rehabilitation, or
replacement of school facilities if approved by 55 percent of the electorate {see BR/AR 7214 -
General Obligation Bends).. Lease financings, such as certificates of participation, are not
considered "indebtedness" for purposes of the Constitutional debt limitation and are not subject to
voter approval. For furthermore information regarding general obligation bonds, see BP/AR 7214 -
General Obligation Bonds, and for public debt financing options, see the California Debt and
Investment Advisory Commission's (CDIAC} ), “California Debt Issuance Primer.."

[

The district shall not enter into indebtedness or liability that in any year exceeds the income and
revenue provided for such year, unless two-thirds of the voters approve the obligation or one of the
exceptions specified in law applies. {Califernia Constitution; Article 16; Section 18)

33




When the Board determines that it is in the best interest of the district, the Board may issue debt or
order an election to issue debt. The Superintendent or designee shall make recommendations to the
Board regarding appropriate financing methods for capital projects or other projects that are
authorized purposes for debt issuance. When approved by the Board and/or the voters as
applicable, the Superintendent or designee shall administer and coordinate the district's debt
issuance program and activities, including the timing of issuance, sizing of issuance, method of sale,
structuring of the issue, communication with the public, and marketing strategies.

CSBA NOTE: Pursuant to 15 USC 780-4 (Section 15B of Securities Exchange Act of 1934), any
financial advisor retained by the district mustis required to be duly registered with both the
Securities Exchange Commission (SEC) and the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board (MSRB) and
st alseto additionally hold any certifications and/or licenses required by the SEC and/or MSRB.

The Superintendent or designee shall retain a financial advisor, municipal advisor, investment
advisor, and/or other financial services professionals as needed to assist with the structuring of the
debt issuance and to provide general advice on the district's debt management program, financing
options, investments, and compliance with legal requirements. Contracts for services provided by
such advisors may be for a single transaction or for multiple transactions, consistent with the
contracting requirements in Education Code 17596. In the event that the district issues debt
through a negotiated sale, underwriters may be selected for multiple transactions if multiple
issuances are planned for the same project. tn addifenAdditionally, the district shall select a legal
team on an as-needed basis to assist with debt issuances or special projects.

Goals

CSBA NOTE: Government Code 8855; as amended by SB 1029 (Ch. 307 Statutes of 2016} |
mandates requires that the district's debt management policy ineludeincludes policy goals related to
the district's planning goals and objectives. The following section should be revised to reflect

district goals. ]

The district's debt issuance activities and procedrure?s shall be aligned wntTw the district'sr\;ision and
goals for providing adequate facilities and programs that support student learning and well-being.
When issuing debt, the district shall ensure that it:

1. Maintains accountability for the fiscal health of the district, including prudent management
and transparency of the district's financing programs

2. Attains the best possible credit rating for each debt issue in order to reduce interest costs,
within the context of preserving financial flexibility and meeting capital funding
requirements

3. Takes all practical precautions and proactive measures to avoid any financial decision that
will negatively impact current credit ratings on existing or future debt issues

34



4. Maintains effective communication with rating agencies and, as appropriate, credit
enhancers such as bond insurers or other providers of credit or liquidity instruments in order
to enhance the creditworthiness, liquidity, or marketability of the debt

5. Monitors the district's statutory debt limit in relation to assessed valuation within the
district and the tax burden needed to meet long-term debt service requirements

6. When determining the timing of debt issuance, considers market conditions, cash flows
associated with repayment, and the district's ability to expend the obtained funds in a
timely, efficient, and economical manner consistent with federal tax laws

7. Determines the amortization (maturity) schedule which will fit best within the overall debt
structure of the district at the time the new debt is issued

8. Considers the useful lives of assets funded by the debt issue, as well as repair and
replacement costs of those assets to be incurred in the future

9. Preserves the availability of the district's general fund for operating purposes and other
purposes that cannot be funded by the issuance of voter-approved debt

10. Meets the ongoing obligations and accountability requirements associated with the issuance
and management of debt under state and federal tax and securities laws

Authorized Purposes for the Issuance of Debt

CSBA NOTE: Government Code 8855; as amended by SB 1029 (Ch: 30/ Statutes of 2016);
rmandates requires that the district's debt management policy include the purposes for which debt
proceeds may be used. The following section should be revised to reflect purposes that the Board
has determined may be appropriate purposes for issuing debt in the district.

The district may issue debt for any of the following purposes:

1. To pay for the cost of capital improvements, including acquiring, constructing,
reconstructing, rehabilitating, replacing, improving, extending, enlarging, and/or equipping
district facilities

2. To refund existing debt

3. To provide for cash flow needs

Pursuant to Government Code 53854, general operating costs, including, but not limited to, items
normally funded in the district's annual operating budget, shall not be financed from debt payable

35




later than 15 months from the date of issuance. The district may deem it desirable to finance cash
flow requirements under certain conditions so that available resources better match expenditures
within a given fiscal year. To satisfy both state constitutional and statutory constraints, such cash
flow borrowing shall be payable from taxes, income, revenue, cash receipts, and other moneys
attributable to the fiscal year in which the debt is issued.

Authorized Types of Debt

CSBA NOTE: Government Code 8855; as amended by SB 1029 (Ch: 307, Statutes of 2016);
mandates requires that the district's debt management policy include the types of debt that may be
issued. The following section should be revised to reflect the types of debt instruments authorized
by the Board.

The Superintendent or designee shall recommend to the Board potential financing method(s) that
result in the highest benefit to the district, with the cost of staff and consultants considered.
Potential financing sources may include:

1. Short-Term Debt

a. Short-term debt, such as tax and revenue anticipation notes (TRANSs), when
necessary to allow the district to meet its cash flow requirements (Government
Code 53850-53858)

b. Bond anticipation notes (BANs) to provide interim financing for capital bond projects
that will ultimately be paid from general obligation bonds (Education Code 15150)

¢. Grant anticipation notes (GANs) to provide interim financing pending the receipt of
grants and/or loans from the state or federal government that have been
appropriated and committed to the district (Government Code 53859-53859.08)

2. Long-Term Debt

CSBA NOTE: The California Constitution, Article 13A, Sections 1(b)(2) and 1(b)(3), Education Code
15100-15262 and 15264-15276, and Government Code 53506-53509.5 authorize the district to
issue general obligation bonds requiring either two-thirds voter approval or 55 percent voter
approval, subject to specific accountability requirements. Voter-approved general obligation bonds
typically provide the lowest cost of borrowing and, by providing for the levy of additional ad
valorem property taxes to service the debt, do not impact the district's general fund. See BR/AR
#214 - General Obligation Bends ferFor requirements pertaining to the issuance of general
obligation bonds, see BP/AR 7214 - General Obligation Bonds.

a. General obligation bonds for projects approved by voters {Califernia Constitution;
Artiele 13A; Seetion & (Education Code 15100-15262, 15264-15276; Government
Code 53506-53509.5)



CSBA NOTE: Districts may establish a community facilities district for school facility purposes in
accordance with the Mello-Roos Community Facilities Act (Government Code 53311-53368.3). The
boundaries of the Mello-Roos district may include the entire school district, but usually include only
a portion of the district, such as an area with new housing developments. The bonds sold by the
community facilities district are paid for by a special tax on the properties within that community
facilities district's boundaries. SeeFor more information regarding community facilities districts, see
BP 7212 - Mello-Roos Districts.

b. Special tax bonds issued pursuant to the Mello-Roos Community Facilities Act of
1982 (Government Code 53311-53368.3)

3. Lease financing, including certificates of participation (COPs)

a. Lease financing to fund the highest priority capital equipment purchases when pay-
as-you-go financing is not feasible (Education Code 17450-17453.1)

CSBA NOTE: Authority for lease financings is based in part on judicial rulings finding that leases that
meet certain conditions do not constitute indebtedness subject to a vote of the electorate.

b. Lease financing to fund facilities projects when there is insufficient time to obtain
voter approval or in instances where obtaining voter approval is either not feasible or
unavailable (Education Code 17400-17429)

4. Special financing programs or structures offered by the federal or state government; sueh as
Qualified Zone Academy Bonds or other tax eredit obligations er ebligations that provide
subsidized interest payrments; when the use of such programs or structures is determined to
result in sufficiently lower financing costs compared to traditional tax-exempt bonds and/or
COPs (Government Code 53700-53706)

5. Temporary borrowing or short-term transfers from other sources sueh as, including the
following: (Education Code 42620, 42621; Government Code 53820-53833, 53850-

53858)

a. When the district lacks sufficient funds to meet its current expenses:

i. Transfers of funds from the County Treasurer up to 85 percent of the amount
of money that will accrue to the district within the fiscal year

ii. Transfers of funds from the county school service fund up to 85 percent of
the money accruing to the district at the time of transfer, to be repaid before
June 30 of the current fiscal year

b. Temporary borrowing from other sources

CSBA NOTE: Government Code 8855; as amended by SB 1029 (Ch. 307 Statutes of 2016),
mandates requires that the district's debt management policy include the relationship of the debt

37




to, and integration with, the district's capital improvement program or budget, if applicable. The
followmg sectlon should be revised to reflect district practice.

COPs TRANs revenue bonds or any other non- voter approved debt instrument shall not be |ssued
by the district in any fiscal year in which the district has a qualified or negative certification, unless
the County Superintendent of Schools determines, pursuant to criteria established by the
Superintendent of Public Instruction, that the district's repayment of that indebtedness is probable.
(Education Code 42133)

Relationship of Debt to District Facilities Program and Budget

| CSBA NOTE: Government Code 8855; as amended by SB 1029 (Ch: 307 Statutes of 2016);
mandates requires that the district's debt management policy ineludeincludes the relationship of the
debt to, and integration with, the district's capital improvement program or budget, if applicable.
The following section should be revised to reflect d:strlct practlce

Decsmons regarding the issuance of debt for the purpose of ﬁnancmg capital |mprovement shall be
aligned with current needs for acquisition, development, and/or improvement of district property
and facilities as identified in the district's facilities master plan or other applicable needs
assessment, the projected costs of those needs, schedules for the projects, and the expected
resources.

CSBA NOTE The_f;)I_Iou_wngEa_régraph is ophonal w0 p 1

The cost of debt issued for major capntal repairs or replacements shall be evaluated against the
potential cost of delaying such repairs and/or replacing such facilities.

When considering a debt issuance, the Board and the Superintendent or designee shall evaluate
both the short-term and long-term implications of the debt issuance and additional operating costs
associated with the new projects involved. Such evaluation may include, but is not limited to, the
projected ratio of annual debt service to the tax burden on the district's taxpayers and the ratio of
annual debt service secured by the general fund to general fund expenditures.

The district may enter into credit enhancement agreements such as municipal bond insurance,
surety bonds, letters of credit, and lines of credit with commercial banks, municipal bond insurance
companies, or other financial entities when their use is judged to lower borrowing costs, eliminate
restrictive covenants, or have a net economic benefit to the financing.

Structure of Debt Issues

The district shall consider the overall impact of the current and future debt burden of the financing
when determining the duration of the debt issue.

The district shall design the financing schedule and repayment of debt so as to take best advantage
of market conditions, ensure cost effectiveness, provide flexibility, and, as practical, recapture or
maximize its debt capacity for future use. Principal amortization will be structured to meet debt
repayment, tax rate, and flexibility goals.

38



CSBA NOTE: Education Code 45106 limits the 15102 and 15268 limit the principal portion of the
district's total outstanding bonded debt {i-e; the principal pertion enhy to 1.25 erpercent of the
assessed valuation of the taxable property of a non-unified district. Education Code 15106 and
15270 limit the principal portion of the district's total outstanding bonded debt to 2.5 percent of
the assessed valuation of the taxable property of a ren-unified and unified district; respeetively..
Consequently, Education Code 15106 limits the issuance of new debt is limited when the district
has total bonded indebtedness in excess of the applicable percentage of the assessed valuation in
the district. TRANs and lease payment obligations in support of COPs generally do not count
against this limit except as provided in Education Code 17422.

For new money debt issuances for capital improvements, the district shall size the debt issuance
with the aim of funding capital projects as deemed appropriate by the Board, as long as the issuance
is consistent with the overall financing plan, does not exceed the amount authorized by voters, and,
unless a waiver is sought and received from the state, will not cause the district to exceed the
limitation on debt issuances specified in the California Constitution or Education Code 15102
15106, 15268, and 15270.

To the extent practicable, the district shall also consider credit issues, market factors, and tax law
when sizing the district's bond issuance. The sizing of refunding bonds shall be determined by the
amount of money that will be required to cover the principal of, any accrued interest on, and any
redemption premium for the debt to be paid on the call date and to cover appropriate financing
costs.

Any general obligation bond issued by the district shall mature within 40 years of the issuance date
or as otherwise required by law. {Califernia Constitution; Article 16, Seehon 18: (Government Code
53508.6)

The final maturity of equipment or real property lease obligations will be limited to the useful life of
the assets to be financed but, with respect to a lease purchase of equipment, no longer than a
period of 10 years. (Education Code 17452)

Method of Sale

For the sale of any district-issued debt, the Superintendent or designee shall recommend the
method of sale withwhich is most cost-effective, that has the potential to achieve the lowest
financing cost, and/or te generategenerates other benefits to the district. Potential methods of sale
include:

1. A competitive bidding process through which the award is based on, among other factors,
the lowest offered true interest cost

2. Negotiated sale, subject to approval by the district to ensure that interest costs are in
accordance with comparable market interest rates

39




3. Private placement sale, when the financing can or must be structured for a single or limited
number of purchasers or where the terms of the private placement are more beneficial to
the district than either a negotiated or competitive sale

Before any sale of bonds. the Board shall adopt a resolution stating the Board's express approval of

Code 15146

Investment of Proceeds

The district shall actively manage the proceeds of debt issued for public purposes in a manner that
is consistent with state law governing the investment of public funds and with the permitted
securities covenants of related financing documents executed by the district. Where applicable, the
district's official investment policy and legal documents for a particular debt issuance shall govern
specific methods of investment of bond-related proceeds. Preservation of principal shall be the
primary goal of any investment strategy, followed by the availability of funds and then by return on
investment.

CSBA NOTE: Pursuant to Educatlon Code 15146 the proceeds of the sale of bonds exclusive of
any premium received, mustare required to be deposited in the county treasury to the credit of the
building fund of the district. As amended by AB 2738 (Ch: 472; Statutes of 2016)Additionally,
Education Code 15146 prohibits districts from withdrawing proceeds from the sale of bonds at any
time for purposes of making investments outside the county treasury

With regard to general obligation bonds, the dlstnct shaII invest new money bond proceeds in the
county treasury pool as required by law. (Education Code 15146)

The management of public funds shall enable the district to respond to changes in markets or
changes in payment or construction schedules so as to ensure liquidity and minimize risk.

Refunding/Restructuring

CSBA NOTE: The following section may be revised to reflect district practice. . The GFOASAH&Iyaﬂg
and IssuingGovernment Finance Officers Association’s (GFOA), “Best Practices: Refunding
Municipal Bonds," states that a test often used to assess the appropriateness of a refunding is the
achievement of a minimum net present value savings. According to the GFOA, a common threshold
is that the savings, as a percentage of the refunding bonds, should be at least 3-5 percent. However,
the GFOA recognizes that it may be appropriate to approve refunding that results in lower
anticipated savings in some circumstances, such as when interest rates are at low levels or the time
remaining to maturity is limited and thus future opportunities to achieve greater savings are not
likely to occur.

The district may c0n5|der refundlng or restructurmg outstanding debt if it will be financially
advantageous or beneficial for debt repayment and/or structuring flexibility. When doing so, the
district shall consider the maximization of the district's expected net savings over the life of the
debt issuance and, when using a general obligation bond to refund an existing bond, shall ensure
that the final maturity of the refunding bond is no longer than the final maturity of the existing

40



bond.

Internal Controls

e ——————— —_— e — S —

CSBA NOTE: Government Code 8855; as amended by SB 1029 (Ch- 307; Statutes of 2016);
mandates requires that the district's debt management policy include the internal control ‘
procedures that the district has implemented or will implement to ensure that the proceeds of the l
proposed debt issuance will be directed to the intended use. Examples of internal control standards
for the management of bond funds are contained in the U.S. Government Accountability Office's,
“Standards for Internal Control System Cheekdistin the Federal Government.” These include factors |
related to the internal control environment, risk assessment, control activities, information and [
communications, and monitoring. Because internal controls and accountability measures may be ’
lengthy, districts may choose to develop an administrative regulation, exhibit, or other document
that provides further details and that may be updated as needed. AlseFor more information

regarding the effective management of the district’s assets and resources, see BP 3400 -
Management of District Assets/Accounts. The following section should be revised to reflect district
practice. |

The Superintendent or designee shall establish internal control procedures to ensure that the
proceeds of any debt issuance are directed to the intended use. Such procedures shall assist the
district in maintaining the effectiveness and efficiency of operations, properly expending funds,
reliably reporting debt incurred by the district and the use of the proceeds, complying with all laws
and regulations, preventing fraud, and avoiding conflict of interest.

The district shall be vigilant in using bond proceeds in accordance with the stated purposes at the
time such debt was incurred as defined in the text of the voter-approved bond measure.
(Government Code 53410)

When feasible, the district shall issue debt with a defined revenue source in order to preserve the
use of the general fund for general operating purposes.

The district shall annually conduct a due diligence review to ensure its compliance with all ongoing
obligations applicable to issuers of debt. Such a review may be conducted by general legal counsel
or bond counsel. Any district personnel involved in conducting such reviews shall receive periodic

training regarding their responsibilities.

In addiienAdditionally, the Superintendent or designee shall ensure that the district completes, as
applicable, all performance and financial audits that may be required for any debt issued by the
district, including disclosure requirements applicable to a particular transaction.

Records/Reports

CSBA NOTE: Governmen; Code 8855 requires that the district report any proposed issuance of '

debt to the CDIAC at least 30 days prior to the sale of the debt issue. Typically, bond counsel will |
file the report on behalf of the district. As amended by SB 1029 (Ch- 307; Statutes of 2016); |

41




Government Code 8855 requires that the report ineludeincludes a certification that the district has
adopted a debt policy and that the issuance is consistent with that policy.

At least 30 days prior to the sale of any debt issue, the Superintendent or designee shall submit a
report of the proposed issuance to the California Debt and Investment Advisory Commission
(CDIAC). Such report shall include a self-certification that the district has adopted a policy
concerning the use of debt that complies with law and that the contemplated debt issuance is
consistent with that policy. (Government Code 8855)

CSBA NOTE:; SB 4029 {Ch- 307 Statutes of 2016) amended Pursuant to Government Code 8855 te
add, the following requirement for an anpual district is required to report of debt issuance;
applicable te any final sale of debt en er after January 21; 2017to CDIAC. The report covers the
period from July 1 to June 30, and mustis required to be submitted electronically on a form
provided by CDIAC within seven months of the end of the reporting period (January 31).

On er befereFollowing a bond issuance, by each subsequent January 31 of each year, the
Superintendent or designeedistrict shall submit aan annual report to CDIAC that consists of the
CBIAC regarding following information for a reporting period of the prior July 1 to June 30,
inclusive: (Government Code 8855)

1. The debt authorized, the issued, authorized but unissued, and debt for which authorization
has lapsed during the reporting period

2. The principal balance at the beginning of the reporting period. the principal paid during the
reporting period, and the remaining principal outstanding; and at the end of the reporting
period

3. The use of proceeds of the issued debt for the peried from July 1 to June 30: (Gevernment
Code 8855)including the amount of proceeds available at the beginning of the reporting
period, the proceeds spent during the reporting period and the purposes for which they

CSBA NOTE: Pursuant to 17 CFR 240.15¢2-12, most financings are required to have official
disclosure statements which include the terms of the bond, security, risk factors, financial and
operating information concerning the issuer, and background information. #a additienAdditionally,
districts mustare required to provide ongoing disclosure in the form of annual reports and event
notices pursuant to 17 CFR 240.15c2-12. Such disclosures mustare required to be made to the
MSRB through its Electronic Municipal Market Access repository or any successor repository, as
well as to investors and other persons or entities entitled to disclosure. For further information, see
CDIAC's , “California Debt Issuance Primer,” and the GFOA's , "Understanding Your Continuing
Disclosure Requirements:.”

The Superintendent or designee shall provide initial and any annual or ongoing disclosures required
by 17 CFR 240.10b-5 and 240.15¢2-12 to the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board, investors,
and other persons or entities entitled to disclosure, and shall ensure that the district's disclosure
filings are updated as needed.

42



CSBA NOTE: 26 CFR 1.6001-1 requires districts to retain records for as long as the contents
thereof are material in the administration of any internal revenue law. Records related to debt
issuance may affect tax liability in both past and future tax years. In order to be consistent with
specific record retention requirements, the Internal Revenue ServieeService's (IRS) publication ),
"Tax Exempt Bond FAQs Regarding Record Retention Requirements;,” available on the RS web
sitelRS's website, recommends that material records should be kept for as long as the debt is
outstanding, plus three years after the final payment of the debt. Although the IRS recommendation
is specific to tax-exempt bonds, districts should also retain records related to other forms debt [
issuance for the same length of time. |

— T EEES————mm—————— — = — e =

The Superintendent or designee shall maintain transaction records of decisions made in connection
with each debt issuance, including the selection of members of the financing team, the structuring
of the financing, selection of credit enhancement products and providers, and selection of
investment products. Each transaction file shall include the official transcript for the financing,
interest rates and cost of issuance on the day when the debt was sold ("final number runs"), and a
post-pricing summary of the debt issue. In addifenAdditionally, documentation evidencing the
expenditure of proceeds, the use of debt-financed property by public and private entities, all
sources of payment or security for the debt, and investment of proceeds shall be kept for as long as
the debt is outstanding, plus the period ending three years after the financial payment date of the
debt or the final payment date of any obligations or series of bonds issued to refund directly or
indirectly all of any portion of the debt, whichever is later.

The Superintendent or designee shall annually report to the Board regarding debtsdebt issued by
the district, including information on actual and projected tax rates, an analysis of bonding capacity,
ratings on the district's bonds, market update and refunding opportunities, new development for
California bond financings, and the district's compliance with post-issuance requirements.

Policy Reference UPDATE Service
Copyright 2025 by California School Boards Association, West Sacramento, California 95691
All rights reserved.

Policy Reference Disclaimer:

These references are not intended to be part of the policy itself, nor do they indicate the basis or authority for
the Governing Board to enact this policy. Instead, they are provided as additional resources for those
interested in the subject matter of the policy.

State Description

CA Constitution Article 13A, Section 1 Tax limitation

CA Constitution Article 16, Section 18  Debt limit

Ed. Code 15100-15262 Bonds for school districts and community college districts
Ed. Code 15264-15276 Strict accountability in local school construction bonds
Ed. Code 15278-15288 Citizen's oversight committees

Ed. Code 15300-15425 School facilities improvement districts

Ed. Code 17150 Public disclosure of non-voter-approved debt

43




Ed. Code 17400-17429
Ed. Code 17450-17453.1
Ed. Code 17456

Ed. Code 17596

Ed. Code 42130-42134
Ed. Code 42620

Ed. Code 42621

Ed. Code 5300-5441

Elec. Code 1000

Gov. Code 53311-53368.3
Gov. Code 53410-53411
Gov. Code 53506-53509.5
Gov. Code 53550-53569
Gov. Code 53580-53595.55
Gov. Code 53700-53706

Gov. Code 53820-53833

Gov. Code 53850-53858
Gov. Code 53859-53859.08
Gov. Code 8855

Federal
15 USC 780-4

17 CFR 240.10b-5
17 CFR 240.15¢2-12
26 CFR 1.6001-1

26 USC 54k

Management Resources
CDIAC Publication

Gov. Finance Officers Association
Publication

Leasing of school buildings
Leasing of equipment

Sale or lease of district property
Limit on continuing contracts
Financial reports and certifications

Transfer of county funds to district credit to meet current
maintenance expenses

Temporary transfers to school districts or charter schools
from county school service fund: repayment

Conduct of elections

Established election dates

Mello-Roos Community Facilities Act of 1982
Bond reporting

General obligation bonds

Refunding bonds of local agencies

Bonds

Federal aid

Temporary Borrowing
Tax and revenue anticipation notes
Grant anticipation notes

California Debt and Investment Advisory Commission

Description
Registration of municipal securities dealers

Prohibition against fraud or deceit
Municipal securities disclosure
Records

Qualified Zone Academy Bonds

Description
California Debt Issuance Primer, 2006

Refunding Municipal Bonds, Best Practice, March 2019



Gov. Finance Officers Assaociation
Publication
Gov. Finance Officers Association
Publication

Gov. Finance Officers Association
Publication

Gov. Finance Officers Association
Publication
Gov. Finance Officers Association
Publication

Internal Revenue Service Publication

Internal Revenue Service Publication

U.S. Government Accountability
Publication

Website
Website
Website
Website

Website
Website

Website

Cross References

Code
0000

0200
3000
3100
3100

Debt Management Policy, Best Practice, March 2020

Investment and Management of Bond Proceeds, Best
Practice, March 2022

Selecting and Managing Municipal Advisors, Best Practice,
February 2014

An Elected Official's Guide to Debt Issuance, 3rd Ed., 2008

Understanding Your Continuing Disclosure Responsibilities,
Best Practice, March 2020

Tax Exempt Bond FAQs Regarding Record Retention
Requirements

Tax-Exempt Governmental Bonds, Publication 4079, rev.
2016

Standards for Internal Control System Checklistin the
Federal Government, 2025

(https:/www.gao.gov/greenbook)

CSBA District and County Office of Education Legal Services
U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission
U.S. Government Accountability Office

Municipal Security Rulemaking Board, Electronic Municipal
Market Access (EMMA)

California Debt and Investment Advisory Commission
Government Finance Officers Association

Internal Revenue Service

Description

Vision

Goals For The School District
Concepts And Roles

Budget

Budget

45




3110
3312
3314
3314
3400
3400
3430
3430
3460
3460
3600
5142.2
5142.2
7000
7110
7210
7212
7214
7214
927ﬁ
9270-E(1)

Transfer Of Funds

Contracts . )
Payment For Goods And Services
Payment For Goods And Services
Management Of District Assets/Accounts
Management Of District Assets/Accounts
Investing .
Investing

Financial Repgrts And Accountability
Financial Reports And Accountability
Consultants

Safe Routes To School Program

Safe Routes To School Program
Concepts And Roles

Facilities Master Plan

Facilities Financing

Mello-Roos Districts

General Obligation Bonds

General Obligation Bonds

Conflict Of Interest

Conflict Of Interest

46



Discussion/Action Item
Exhibit: V.4

_ Date: 1_._ [_3_. 2l
SAN PASQUAL VALLEY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

TITLE:
The Superintendent recommends approval of updated Board Policy 4000 - Concepts and Roles
EXPLANATORY STATEMENT: h

Board Policy 4000 - Concepts and Roles

Policy updated as part of CSBA's process to regularly review policy documents that otherwise would not
be revised, due to no applicable changes to law, regulations, new guidance, or other directives, and
amended to (1) clarify that it is the academic achievement, personal growth, and well-being of district
students, in addition to the success of district programs, that hinges on district personnel, and (2) reflect
The California Labor Management Initiative's, "Resource Guidebook: Building Partnerships to Create
Great Public Schools," which provides guidance to support education leaders in developing Iabor-
management partnerships that benefit students, staff, and the community.

STAFF MEMBERS INVOLVED: >
Karen Medel, EAS and Richard Cordero, Superintendent
FISCAL IMPACT:

None

SOURCE OF FUNDING:

N/A

RECOMMENDED ACTION:

Approve updated Board Policy 4000 - Concepts and Roles

PREPARED AND SUBMITTED BY:

Karen Medel, Executive Assistant to the Superintendent

REVIEWED BY: i

Richard Cordero, M.Ed.,Superintendent

1




CSBA Sample District Policy Manual
CSBA Policy Management Console

Policy 4000: Concepts And Roles Status: ADOPTED

Original Adopted Date: 01/01/1985 | Last Revised Date: 1611/01/49962025 | Last Reviewed
Date: 1011/01/49962025

The Governing Board recegnizesbelieves that the academic achievement, personal growth, and
well-being of district students, and the success of district students and programs, hinges on
effectivedistrict personnel. The Board desires to establish safe and supportive working conditions
that will attract and retain staff members who are highly qualified and dedicated to the education
and welfare of students.

The Board recognizes that every employee has a role in the district's successful operation. The
Board encourages all district employees to express their ideas, concerns, and proposals related to
the improvement of working conditions and the total educational program. The district's personnel
policies and related regulations shall be designed to ensure a supportive, positive climate and shall
be consistent with collective bargaining agreements and in conformance with state and federal law
and regulations.

CSBA NOTE: The California Labor Management Initiative's, "Resource Guidebook: Building
Partnerships to Create Great Public Schools.” is a tool for building collaborative practices between
| administrators, bargaining unit leaders, and Governing Board members, and provides guidance to
' support education leaders in developing deeper labor-management partnerships that benefit
| students, staff, and the community.

The district’s relationship with its collective bargaining units is critical to enhancing organizational

the district communicate and collaborate regularly with the representatives of collective bargaining
units to resolve conflict.

As the legal representative of the district in negotiations with employee representatives, the Board
shall set goals and guidelines for collective bargaining; and take action on any tentative agreement.
Additionally, the Board, in conjunction with the Superintendent, shall select the district's bargaining
team; and maintain communications with the negotiating team during the bargaining process; and

adept the negotiated contract

Terms and conditions of employment which have been negotiated and stated in employee contracts
shall have the force of policy. The Board shall hear employee complaints and appeals when such
hearings are in accordance with Board policy or negotiated agreements. Fhe Additionally, the Board
shall alse adopt wage and salary schedules and shall commit budget funds for staff development so
that staff members may continue developing their skills.

The Superintendent has primary responsibility for overseeing the distriet'sdistrict personnel system:
. To support this effort, the Board shall approve a framework for sound hiring practices. The
Superintendent shall nominate all personnel for employment, and the Board shall approve only

47




those persons so recommended. Individuals who approach Board members regarding prospective
employment shall be referred to the Superintendent or designee.

The Superintendent or designee shall assign and supervise the work of all employees and shall
evaluate their work in accordance with effeetiveall applicable collective bargaining agreements and
any accountability systems approved by the Board. Fhe Additionally, the Superintendent or
designee alse shall recommend disciplinary action which the Board may take against employees
when warranted pursuant to Board policy, administrative regulations, and/or state or federal law.

The Board recognizes that every employee has a stake in the distriet's suecessful eperation: The
Board encourages all district employees to express their ideas, concerns and propesals related te
the knorevement of werking condiions and the total educational pregran,

The Superintendent or designee shall establish procedures whereby he/shethe Superintendent or
designee will receive and consider employee suggestions and submit them, when appropriate, for

consideration by the Board.

Policy Reference UPDATE Service

Copyright 2025 by California School Boards Association, West Sacramento, California 95691

All rights reserved.

Policy Reference Disclaimer:

These references are not intended to be part of the policy itself, nor do they indicate the basis or authority for
the Governing Board to enact this policy. Instead, they are provided as additional resources for those

interested in the subject matter of the policy.

State
Ed. Code 35020

Ed. Code 35035
Ed. Code 35160
Gov. Code 3540-3549.3

Management Resources
California Labor Management Initiative

Description

Duties of employees fixed by governing board

Powers and duties of the superintendent; transfer authority
Authority of governing boards

Educational Employment Relations Act

Description
Resource Guidebook: Building Partnerships to Create Great

Publication

Website

Website

Cross References

Code
4030

Public Schools, May 2024
(https:/cdefoundation.org/staging/wp-
content/uploads/2024/08/CA-LMI-Resource-
Guidebook May-2024.pdf)

CSBA District and County Office of Education Legal Services

Californians Dedicated to Education Foundation
(https:/cdefoundation.org/)

Description
Nondiscrimination In Employment

48



4030
4111
4115
4115
4118
4118
4131
4141
4143
4144
4144
4151
4211
4215
4218
4218
4218.1
4231
4241
4243
4244
4244
4251
4300
4300
4301
4311
4315
4331
4344
4344

Nondiscrimination In Employment
Recruitment And Selection
Evaluation/Supervision
Evaluation/Supervision
Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action
Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action
Staff Development

Collective Bargaining Agreement
Negotiations/Consultation

Complaints

Complaints

Employee Compensation

Recruitment And Selection
Evaluation/Supervision
Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action
Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action
Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action (Merit System)
Staff Development

Collective Bargaining Agreement
Negotiations/Consultation

Complaints

Compilaints

Employee Compensation

Administrative And Supervisory Personnel
Administrative And Supervisory Personnel
Administrative Staff Organization
Recruitment And Selection
Evaluation/Supervision

Staff Development

Complaints

Complaints

49




4351
92000

Employee Compensation

Role Of The Board
f

~
i

50



Discussion/Action Item
Exhibit: V.5
Date; 01.13.26

SAN PASQUAL VALLEY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

)

TITLE:
The Superintendent recommends approval of updated Board Policy 5000 Concept and Roles, BP/AR
5020 Parent Rights and Responsibilites; BP/AR5117 Interdistrict Attendance, and BP5138 Copnflict

Resolutio and Peer Mediation

EXPLANATORY STATEMENT:

Board Policy 5000 - Concepts and Roles

Policy updated as part of CSBA's process to regularly review policy documents that otherwise would not
be revised, due to no applicable changes to law, regulations, new guidance, or other directives, and
amended for timeliness, to include material related to school safety, and to reference applicable related
Board policies and administrative regulations,

Board Policy 5020 - Parent Rights and Responsibilities

Policy updated to more closely align with law the Governing Board's belief that the district's relationship
with parents/guardians is one of mutual support and respect, and that the partnership with
parents/guardians is specific to their children. Additionally, policy updated to clarify that the notification
parents/guardians receive regarding their rights, includes, but is not limited to, rights under the Family
Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA), in accordance with Board Policy/Exhibit (1) 5145.6 -
Parent/Guardian Notifications. In addition, policy updated to reflect NEW COURT DECISION
(Mahmoud v. Taylor) which held that the First Amendment prohibited a disfrict from including lesbian,
gay, bisexual, transgender, queer, and questioning (LGBTQH) storybooks as part of elementary school
instruction without providing parents/guardians with notice and the ability to opt their students out of that
instructional content on the grounds that the storybooks substantially interfered with the religious
development of their children. Policy also updated to include that the Superintendent or designee may
establish a parent center at a school with a substantial number of students with a home language other
than English, to encourage parent/guardian understanding of and participation in their children's
educational programs. .

Administrative Regulation 5020 - Parent Rights and Responsibilities

Regulation updated to add that parent/guardian rights include notification of the opportunity to opt their
child out of certain instruction, as required by state law, and NEW COURT DECISION (Mahmoud v.
Taylor) which held that the First Amendment prohibited a district from including lesbian, gay, bisexual,
transgender, queer, and questioning (LGBTQ+) storybooks as part of elementary school instruction
without providing parents/guardians with notice and the ability to opt their students out of that
instructional content on the grounds that the storybooks substantially interfered with the religious
development of their children. Additionally, regulation updated to clarify that parents/guardians have the
right to receive notice and information about and to opt out of (1) any psychological testing involving
their child and (2) any assessment, analysis, evaluation, or monitoring of the quality or character of the
student's home life. In addition, regulation updated to add that (1) parents/guardians of English learners be
given any required written notification in English and the student's home language, and (2) that the rights
of parents/guardians be exercised in accordance with applicable Board policy and administrative
regulation. Regulation also updated to expand that parents/guardians may support the learning
environment of their child by monitoring and prohibiting or regulating the use of social media and other
forms of online entertainment viewed by their child.

Board Policy 5117 - Interdistrict Attendance

Policy updated to clarify that the Board policy and accompanying administrative regulation apply to
students transferring into and out of the district. Additionally, policy updated to reflect NEW LAW (SB
897, 2024) which (1) extends the school district of choice program indefinitely, (2) requires the
accounting of requests for district of choice transfers to include foster youth and student experiencing




homelessness status, and (3) provides that compliance of all provisions of a district's school district of
choice program are subject to the annual district audit required by law.

Administrative Regulation 5117 - Interdistrict Attendance

Regulation updated to reflect NEW LAW (SB 897, 2024) which (1) expands the prohibition for school
districts of choice from targeting communications regarding a school district of choice program to include
individual parents/guardians or residential neighborhoods on the basis of a student's proficiency in
English, family income, or any of the individual characteristics set forth in Education Code 200, (2)
requires, the district to, by January 15, notify the district of residence of the number and names of
students from the district of residence; by school and grade level, requesting to be transferred for the
following school year, (3) prohibits rejecting the transfer of a foster youth or student experiencing
homelessness, in addition to a student with a disability or an English ledrner, based on the transfer
requiring the district to create a new program to serve that student, (4) expands second priority for transfer
under the school district of choice program to include foster youth and students experiencing
homelessness, (5) expands the required notification to parents/guardians when the number of students
requesting to transfer exceeds the district's capacity to include that the number of students exceeds the
specific school or program to which the student applied, (6) requires the district to respond to a request
from the county office of education to provide data regarding the number of students transferring into the
district, (7) expands the authorization for a'district of residence to limit the number of students who
transfer out of the district in a fiscal year if the most recent budget certification completed by the County
Superintendent of Schools is a qualified status, and (8) requires the district of residence to, by February
15, notify the district of choice of the total number and names of students requesting to be transferred that
exceed the number of students for which the district of residence is authorized to limit the transfer.

Board Policy 5138 - Conflict Resolution/Peer Mediation

Policy updated to clarify the distinction between students providing peer mediation and those receiving it.
Additionally, policy updated to include, in the development of a conflict resolution and/or peer mediation
program (1) the expectation for confidentiatly regarding who participated, what was discussed, and how
any conflict was resolved, and (2) the selection of and requirements to train as a peer mediator,

STAFF MEMBERS INVOLVED:

Karen Medel, EAS and Richard Cordero, Superintendent

FISCAL IMPACT:

None

SOURCE OF FUNDING:

N/A

RECOMMENDED ACTION:

Approve updated Board Policy 5000 Concept and Roles, BP/AR 5020 Parent Rights and Responsibilites;
BP/AR5117 Interdistrict Attendance, and BP5138 Copnflict Resolutio and Peer Mediation

PREPARED AND SUBMITTED BY: -

Karen Medel, Executive Assistant to the Superintendent

REVIEWED BY:

Richard Cordero, M.Ed.,Superintendent




CSBA Sample District Policy Manual
CSBA Policy Management Console

Policy 5000: Concepts And Roles Status: ADOPTED

Original Adopted Date: 05/01/1985 | Last Revised Date: 1011/01/19962025 | Last Reviewed
Date: 1011/01/49962025

The Governing Board shall make every effertdesires to maintaincreate a safe; school environment
and positive school ervirenment and student serviees climate that premetepromotes student
welfare and academic achievement. FheAdditionally, the Board recognizes that student services
offered by the district play an integral role in the academic achievement and emotional well-being of
district students. In addition, the Board expects students to make goed use of engage in learning
opportunities offered by the district by demonstrating regular attendance; and completing assigned
work in a timely and diligent manner, while maintaining appropriate conduct and respect for others.

The Board recognizes that students and staff have the right to a safe and secure campus where they
are free from physical and psychological harm. The Board is fully committed to maximizing school
safety and to creating a positive learning environment that includes strategies for violence
prevention and has high expectations for staff and student conduct, responsible behavior, and
respect for others, in accordance with Board Policy 0450 - Comprehensive Safety Plan.

The Board is fully committed to providing equal educational opportunities and keeping
themaintaining schools that are free from diseriminatery practices: discrimination. The Board shall
not tolerate the intimidation or harassment of any student for any reason:, including discriminatory
harassment, intimidation, and/or bullying, in accordance with Board Policy 0410 -
Nondiscrimination in District Programs and Activities and Board Policy/Administrative Regulation
5145.3 - Nondiscrimination/Harassment.

The Superintendent or designee shall establish and keepinform parents/guardians and students wel
infermed about school and district rules and regulations related to attendance, health examinations,
records, grades, and student conduct. When conducting hearings related to discipline, attendance,
and other student matters, the Board shall afford students their due process rights in accordance
with law: and applicable Board policies and administrative regulations.

Policy Reference UPDATE Service

Copyright 2025 by California School Boards Association, West Sacramento, California 95691

All rights reserved.

Policy Reference Disclaimer:

These references are not intended to be part of the policy itself, nor do they indicate the basis or authority for
the Governing Board to enact this policy. Instead, they are provided as additional resources for those
interested in the subject matter of the policy.

State Description

CA Constitution Article |, Section 28 Declaration of rights

Ed. Code 35160 Authority of governing boards

51




Ed. Code 35160.1
Ed. Code 35291-35291.5

Management Resources
Website

Cross References

Code
0410

0450
3452
5113
5113
5125
5125
5131
5137
5144
5144
51441
51441
5145.3
51453
5145.6

5145.6-E(1)

Broad authority of school districts

Rules

Description
CSBA District and County Office of Education Legal Services

Description
Nondiscrimination in District Programs and Activities

Comprehensive Safety Plan

Student Activity Funds

Absences And Excuses

Absences And Excuses

Student Records

Student Records

Conduct

Positive School Climate

Discipline

Discipline

Suspension And Expulsion/Due Process
Suspension And Expulsion/Due Process
Nondiscrimination/Harassment
Nondiscrimination/Harassment
Parent/Guardian Notifications

Parent/Guardian Notifications

52



CSBA Sample District Policy Manual
CSBA Policy Management Console

Policy 5020: Parent Rights And Responsibilities Status: ADOPTED

Original Adopted Date: 02/01/1999 | Last Revised Date: 11/01/20022025 | Last Reviewed
Date: 11/01/20022025

The Governing Board recognizes that parents/guardians of district students have certain rights as
well as responsibilities related to the education of their children.

CSBA NOTE: Pursuant to Education Code 51101, each Governing Board is mandated to adopt
policy, jointly developed with parents/guardians, including parents/guardians whose primary
language is not English, that outlines how parents/guardians, school staff, and students may share
the responsibility for continuing the intellectual, physical, emotional, and social development and
well-being of students at each school site. Such policy mustis required to include the following
components: (1) the means by which the school and parents/guardians may help students achieve ‘
academic and other standards of the school:, (2) a description of the school's responsibility to
provide a high-quality curriculum and instructional program in a supportive and effective learning
environment that enables all students to meet the academic expectations of the school;, and (3) the
manner in which parents/guardians may support the learning environment of their children,
including, but not limited to, the responsibilities as detailed in the accompanying administrative
regulation.

e |

As added by SB 1595 (Ch: 1037, Statutes of 2002); Education Code 511011 specifies that
sopentoanarctinns whe oes pet Huent i Brelish paist be asle to srercioe o vichibs parsuand to
The following should be revised, so long as done so in accordance with law, to reflect the policy
jointly developed with parents/guardians.

The district should revise the following section to reflect local policy developed in conjunction with
parents/guardians:
N |

The Board believes that the edueatiendistrict’s relationship with parents/guardians is one of the
distriet's students is a shared respensibilibymutual support and respect. The Superintendent or
designee shall work with parents/guardians, including parents/guardians of English learners, to
determine appropriate roles and responsibilities of parents/guardians; seheol staff and students for
continuing the intellectual, physical, emotional, and social development and well-being of their
students at each seheeol site, including the means by which the seheelsdistrict and
parents/guardians can help their students achieve academic and other standards of the
sehoeldistrict.

Within this framework, the seheelsdistrict's primary responsibility shall be to provide a high-quality
curriculum and instructional program in a supportive and effective learning environment that
enables all students to meet the academic expectations of the seheeldistrict.

53




Parents/guardians shall have the opportunity to work with schools in a mutually supportive and
respectful partnership and to help their children succeed in school. (Education Code 51100)

The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that district staff understand the rights of
parents/guardians afforded by law and, Board policy, and administrative regulation, and follow
acceptable practices that respect those rights.

CSBA NOTE: Districts are required to annually provide parents/guardians with notice of their rights }
pursuant to the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA) (20 USC 1232g; 34 CFR 99.1- |
99.8). For more information regarding annual notifications to parents/guardians, see BP/E(1) 5145.6 |
= Parent/Guardian Notifications.

The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that parents/guardians receive notification regarding
their rights in aceordanee with law, including, but not limited to, their rights in accordance with 20
USC 1232g and 34 CFR 99.1-99.8, the federal Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA),
and as specified in Board Policy/Exhibit (1) 5145.6 - Parent/Guardian Notifications.

CSBA NOTE: Districts are required to teach certain instructional content. For example, Education
Code 51204.5 requires instruction in social sciences to include a study of the role and contributions
of specified groups of people to the economic, political, and social development of California and
the United States of America, which includes people of all genders, Native Americans, African
Americans, Latino Americans, Asian Americans, Pacific Islanders, European Americans, lesbian, gay,
bisexual, transgender, gueer, and questioning (LGBTQ+) Americans, and members of other ethnic,
cultural, religious, and socioeconomic status groups. Additionally. pursuant to Education Code 243

| and 51501, the Board may not prohibit the continued use of an appropriately adopted textbook,

| instructional material, or curriculum on the basis that it contains inclusive or diverse perspectives

I State law requires districts to provide parents/guardians notice and the opportunity to opt their
| students out of certain instruction, in some instances only based on religious beliefs and in other
| instances for any basis. For more information, see BP/AR 6142.1 -- Sexual Health And HIV/AIDS
‘ Prevention Instruction.

Additionally, in June 2025, the U.S. Supreme Court, in Mahmoud v. Taylor, held that the First

Amendment prohibited a district from including LGBTQ+ storybooks as part of elementary school

instruction without providing parents with notice and the ability to opt their students out of that

- instructional content on the grounds that the storybooks substantially interfered with the religious

| development of their children. The court's reasoning may be interpreted to apply to other
instructional content that parents/guardians could view as substantially interfering with the

- religious development of their children. In addition, the court's holding emphasized that the
guestion of whether certain instructional content substantially interferes with the religious

development of a student will always be fact-intensive. For more information, see BP/AR 6141.2 -

Recognition of Religious Beliefs and Customs.




In light of Mahmoud and the existence of some statutorily required opt-opts and the reguirement to
teach certain content, it is recommended that districts consult CSBA's District and County Office of
Education Legal Services or district legal counsel when determining the instructional content for
which parents/guardians may opt their students out, creating opt-out procedures, and evaluating

opt-out requests.

When required by law, Board policy, or administrative regulation, the district shall notify
parents/guardians that they may request to opt their student out of certain instruction. Students for
whom the district has approved the opt out shall be offered an alternative activity of similar
educational value.

CSBA NOTE: Education Code 51101.1 provides that parents/guardians be afforded all rights
pursuant to Education Code 51100-51140, regardless of English fluency, and grants additional
rights for parents/guardians of English learners. See the accompanying administrative
regulation CSBA NOTE: As added by SB 1595 (Ch: 1037 Statutes of 2002);

Additionally, Education Code 51101.1 requires the district to take all reasonable steps to ensure
that parents/guardians of English language learners are notified of the rights and opportunities
available to them in English and in their home language pursuant to Education Code 48985.
Education Code 48985 provides that when 15 percent or more of students enrolled in a school
speak a single primary language other than English, all notices and reports sent to the
parents/guardians of these students mustare required to also be written in the primary language
and may be answered by the parent/guardian in either language.

The Superintendent or designee shall take all reasonable steps to ensure that all parents/guardians
wheo speak a language other than English are properly netified in English; and in their home
language of the rights and eppertunities avatable to them pursuant to Education Code 48985.

In addition, Education Code 51101.1C€SBA NOTE: Nete: Education Code 511011 as added by SB
1595 (Ch- 1037, Statutes of 2002). encourages those districts with a substantial number of English
learners to establish parent centers with persenpeldistrict staff who can communicate with the
parents/guardians and to encourage their participation in the district's educational programs.

The Superintendent or designee shall take all reasonable steps to ensure that all parents/guardians
who speak a language other than English are properly notified in English, and in their home
language, of the rights and opportunities available to them pursuant to Education Code 48985.
(Education Code 51101.1)

The Superintendent or designee may establish a parent center at a school with a substantial number
of students with a home language other than English, to encourage parent/guardian understanding
of, and participation in, their children’s educational programs. (Education Code 51101.1)

Policy Reference UPDATE Service
Copyright 2025 by California School Boards Association, West Sacramento, California 95691
All rights reserved.

Policy Reference Disclaimer:

55




These references are not intended to be part of the policy itself, nor do they indicate the basis or authority for
the Governing Board to enact this policy. Instead, they are provided as additional resources for those

interested in the subject matter of the policy.

State
Ed. Code 220.3

Ed. Code

L]

43

Ed. Code 33126

Ed. Code 35291

Ed. Code 48070.5

Ed. Code 48985

Ed. Code 49091.10-42091.19
Ed. Code 49602

Ed. Code 51100-53410251140
Ed. Code 51204.5

Ed. Code 51240

Ed. Code 51501

Ed. Code 51513
Ed. Code 51930-51939

Ed. Code 60510

Federal
20 USC 1232¢

20 USC 1232h
34 CFR 99.1-99.8

Management Resources
Court Decision

Website
Website

Description

Prohibition of requiring employee or contractor to disclose
information related to student’s sexual orientation, gender
identity, or gender expression

Refusal of approval or prohibition of instructional materials

School accountability report card

Rules

Promotion and retention of students

Notices to parents in language other than English
Parental review of curriculum and instruction
Counseling and confidentiality of student information
Parent/guardian rights

History of California; contributions of people of all genders,
ethnic, and cultural groups to development of state and
nation

Excuse from health instruction due to conflicts with religious
beliefs

Prohibited means of instruction; continued use of
appropriately adopted materials

Personal beliefs

California Health Youth Act

Disposal of surplus instructional materials

Description
Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA) of 1974

Privacy rights
Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act

Description
Mahmoud v. Taylor (2025) 606 U.S. (2025 WL 1773627)

CSBA District and County Office of Education Legal Services

California Department of Education

56



Website

Cross References

Code
0450

0450
1100
1240
1240
1250
1250
1340
1340
1700
3260
3260
4131
5021
5022
5022
5113
5113
5116.1
51164
5117
5117
5121
5121'
5123l
5123

CSBA

Description
Comprehensive Safety Plan

Comprehensive Safety Plan
Communication With The Public

Volunteer Assistance

Volunteer Assistance

Visitors/Outsiders

Visitors/Qutsiders

Access To District Records

Access To District Records

Relations Between Private Industry And The Schools
Fees And Charges

Fees And Charges

Staff Development

Noncustodial Parents

Student And Family Privacy Rights

Student And Family Privacy Rights
Absences And Excuses

Absences And Excuses

Intradistrict Open Enrollment

Intradistrict Open Enrollment

Interdistrict Attendance

Interdistrict Attendance

Grades/Evaluation Of Student Achievement
Grades/Evaluation Of Student Achievement
Promyotion/Acceleration/ Retention

Promotion/Acceleration/Retention

57




5125
5125
51251
2125.1
5125.1-E(1)
51253
5131
5131.6
5131.6
5132
5132
5141.3
5141.3
5142
5142
5144
5144
5145.6
5145.6-E(1)
5148.3
5148.3
6000
6020
6020
6120

Student Records

Student Records

Release Of Directory Information
Release Of Directory Information
Release Of Directory Information
Challenging Student Records
Conduct

Alcohol And Other Drugs

Alcohol And Other Drugs

Dress And Grooming

Dress And Grooming

Health Examinations

Health Examinations

Safety

Safety

Discipline

Discipline

Parent/Guardian Notifications
Parent/Guardian Notifications
Preschool/Early Childhood Education
Preschool/Early Childhood Education
Concepts And Roles

Parent Involvement

Parent Involvement

Response To Instruction And Intervention

Recognition Of Religious Beliefs And Customs

Recognition Of Religious Beliefs And Customs

Sexual Health And HIV/AIDS Prevention Instruction

Sexual Health And HIV/AIDS Prevention Instruction

58



6142.8
6142.8
6143
6143
6154
6161.1
6161.1
6161.1-E(1)
6173.2
6173.2
6174
6174
9200

Comprehensive Health Education
Comprehensive Health Education
Courses of Study

Courses of Study

Homework/Makeup Work

Selection And Evaluation Of Instructional Materials
Selection And Evaluation Of Instructional Materials
Selection And Evaluation Of Instructional Materials
Education Of Children Of Military Families
Education Of Children Of Military Families
Education For English Learners

Education For English Learners

Limits Of Board Member Authority

59




CSBA Sample District Policy Manual
CSBA Policy Management Console

Regulation 5020: Parent Rights And Responsibilities Status: ADOPTED

Original Adopted Date: 11/01/2002 | Last Revised Date: 1211/01/26142025 | Last Reviewed
Date: 4211/01/20442025

Parent/Guardian Rights

CSBA NOTE: Education Code 49091.10-49091.19 and Education Code 51100-51102
| delineatespecify explicit rights of parents/guardians regarding the education of their children- ,
| however, such rights may not conflict with a valid restraining order, protective order, or order for
custody or visitation issued by a court. For more information about noncustodial parent rights, see
BP 5021 - Noncustodial Parents.

Some of these rightsthe rights specified in Education Code 49091.10-49091.19 and 51100-51102
may be addressed in other policies and regulations. However, districts may choose to adopt this
separate section on parent/guardian rights in order to compile these provisions in one location as
provided in the following optional section.

Pursuant to Education Cade 51101, the rights provided for in that law may not confliet with a valid
restraining erder, protective erder or order for custody or visitation issued by a eourt: See BR 5021 -
Nencustodial Parents:

The rights of parents/guardians of district students include, but are not limited to, the following:

1. To observe, within a reasonable period of time after making the request, the classroom(s) in
which their child is enrolled or for the purpose of selecting the school in which their child
will be enrolled (Education Code 51101)

Parents/guardians may observe instructional and other school activities that involve their
child in accordance with Board policy and administrative regulations adopted to ensure the
safety of students and staff, prevent undue interference with instruction or harassment of
school staff, and provide reasonable accommodation to parents/guardians. Upon written
request by a parent/guardian, the Superintendent or designee shall arrange for parental
observation of a class or activity in a reasonable time frame and in accordance with Board
policy and administrative regulations. (Education Code 49091.10)

2. To meet, within a reasonable time of their request, with their child's teacher(s) and the
principal (Education Code 51101)

3. Under the supervision of district employees, to volunteer their time and resources for the
improvement of school facilities and school programs, including, but not limited to, providing
assistance in the classroom with the approval, and under the direct supervision, of the

60



teacher (Education Code 51101)

4. To be notified on a timely basis if their child is absent from school without permission
(Education Code 51101)

5. To receive the results of their child's performance and the school's performance on
standardized tests and statewide tests (Education Code 51101)

For parents/guardians of English learners, this right shall include the right to receive the
results of their child's performance on the English language development test. (Education
Code 51101.1)

6. To request a particular school for their child and to receive a response from the district
(Education Code 51101)

7. To have a school environment for their child that is safe and supportive of learning
(Education Code 51101)

CSBA NOTE: 20 USC 1232h, the Protection of Pupil Rights Act {PPRA},, mandates that any district
receiving funds from a program administered by the U.S. Department of Education adopt a policy
regarding, among other things, the right of parents/guardians to inspect instructional materials. See
BP/AR 5022 - Student and Family Privacy Rights for language implementing this mandate. It is
recommended that districts with guestions about the inspection of instructional materials consult
CSBA's District and County Office of Education Legal Services or district legal counsel.

8. To examine the curriculum materials of the class(es) in which their child is enrolled
(Education Code 51101; 20 USC 1232h)

Parents/guardians may inspect, in a reasonable time frame, all primary supplemental
instructional materials and assessments stered by the elassreem teacher including
textbooks, teacher'steacher’'s manuals, films, audio and video recordings, and software,
stored by the classroom teacher. (Education Code 49091.10)

Each school site shall make available to parents/guardians and others, upon request, a copy
of the prospectus for each course, including the titles, descriptions and instructional aims of
the course. (Education Code 49091.14)

The school may charge an amount not to exceed the cost of duplication: if a hardcopy is
created. (Education Code 49091.14)

| CSBA NOTE: State law requiresidis;tricts to provide parents/guardians noﬁcEéLd the
opportunity to opt their students out of certain instruction, in some instances only based on

6142.1 -- Sexual Health And HIV/AIDS Prevention Instruction.
|

61




| Additionally, in June 2025, the U.S. Supreme Court, in Mahmoud v. Taylor, held that the First

' Amendment prohibited a district from including lesbian, gay, bisexual, transgender, gueer,

and guestioning (LGBTQ+) storybooks as part of elementary school instruction without |

providing parents with notice and the ability to opt their students out of that instructional

' content on the grounds that the storybooks substantially interfered with the religious
development of their children. The court's reasoning may be interpreted to apply to other

| instructional content that parents/guardians could view as substantially interfering with the

religious development of their children. In addition, the court's holding emphasized that the

question of whether certain instructional content substantially interferes with the religious

development of a student will always be fact-intensive. For more information, see BP/AR '

6141.2 - Recognition of Religious Beliefs and Customs.

In light of Mahmoud and the existence of some statutorily required opt-opts. and the
requirement to teach certain content, it is recommended that districts consult CSBA's ‘

District and County Office of Education Legal Services or district legal counsel when
determining the instructional content for which parents/guardians may opt their students
out, creating opt-out procedures, and evaluating opt-out requests.

9. To be notified of the opportunity to opt their child out of certain instruction, as required by
law (Education Code 51240, 51938)

9. 10.  To be informed of their child's progress in school and of the appropriate school
personnel whom they should contact if problems arise with their child (Education Code
51101)

1011, For parents/guardians of English learners, to support their child's advancement
toward literacy (Education Code 51101.1)

The Superintendent or designee may make available, to the extent possible, surplus or
undistributed instructional materials to parents/guardians pursuant to Education Code
60510. (Education Code 51101.1)

1112, For parents/guardians of English learners, to be informed, through the school
accountability report card, about statewide and local academic standards, testing programs,
accountability measures, and school improvement efforts (Education Code 51101.1)

CSBA NOTE: Pursuant to Education Code 220.3, as added by AB 1955 (Ch. 95, Statutes of
- 2024), a district is prohibited from requiring an employee or contractor to disclose any
‘ information related to a student's sexual orientation, gender identity, or gender expression,
including changing student records, to any other person without the student's consent

| questions regarding the disclosure of student records consult CSBA's District and County '
| Office of Education Legal Services or district legal counsel.

12 13. To have access to the seheelstudent records of their child (Education Code 51101)

62



13- 14, To receive information concerning the academic performance standards,
proficiencies, or skills their child is expected to accomplish (Education Code 51101)

CSBA NOTE: AB 2525 (Ch. 896, Statutes of 2004) amended Education Code 51101 to clarify that
parents/guardians need to be informed of schoel disciplinary rules and procedures as specified in

14 15, To be informed in advance about school rules, including disciplinary rules and
procedures in accordance with Education Code 48980, attendance policies, dress codes, and
procedures for visiting the school (Education Code 51101)

15 16. To be notified, as early in the school year as practicable pursuant to Education Code
48070.5, if their child is identified as being at risk of retention, and of their right to consult
with seheeldistrict personnel responsible for a decision to promote or retain their child and
to appeal such a decision (Education Code 51101)

16:-17. To receive notice and information about and to opt out of any psychological testing
the sehoel does involving their child and te deny permission to give the test (Education
Code 51101)

CSBA NOTE: 20 USC 1232h grants a parent/guaﬁién the right to refuse to allow histherthe
parent/guardian’s child to participate in a survey requesting personal information or information for
marketing purposes. See AR 5022 - Student and Family Privacy Rights.

17 18. To refusereceive notice and information about and to submit or to participate in opt
out of any assessment, analysis, evaluation, or monitoring of the quality or character of the
student's home life, any form of parentalparent/guardian screening or testing, any
nonacademic home-based counseling program, parent/guardian training, or any prescribed
family education service plan, and to inspect any survey collecting personal information
(Education Code 49091.18; 20 USC 1232h)

18- 19. To participate as a member of a parent advisory committee, school site council, or
site-based management leadership team in accordance with any rules and regulations
governing membership in these organizations (Education Code 51101)

For parents/guardians of English learners, this right shall include the right to participate in
school and district advisory bodies in accordance with federal and state law and regulations.
(Education Code 51101.1)

39 20. To question anything in their child's student record that the parent/guardian feels is
inaccurate or misleading or is an invasion of privacy and to receive a response from the
school (Education Code 51101)

21. To provide informed, written parental consent before their child is tested for a behavioral,
mental, or emotional evaluation:

63




A general consent, including medical consent used to approve admission to or
involvement in a special education or remedial program or regular school activity, shall not
constitute written consent for these purposes. (Education Code 49091.12)

22. For parents/guardians of English learners, to be given any required written notification,
under any applicable law, in English and the student’s home language pursuant to Education
Code 48985 (Education Code 51101.1)

These rights shall be exercised in accordance with applicable Board policy and administrative
regulation.

Parent Responsibilities

' CSBA NOTE: Education Code 51101 mane_latesreguires that tgpolicy adopted by the district
include itemsltems #1-7 below, except that ltem #4 below has been expanded to include social
: media and other forms of online entertainment.

Par%nts/guardians may support the Iearﬁiné environment of their child by: (Educat_ion Code 51101)

1. Monitoring attendance of their child
2. Ensuring that homework is completed and turned in on time
3. Encouraging their child to participate in extracurricular and cocurricular activities

4. Monitoring and prohibiting or regulating the televisienuse of social media and other forms of
online entertainment viewed by their child

5. Working with their child at home in learning activities that extend the classroom learning

6. Volunteering in their child's classroom(s) or for other school activities

7. Participating in decisions related to the education of their own child or the total school
program, as appropriate

Policy Reference UPDATE Service

Copyright 2025 by California School Boards Association, West Sacramento, California 95691

All rights reserved.

Policy Reference Disclaimer:

These references are not intended to be part of the policy itself, nor do they indicate the basis or authority for
the Governing Board to enact this policy. Instead, they are provided as additional resources for those
interested in the subject matter of the policy.

State Description




Ed. Code 220.3

Ed. Code

e}

43

Ed. Code 33126
Ed. Code 35291
Ed. Code 48070.5
Ed. Code 48985

Ed. Code 49091.10-49091.19

Ed. Code 49602

Ed. Code 51100-5430251140

Ed. Code 51204.5

Ed. Code 51513
Ed. Code 519230-51939

Ed. Code 60510

Federal
20 USC 1232¢g

20 USC 1232h
34 CFR 99.1-99.8

Management Resources
Court Decision

Website
Website

Website

Cross References

Prohibition of requiring employee or contractor to disclose
information related to student’s sexual orientation, gender
identity, or gender expression

Refusal of approval or prohibition of instructional materials

School accountability report card

Rules

Promotion and retention of students

Notices to parents in language other than English
Parental review of curriculum and instruction
Counseling and confidentiality of student information
Parent/guardian rights

History of California; contributions of people of all genders,
ethnic, and cultural groups to development of state and
nation

Excuse from health instruction due to conflicts with religious
beliefs

Prohibited means of instruction; continued use of
appropriately adopted materials

Personal beliefs

California Health Youth Act

Disposal of surplus instructional materials

Description
Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA) of 1974

Privacy rights
Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act

Description .
Mahmoud v. Taylor (2025) 606 U.S. (2025 WL 1773627)

CSBA District and County Office of Education Legal Services

California Department of Education

CSBA

65




Code
0450

0450
1100
1240
1240
1250
1250
1340
1340
1700
3260
3260
4131
5021
5022
5022
5113
5113
5116.1
5116.1
5117
5117
5121
5121
5123
5123
5125
5125
51251

Description
Comgrehensive Safety Plan

Comprehensive Safety Plan
Communication With The Public
Volunteer Assistance

Volunteer Assistance
Visitors/Qutsiders
Visitors/Outsiders

Access To District Records
Access To District Records
Relations Between Private Industry And The Schools
Fees And Charges

Fees And Charges

Staff Development

Noncustodial Parents

.Student And Family Privacy Rights

Student And Family Privacy Rights
Absences And Excuses

Absences And Excuses

Intradistrict Open Enrollment

ln;radistrict Open Enrollment

Interdistrict Attendance

Interdistrict Attendance

Grades/Evaluation Of Student Achievement
Grades/Evaluation Of Student Achievement
Promotion/Acceleration/Retention
Promotion/Acceleration/Retention

Student Records

Student Records

Release Of Directory Information

66



51251 Release Of Directory Information

5125.1-E(1) Release Of Directory Information

5125.3 Challenging Student Records

5131 Conduct

5131.6 Alcohol And Other Drugs

5131.6 Alcohol And Other Drugs

9132 Dress And Grooming

5132 Dress And Grooming

5141.3 Health Examinations

5141.3 Health Examinations

5142 Safety

5142 Safety

5144 Discipline

5144 Discipline

5145.6 Parent/Guardian Notifications

5145.6-E(1) Parent/Guardian Notifications

5148.3 Preschool/Early Childhood Education

5148.3 Preschool/Early Childhood Education

6000 Concepts And Roles

6020 Parent Involvement

6020 Parent Involvement

6120 Response To Instruction And Intervention
6141.2 Recognition Of Religious Beliefs And Customs
6141.2 Recognition Of Religious Beliefs And Customs
6142.1 Sexual Health And HIV/AIDS Prevention Instruction
6142.1 Sexual Health And HIV/AIDS Prevention Instruction
6142.8 Comprehensive Health Education

6142.8 Comprehensive Health Education

6143 Courses of Study




6143

6154
6161.1
6161.1
6161.1-E(1)
6173.2
6173.2
6174

6174

9200

Courses of Study

Homework/Makeup Work

Selection And Evaluation Of Instructional Materials
Selection And Evaluation Of Instructional Materials
Selection And Evaluation Of Instructional Materials
Education Of Children Of Military Families
Education Of Children Of Military Families
Education For English Learners

Education For English Learners

Limits Of Board Member Authority

68



CSBA Sample District Policy Manual
CSBA Policy Management Console

Policy 5117: Interdistrict Attendance Status: ADOPTED

Original Adopted Date: 12/01/2015 | Last Revised Date: 0611/01/20232025 | Last Reviewed
Date: 0611/01/20232025

CSBA NOTE: The Education Code provides a number of options under which a district may enroll a I
student whose parent/guardian does not reside within district boundaries. Under an "interdistrict
attendance permit” or "reciprocal agreement" pursuant to Education Code 46600-46610, a student !
may attend school in a different district when both the district of residence and the district of
proposed attendance agree (Option 1 below). Alternatively, pursuant to Education Code 48300-
48317, as amended by AB 185 {Ch: 571 Statutes of 2022); the Governing Board may; urti July 3;
2028; declare the district to be a "school district of choice" willing to accept a specific number of !
interdistrict transfers into the district through a random selection process (Option 2 below). In order |
to maintain the integrity of the random selection process, it is recommended that a school district of |
choice not also accept transfers under the interdistrict attendance permit option except when
extraordinary circumstances exist, as provided in Option 2 below. Districts that wish to use both
sources of authority should consult CSBA's District and County Office of Education Legal Services |
or district legal counsel.

In addition to these options, pursuant to Education 48345, as added by SB 941 (Ch: 711 Statutes
of 2022). the Board is authorized, until July 1, 2029, to enter into an agreement with other local
educational agencies (LEA) to offer courses and coursework to students from another LEA who
have been impacted by disruptions or cancellations to specified courses, or teacher shortages to
such courses. See the sectien "Instruction Collaboration Agreements-" below.

Pursuant to Education Code 48204, a district may authorize a student whose parent/guardian is
employed within district boundaries to attend a school in the district (Allen bill transfer); see AR
5111.1 - District Residency.

The Governing Board recognizes that parents/guardians of students who reside within the
geographic boundaries of one district may, for a variety of reasons, desire to enroll their children in a
school in another district.

Student transfers into and out of the district shall be in accordance with law and as specified in this
policy and accompanying administrative regulation.

OPTION 1: Interdistrict Attendance Agreements and Permits

FSBA NOTTE :I'he following section is fa;e By_dgrit;ts tHat h:;fe;ntere& ihto an agreerrTent with ].

one or more other districts to accept student transfers through interdistrict attendance permits

69




pursuant to Education Code 46600-46610. Districts selecting this option should also select Option
1in the accompanylng administrative regulatlon

The Bearddnstnct may enter into an agreement with any other school district, for aterm not to
exceed five school years, for the interdistrict attendance of students who are residents of the
distriets-either district. (Education Code 46600)

CSBA NOTE: Educahon Code 46600 requ:res that the lnterdtstnct attendance agreement SpECIfy ‘
the terms and conditions under which individual permits may be granted or denied. ia
additienAdditionally, pursuant to Education Code 46600, students who have been granted an
interdistrict attendance permit sustare required to be allowed to continue to attend the school
without having to reapply unless the agreement between the two districts contains specific agreed-
upon standards for reapplication; see the accompanying administrative regulation. Bistriets alseln
addition, districts may include in the agreement the agreed-upon standards for revocation of
students' interdistrict attendance. Examples of conditions that may result in revocation include
falsification of information stated on the permit application, unsatisfactory attendance, continual
disruption, or poor academic achievement.

The agreement shall specify theterms and conditidns under which interdistrict attendance shall be
permitted or denied. ¥ alseAdditionally, it may contain standards agreed upon by both districts for
reapplication and/or revocation of the student's permit. (Education Code 46600)

CSBA NOTE: Pursuant to Educahon Code 46600 itis the responsibility of the Superlntendent or
designee of the district of residence, subject to Board policies of the district of residence and terms
of the agreement, to issue an individual permit verifying the district's approval of an interdistrict
transfer out of the district. The permit shall become valid when endorsed by the Board's designee in
the district of proposed enrollment.

See the accompanymg administrative regulatlon for procedures to follow when the permit is demed

Ueen receidng When the request of a student seeking to transfer out of the district, or an
individual permit verifying another district's approval for its student to transfer into the district that
bas been appreved by the stndents distriet of residence. o apan recebdne o wittben reguest from
the parent/auardian of a district student who wishes to enrolt in another district © | the
Superintendent or designee shall review the reguest, and may approve or deny the request or
permit subjeet tebased on the terms and conditions of the interdistrict attendance agreement.

OPTION 1 ENDS HERE

OPTION 2: School District of Choice Program

CSBA NOTE The followmg sectron is for use by districts that elect to participate in the school
district of choice program pursuant to Education Code 48300-48317. Pursuant to Education Code
48301, such a district must register as a school district of choice with the Superintendent of Public
Instruction and County Board of Education before enrolling students under this option. Districts
selecting this option should also select Option 2 in the accompanying administrative regulation.

70



I Pursuant teSB 897 (Ch. 865, Statutes of 2024) repealed Education Code 48315; as amended by AB
185 (Ch- 571; Statutes of 2022); thereby extending the school district of choice program has been
extended untl July 1; 2028.indefinitely.

The Beard has designated the district has registered as a "school district of choice" and shall aceept
students who reside within other California sehool districts whe wish to attend a district schoekin
accordance with Education Code 48301.

The Board shall, by resolution, annually establish the number of students whethat will be accepted
into the district through this program based on recommendations by the Superintendent or
designee as te the number of transfer students the district will be able to accept and the schools,
grades; and programs that will be able to accept the students.. Once established, the district shall
accept all students who apply to transfer into the district until the district is at maximum capacity,
as required pursuant to Education Code 48301.

CSBA NOTE: Education Code 48301 requires a random, unbiased process for selecting students
who will be admittedtransferred through the school district of choice program and prohibits
consideration of certain characteristics and factors in making the selections. Pursuant to Education
Code 48301, family income may only be considered to the extent necessary to determine
enrollment priority pursuant to Education Code 48306; see the accompanying administrative
regulation.

Students shall be admitted toStudent transfer requests into the district seheelsshall be considered
through an unbiased process that prohibits an inquiry into or evaluation or consideration of whether
a student should be enrolled based upon the student's academic or athletic performance, physical
condition, proficiency in English, any of the individual characteristics set forth in Education Code
200, or family income. (Education Code 48301)

If the number of transfer applications exceeds the number of transfers the Board has elected to
accept, approval for transfer shall be determined by a random drawing held in public at a regularly
scheduled Board meeting. (Education Code 48301)

CSBA NOTE: Because the school district of choice program requires a random selection process, it
is recommended that participating districts not adwmittransfer students through the interdistrict
attendance permit process described in Option 1 above, except under extraordinary circumstances.
Such circumstances might include approving interdistrict attendance permits for students who are
victims of an act of bullying. Such students are given priority for interdistrict attendance permits
pursuant to Education Code 46600; see the accompanying administrative regulation.

Because the district admits students in accordance with the school district of choice program, the
Superintendent or designee shall not admit studentsapprove a student’s transfer into the district
based on an individual interdistrict attendance permitspermit, pursuant to Education Code 46600-
46610, except under extraordinary circumstances.

The Superintendent or designee shall keep an accounting of all requests for admittaneetransfer

i




through the school district of choice program and a record of their disposition, including, but not
limited to, all of the following: (Education Code 48313)

1. The number of requests granted, denied, or withdrawn and, for denied requests, the reason
for the denial

2. The number of students transferred into and out of the district pursuant to this program

| CSBA NOTE: Pursuant to Education Code 48313, Qg_am—e;\_det_:l by SB 89_7_,_3!_13 accounting of
| requests for district of choice transfers is required to include foster youth and student
experiencing homelessness status.

3. The race, ethnicity, gender, self-reported socioeconomic status, eligibility for free or
reduced-price meals, foster youth status, student experiencing homelessness status, and the
district of residence for each student transferred into or out of the district pursuant to this
program

4. The number of students transferred into or out of the district pursuant to this program who
are classified as English learners or students with disabilities

CSBA NOTE: Education Code 48311 authorizes, but does not require, a school district of choice to
provide transportation to participating students to the extent that the district provides
transportation assistance to other students. See seetien on "Transportation” below. Item #5 may be
deleted by districts that do not provide transportation.

5. As applicable, the number of students described in Items #3 and 4 above who are provided
transportation assistance to a district school or program, and the total number of students
provided transportation assistance, pursuant to the school district of choice program

The information specified in Items #1-5 above shall be reported by the Superintendent or desighree
to the Board; at a regularly scheduled meeting. No later than October 15 of each year, the
Superintendent or designee shall provide the same information for the current school year, as well
as information regarding the district's status as a school district of choice in the upcoming school
year, to each geographically adjacent school district, the county office of education, and the
Superintendent of Public Instruction. (Education Code 48313)

| CSBA NOTE: Pursuant to Education Code 48301, as amended by SB 897, compliance of all
provisions of a district’s school district of choice program are subject to the annual district audit
conducted pursuant to Education Code 41020.

The district's compliance with speeifiedall school district of choice program requirements shall be
reviewed as part of the annual district audit conducted pursuant to Education Code 41020.
(Education Code 48301)

72



OPTION 2 ENDS HERE

Instruction Collaboration Agreements

CSBA NOTE: Pursuant to Education Code 48345, as added by SB 941, the Board may enter into an
instruction collaberation agreement (ICA) with school districts; county offices of education or
charter schools to effer the same or similar corresponding individual courses and coursework te
students from anether LEA who have been impacted by teacher shortages, disruptions or
cancellatiens in science: technology: engineering, and mathematics (STEM) classes. or disruptions or
cancellations i dual Rssase mersion prosrims,

TFhe Superintendent or desighee may; with beardThe district may, with Board approval, enter into an
instruction collaboration agreement (ICA) with another school district, county office of education, or
charter school for the district to offer the same or similar courses and coursework to students from
another school district. county office of education, or charter school who have been impacted by
any of the following: (Education Code 48345)

1. Disruptions or cancellations in science, technology, engineering, and mathematics (STEM)
classes

2. Disruptions or cancellations in dual language immersion programs

3. Teacher shortages in STEM classes or dual language immersion programs

Prior to accepting students for classes for any of the reasons specified in Items #1-3 above, the
Superintendent or designee shall, with Board Apprevalapproval, determine the maximum number of
students that the district can accept for these purposes. The district shall accept students who
apply until the district is at maximum capacity.

Students shall be admittedtransferred to this program through an unbiased process that prohibits an
inquiry into, or evaluation or consideration of, whether a student should be authorized to
participate in the course or coursework based upon the student's current academic or athletic
performance, proficiency in English, physical condition, any of the individual characteristics
specified in Education Code 200, or family income. If the number of applicants exceeds the number
of seats available, the approval for participation shall be determined by a random public drawing at
a regularly scheduled Board meeting. (Education Code 48345)

The Superintendent or designee shall publicly post information, including, but not limited to,
applicable forms and timelines for submission pursuant to the ICA, to ensure that students and their
families are aware of the opportunities to participate. (Education Code 48345)

CSBA NO'I:E: I;ursua\_nt E) éducation Code 48345, as adaed by SB 2441 the average daily attendance
attributable to a student participating in the $CGAinstruction collaboration agreement shall remain
with the LEA of origination for purposes of state apportionment.

73




When negotiating the ICA, the Superintendent or designee shall collaborate with the other
participating EEA{s)local educational agencies to agree upon an appropriate shared cost structure.
(Education Code 48345)

Transportation

CSBA NOTE: Fhe following eptional section is for use by all districts and should be revised to refleet
distriet practiee: Districts are not required to provide transportation or transportation assistance to
students admittedtransferred under an interdistrict attendance permit pursuant to Education Code
46600-46610, except that Education Code 46600; requires the district of enrollment to provide
transportation assistance to a student who is eligible for free or reduced price meals and is either a
child of an active military duty parent/guardian or a victim of an act of bullying, as defined in
Education Code 48900.

Pursuant to Education Code 48311, a school district of choice is authorized, but not required, to
provide transportation assistance to the extent that the district otherwise provides transportation
assistance to students.

Upon parent/guardian request, the district shall provide transportation assistance to a student
receiving an interdistrict transfer who is eligible for free and reduced-price meals and is the child of
an active duty military parent/guardian or a victim of bullying, as defined in Education Code 46600.
(Education Code 46600)

tnr addiienAdditionally, upon request of a student's parent/guardian, the Superintendent or
designee may authorize transportation for any interdistrict transfer student to and from designated
bus stops within the attendance area of the school that the student attends, if space is available.

Policy Reference UPDATE Service

Copyright 2025 by California School Boards Association, West Sacramento, California 95691

All rights reserved.

Policy Reference Disclaimer:

These references are not intended to be part of the policy itself, nor do they indicate the basis or authority for
the Governing Board to enact this policy. Instead, they are provided as additional resources for those
interested in the subject matter of the policy.

State Description
CA Constitution Article 1, Section 31 Nondiscrimination on the basis of race, sex, color, ethnicity, or
national origin

Ed. Code 200 Educational equity

Ed. Code 41020 Requirement for annual audit

Ed. Code 46600-46611 Interdistrict attendance agreements

Ed. Code 48204 Residency requirements for school attendance

Ed. Code 48300-48317 Student attendance alternatives; school district of choice
program

74



Ed. Code 48900
Ed. Code 48915
Ed. Code 48915.1
Ed. Code 48918
Ed. Code 48980
Ed. Code 48985
Ed. Code 52317

Ed. Code 8151

Management Resources
Attorney General Opinion

Attorney General Opinion

Court Decision .
Court Decision

Website
Website ’
Website

Cross References
Code “
1312.3

1312.3

1312.3-E(1)
1312.3-E(2}

3440

3460

3540

3541

- P
-

Grounds for suspension or expulsion

Expulsion; particular circumstances

Expelled individuals; enrollment in another district
Rules governing expulsion procedures
Parent/Guardian notifications

Notices to parents in language other than English

Regional Occupational Center/Program; enrollment of
students; integdistrict attendance

Apprentices; exemption from interdistrict attendance
agreement

Description
84 Ops.Cal. Atty.Gen, 198 (2001) *

87 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 132 (2004) L

Walnut Valley Unified School District v. the Superior Court of
Los Angeles County {2011) 192 Cal.App.4th 234

Crawford v. Huntington Beach Union High School District
(2002) 98 Cal.App.4th 1275

CSBA District and County Office of Education Legal Services
California Department of Education

CSBA

[ }
‘I‘.* -k e -

Description
Uniform Complaint Procedures

Uniform Complaint Procedures

Uniform Complaint Procedures

Uniform Complaint Procedures

Financial Reports And Accountability

Financial Reports And Accountability
Transportation .

Transportation Routes And Services

75




3553 Free And Reduced Price Meals

3553 Free And Reduced Price Meals

5020 Parent Rights And Responsibilities -
5020 Parent Rights And Responsibilities

5111 Admission

5111 Admission

5111.1 District Residency

51111 District Residency

5112.2 Exclusions From Attendance

51132 Chronic A[;sence And Truancy

51131 Chronic Abse;u:e And Truancy o
5113.12 District School Attendance Review Board
5113.12 District School Attendance Review Board
5116 School Attendance Boundaries

51161 Intradisgrict Open Enrollment

5116.1 . , Intradistrict Open Enroliment

5119 Students Expelled From Other Districts
5131.2 Bullying

5131.2 Bullying

5144.1 Suspension And Expulsion/Due Process
51441 Suspension And Expulsion/Due Process
5145.6 Parent/Guardian Notifications
5145.6-E(1) Parent/Guardian Notifications

5148 Child Care And Development

5148 Child Care And Development

6144.3 Recipracity Of Academic Credit

6146.3 Reciprocity Of Academic Credit

6173.1 Education For Foster Youth

6173.1 Education For Foster Youth




“6173.2
6173.2
7160
7160
9000
9321
9321-E(1)
9321-E(2)

P

Education Of Children Of Military Families
Education Of Children Of Military Families
Charter School Facilities T .
Charter School Facilities

Role Of The Board

Closed Session

Closed Session

Closed Session

" EAS ]

77




CSBA Sample District Policy Manual
CSBA Policy Management Console

Regulation 5117: Interdistrict Attendance Status: ADOPTED

Original Adopted Date: 07/01/2012 | Last Revised Date: 1211/01/20192025 | Last Reviewed
Date: 1211/01/20492025

| CSBANOTE: The district should select Option 1 and/or Option 2 below in accordance with the
accompanying beardBoard policy. For guidance on which option to select, see the accompanying |
beardBoard policy.

OPTION 1: Interdistrict Attendance Agreements and Permits
| CSBA NOTE: The following option is for use by districts that have entered into an agreement with
| one or more other school districts to accept transfers through the "interdistrict attendance permit"
“ or "reciprocal agreement" process pursuant to Education Code 46600-46610. {See Option 1 in the
| accompanying Board policys). In 87 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 132 (2004), the Attorney General opined that
i districts could not charge students a fee for processing applications for interdistrict attendance.

e

In accordance with an agréement betv_v;en- the Geverning Bearddistrict and the beard of another
district, a permit authorizing a student of either district to enroll in the other district may be issued
upon approval of both districts.

The district shall post on its website the procedures and timelines for requesting an interdistrict
transfer permit, including a link to BRBoard Policy 5117 - Interdistrict Attendance. The posted
information shall include, but is not limited to: (Education Code 46600.1, 46600.2)

1. The date upon which the district will begin accepting and processing interdistrict transfer
requests for the following school year

2. The reasons for which the district may approve or deny a request, and any information or
documents that must be submitted as supporting evidence

3. If applicable, the process and timelines by which a denial of a request may be appealed
within the district before the district renders a final decision

4. A statement that failure of a parent/guardian to meet any timelines established by the
district shall be deemed an abandonment of the request

5. Applicable timelines for processing a request, including the following statements:

78



a. For an interdistrict transfer request received by the district 15 or fewer calendar days
before the commencement of instruction in the school year for which the transfer is
sought, the district will notify the parent/guardian of its final decision within 30
calendar days from the date the request was received:

b. For an interdistrict transfer request received by the district more than 15 days before
the commencement of instruction in the school year for which the interdistrict
transfer is sought, the district will notify the parent/guardian of its final decision as
soon as possible, but no later than 14 calendar days after the commencement of
instruction in the school year for which transfer is sought:

6. The conditions under which an existing interdistrict transfer permit may be revoked or
rescinded

' CSBA NOTE: Education Code 46600 requires districts to give priority for interdistrict attendance

i permits to a student who is a victim of an act of bullying, as provided below. For this purpose,
Education Code 48900(r) defines bullying to include, but not be limited to, bullying committed by

' means of an electronic act directed specifically toward the student:. For more information regarding

|
| the definition of bullying, see AR 5144.1 - Suspension and Expulsion/Due Process.

Priority for interdistrict attendance shall be given to a student who has been determined, through
an investigation by either the district of residence or district of proposed enrollment, to be a victim
of an act of bullying, as defined in Education Code 48900(r), committed by a student of the district
of residence. (Education Code 46600)

' CSBA NOTE: Education Code 46600 requires districts to ensure that students who are victims of
bullying or are children of active duty military parents/guardians be selected through an unbiased
process that prohibits consideration of other specified characteristics.

Until the district is at maximum capacit_y,_th_e district shall accept ahy student whose interdistrict
transfer application is based on being the victim of an act of bullying or a child of an active duty
military parent/guardian. The district shall ensure that such students are admittedtransferred
through an unbiased process that prohibits an inquiry into or evaluation or consideration of whether
or pot a student should be enrolled based on academic or athletic performance, physical condition,
proficiency in English, family income, or any of the individual characteristics set forth in Education
Code 220, including, but not limited to, race or ethnicity, gender, gender identity, gender expression,
and immigration status. (Education Code 46600)

n addiienAdditionally, the Superintendent or designee may approve an interdistrict attendance
permit for a student for any of the following reasons when stipulated in the agreement:

' CSBA NOTE: Optional ltems #1-11 below should be revised and/or deleted to reflect district
| practice.

79




1. To meet the child care needs of the student, only as long as the student's child care provider
remains within district boundaries

2. To meet the student's special mental or physical health needs as certified by a physician,
school psychologist, or other appropriate school personnel

3. When the student has a sibling attending school in the receiving district, to avoid splitting
the family's attendance

4. To allow the student to complete a school year when the student's parents/guardians have
moved out of the district during that year

5. To allow the student to remain with a class graduating that year from an elementary, middle,
or senior high school

6. To allow a high school senior to attend the same school attended as a junior, even if the
student's family moved out of the district during the junior year

7. When the parent/guardian provides written evidence that the family will be moving into the
district in the immediate future and would like the student to start the school year in the
district

8. When the student will be living out of the district for one year or less

9. When recommended by the school attendance review board, or by county child welfare,
probation, or social service agency staff in documented cases of serious home or community
problems which make it inadvisable for the student to attend the school of residence

10. When there is valid interest in a particular educational program not offered in the district of
residence

11. To provide a change in school environment for reasons of personal and social adjustment

' CSBA NOTE: In 84 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 198 (2001), the Attorney General opined that a lack of school

j facilities is a justifiable reason for denial of the interdistrict attendance permit request. However,
according to the Attorney General, once the student is admittedtransferred, the district may not
later deny the student continued attendance at a district school because of overcrowding. Altheugh
Attorney General opinions are not binding on the courts; they are generally afforded deference in
the eourt when there is ne specific statutory or case law to the eontrary: The following paragraph is

80



\ based on this Attorney General opinion, It is recommended that districts consult CSBA’s District and
‘ County Office of Education Legal Services or district legal counsel prior to removing an interdistrict
 transfer student currently attending the district.

The Superintendent or designee may deny initial requests for interdistrict attendance permits due to
limited district resources, overcrowding of school facilities at the relevant grade level, or other
considerations that are not arbitrary. However, once a student is admittedtransferred, the district
shall not deny continued attendance because of overcrowded facilities at the relevant grade level.

If the transfer request is for a school year that begins within 15 calendar days of the receipt of the
request, the Superintendent or designee shall notify the parent/guardian of the final decision within
30 calendar days of receiving the request. If the transfer request is for a school year that begins
more than 15 calendar days after the receipt of the request, the parent/guardian shall be notified of
the final decision as soon as possible, but no later than 14 calendar days after the commencement
of instruction during that school year. (Education Code 46600.2)

" CSBA NOTE: Education Code 46600.2 requires a district that denies a request for an interdistrict
| transfer to give written notice to the parent/guardian of the right to appeal to the County Board of
Education.

Pursuant to Education Code 46601, parents/guardians may submit theiran appeal to the County
Board within 30 calendar days of the district's final denial of the permit. The County Board then has
30 calendar days, unless extended by an additional five school days for good cause, to make its
determination as to whether the student should be allowed to attend the district of proposed
enrollment and the applicable period of attendance.

Pursuant to Education Code 46602, if the County Board determines that the student should be
permitted to attend the district of proposed enrollment, the district shall admitis reqguired to transfer
 the student without delay.

If a student's interdistrict transfer request is denied, the Superintendent or designee shall, in writing,
notify the parents/guardians of their right to appeal to the County Board of Education within 30
calendar days from the date of the final denial. (Education Code 46600.2)

All notices to parents/guardians regarding the district's decision on any request for interdistrict
transfer shall conform to the translation requirements of Education Code 48985, and may be
provided by regular mail, electronic format if the parent/guardian provides an email address, or by
any other method normally used to communicate with parents/guardians in writing. (Education
Code 46600.2)

Pending a decision by the two districts or by the County Board on appeal, the Superintendent or
designee may provisionally adeittransfer a student who resides in another district for a period not
to exceed two school months, provided the district is the district of proposed enrollment. If the
decision has not been rendered by the conclusion of two school months and the districts or County

81




Board is still operating within the prescribed timelines, the student shall not be allowed to continue
attending the district school to which the student was provisionally admittedtransferred. (Education
Code 46603)

Students who are under consideration for expulsion or who have been expelled may not appeal
interdistrict attendance denials or rescissions while expulsion proceedings are pending or during the
term of the expulsion. (Education Code 46601)

Once a student is admittedtransferred to a school on the basis of an interdistrict attendance permit,
the student shall not be required to reapply for an interdistrict transfer and shall be allowed to
continue to attend the school of enrollment, unless reapplication standards are otherwise specified
in the interdistrict attendance agreement. Existing interdistrict attendance permits shall not be
rescinded after June 30 following a student's completion of grade 10 or for any student entering
grade 11 or 12 in the subsequent school year. (Education Code 46600)

OPTION 1 ENDS HERE

OPTION 2: School District of Choice Program

' CSBA NOTE: The following section is for use t_)y districts that elect to participate in the school ,
 district of choice program pursuant to Education Code 48300-48317. {See Option 2 in the
 accompanying Board policys).

|
! Education Code 48301, as amended by SB 897 (Ch. 865, Statutes of 2024), expands the prohibition
| for school districts of choice from targeting communications regarding a school district of choice

student'’s actual or perceived academic or athletic skill, proficiency in English, any of the individual
characteristics set forth in Education Code 200, or family income.

The Superintendent or designee shall communicate with parents/guardians regarding transfer
opportunities under the school district of choice program. Communications sent to
parents/guardians shall be available in all languages for which translations are required pursuant to
Education Code 48985, shall be factually accurate, and shall not target particular neighborhoods or
individual parents/guardians on the basis of a child's actual or perceived academic or athletic skill,
proficiency in English, family income, or any other persenalindividual characteristic specified in
Education Code 200. (Education Code 48301, 48980)

The Superintendent or designee shall also make public announcements regarding district schools,
programs, policies, and procedures, including transportation options if applicable, during the
enrollment period. (Education Code 48312)

82



CSBA NOTE: Theifaoiwing optional paragraph reflects Education Code 4@302, which encouragés
districts to hold informational meetings as described below, and may be revised to reflect district
practice.

The Superintendent or designee may hold informational meetings on the district's current
educational programs, so that parents/guardians can provide input to the district on methods to
improve current programs and make informed decisions regarding their children's education.
(Education Code 48302)

The process for student transfers into the district under the school district of choice program,
including, but not limited to, any applicable form, the timeline for a transfer, and an explanation of
the selection process, shall be posted on the district's website. (Education Code 48301)

Parents/guardians shall submit applications for interdistrict attendance to the district office before
January 1 of the school year preceding the school year for which the student is requesting to be
transferred. The application deadline may be waived upon agreement between the district and the
student's district of residence. (Education Code 48308)

The application deadline shall not apply to an application requesting a transfer if the
parent/guardian with whom the student resides is enlisted in the military and was relocated by the
military within 90 days prior to submitting the application. (Education Code 48308)

| CSBA NOTE: Pursuant to Education Code 48308, as amended by SB 897, a school district of choice
is required to notify a district of residence, no later than January 15, of the number and names of
students from the district of residence, by school and grade level, requesting to be transferred for
the following school vear.

No later than January 15 of each vear, the Superintendent or designee shall notify the district of
residence of the number and names of students from the district of residence, by school and grade

' CSBA NOTE: Pursuant to Education Code 48305, if the district chooses to use existing entrance |
criteria for specialized schools or programs, then the criteria mustis required to be uniformly |
applied. The following optional paragraph is for use by districts that choose to use existing entrance ‘
criteria.

Any existing entrance criteria for specialized schools or programs shall be uniformly applied to all
applicants. (Education Code 48305)

CSBA NOTE: Pursuant t_o_ Education Code 48303, a school district of choice may reject the transfer
of a student if the transfer of that student would require the district to create a new program to

| serve that student, except that a district of choice may not reject the transfer of a student with a
disability, an English learner, or, as amended by SB 897, a foster youth, or student experiencing
homelessness.

83




The district may denyreject a transfer into the district under the school district of choice program if
the transfer would require the district to create a new program to serve that student, except that
the district shall not reject the transfer of a student with disabilities e¥, an English learner, a foster
youth, or a student experiencing homelessness. (Education Code 48303)

Whenever the number of transfer applications exceeds the number of interdistrict transfers that
may be accepted as annually determined by the Governing Board, students accepted for transfer
shall be selected by a random drawing held in public at a regularly scheduled Board meeting before
February 15 of the school year preceding the school year for which the transfer is sought.
(Education Code 48301)

Priority for transfer under the school district of choice program shall be granted as follows:
(Education Code 48306)

1. First priority shall be given to siblings of students already in attendance in the district:

| CSBA NOTE: Pursuant to Education Code 48306, as amended by SB 897, second priority for
 transfer under the school district of choice program is expanded to include foster youth and
| students experiencing homelessness

2. Second priority shall be given to students eligible for free or reduced-price meals:, foster
youth, and students experiencing homelessness

3. Third priority shall be given to children of military personnel:

No later than February 15 of the school year preceding the school year for which the student is
requesting to be transferred, the Superintendent or designee shall notify the parent/guardian in
writing whether the application has been provisionally accepted or rejected or of the student's
position on any waiting list. (Education Code 48308)

If a student's application for transfer is accepted, the Superintendent or designee shall so notify the
student's district of residence no later than February 15 of the school year preceding the school
year for which the student is requesting to be transferred. (Education Code 48308)

The number of students accepted for transfer into the district, by school and grade level, shall be
reported to the district of residence on or before February 15. (Education Code 48308)

| CSBA NOTE: Education Code 48308, as amended by SB 897, expands the required notification to \
: parents/guardians when the number of students requesting to transfer exceeds the district’s ‘
| capacity to include that the number of students exceeds the specific school or program to which the

| student applied.




If a student's application is denied, the Superintendent or designee shall notify the student's
parents/guardians that the number of students requesting to transfer exceeded the district's
capacity, or the specific school or program to which the student applied, and that the student was
not selected during the random drawing. Such determination shall be accurately recorded in the
minutes of the Board meeting at which the determination was made. (Education Code 48308)

For a student whose parent/guardian was relocated by the military less than 90 days prior to the
submission of the application, the district shall make a final decision to accept or reject the
application within 90 days of its receipt. If the student's application has been submitted less than 90
days prior to the beginning of the school year, then the district shall accept or deny the application
before the school year begins. Upon acceptance, the student may immediately enroll in a district
school. (Education Code 48308)

Vacancies may be filled from the waiting list until May 1 of the school year preceding the school
year for which students are requesting to be transferred. (Education Code 48308)

The final number of students enrolled in the district through the school district of choice program,
by school and grade level, along with the names of the students, shall be reported to the district of
residence on or before May 21. (Education Code 48308)

CSBA NOTE: Education Code 48307, as amended by SB 897, requires the district to respond to a
request from the county office of education (COE) to provide data regarding the number of students
transferring into the district in order for the COE to determine, when requested by a district of
residence with average daily attendance (ADA) of 50,000 or less, the percentage of students
transferring out of the district of residence for the duration of the program. If the district does not

student transfers under the district of choice program until the district complies with the request.

The Superintendent or designee shall, within 30 days, respond to any request by the county office
of education to provide data regarding the number of students transferring into the district.
(Education Code 48307)

Students admittedwho transfer into the district through the school district of choice program are
deemed to have fulfilled district residency requirements pursuant to Education Code 48204.
(Education Code 48301)

Final acceptance of the transfer is applicable for one school year and shall be renewed automatically
each year unless the Board, by adoption of a resolution, withdraws from participation in the
program and no longer accepts transfer students from other districts. (Education Code 48308)

CSBA NOTE: The fd%@iiﬁgiparagraph may be revised by districts that do not maintain high schools. ]

85




Even if the district withdraws from participation in the program, students who attended or received
a notice of acceptance into the district before the Board's resolution of withdrawal shall be
permitted to attend school in the district, and admitted high school students who transfer into the
district may continue attending school in the district until they graduate from high school.
(Education Code 48307, 48308)

The district may accept any completed coursework, attendance, and other academic progress
credited to an accepted student by any district(s) the student has previously attended and may grant
academic standing to the student based upon the district's evaluation of the student's academic
progress. (Education Code 48309)

The district may revoke a student's enrollment if the student is recommended for expulsion
pursuant to Education Code 48918. (Education Code 48309)

OPTION 2 ENDS HERE

Transfers Out of the District

CSBA NOTE: The following optional section is for use by all districts_.

A student whose parent/guardian is in active military duty shall not be prohibited from transferring
out of the district, provided the school district of proposed enrollment approves the application for
transfer. (Education Code 46600, 48307)

CSBA NOTE: Pursuant to Education Code 46600, the district eannétmy not prohibit a transfer out
of the district for a victim of bullying if the district has only one school offering the student's grade
level and thus is unable to grant an intradistrict transfer.

If the district is unable to provide an intradistrict transfer to a student who is a victim of an act of
bullying, as defined in Education Code 46600, the district shall not prohibit the student from
transferring out of the district if the district of proposed enrollment approves the application for
transfer. (Education Code 46600)

The district may limit transfers out of the district to a school district of choice under any of the
following circumstances: (Education Code 48307)

CSBA NOTE: EvenPursuant to Education Code 48307, as amended by SB 897, even if a district has
not designated itself as a school district of choice, it has the authority pursuant to Education Code
48307 to limit the number of students transferring out of the district into other districts that have
designated themselves as school districts of choice. A district with an ADA of more than 50,000
may annually limit the number of such transfers to one percent of its eurrent year estimated

86



| ABAADA for the first principal apportionment for the prior fiscal year. A district with an ADA of

' 50,000 or less may limit the number of such transfers to three percent of its eurrent estimated
ABAADA for the first principal apportionment for the prior fiscal year and may limit the maximum
number of such transfers for the duration of the program to 10 percent of the ADA for that period.
In Walnut Valley Unified School District v. Superior Court of Los Angeles County, the appellate court held
that the 10 percent cap on outbound transfers "for the duration of the program" should be based

- on the district's ADA over the entire life of the district of choice program (i.e., from the program's
inception in 1994 until the present day).

Education Code 48308, as amended by SB 897, requires the district of residence to. by no later
than February 15, notify the district of choice of the total number and names of students requesting
to be transferred that exceed the number of students for which the district of residence is
authorized to limit the transfer.

The district may revise ltem #1 to reflect the applicable percentage in Education Code 48307 based
on its ADA.

1. The number of student transfers out of the district to a school district of choice has reached
the limit specified in Education Code 48307 based on the district's average daily attendance:

CSBA NOTE: Education Code 48307, as amended by SB 897, expands the authorization for

| fiscal year if the most recent budget certification completed by the County Superintendent
| of Schools is a gualified status.

2. The County Superintendent of Schools has given the district a gualified or negative budget
certification or has determined that the district will not meet the state's standards and
criteria for fiscal stability in the subsequent fiscal year exclusively as a result of student
transfers from this district to a school district of choice-

- CSBA NOTE: Item #3 is optional and should be revised to reflect district practice. Education
Code 48307 authorizes the district to prohibit a transfer out of the district under the school
district of choice program if the Governing Board determines that the transfer would negatively

" impact a court-ordered desegregation plan, a voluntary desegregation plan, or the racial and

. ethnic balance of the district. Education Code 48307 provides that denial of transfers on the
basis of a voluntary desegregation plan or the racial and ethnic balance of the district must be
consistent with the constitutional provisions added by Proposition 209 in 1996 (California
Constitution, Article 1, Section 31). It is recommended that districts consult CSBA's District and

- County Office of Education Legal Services or district legal counsel before adopting policy to
allow denial of transfers on either of these bases.

87




3. The Board determines that the transfer would negatively impact any of the following:
(Education Code 48307)

a. A court-ordered desegregation plan

b. A voluntary desegregation plan of the district, consistent with the California
Constitution, Article 1, Section 31

c. The racial and ethnic balance of the district, consistent with the California
Constitution, Article 1, Section 31

Policy Reference UPDATE Service
Copyright 2025 by California School Boards Association, West Sacramento, California 95691
All rights reserved.

Policy Reference Disclaimer:

These references are not intended to be part of the policy itself, nor do they indicate the basis or authority for

the Governing Board to enact this policy. Instead, they are provided as additional resources for those

interested in the subject matter of the policy.

State Description

CA Constitution Article 1, Section 31 Nondiscrimination on the basis of race, sex, color, ethnicity, or
national origin

Ed. Code 200 Educational equity

Ed. Code 41020 Requirement for annual audit

Ed. Code 46600-46611 Interdistrict attendance agreements

Ed. Code 48204 Residency requirements for school attendance

Ed. Code 48300-48317 Student attendance alternatives; school district of choice
program

Ed. Code 48900 Grounds for suspension or expulsion

Ed. Code 48915 Expulsion; particular circumstances

Ed. Code 48915.1 Expelled individuals; enrollment in another district

Ed. Code 48918 Rules governing expulsion procedures

Ed. Code 48980 Parent/Guardian notifications

Ed. Code 48985 Notices to parents in language other than English

Ed. Code 52317 Regional Occupational Center/Program; enrollment of
students; interdistrict attendance

Ed. Code 8151 Apprentices; exemption from interdistrict attendance
agreement

88



Management Resources
Attorney General Opinion

Attorney General Opinion

Court Decision

Court Decision

Website
Website
Website

Code
1312.3

1312.3
1312.3-E(1)
1312.3-E(2)
3460

3460

3540

3541

3553

3553

5020

5020

5111

5111
51111
51111
5112.2
51131

B

i wEd v Pl

i

Description
84 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 198 (2001)

87 Ops.Cal. Atty.Gen. 132 (2004)

Walnut Valley Unified School District v. the Superior Court of

Los Angeles County {2011} 192 Cal.App.4th 234

Crawfo;'d v. Huntington Beach Union High School District

(2002) 98 Cal.App.4th 1275

C5BA District and County Office of Education Legal Services

California Department of Education

CSBA

¥

T Ta i

Description
Uniform Complaint Procedures

Uniform Coxmplaint Procedures

Uniform Coﬁplaint Procedures

" Uniform Complaint Procedures

Financial Reports And Accountability

Financial Reports And Accountability

Transportation

TransportatiBn Routes And Services
Free And Reduced Price Meals
Free And Reduced Price Meals
Parent Rights And Responsibilities
Parent Rights And Responsibilities
l\dmission

Admission

Distl:fct Residency
Distric‘E*Residency

Exclusions From Attendance

Chronic Absence And Truancy

89




5113.1
5113.12

5113.12

5116
5116.1
5116.1
5119 ~
5131.2
5131.2
5144.1
5144.1
5145.6
5145.6-E(1)
5148
5148
6146.3
6146.3
6173.1
6173.1
6173.2
6173.2
7160
7160
2000
9321
9321-E(1)
9321-E(2)

Chronic Absence And Truancy

District School Attendance Review Board
District School Attendance Review Board
SC;‘IOOI Attendance Boundaries
Intradistrict Open Enrollment

Intradistrict Open Enrollment

Students Expelled From Other Districts
Bullying

Bullying

Suspension And Expulsion/Due Process
Suspension And Expulsion/Due Process
Parent/Guardian Notifications
Parent/Guardian Notifications

Child Care And Development

Child Care And Development

Reciprocity Of Academic Credit

Rec?p rocits; Of Academic Credit

Education For Foster Youth

Education For Foster Youth

Education Of Children Of Military Families
Education Of Children Of Military Families

Charter School Facilities
Charter School Facilities

Role Of The Board
Closed Session
Closed Session

Closed Session

0



CSBA Sample District Policy Manual
CSBA Policy Management Console

Policy 5138: Conflict Resolution/Peer Mediation Status: ADOPTED

Original Adopted Date: 07/01/1999 | Last Revised Date: 11/01/2025 | Last Reviewed Date:
0711/01/49992025

CSBA NOTE: Research has indicatedindicates that school-based conflict resolution/peer mediation
{ER/PMY) programs effectively reduce violence and promote safe learning environments at sehool
sites: Sehoel distrietsschools. Districts that have integrated CRARPMconflict resolution/peer
mediation programs into existing disciplinary procedures have reported reductions in suspensions,
expulsions, and student-to-student conflict. i additien; CRAPMAdditionally, conflict
resolution/peer mediation programs can help to promote personal responsibility and citizenship
among students.

The following optional policy may be used by districts wishing to encourage the development of
ERAPMconflict resolution/peer mediation programs at the school site.

To promote student safety and contribute to the maintenance of a positive school climate, the
Governing Board encourages the development of school-based conflict resolution and peer
mediation programs designed to help students learn constructive ways of handling conflict. The
Board believes that such programs can reduce violence and promote communication, personal
responsibility, and problem-solving skills among students.

Conflict resolution strategies shalland peer mediation programs may be considered as part of each
school's comprehensive safety plan and incorporated into other district discipline procedures as
appropriate. Cenfliet reselution Such programs shall not supplant the authority of district staff to
take appropriate action as necessary to prevent violence, ensure student safety, maintain order in
the school, and institute disciplinary measures.

instructHon ASuch programs may incorporate peer mediation strategies in which selected student
volunteers are specifically trained to work with their peers in resolving conflicts. This training may
involve effective communication and listening, critical thinking, problem-solving processes, and the
use of negotiation to find mutually acceptable solutions. r additenAdditionally, the
edrriedtumtraining may address students'the ethical and social development of students, respect for
diversity, and interpersonal and behavioral skills:

are specially trained te weork with thel peers i reselving conflicts,

CSBA NOTE: Itis im;;ortant that students voluntarily enter the mediation process in order to secure
acceptance of the program. Confidentiality by all involved parties, including the program
coordinator, is essential in maintaining the integrity of the peer mediation program.

7&&%9‘551 participatienParticipation in arya peer mediation program by a student engaged in a
conflict shall be voluntary and kept confidential by all parties involved.

9




In developing a conflict resolution and/or peer mediation program, school-site teams shall address,
as appropriate:

1. The grade levels and courses in which the conflict resolution curriculum shall be delivered

2. Staff development related to the implementation of the curriculum and modeling of
appropriate behaviors and communication skills

3. The selection of peer mediators involving, to the extent possible, a cross-section of students
in terms of grade, gender, race, ethnicity, and socioeconomic status, and including some
students who exhibit negative leadership among peers

4. Training and support for peer mediators, including training in mediation processes and in the
skills related to understanding conflict, communicating effectively and listening

5. The process for identifying and referring students to the peer mediation program
6. The types of conflicts suitable for peer mediation

6-7.Expectation for confidentiality regarding who participated, what was discussed. and how any
conflict was resolved

7-8.Scheduling and location of peer mediation sessions
8:9.Methods of obtaining and recording agreement from all disputants

2:10. The appropriate involvement of parents/guardians, the community, and staff,
including counseling/guidance and security staff

10:11. Communications to students, parents/guardians, and staff regarding the availability
of the program

1112, Methods of following up with students to determine the effectiveness of the process
3213, Development of assessment tools to periodically evaluate the success of the
program including, but not limited to, measurements of whether there has been a reduction

in violence at the school and whether the school's suspension rates have fallen since the
program has been introduced

14. Selection of and reguirements to train as peer mediators

Policy Reference UPDATE Service

Copyright 2025 by California School Boards Association, West Sacramento, California 95691

All rights reserved.

Policy Reference Disclaimer:

These references are not intended to be part of the policy itself, nor do they indicate the basis or authority for
the Governing Board to enact this policy. Instead, they are provided as additional resources for those
interested in the subject matter of the policy.

92



State
CA Constitution Article 1, Section 28

Ed. Code 32280-32289.5
Ed. Code 32295.5

Ed. Code 35291-35291.5
Ed. Code 44807

Ed. Code 51240

Management Resources

Court Decision
Court Decision
Website
Website

Website

Cross References

Code
0450

0450
1313
3515
3515
4131
4231
5116.2
5125
5125
213l
5131.1
5131.1
5131.2

Description
Right to Safe Seheelssafe schools

School safety plans

Teen court programs

Rules

Teachers' duty concerning conduct of students

Excuse from instruction due to religious beliefs

Description
Mahmoud v. Taylor (2025) 606 U.S. (2025 WL 1773627)

S.E. v Grey 782 F.Supp.3d 239 (S5.D. Cal 2025)

CSBA District and County Office of Education Legal Services
California Department of Education, Safe Schools

(https:/www.ed.gov/about/ed-offices/oese/safe-supportive-

schools)

U.S. Department of Education; Office of Safe and Healthy
Students

Description
Comprehensive Safety Plan

Comprehensive Safety Plan
Civility

Campus Security

Campus Security

Staff Development

Staff Development
Involuntary Student Transfers
Student Records

Student Records

Conduct

Bus Conduct

Bus Conduct

Bullying

93




5131.2
5131.4
5131.4
5131.5
5131.7
51317
5136
5136
5137
5141.52
5141.52
5142
5142
5144
5144
5144.1
5144.1
5144.2

5145.3
5145.3
5145.7
5145.7
5145.9
6141.2
6142.8
6142.8
6143

6143

6164.2
6173.1
6173.1

Bullying

Student Disturbances

Student Disturbances

Vandalism And Graffiti

Weapons And Dangerous Instruments
Weapons And Dangerous Instruments
Gangs

Gangs

Positive School Climate

Suicide Prevention

Suicide Prevention

Safety

Safety

Discipline

Discipline

Suspension And Expulsion/Due Process
Suspension And Expulsion/Due Process

Suspension And Expulsion/Due Process (Students With
Disabilities)

Nondiscrimination/Harassment
Nondiscrimination/Harassment
Sexual Harassment

Sexual Harassment
Hate-Motivated Behavior

Recognition of Religious Beliefs and Practices

Comprehensive Health Education
Comprehensive Health Education
Courses Of Study

Courses Of Study
Guidance/Counseling Services
Education For Foster Youth

Education For Foster Youth



Discussion/Action Item
Exhibit: V6
. Date: 1.13.26
SAN PASQUAL VALLEY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

TITLE:

The Superintendent recommends approval of updated CSBA Recommend policies and
procedures Section 6000: Board Policy/Administrative Regulation 6020 Parent Involvement,
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation 6143 Courses of Study, Board Policy/Administrative
Regulation/Exhibit 6146.2 Certificate of Proficiency/High School Equivalency

EXPLANATORY STATEMENT:

Board Policy 6020 - Parent Involvement

Policy updated to reference the U.S. Department of Education's June 2025 Dear Colleague Letter which
provides school choice guidance and explains how states can use federal funds to both expand education .
choice and turn around underperforming schools. Additionally, policy updated to ensure compliance with
the California Department of Education's federal program monitoring instrument. In addition, policy
updated to add material related to the establishment and convening of a parent advisory committee (PAC)
and, as applicable, an English learner parent advisory committee (ELPAC), which was moved from the
accompanying administrative regulation, as it is more appropriately placed in Beard policy. Policy also
updated to add that the Superintendent or designee annually attend a regular meeting of the PAC or
ELPAC, if applicable. -

Administrative Regulation 6020 - Parent Involvement

Regulation updated to ensure compliance with the California Department of Education's Federal Program
Monitoring. Additionally, regulation updated to delete material related to the establishment and
convening of a parent advisory committee and, as applicable, an English learner parent advisory
committee, which was moved to the accotnpanying Board policy for more appropriate placement. In
addition, regulation updated to include that (1) the district may utilize department leaders and district
instructional coaches to provide parent/guardian training on topics that include, English language
development, state academic standards and assessments, and specific strategies to support the student in
the home, and (2) the Superintendent or designee may utilize professional development sessions to train
teachers, administrators, and staff on ways to effectively engage parents/guardians, with each school site
sharing best practices that others may learn from.

Board Policy 6143 - Courses of Study

Policy updated to clarify, in accordance with various provisions of state and federal law and related court
cases, the actual or perceived characteristics of an individual or group that may serve as a basis for
uniawful discrimination in education programs and activities, and reflect NEW LAW (SB 1137, 2024)
which provides that prohibited discrimination includes discrimination not just because of one protected
class under state law, but also because of the combination of two or more protected bases. Additionally,
policy updated to clarify that the Governing Board adopt a course of study for elementary and secondary
grades that, in addition to preparing students for the next level of study and/or employment, includes all
required instructional content. In addition, policy updated to reflect NEW COURT DECISION
(Mahmoud v. Taylor) which held that the First Amendment prohibited a district from including lesbian,
gay, bisexual, transgender, queer, and questioning (LGBTQ+) storybooks as part of elementary school
instruction without providing parents/guardians with notice and the ability to opt their students out of that
instructional content on the grounds that the storybooks substantially interfered with the religious
development of their children.

Administrative Regulation 6143 - Courses of Study

Regulation updated to include, in the courses of study for grades 1-6 (1) instruction in cursive and joined
italics, (2) Spanish colonization of California and the Gold Rush Era, including the treatment and
perspectives of Native Americans during those periods, as required by NEW LAW (AB 1821, 2024), (3)
the causes and effects of climate change and the methods to mitigate climate change, and (4) prenatal care
for pregnant women. Additionally, regulation updated to include, in the courses of study for grades 7-12
(1) personal financial literacy, as required by NEW LAW (AB 1871, 2024), (2) to the extent instruction
is provided on the Spanish colonization of California or the Gold Rush Era, the treatment and
perspectives of Native Americans during those periods, as required by NEW LAW (AB 1821 (2024), (3)




the causes and effects of climate change and the methods to mitigate and adapt to climate change, (4)
starting with the 2026-27 school year for districts that require a course in health education for high school
graduation, the dangers associated with fentany! use, as required by NEW LAW (AB 2429, 2024), and
(5) commencing in the 2027-28 school year, a one-semester course in personal finance. In addition,
regulation updated to add how a one-semester course in Ethnic studies may be fulfilled. Regulation also
updated to reflect NEW LAW (SB 153, 2024) which (1) requires at the beginning of each school year,
the Superintendent to provide written notice to parents/guardians of students in grades 9-12 that includes
a separate and distinct disclosure that data may be shared with the California College Guidance Initiative
(CCGI) to provide students and their parents/guardians with direct access to online tools and resources for
college and career planning, and contact information for the CaliforniaColleges.edu platform in order to
access resources that help students and their parents/guardians learn about college admissions
requirements, and (2) requires districts to advise each student in grade 11 to complete the grade 11
financial aid lessons on the CCGI's CaliforniaColleges.edu platform and submit student transcript
information to the CCGI for students in grades 9-12. Additionally, regulation updated to reflect NEW '
LAW (AB 2165, 2024) which requires a district to provide the student and the student's parent/guardian
with specified information before being exempted from the requirement to complete a Free Application
for Federal Student Aid and/or the California Dream Act Application. In addition, regulation updated to
reflect NEW LAW (AB 123, 2025} which requires a district to provide each student in grade 12, and if _
applicable, the student's parent/guardian, with information about, and potential eligibility for, the .
California Kids Investment and Development Savings Programi.

Delete - Board Policy 6146.2 - Certificate of Proficiency/High School Equivalency

Policy deleted as unnecessary as the requirements stated within vest with the California Department of
Education and/or the State Board of Education rather than being the obligation of a school district.
Administrative Regulation 6146.2 - Certificate of Proficiency/High School Equivalency

Regulation updated to reflect the name change from the California High School Proficiency Examination
to the California Proficiency Program. Additionally, regulation updated to align language with guidance
on the California Department of Education's, "California Proficiency Program," webpage. In addition,
regulation updated to delete criteria related to a repealed state regulation and instead align with state law.
Exhibit(1) 6146.2 - Certificate of Proficiency/High School Equivalency

Exhibit updated in conjunction with the accompanying Board policy and administrative regulation,
including reflecting the name change from the California High School Proficiency Examination to the
California Proficiency Program.

STAFF MEMBERS INVOLVED:

Karen Medel, EAS an:i Richard Cordero, Superintendent

FISCAL IMPACT:

None '

SOURCE OF FUNDING:

N/A

RECOMMENDED ACTION:

Approve updated CSBA Recommend policies and procedures Section 6000: Board
Policy/Administrative Regulation 6020 Parent Involvement, Board Policy/Administrative
Regulation 6143 Courses of Study, Board Policy/Administrative Regulation/Exhibit 6146.2
Certificate of Proficiency/High School Equivalency

PREPARED AND SUBMITTED BY:

Karen Medel, Executive Assistant to the Superintendent

REVIEWED BY:

Richard Cordero, M.Ed.,Superintendent




CSBA Sample District Policy Manual
CSBA Policy Management Console

Policy 6020: Parent Involvement Status: ADOPTED

Original Adopted Date: 06/01/1996 | Last Revised Date: 0511/01/20202025 | Last Reviewed
Date: 0511/01/20202025

CSBA NOTE: Education Code 11503 and 20 USC 6318 mandate each district receiving federal Title
I, Part A, funds to have a written parent/guardian and family engagement policy developed jointly
with and agreed upon by parents/guardians and family members of participating students.
Education Code 11504 mandates districts to adopt a policy on parent/guardian involvement
applicable to each school that does not receive Title | funds. The following policy and accompanying
administrative regulation contain language satisfying both mandates and should be revised to
reflect whether the district practiee: receives Title | funds.

In addifienAdditionally, Education Code 51101 mandates policy for all districts addressing the
manner in which parents/guardians, school staff, and students may share responsibility for
continuing the intellectual, physical, emotional, and social development and well-being of students;
see BP/AR 5020 - Parent Rights and Responsibilities for language fulfilling this mandate.

The U.S. Department of Education’s June 2025 Dear Colleague Letter provides school choice
guidance and explains how states can use federal funds to both expand education choice and turn
around underperforming schools. The letter provides specific examples of ways in which districts
can offer choice to enable parents/guardians to make decisions that best meet the educational
needs of their student, such as offering a range of activities from which parents/guardians are able
to choose, dual enrollment opportunities, academic tutoring programs, and career and technical
education activities. Additionally, districts may, unless any part of Title | allocations are reserved for
public school choice, use Elementary and Secondary Education Act funds for any activity that it
determines will help a school identified for comprehensive support and improvement, targeted
support and improvement due to consistently underperforming subgroups, and additional targeted
support and improvement to improve student outcomes, such as offering public school choice as
part of its support and improvement plan and providing parents/guardians with information about
such choice.

For best practices in implementing parent/guardian and family engagement programs, see the
California Department of Education's , “Family Engagement Framework: A Tool for California School
Districts:.”

The Governing Board recognizes that parents/guardians are their children's first and most influential
teachers and that sustained parent/guardian involvement in the education of their children
contributes greatly to student achievement and a positive school environment.

The Superintendent or designee shall work with parents/guardians and family members to jointly
develop and agree upon policy and strategies teimplement this policy, and the programs established
by this policy, and to propose revisions to this policy, as needed. Additionally, the Superintendent or
designee shall meaningfully involve parents/guardians and family members in district and school
activities at all grade levels; advisory, decision-making, and advocacy roles; and activities to support
learning at home. (Education Code 11500-11504, 51101; 20 USC 6318)

96




6184 - Continuation Education

6184 : Continuation Education

95



Parents/guardians shall be notified of their rights to be informed about and to participate in their
children's education and of the opportunities available te them te de sefor them to do so, in
accordance with Board Policy/Administrative Regulation 5020 - Parents Rights and Responsibilities.

The district's local control and accountability plan (LCAP) shall include goals and strategies for
parent/guardian involvement and family engagement, including district efforts to seek
parent/guardian input in district and school site decision making and to promote parent/guardian
participation in programs for English learners, foster youth, students eligible for free and reduced-
price meals, and students with disabilities. (Education Code 42238.02, 52060)

The Board shall establish and convene a parent advisory committee (PAC), and, as applicable, an
English learner parent advisory committee (ELPAC) to review and comment on the LCAP, in
accordance Board Policy 0460 - Local Control and Accountability Plan, including the use of federal
funds and how funds will be allocated for parent/guardian involvement activities as well as activities
related to increasing student achievement.

The Superintendent or designee shall regularly evaluate and report to the Board on the
effectiveness of the district's parent/guardian and family engagement efforts, including, but not
limited to, input from parents/guardians, family members, and school staff on the adequacy of
parent/guardian involvement opportunities and on barriers that may inhibit participation.

Title | Schools

CSBA NOTE: The following section is for use by districts that receive Title | funds. 20 USC 6318
mandates that such districts develop, jointly with parents/guardians and family members of
participating students, policy which establishes expectations and objectives for meaningful
parent/guardian and family involvement and describes how the district will address specified
components. See the accompanying administrative regulation for the required components and
optional strategies for addressing each component.

State law (Education Code 11503) also mandates procedures to ensure that parents/guardians are
consulted and participate in the planning, design, implementation, and evaluation of the Title |
parent/guardian and family engagement program.

The Superintendent or designee shall involve parents/guardians and family members in establishing
district expectations and objectives for meaningful parent/guardian and family engagement in
schools supported by Title | funding;; developing strategies that describe how the district will carry
out each activity listed in 20 USC 6318; as contained in the accompanying administrative
regulation;; and implementing and evaluating such programs, activities, and procedures. The
Superintendent or designee shall implement these obligations in accordance with the accompanying
administrative regulation. As appropriate, the Superintendent or designee shall conduct outreach to
all parents/guardians and family members. (Education Code 11503; 20 USC 6318)

CSBA NOTE: The following paragraph is for use by districts ihat receive more than $500,000 in
Title |, Part A funding. Pursuant to 20 USC 6318, the Governing Board mustis required to reserve at l

97




least one percent of the district's Title | funding to carry out parent/guardian and family
engagement activities, provided that one percent of the allocation received by the district totals
more than $5,000.

When the district's Title |, Part A allocation exceeds the amount specified in 20 USC 6318, the
Board shall reserve at least one percent of the funding to implement parent/guardian and family
engagement activities and shall distribute at least 90 percent of those reserved funds to eligible
schools, with priority given to high-need schools as defined in 20 USC 6631. The Superintendent or
designee shall involve parents/guardians and family members of participating students in decisions
regarding how the district's Title | funds will be allotted for parent/guardian and family engagement
activities. (20 USC 6318)

CSBA NOTE: 20 USC 6318 identifies allowable uses of the Title | funds reserved for
parent/guardian and family engagement, as provided below. These uses are consistent with the
activities that mustare required to be addressed in the district's parent/guardian and family
engagement policy, as described in the accompanying administrative regulatton

Expenditures of such funds shall be consistent with the activities specified in thls Board pollcy and
shall include at least one of the following: (20 USC 6318)

1. Support for schools and nonprofit organizations in providing professional development for
district and school staff regarding parent/guardian and family engagement strategies, which
may be provided jointly to teachers, principals, other school leaders, specialized instructional
support personnel, paraprofessionals, early childhood educators, and parents/guardians and
family members

2. Support for programs that reach parents/guardians and family members at home, in the
community, and at school

3. Dissemination of information on best practices focused on parent/guardian and family
engagement, especially best practices for increasing the engagement of economically
disadvantaged parents/guardians and family members

4. Collaboration, or the provision of subgrants to schools to enable collaboration, with
community-based or other organizations or employers with a record of success in improving
and increasing parent/guardian and family engagement

5. Any other activities and strategies that the district determines are appropriate and
consistent with this policy

[ CSBA NOTE The following paragraph is for use by districts that receive funds under federal Title IV
Part E (20 USC 7241- 7246}-L and should be deleted by districts that do not receive such funds.

lf éhe district also receives iends weer ﬁederal Fitle M Part E; talo coordmate and enhance family
engagement programs, the Superintendent or designee shall inform parents/guardians and
organizations of the existence of Title IV. (20 USC 6318)

CSBA NOTE: Pursuant to 20 USC 6318 the dlstrlct 3 parent/guardlan and family engagement pohcy
mustis required to be incorporated into the district's Title | LEA plan. In California, all the

98



requirements of the LEA plan are addressed in an addendum to the LEEAR: Seelocal control and
accountability plan (LCAP). For more information related to LCAP requirements, see BP 0460 - Local
Control and Accountability Plan.

The district's Board policy and administrative regulation containing parent/guardian and family
engagement strategies shall be incorporated into the district's LCAP in accordance with 20 USC
6312. (20 USC 6318)

The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that each school receiving Title | funds develops a
school-level parent/guardian and family engagement policy in accordance with 20 USC 6318.

District and school-level parent/guardian and family engagement policies and administrative
regulations shall be distributed to parents/guardians of students participating in Title | programs
and shall be available to the local community. Parents/guardians shall be notified of the policy in an
understandable and uniform format and, to the extent practicable, provided in a language the
parents/guardians can understand. (20 USC 6318)

As required by law, the Superintendent or designee shall annually attend a regular meeting of the
PAC or ELPAC, if applicable, to receive input and feedback on topics that support student
achievement and programs that reach parents/guardians and family members at home, in the
community, and at school. (20 USC 6318)

Non-Title | Schools

CSBA NOTE: The following section is for use by districts that do not receive any Title | funds or that
have one or more individual schools that do not receive Title | funds. Education Code 11504
mandates the Board to adopt a policy on parent/guardian involvement, applicable to each school
that does not receive Title | funds, that is consistent with the purposes and goals in Education Code
11502. See the accompanying administrative regulation for information about these goals and

that does not receive federal Title | funds to encourage the involvement and support of
parents/guardians in the education of their children, including, but not limited to, strategies
describing how the district and schools will address the purposes and goals described in Education
Code 11502. (Education Code 11504)

Policy Reference UPDATE Service

Copyright 2025 by California School Boards Association, West Sacramento, California 95691

All rights reserved.

Policy Reference Disclaimer:

These references are not intended to be part of the policy itself, nor do they indicate the basis or authority for

the Governing Board to enact this policy. Instead, they are provided as additional resources for those

interested in the subject matter of the policy.

State Description

5 CCR 18275 Child care and development programs; parent involvement
and education

Ed. Code 11500-11505 Programs to encourage parent/guardian involvement

99




Ed. Code 48985

Ed. Code 51101

Ed. Code 52060-52077
Ed. Code 54444.1-54444.2
Ed. Code 56190-56194
Ed. Code 64001

Lab. Code 230.8

Federal
20 USC 6311

20 USC 6312
20 USC 6314
20 USC 6318
20 USC 6631

28 CFR 35.104
28 CFR 35.160

Management Resources
California Department of Education
Publication

California Department of Education
Publication

Publicati

U.S. Department of Education
Publication

Website
Website

Website
Website
Website

Notices to parents/guardian in language other than English
Parents Rights Act of 2002

Local control and accountability plan

Parent advisory councils; services to migrant children
Community advisory committee; special education

School plan for student achievement; consolidated
application programs

Time off to visit child's school

Description
State plan

Local educational agency plan
Schoolwide programs
Parent/guardian and family engagement

Teacher and school leader incentive program; purposes and
definitions

Definitions, auxiliary aids and services
Effective communications for individuals with disabilities

Description
Family Engagement Framework: A Tool for California School
Districts, 2014

Title | School-Level Parental Involvement Policy

Parental involverment: Title | Part A, Non-Regulatory

Dear Colleague Letter: School Choice Guidance to States,
June 26, 2025

(https:/www.ed.gov/about/news/press-release/us-
department-of-education-issues-school-choice-guidance-
states-turning-around-failing-schools)

CSBA District and County Office of Education Legal Services

California Department of Education, Family, School,
Community Partnerships

California Parent Center
California State Parent Teacher Association

CSBA

100



Website National PTA

Website Parent Information and Resource Centers

Website Parents as Teachers National Center

Website U.S. Department of Education

Cross References t T . -,N: T o
Code : : Description

0000 Vision <
0100 Philosophy

0400 Comprehensive Plans

0410 Nondiscrimination In District Programs And Activities
0420 s School Plans/Site Councils

0420 School Plans/Site Councils

0430 Comprehensive Local Plan For Special Education
0430 Comprehensive Local Plan For Special Education
0450 Comprehensive Safety Plan

0450 Comprehensive Safety Plan

0460 Local Control And Accountability Plan

0460 Local Control And Accountability Plan

0500 Accountability

1000 Concepts And Roles

1100 » Communication With The Public

1113 District And School Websites

1113 District And School Websites

1113-E(1) District And School Websites

1114 District-Sponsored Social Media

1114 District-Sponsored Social Media

1220 E Citizen Advisory Committees

1220 Citizen Advisory Committees

1230 School-Connected Organizations

1230 School-Connected Organizations

1240 Volunteer Assistance

0o



1240 Volunteer Assistance

1250 . Visitors/Outsiders

1250 - , Visitors/Qutsiders

1260 Educational Foundation

1400 Relations Between Other Governmental Agencies And The
Schools

1700 Relations Between Private Industry And The Schools

2230 Representative And Deliberative Groups

3100 Budget

3100 Budget

3231 Impact Aid

3280 Sale Or Lease Of District-Owned Real Property

3280 Sale Or Lease Of District-Owned Real Property

4115 . Evaluation/Supervision

4115 Evaluation/Supervision

4131 Staff Development

4215 v Evaluation/Supervision

4231 v Staff Development

4315 "¢ Evaluation/Supervision -

4331 Staff Development !

5020 Parent Rights And Responsibilities

5020 " Parent Rights And Responsibilities

5030 Student Wellness

5113 ’ Absences And Excuses

5113 Absences And Excuses

5113.1 Chronic Absence And Truancy

5113.1 Chronic Absence And Truancy

5121 Grades/Evaluation Of Student Achievement

5121 Grades/Evaluation Of Student Achievement

5123 Promotion/Acceleration/Retention

5123 Promotion/Acceleration/Retention

5141.22 Infectious Diseases

102




5141.22
5142.2
5142.2
5145.6
5145.6-E(1)
5148
5148
5148.2
5148.2
5148.3
5148.3
6000
6011
6120
6142.6
6142.8
6142.8
6145
6145
6146.11
6146.11
6154
6161.1
6161.1
6161.1-E(1)
6162.5
6162.51
6162.51
6164.5
6164.5
6170.1

-

Infectious Diseases
Safe Routes To School Program
Safe Routes Jo School Program

Parent/Guardian Notifications

- Parent/Guardian Notifications

Child Care And Development

Child Care And Development

Before/After School Programs ;
Before/After School Programs

Preschool/Early Childhood Education
Preschool/Early Childhood Education

Concepts And Rales

Academic Standards

Response To Instruction And Intervention

Visual And Performing Arts Education
Comprehensive Health Education N
Comprehensive Health Education )
Extracurricular And Cocurricular Activities
Extracurricular And Cocurricular Activities

Alternative Credits Toward Graduation

" Alternative Credits Toward Graduation ~

Homework/Makeup Work

Selection And Evaluation Of Instructional Materials
Selection And Evaluation Of Instructional Materials
Selection And Evaluation Of Instructional Materials
Student Assessment

State Academic Achievement Tests

State Academic Achievement Tests

Student Success Teams

Student Success Teams

Transitional Kindergarten

103




6171
6171
6172
6172
6173.1
6173.1
6173.2
6173.2
6173.4
6174
6174
6175
6175
6177
6178
6178
6178.1
6178.1
6184
6184
9200
9310

Title | Programs
_Title | Programs
Gifted And Talented Student Program
Gifted And Talented Student Program

Education For Foster Youth

; Education For Foster Youth

Education Of Children Of Military Families
Education Of Children Of Military Families
Education For American Indian Students
Education For English Learners

Education For English Learners

. Migrant Education Program

Migrant Education Program
Summer Learning Programs

Career Technical Education

Career Technical Education
Work-Based Learning

Work-Based Learning
Continuation Education
Continuation Education

Limits Of Board Member Authority

Board Policies

104



CSBA Sample District Policy Manual
CSBA Policy Management Console

Regulation 6020: Parent Involvement Status: ADOPTED

Original Adopted Date: 08/01/2006 | Last Revised Date: 6511/01/26202025 | Last Reviewed
Date: 0511/01/20202025

CSBA NOTE: The following administrative regulation contains parent/guardian and family
engagement strategies that meet legal requirements applicable to districts and schools receiving
district should use and adapt the section(s) applicable to its circumstances. If desired, the district
may develop one set of strategies applicable to all schools, provided that all the provisions required
by law for both types of schools are included.

|
Rl B e i e T SET e N e s e = =5 |

District Strategies for Title | Schools

CSBA NOTE: The following section is for use by districts that receive Title |, Part A, funds. 20 USC
6318 mandates that such districts develop a policy, jointly with and agreed upon by
parents/guardians and family members of participating students, that describes the means by which
the district will address the components specified in itemsltems #1-6 below. Under each required
component below are optional strategies for addressing the component, which should be modified |
to reflect the specific strategies jointly developed by the district and the parents/guardians and }
family members of participating students. In the state's Federal Program Monitoring process, '
California Department of Education (CDE) staff will check to ensure that the district has identified |
such strategies. J|

To ensure that parents/guardians and family members of students participating in Title | programs
are provided with opportunities to be involved in their children's education, the district shall:

CSBA NOTE: Pursuant to 20 USC 6318, districts mustare required to involve parents/guardians and
family members in the development of the Title | local educational agency (LEA) plan described in
20 USC 6312: alse. For more information regarding Title | program requirements and LEA plans, see
BP 6171 - Title | Programs. In California, all the requirements of the LEA plan are addressed in an
addendum to the local control and accountability plan (LCAP). See BP 0460 - Local Control and
Accountability Plan for further information about the development of the LCAP, including
requirements for consultation with parents/guardians and other stakeholders and for the

1. Involve parents/guardians and family members in the joint development of a district plan
that meets the requirements of 20 USC 6312 and in the development of school support and
improvement plans pursuant to 20 USC 6311 (20 USC 6318)

The Superintendent or designee may:

a— ln accordance with Education Code 52063 establish a district-level parent advisery
committee and; as applicable; an English learner parent advisory committee to review
and comment on the district's local control and accountability plan (LCAPR} in

105




accordance with the review schedule established by the Geverning Board

b: a. Invite input on the plan from other district committees and school site
councils
& b Communicate with parents/guardians through the district newsletter, web

sitewebsite, or other methods regarding the plan and the opportunity to provide input

d c Provide copies of working drafts of the plan to parents/guardians in an
understandable and uniform format and, to the extent practicable, in a language the
parents/guardians can understand

e d. Ensure that there is an opportunity at a public Governing Board meeting for
public comment on the plan prior to the Board's approval of the plan or revisions to the
plan

£ e Ensure that school-level policies on parent/guardian and family engagement

address the role of school site councils and other parents/guardians as appropriate in the
development and review of school plans

2. Provide coordination, technical assistance, and other support necessary to assist and build
the capacity of Title | schools in planning and implementing effective parent/guardian and family
engagement activities to improve student academic achievement and school performance,
which may include meaningful consultation with employers, business leaders, and philanthropic
organizations or individuals with expertise in effectively engaging parents/guardians and family
members in education (20 USC 6318)

The Superintendent or designee may:

a. Assign district personnel to serve as a liaison to the schools regarding Title |
parent/guardian and family engagement issues

b. Identify funding and other resources, including community resources and services,
that may be used to strengthen district and school parent/guardian and family
engagement programs

c. Provide training for the principal or designee of each participating school regarding
Title | requirements for parent/guardian and family engagement, leadership strategies,
and communication skills to assist in facilitating the planning and implementation of
related activities

d. With the assistance of parents/guardians, provide information and training to
teachers and other staff regarding effective parent/guardian involvement practices and
legal requirements

106



e. Provide information to schools about the indicators and assessment tools that will be
used to monitor progress

1

3. To the extent feasible and appropriate, coordinate and integrate Title | parent/guardian and
family engagement strategies with parent/guardian and family engagement strategies of other
relevant federal, state, and local programs and ensure consistency with federal, state, and local
laws (20 USC 6318)

The Superintendent or designee may:

LY

a, ldentify overlapping or similar program requirements

~ + *
b. Involve district and school site representatives from other programs to assist in
identifying specific population needs

¢. Schedule joint meetings with representatives from related programs and share data
and information across programs

¥

d. Develop acohesive, coordinated plan focused on student needs and shared goals

4. Conduct, with meaningful involvement of parents/guardians and family members, an annual
evaluation of the content and effectiveness of the parent/guardian and family engagement
policy in improving the academic quality of the schools served by Title |, including identification
of; (20 USC 6318)
3 . .
a. Barriers to greater participation in parent/guardian and family engagement activities,
with particular attention to parents/guardians who are economically disadvantaged, are
disabled, have limited English proficiency, have limited literacy, or are of any racial or
ethnic minority background

¥

\J Al
b. The needs of parents/guardians and family members, so they can better assist with
their children's learning and engage with school personnel and teachers

c. Strategies to support successful school and family interactions

The Superintendent or designee may: .
a. Use a variety of methods, such as focus groups, surveys, and workshops, to evaluate
the satisfaction of parents/guardians and staff with the quality and frequency of
district. communications

b. Gather and monitor data regarding the number of parents/guardians and family

members participating in district activities and the types of activities in which they are
engaged

07




c. Recommend to the Board measures to evaluate the impact of the district's
parent/guardian and family engagement efforts on student achievement

CSBA NOTE: Although it is not mandated to be included in the district's policy or regu_lat_ion. the
following paragraph reflects a legal requirement of Education Code 11503 pertaining to evaluation
of the district's parent/guardian involvement efforts.

The Superintendent or designee shall notify parents/gl]aaians of this review and assessment
through regular school communications mechanisms and shall provide a copy of the
assessment to parents/guardians upon their request. (Education Code 11503)

5. Use the findings of the evaluation conducted pursuant to itemltem #4 above to design
evidence-based strategies for more effective parent/guardian and family involvement and, if
necessary, to revise the parent/guardian and family engagement policy (20 USC 6318)

The Superintendent or designee may:

a. Analyze data from the evaluation to identify parent/guardian and family engagement
activities that have been successful and those activities that have had lower
participation or less meaningful involvement by parents/guardians

b. Analyze parent/guardian and family participation to determine the level of
participation by traditionally underrepresented groups

c. With the involvement of parents/guardians, recommend and draft proposed policy
revisions to submit to the Board for consideration

6. Involve parents/guardians in the activities of schools served by Title |, which may include
establishing a parent advisory board comprised of a sufficient number and representative
group of parents/guardians or family members served by the district to adequately represent
the needs of the population served by the district for the purposes of developing, revising,
and reviewing the parent/guardian and family engagement policy (20 USC 6318)

The Superintendent or designee may:

a. Include information about school activities in district communications to
parents/guardians and family members

b. To the extent practicable, assist schools with translation services or other
accommodations needed to encourage participation of parents/guardians and family
members

c. Establish processes to encourage parent/guardian input regarding their expectations
and concerns for their children

108



I addiienAdditionally, the district shall promote the effective involvement of parents/guardians
and support a partnership among the school, parents/guardians, and the community to improve
student achievement by implementing the actions specified in itemltem #7 of the seetien "School-
Level Policies for Title | Schools”" below. (20 USC 6318)

School-Level Policies for Title | Schools

CSBA NOTE: The following section is for use by districts that receive federal Title |, Part A funds. 20
USC 6318 requires that each individual school receiving Title | funds have a written parent/guardian
and family engagement policy, developed jointly with and agreed upon by parents/guardians and
family members of participating students, that describes the means for carrying out the
requirements of 20 USC 6318(c) through (f), reflected in iemsitems #1-8 below. The following
section lists the required components but does not include specific strategies since those should be
added by each school. Schools may also use a template available on the web site of the Califernia
Department of Education; CDE's website, “Title | School-Level Parental Involvement Policy;,” to
develop the school-level policy.

At each school receiving Title | funds, a written policy on parent/guardian and family engagement
shall be developed jointly with the parents/guardians and family members of participating students.
The school policy shall describe the means by which the school will: (20 USC 6318)

1. Convene an annual meeting, at a convenient time, to which all parents/guardians of
participating students shall be invited and encouraged to attend, in order to inform
parents/guardians of their school's participation in Title | and to explain Title | requirements
and the right of parents/guardians to be involved

2. Offer a flexible number of meetings, such as meetings in the morning or evening, for which
related transportation, child care, and/or home visits may be provided as such services relate
to parent/guardian involvement

CSBA NOTE: As provided in itemitem #3 below, 20 USC 6318 requires parent/guardian
involvement in the development of the comprehensive plan required by 20 USC 6314 for
schoolwide programs. Ynader state law {Education Code 6400464001 requires that this plan must
be incorporated into the school plan for student achievement (SPSA) covering all categorical
pragrams in the state's consolidated application:. For further information about the development of
this plan, see AR 6171 - Title | Programs and BP/AR 0420 - School Plans/Site Councils fer further
infermation about the development of this plan.

3. Involve parents/guardians in an organized, ongoing, and timely way in the planning, review,
and improvement of Title | programs, including the planning, review, and improvement of
the school's parent/guardian and family engagement policy and, if applicable, the joint
development of the plan for schoolwide programs pursuant to 20 USC 6314

The school may use an existing process for involving parents/guardians in the joint planning
and design of the school's programs provided that the process includes adequate
representation of parents/guardians of participating students.

4, Provide the parents/guardians of participating students all of the following:

109




a.

Timely information about Title | programs

b. A description and explanation of the school's curriculum, forms of academic

assessment used to measure student progress, and the achievement levels of the
state academic standards

If requested by parents/guardians, opportunities for regular meetings to formulate
suggestions and to participate, as appropriate, in decisions related to their children's
education. The district shall respond to any such suggestions as soon as practicably
possible.

5. If the schoolwide program plan is not satisfactory to the parents/guardians of participating
students, submit any parent/guardian comments when the school makes the plan available
to the district

CSBA NOTE: 20 USC 6318 requires Title | schools to develop a school-parent compact as pr_ovi_déd
in #emltem #6 below. U.S. Department of Education non-regulatory guidance, “Parental

Involvement: Title |, Part A;,” provides a sample template that schools may use in the development
of the school-parent compact.

6. Jointly develop with the parents/guardians of participating students a school-parent
compact that outlines how parents/guardians, the entire school staff, and students will share
responsibility for improved student academic achievement and the means by which the
school and parents/guardians will build a partnership to help students achieve state
standards

This compact shall address:

a.

€.

The school's responsibility to provide high-quality curriculum and instruction in a
supportive and effective learning environment that enables participating students to
achieve the state's challenging academic achievement standards

Ways in which parents/guardians will be responsible for supporting their children's
learning, volunteering in the classroom, and participating, as appropriate, in decisions
related to their children's education and the positive use of extracurricular time

The importance of communication between teachers and parents/guardians on an
ongoing basis through, at a minimum:

i. Parent-teacher conferences in elementary schools, at least annually, during
which the compact shall be discussed as it relates to the student's
achievement

ii. Frequent reports to parents/guardians on their children's progress

110



iii. Reasonable access to staff, opportunities to volunteer and participate in their
child's classroom, and observation of classroom activities

iv. Regular two-way, meaningful communication between family members and
school staff, and, to the extent practicable, in a language that family members
can understand

7. Promote the effective involvement of parents/guardians and support a partnership among
the school, parents/guardians, and the community to improve student achievement through
the following actions:

a. Assist parents/guardians, as appropriate, in understanding such topics as the state
academic standards, state and local academic assessments, the requirements of Title
I, and how to monitor a child's progress and work with educators to improve the
achievement of their children

b. Provide parents/guardians with materials and training, such as literacy training and
using technology (including education about the harms of copyright piracy), as
appropriate, to help them work with their children to improve their children's
achievement

c. With the assistance of parents/guardians, educate teachers, specialized instructional
support personnel, principals and other school leaders, and other staff, in the value
and utility of parent/guardian contributions and in how to reach out to, communicate
with, and work with parents/guardians as equal partners, implement and coordinate
parent/guardian programs, and build ties between parents/guardians and the schools

d. To the extent feasible and appropriate, coordinate and integrate parent/guardian
involvement programs and activities with other federal, state, and local programs,
including public preschool programs, and conduct other activities, such as parent
resource centers, that encourage and support parents/guardians in fully participating
in their children's education

e. Ensure that information related to school and parent/guardian programs, meetings,
and other activities is sent to the parents/guardians of participating students in a
format and, to the extent practicable, in a language the parents/guardians can
understand

f. Provide other such reasonable support for parent/guardian involvement activities as
parents/guardians may request

CSBA NOTE: Items #7a-q below are optional and should be revised to reflect district practice. ltems
| #7a-h are authorized, but not required, by 20 USC 6318.

In addition, the school plan may include strategies to:

11




Involve parents/guardians in the development of training for teachers,
principals, and other educators to improve the effectiveness of such training

Provide necessary literacy training, using Title | funds if the district has
exhausted all other reasonably available sources of funding for such training

Pay reasonable and necessary expenses associated with parent/guardian
involvement activities, including transportation and child care costs, to
enable parents/guardians to participate in school-related meetings and
training sessions

Train parents/guardians to enhance the involvement of other
parents/guardians

Arrange school meetings at a variety of times or, when parents/guardians are
unable to attend such conferences, conduct in-home conferences between
parents/guardians and teachers or other educators who work directly with
participating students, in order to maximize parent/guardian involvement and
participation

Adopt and implement model approaches to improving parent/guardian
involvement

Establish a parent advisory council to provide advice on all matters related to
parent/guardian involvement in Title | programs

Develop appropriate roles for community-based organizations and
businesses in parent/guardian involvement activities

Make referrals to community agencies and organizations that offer literacy
training, parent/guardian education programs, and/or other services that help
to improve the conditions of parents/guardians and families

Provide a master calendar of district/school activities and meetings

Provide information about opportunities for parent/guardian and family
engagement through the district newsletter, web sitewebsite, or other
written or electronic means

Engage parent-teacher organizations to actively seek out and involve
parents/guardians through regular communication updates and information
sessions

112



m. To the extent practicable, provide translation services at school sites and at
meetings involving parents/guardians and family members as needed

n. Provide training and information to members of district and school site
councils and advisory committees to help them fulfill their functions

o. Provide ongoing workshops to assist school site staff, parents/guardians, and
family members in planning and implementing improvement strategies, and
seek their input in developing the workshops

p. Regularly evaluate the effectiveness of staff development activities related to
parent/guardian and family engagement

g. Include expectations for parent/guardian outreach and involvement in staff
job descriptions and evaluations

8. To the extent practicable, provide opportunities for the informed participation of
parents/guardians and family members (including parents/guardians and family members
with limited English proficiency, parents/guardians and family members with disabilities, and
parents/guardians and family members of migrant children), including providing information
and school reports required under 20 USC 6311(h) in a format and language such
parents/guardians can understand

If the school has a parent involvement policy that applies to all parents/guardians, it may amend
that policy to meet the above requirements. (20 USC 6318)

CSBA NOTE: The following paragraph is optional. Education Code 64001 requires that the seheel
plan for student achievementSPSA covering the categorical programs in the state's consolidated
application, including Title | schoolwide programs, be annually reviewed by the school site council
and submitted to the Governing Board for approval:. For more information regarding SPSAs and
school site councils, see BP/AR 0420 - School Plans/Site Councils.

Each school receiving Title | funds shall annually evaluate the effectiveness 6f its parent/guardian
and family engagement policy. Such evaluation may be conducted during the process of reviewing
the school plan for student achievement in accordance with Education Code 64001.

The school's policy shall be periodically updated to meet the changing needs of parents/guardians
and the school. (20 USC 6318)

District Strategies for Non-Title | Schools

CSBA NOTE: The following section is for use by districts that do not receive any Title | funds or that
have one or more individual schools that do not receive Title | funds. Education Code 11504
mandates the Board to adopt a policy on parent/guardian involvement, applicable to each school
that does not receive Title | funds, that is consistent with the purposes and goals in Education Code
11502, as reflected in itemsltems #1-5 below. Subitems under itemsltems #1-5 are optional
 strategies for carrying out the legal requirement and should be revised to reflect district practice.

113




The district may instead develop one administrative regulation applicable to both Title | and non-
Title | schools, provided it meets the requirements below and in the sections above.

For each school that does not receive federal Title | funds, the Superintendent or designee shall, at a
minimum:

1. Engage parents/guardians and family members positively in their children's education by
providing assistance and training on topics such as state academic standards and
assessments to increase their knowledge and skills to use at home to support their children's
academic efforts at school and their children's development as responsible members of
society (Education Code 11502, 11504)

The Superiptendent or desienee fay:

The district may utilize department leaders and district instructional coaches to provide
parent/guardian training on topics that include, English language development, state
academic standards and assessments, and specific strategies to support the student in the
home.

he Superintendent or designee may:

a. Provide or make referrals to literacy training and/or parent education programs
designed to improve the skills of parents/guardians and enhance their ability to
support their children's education

b. Provide information, in parent handbooks and through other appropriate means,
regarding academic expectations and resources to assist with the subject matter

¢. Provide parents/guardians with information about students' class assignments and
homework assignments

2. Inform parents/guardians that they can directly affect the success of their children's learning,
by providing them with techniques and strategies that they may use to improve their
children's academic success and to assist their children in learning at home (Education Code
11502, 11504)

The Superintendent or designee may:

a. Provide parents/guardians with information regarding ways to create an effective
study environment for their children at home and to encourage good study habits

b. Encourage parents/guardians to monitor their children's school attendance,
homework completion, and television viewing

c. Encourage parents/guardians to volunteer in their child's classroom and to
participate in school advisory committees

114



3. Build consistent and effective two-way communication between the home and school so
that parents/guardians and family members may know when and how to assist their children
in support of classroom learning activities (Education Code 11502, 11504)

The Superintendent or designee may:

Ensure that teachers provide frequent reports to parents/guardians on their
children's progress and hold parent-teacher conferences at least once per year with
parents/guardians of elementary school students

Provide opportunities for parents/guardians to observe classroom activities and to
volunteer in their child's classroom

Provide information about parent/guardian and family engagement opportunities
through district, school, and/or class newsletters, the district's web sitewebsite, and
other written or electronic communications

To the extent practicable, provide notices and information to parents/guardians in a
format and language they can understand

Develop mechanisms to encourage parent/guardian input on district and school
issues

Identify barriers to parent/guardian and family participation in school activities,
including parents/guardians and family members who are economically
disadvantaged, are disabled, have limited English proficiency, have limited literacy, or
are of any racial or ethnic minority background

Encourage greater parent/guardian participation by adjusting meeting schedules to
accommodate parent/guardian needs and, to the extent practicable, by providing
translation or interpreter services, transportation, and/or child care

4. Train teachers, administrators, specialized instructional support personnel, and other staff to
communicate effectively with parents/guardians as equal partners (Education Code 11502,

11504)

The Superintendent or designee may:

a.

Provide staff development to assist staff in strengthening two-way communications
with parents/guardians, including parents/guardians who have limited English
proficiency or limited literacy

Invite input from parents/guardians regarding the content of staff development
activities pertaining to home-school communications

115




c. _Utilize professional development sessions to train teachers, administrators, and staff

on ways to effectively engage parents/guardians, with each school site sharing best

practices that others may learn from

5. Integrate and coordinate parent/guardian and family engagement activities within

the LCAP with other activities

The Superintendent or designee may:

a. Include parent/guardian and family engagement strategies in school reform or school

improvement initiatives

b. Involve parents/guardians and family members in school planning processes

Policy Reference UPDATE Service

Copyright 2025 by California School Boards Association, West Sacramento, California 95691

All rights reserved.

Policy Reference Disclaimer:

These references are not intended to be part of the policy itself, nor do they indicate the basis or authority for
the Governing Board to enact this policy. Instead, they are provided as additional resources for those

interested in the subject matter of the policy.

State
5 CCR 18275

Ed. Code 11500-11505
Ed. Code 48985

Ed. Code 51101

Ed. Code 52060-52077
Ed. Code 54444.1-54444.2
Ed. Code 56190-56194
Ed. Code 64001

Lab. Code 230.8

Federal
20 USC 6311

20 USC 6312
20 USC 6314
20 USC 6318
20 USC 6631

28 CFR 35.104

Description
Child care and development programs; parent involvement
and education

Programs to encourage parent/guardian involvement
Notices to parents/guardian in language other than English
Parents Rights Act of 2002

Local control and accountability plan

Parent advisory councils; services to migrant children
Community advisory committee; special education

School plan for student achievement; consolidated
application programs

Time off to visit child's school

Description
State plan

Local educational agency plan
Schoolwide programs
Parent/guardian and family engagement

Teacher and school leader incentive program; purposes and
definitions

Definitions, auxiliary aids and services

116



28 CFR 35.160

Management Resources
California Department of Education
Publication

California Department of Education
Publication

Publicati

U.S. Department of Education
Publication

Website

Website

Website
Website
Website
Website
Website
Website
Website

Cross References

Code
0000

0100
0400
0410
0420
0420
0430
0430

Effective communications for individuals with disabilities

Description
Family Engagement Framework: A Tool for California School
Districts, 2014

Title | School-Level Parental Involvement Policy

Parental Invelvement: Title |; Part A, Non-Regulatory

Dear Colleague Letter: School Choice Guidance to States,
June 26, 2025

(https:/www.ed.gov/about/news/press-release/us-
department-of-education-issues-school-choice-guidance-
states-turning-around-failing-schools)

CSBA District and County Office of Education Legal Services

California Department of Education, Family, School,
Community Partnerships

California Parent Center

California State Parent Teacher Association
CSBA

National PTA

Parent Information and Resource Centers
Parents as Teachers National Center

U.S. Department of Education

Description
Vision

Philosophy

Comprehensive Plans

Nondiscrimination In District Programs And Activities
School Plans/Site Councils

School Plans/Site Councils

Comprehensive Local Plan For Special Education
Comprehensive Local Plan For Special Education

117




0450
0450
0460
0460
0500
1000
1100
1113
1113
1113-E(1)
1114
1114
1220
1220
1230
1230
1240
1240
1250
1250
1260
1400

1700
2230
3100
3100
3231
3280
3280
4115
4115

Comprehensive Safety Plan
Comprehensive Safety Plan .
Local Control And Accountability Plan
Local Control And Accountability Plan
Accountability

Caoncepts And Roles

Communication With The Public
District And School Websites

District And School Websites

District And School Websites
District-Sponsored Social Media
District-Sponsored Social Media

Citizen Advisory Committees

_ Citizen Advisory Committees

School-Connected Organizations
School-Connected Organizations
Volunteer Assistance

Volunteer Assistance
Visitors/Outsiders
Visitors/Outsiders

Educational Foundation

Relations Between Other Governmental Agencies And The

Schools

Relations Between Private Industry And The Schools

Representative And Deliberative Groups

Budget
Budget

Impact Aid
Sale Or Lease Of District-Owned Real Property
Sale Or Lease Of District-Owned Real Property

Evaluation/Supervision

Evaluation/Supervision

118



4131

4215

4231

4315

4331 -
5020
5020
5030
5113
5113 *
5113.1 k
51131

5121

5121

5123

5123
514122
5141.22
51422
51422

5145.6 bre

5145.6-E(1)

5148

5148 }
5148.2

5148.2

5148.3

5148.3

6000

6011

6120

+ Infectious Diseases

Staff Development

Evaluation/Supervision

Staff Development

Evaluation/Supervision

Staff Development

Parent Rights And Respansibilities

Parent Rights And Responsibilities

Student Wellness

Absences And Excuses

Absences And Excuses

Chronic Absence And Truancy

Chronic Absence And Truancy
Grades/Evaluation Of Student Achievement
Grades/Evaluation Of Student Achievement *
Promotion/Acceleration/Retention

Promotion/Acceleration/Retention

Infectious Diseases ¢
Safe Routes To School Program

Safe Routes To School Program
Parent/Guardian Notifications
Parent/Guardian Notifications

Child Care And Development

Child Care And Development
Before/After School Programs
Befare/After School Programs
Preschool/Early Childhood Education
Preschool/Early Childhood Education
Concepts And Roles

Academic Standards

Response To Instruction And Intervention

119




6142.6
6142.8
6142.8
6145
6145
6146.11
6146.11
6154
6161.1
6161.1
6161.1-E(1)
6162.5
6162.51
6162.51
6164.5
6164.5
6170.1
6171
6171
6172
6172
6173.1
6173.1
6173.2
6173.2
61734
6174
6174
6175
6175
6177

Visual And Performing Arts Education
Comprehensive Health Education

Comprehensive Health Education

Extracurricular And Cocurricular Activities
Extracurricular And Cocurricular Activities
Alternative Credits Toward Graduation

Alternative Credits Toward Graduation
Homework/Makeup Work

Selection And Evaluation Of Instructional Materials
Selection And Evaluation Of Instructional Materials
Selection And Evaluation Of Instructional Materials
Student Assessment

State Academic Achievement Tests

State Academic Achievement Tests

Student Success Teams

Student Success Teams

Transitional Kindergarten

Title | Programs

Title | Programs

Gifted And Talented Student Program

Gifted And Talented Student Program

Education For Foster Youth

Education For Foster Youth

Education Of Children Of Military Families
Education Of Children Of Military Families
Education For American Indian Students

Education For English Learners

Education For English Learners

Migrant Education Program

Migrant Education Program

Summer Learning Programs

120



6178
6178
6178.1
6178.1
6184
6184
9200 -
9310

Career Technical Education

Career Technical Education
Work-Based Learning

Work-Based Learning
Continuation Education
Continuation Education

Limits Of Board Member Authority

Board Policies ’

L

121




CSBA Sample District Policy Manual
CSBA Policy Management Console

Policy 6143: Courses Of Study Status: ADOPTED

Original Adopted Date: 03/01/2003 | Last Revised Date: 1011/01/20232025 | Last Reviewed
Date: 1011/01/20232025

The Governing Board recognizes that a well-aligned sequence of courses fosters academic growth
and provides for the best possible use of instructional time. The district's course of study shall
provide students with opportunities to attain the skills, knowledge, and abilities they need to be
successful academically, professionally, and personally.

CSBA NOTE: The following optional paragraph should be revised to reflect the grade levels offered
by the district. For example, unified school districts need to be concerned about articulation of
courses within the district and with postsecondary institutions, whereas elementary districts and
high school districts will need to address articulation with each other.

The Superintendent or designee shall establish processes for ensuring the articulation of courses
across grade levels within the district. As necessary, the Superintendent or designee shall work with
representatives of appropriate area districts and postsecondary institutions to ensure articulation of
courses with other institutions to which district students may matriculate. The sequence of courses
shall be designed to ensure that each course provides adequate preparation for the next course in
the sequence, only utilizes prerequisites that are essential to success in a given program or course,
avoids significant duplication of content, and allows for reinforcement and progression in the
subject matter.

that a district may not separate students based on race; but may include group diseussions of
achvities that focus on race as part of the curricuhirn: €oUFSEs; 6F ProErams 56 leng as access oF
participation is not permitted or limited based on race: OCR's guidance also provides that a school-
sponsored program with emphasis on race: sueh as a student club, that is open to all students:
typically weuld not wiolate Title Vi solely because of s race-related theme.

CSBA NOTE: In accordance with various provisions of state and federal law and regulation, and
related court cases, discrimination in education programs and activities is unlawful when it is based
on certain actual or perceived characteristics of an individual. This includes, but is not limited to,
discrimination based on race or ethnicity: ancestry; color: ethnic group identification; nationality;
national origin: immigration status; sex; sexual orientation; sex stereotypes; gender; gender identity:
gender expression; religion; disability; medical condition; genetic information; pregnancy, false
pregnancy, childbirth, termination of pregnancy, or related conditions or recovery; and parental,
marital, and family status. For more information regarding the requirement for district programs and
activities to be free from discrimination, see BP 0410 - Nondiscrimination in District Programs and
Activities, regarding the protection of district students against discrimination, see BP/AR 5145.3 -
Nondiscrimination/Harassment, and regarding the protection of students against sexual
harassment, see BP/AR 5145.7 - Sexual Harassment.

122



Education Code 200 and 210.2, as amended by SB 1137 (Ch. 779, Statutes of 2024), provide that
| prohibited discrimination includes discrimination not just because of one protected class under
state law, but also because of the combination of two or more protected bases.

The district shall not provide any course separately or require or refuse participation by any student
on the basis of the student's actual er perceived sex; sexual erientation; gender, gender expression;
gender identityerace or ethnicity; ancestry; color; ethnic group identification;; nationality; national
origin; immigration status; race; ancestry; national origin;; sex; sexual orientation; sex stereotypes:
gender; gender identity; gender expression:; religion; eeler; mental or physical; disability; age;;
medical condition;; genetic information; pregnancy, false pregnancy, childbirth, termination of
pregnancy, or related conditions or recovery; and parental, marital, and family status; er any ether
characteristic bated in Bdueation Coce 200 spd 220, Goverprment Code 11125, o Renal Code

422 55. of the student's; a perception of one or more of such characteristics; a combination of two
or more of such characteristics or association with a person or group with one or more of suehthese

210.1,210.2, 212, 212.1, 220, 221.51, 230, 260; Government Code 11135, 12926; Penal Code
422.55; 5 CCR 4940); 20 USC 1681-1688, 42 USC 2000d-2000d-7)

Elementary Grades

: CSBA NOTE: The following section is for use by districts offering elementary grades and may be
revised to reflect district practice. Education Code 51225.4 mandates elementary school districts to
certify to the Superintendent of Public Instruction that they have adopted a policy to implement a
course of instruction that sufficiently prepares students for the secondary courses required for
graduation pursuant to Education Code 51225.3.

The Board shall adopt a course of study for elementary grades that includes all required
instructional content and sufficiently prepares students for the secondary course of study specified
in Education Code 51225.3.

Secondary Grades

CSBA NOTE: Education Code 51228 requires districts to offer students in grades 7-12 a course of
study that fulfills the requirements and prerequisites for admission to California public colleges.
Education Code 51228 also requires districts to offer such students the opportunity to attain entry-

. level employment skills. Pursuant to Education Code 51228, districts that adopt a course of study
that meets or exceeds the state model curriculum standards in career technical education will be
deemed to have satisfied the requirement.

Education Code 66204 prohibits a public school from establishing any policy or practice that directs
any student away from choosing programs that prepare a student academically for college,
especially for cultural or linguistic reasons.

The following paragraph is for use by districts maintaining any of grades 7-12 and should be revised
to reflect the grade levels offered by the district.
The district shall offer all otherwise qualified students in grades 7-12 a course of study that includes
all required instructional content and prepares them, upon graduation from high school, to meet the
requirements and prerequisites for admission to California public colleges and universities and to

123




attain entry-level employment skills in business or industry. The district's course of study may
provide for a rigorous academic curriculum that integrates academic and career skills, includes
applied learning across all disciplines, and prepares all students for high school graduation and
career entry. (Education Code 51228)

ir CSBA NOTE: The remainder of this pT)Iicy is for use bir distiriétsimaintaihingian; of graﬁés' 9-12.

{r addienAdditionally, the course of study for students in grades 9-12 shall include instruction in
skills and knowledge for adult life, career technical training, and a timely opportunity for all
otherwise qualified students to enroll, within four years, in each course necessary to fulfill the
requirements and prerequisites for admission to California public colleges and universities prior to
graduation. (Education Code 51224, 51228)

CSBA NOTE: Among the criteria for admission to the University of California (UC) or California
State University system is a requirement that high school students satisfactorily complete 15
yearlong/30 semesters of specified courses ("A-G" courses). These include a growing number of
career technical education courses that connect knowledge of academic content with practical or
work-related applications.

‘ In order to qualify as an "A-G" course, the course must first be submitted to and approved by UC.
Education Code 51229 requires that districts annually provide the list of certified courses to the
parents/guardians of students in grades 9-12; see the accompanying administrative regulation and

| E(1) 5145.6 - Parental Notifications.

The Superintendent or designee shall develop a process by which courses that meet California
college admission criteria (referred to as "A-G" course requirements) are submitted to the University
of California for review and certification. The Superintendent or designee shall maintain an accurate
list of all current high school courses that have been so certified, shall ensure that the list is
provided annually to all students in grades 9-12 and their parents/guardians, and shall make
updated lists readily available. (Education Code 51229, 66204)

Parental Notification and Opt-Out

' CSBA NOTE: Districts are required to teach certain instructional content. For example, Education

| Code 51204.5 requires instruction in social sciences to include a study of the role and contributions
of specified groups of people to the economic, political, and social development of California and
the United States of America, which includes people of all genders, Native Americans, African
Americans, Latino Americans, Asian Americans, Pacific Islanders, European Americans, lesbian, gay,

- bisexual, transgender, queer, and gquestioning (LGBTQ+) Americans, and members of other ethnic,
cultural, religious, and socioeconomic status groups. Additionally, pursuant to Education Code 243
and 51501, the Governing Board may not prohibit the continued use of an appropriately adopted

| textbook, instructional material, or curriculum on the basis that it contains inclusive or diverse
perspectives.

State law requires districts to provide parents/guardians notice and the opportunity to opt their
students out of certain instruction, in some instances only based on religious beliefs and in other

instances for any basis. For more information, see BP/AR 6142.1 -- Sexual Health And HIV/AIDS
Prevention Instruction.

Additionally, in June 2025, the U.S. Supreme Court, in Mahmoud v. Taylor, held that the First
| Amendment prohibited a district from including LGBTQ+ storybooks as part of elementary school

124



} instruction without providing parents with notice and the ability to opt their students out of that
instructional content on the grounds that the storybooks substantially interfered with the religious
development of their children. The court's reasoning may be interpreted to apply to other
instructional content that parents/guardians could view as substantially interfering with the
religious development of their children. In addition, the court's holding emphasized that the
question of whether certain instructional content substantially interferes with the religious
development of a student will always be fact-intensive. For more information, see BP/AR 6141.2 -
Recognition of Religious Beliefs and Customs.

In light of Mahmoud and the existence of some statutorily required opt-opts and the requirement to
teach certain content, it is recommended that districts consult CSBA's District and County Office of
Education Legal Services or district legal counsel when determining the instructional content for |

which parents/guardians may opt their students out, creating opt-out procedures, and evaluating |

opt-out requests.

When required by law, Board policy, or administrative regulation, the district shall notify
parents/guardians that they may request to opt their student out of certain instruction. Students for
whom the district has approved the opt-out shall be offered an alternative activity of similar
educational value.

Policy Reference UPDATE Service

Copyright 2025 by California School Boards Association, West Sacramento, California 5691

All rights reserved.

Policy Reference Disclaimer:

These references are not intended to be part of the policy itself, nor do they indicate the basis or authority for
the Governing Board to enact this policy. Instead, they are provided as additional resources for those
interested in the subject matter of the policy.

State Description
5 CCR 10020 Automobile driver education
5 CCR 10040-10043 Automobile driver training
5 CCR 10060 Criteria for high school physical education programs
5 CCR 430-438 Individual student records
5 CCR 4940 Nondiscrimination; course access
Ed. Code 200-262.4 Equal rights and eppeortunities in state educational
mstitutiensProhibition of discrimination
Etiidaston oud bl
status
Ed- Code 242 Aceess to information abeut educational laws and pelicies

regarding right to aceurate and inclusive eurriculum

125




Ed. Code 33319.3
Ed. Code 33540
Ed. Code 33540.2

Ed. Code 33540.4

Driver education; CDE materials on road rage
Standards for government and civics instruction

Model curriculum related to Vietnamese American refugee
experience

Model curriculum related to Cambodian American history and

Ed. Code 33547.5

Ed. Code

w

3548

Ed. Code 48980

Ed. Code 49060-49079
Ed. Code 49110.5

Ed. Code 51202

Ed. Code 51203

Ed. Code 51204

Ed. Code 51204.5

Ed. Code 51210

Ed. Code 51220

Ed. Code 51221.1

Ed. Code 51221.2

Ed. Code 51225.3
Ed. Code 51225.38

Ed. Code 51225.7-51225.8

heritage

Mathematics curriculum framework; Algebra | or Mathematics
offered to students in grade 8

Media literacy and artificial intelligence literacy curriculum
frameworks

Parent/Guardian notifications
Student records

Workplace readiness week

Instruction in personal and public health and safety
Instruction on alcohol, narcotics and dangerous drugs
Course of study designed for student's needs

History of California; contributions of specified groups
Course of study for grades 1-6

Course of study for grades 7-12

California Teachers Collaborative for Holocaust and Genocide
Education

Holocaust and genocide education; notice, survey, and grant
program

High school graduation requirements

Health education; fentanyl instruction

Completion and submission of the Free Application for Federal

Ed. Code 51226.3

Ed. Code 51226.7
Ed. Code 51226.8
Ed. Code 51229

Ed. Code 51241

Student Aid and California Dream Act Application

Instruction on civil rights, human rights violations, genocide, slavery,

and the Holocaust
Model curriculum in ethnic studies

Personal finance course; curriculum guide and resources

Notifications related to college admissions and career technical
education

Temporary two-year or permanent exemption from physical
education

126



Ed. Code 51501

Ed. Code 51911-51921
Ed. Code 51925-51929
Ed. Code 51930-51939
Ed. Code 51940

Ed. Code 60040-60052
Ed. Code 60900-60901

Ed. Code 66204

Ed. Code 69560-69566
Gov. Code 11135
Gov. Code 12900-12996

Gov. Code 17581.6

Gov. Code 7282-7282.5

Gov. Code 7283-7283.2

Gov. Code 7284-7284.12
H&S Code 11032
Pen. Code 422,55

Federal
20 USC 1232¢

20 USC 1681-1688

42 USC 2000d-2000d-7
34 CFR 99.1-99.67

Management Resources
Court Decision

Court Decision

California Department of
Education Publication

Publicat;

Nondiscriminatory subject matter

Comprehensive health education

Mandatory mental health education and in-service training
California Healthy Youth Act

Curriculum for brain and spinal cord injury prevention
Requirements for instructional materials

California Longitudinal Pupil Achievement Data System

Certification of high school courses as meeting university admission
criteria

California Student Opportunity and Access Program

Prohibition of discrimination

Fair Employment and Housing Act

Reimbursement of state mandates; block grants

Standards for responding to U.S. Immigration and Customs
enforcement holds

Standards for participation in U.S. Immigration and Customs
enforcement programs

Cooperation with immigration authorities
Definition of dangerous drugs
Definition of hate crime

Description
Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA) of 1974

Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972; discrimination based
on sex

Title VI, Civil Rights Act of 1964

Family Educational Rights and Privacy

Description

Mahmoud v. Taylor (2025) 606 U.S. (2025 WL 1773627)

Westminster School District of Orange County v. Mendez (1947)
161 F2d 774

Education Code 51925: Mental Health Instruction Expansion
Education Plan, rev. March 2024

(https:/www.cde.ca.gov/Is/mh/documents/mentalhealth.docx)

2023

127




California Attorney General

Publication

CSBA Publication

CSBA Publication

Website

Website

Website

Website
Website
Website
Website
Website
Website
Website
Website
Website
Website
Website
Website
Website
Website
Website

Cross References

Inclusive Curricula and Books
(https://oag.ca.gov/system/files/attachments/press-
docs/Legal%20Alert%20Re%20Inclusive%20Curricula.1.9.24.1157C

LEAN.pdf)

Instructional Materials Adoptions: State and local governing board
processes, roles, and responsibilities, February 2024
(https:/csba.org/-
/media/CSBA/Files/GovernanceResources/GovernanceBriefs/2024-
REPD-instructional-materials-brief)

Fact Sheet: Instructional Materials Adoption: Local governing board
responsibilities, February 2024 (https:/www.csba.org/-
/media/FactSheet IM-LocalRoles-REPD 07-2024)

California Student Opportunity and Access Program

access-program-cal-soap)

California College Guidance Initiative (http:/cacollegeguidance.org/)

California Kids Investment and Development Savings Program
(https:/calkids.org/)

Instructional Quality Commission

American Red Cross, Hands-Only CPR Training

CSBA District and County Office of Education Legal Services
Federal Student Aid

American Heart Association

California Student Aid Commission

University of California, A-G Course Submissions
University of California, List of Approved A-G Courses
California State University, Admission Requirements
California Career Resource Network

Department of Justice

California Colleges.edu

California Department of Education

CSBA

U.S. Department of Education

128



Code
0410

0415

0460

0460
1312.2
1312.2
1312.2-E(1)
13124
1312.4-E(1)
1312.4-E(2)
1340

1340

3270

3270
35133
35133
5022

5022

5121

5121

5125

5125

5126

5126
5131.6
5131.6
5138
51414
51414
5141.5
5145.13

Description A

Nondiscrimination In District Programs And Activities
Equity H

Local Control And Accountability Plan

Local Control And Qgcountability Plan

Complaints Concerning Instructional Materials
Complaints Concerningklnstructional Materials
Complaints Concerning Instructional Materials

Williams Uniform Complaint Procedures

Williams Uniform Complaint Procedures

, Williams Uniform Complaint Procedures

Access To District Records

Access To District Records

Sale And Disposal Of Books, Equipment And Supplies
Sale And Disposal Qf Boaks, Equipment And Supplies
Tobacco-Free Schools

Tobacco-Free Schools

Student And Family Privacy Rights

Student And Family Privacy Rights

_ Grades/Evaluation Of Student Achievement

Grades/Evaluation Of Student Achievement
Student Records

Student Records ‘

Awards For Achievement

Awards For Achievement

.Alcohol And (?ther Drugs
, Alcohol And Other Drugs

Conflict Resolution/Peer Mediation
Child Abuse Prevention And Reporting
Child Abuse Prevention And Reporting
Mental Health

Response To Immigration Enforcement

129




514513
5145.3
5145.3
5145.6
5145.6-E(1)
5145.7
51457
5146
6000
6011
6115
6115
6141
6141
6141.2
6141.2
61414
6141.5
6142.1
6142.1
6142.2
6142.2
6142.3
61424
6142.5
6142.6
6142.7
6142.7
6142.8
6142.8
6142.91

Response To Immigration Enforcement
Nondiscrimination/Harassment
Nondiscrimination/Harassment
Parent/Guardian Notifications
Parent/Guardian Notifications

Sexual Harassment

Sexual Harassment

Married/Pregnant/Parenting Students
Concepts And Roles

Academic Standards

Ceremonies And Observances

Ceremonies And Observances

Curriculum Development And Evaluation
Curriculum Development And Evaluation
Recognition Of Religious Beliefs And Customs
Recognition Of Religious Beliefs And Customs
International Baccalaureate Program
Advanced Placement

Sexual Health And HIV/AIDS Prevention Instruction
Sexual Health And HIV/AIDS Prevention Instruction
World Language Instruction

World Language Instruction

Civic Education

Service Learning/Community Service Classes
Environmental Education

Visual And Performing Arts Education
Physical Education And Activity

Physical Education And Activity
Comprehensive Health Education
Comprehensive Health Education

Reading/Language Arts Instruction

130



6142.92
6142.93
6142.94
6144
6145
6145
61458
6146.1
6146.11
6146.11
6146.3
6146.3
6146.5
6151
61521 .
6152.1
6153
6153
6155
6155
6158
6158
6159
6159
6161.1
6161.1
6161.1-E(1)
6161.11
6163.1
6164.2
6172.1

Mathematics Instruction

Science Instruction

History-Social Science Instruction

Controversial Issues

Extracurricular And Cocurricular Activities
Extracurricular And Cocurricular Activities
Assemblies And Special Events

High School Graduation Requirements

Alternative Credits Toward Graduation

Alternative Credits Toward Graduation

Reciprocity Of Academic Credit

Reciprocity Of Academic Credit
Elementary/Middle School Graduation Requirements
Class Size

Placement In Mathematics Courses

Placement In Mathematics Courses
School-Sponscred Trips

School-Sponsored Trips

Challenging Courses By Examination

Challenging Courses By Examination

Independent Study

Independent Study

Individualized Education Program

Individualized Education Program

Selection And Evaluation Of Instructional Materials
Selection And Evaluation Of Instructional Materials
Selection And Evaluation Of Instructional Materials
Supplementary Instructional Materials

Library Media Centers

Guidance/Counseling Services

Concurrent Enrolliment In College Classes

13




61721
6173
6173
6173-E(1)
6173-E(2)
6173.2
6173.2
6173.3
6177
6178
6178
6178.1
6178.1
6181
6181
6184
6184

Concurrent Enrollment In College Classes
Education For Homeless Children
Education For Homeless Children
Education For Homeless Children
Education For Homeless Children
Education Of Children Of Military Families
Education Of Children Of Military Families
Education For Juvenile Court School Students
Summer Learning Programs

Career Technical Education

Career Technical Education

Work-Based Learning

Work-Based Learning

Alternative Schools/Programs Of Choice
Alternative Schools/Programs Of Choice
Continuation Education

Continuation Education

132



CSBA Sample District Policy Manual
CSBA Policy Management Console

Regulation 6143: Courses Of Study Status: ADOPTED

Original Adopted Date: 11/01/2014 | Last Revised Date: 1611/01/20232025 | Last Reviewed
Date: 1011/01/20232025

CSBA NOTE: Education Code requirements for courses of study are generally classified into
requirements for grades 1-6 and 7-12. Therefore, K-8 districts and high school districts need to
collaborate with appropriate area districts to ensure that all required courses are offered sometime
during grades 7-12.

The district should select the sections below ("Grades 1-6" and/or "Grades 7-12") that correspond
with the grade levels offered.

instructonal materialsPursuant to Education Code 242, the California Department of Education
(CDE) has posted on its website guidance and public educational materials developed to ensure that
all Californians can access information about educational laws and policies that safeguard the right
to an accurate and inclusive curriculum. For more information regarding the prohibition of
discrimination as it applies to textbooks, instructional materials, supplemental instructional
materials, or other curriculum for classroom instruction, or any book or resource in a school library,
see BP/AR 6161.1 - Selection and Evaluation of Instructional Materials, BP 6161.11 -
Supplementary Instructional Materials, and BP 6163.1 - Library Media Centers. Also see CSBA's
publication, "Instructional Materials Adoptions: State and local governing board processes, roles,
and responsibilities," and corresponding Fact Sheet and Reference, and the California Attorney
General's, "Guidance to School Officials re: Legal Requirements for Providing Inclusive Curricula and
Books."

Grades 1-6

CSBA NOTE: Items #1-7 below are areas of study required by law ft;r_ érades 1-6. The Governing
Board may add other studies to this list.

Courses of study for grades 1-_6 ;hall includm;_:cht_e following:

' CSBA NOTE: Education Code 51210 requires instruction i_n_handwriting, including instruction in
cursive or joined italics.

1. English: knowledge and appreciation of language and literature, and the skills of speaking,
reading, listening, spelling, handwriting, including instruction in cursive or joined italics in the
appropriate grade levels, and composition (Education Code 51210)

2. Mathematics: concepts, operational skills, and problem solving (Education Code 51210)

3. Social sciences: age-appropriate instruction drawing upon the disciplines of anthropology,
economics, geography, history, political science, psychology, and sociology, including

133




instruction in: (Education Code 51210)

a. The history, resources, development, and government of California and the United
States

the role and contributions of specified groups of people to the economic, political, and social
development of California and the United States of America, which; as amended by AB 1078 {Ch-
229 Statutes of 2023); includes people of all genders {fermerly “men and wemen},. Latino
Americans {fermerly “Mexican Armericans); LGBTQ Americans (formerly *, lesbian, gay, bisexual, apd
transgender, queer, and questioning (LGBTQ+) Americans;, and members of other ethnic, cultural,
religious, and socioeconomic status groups {fermerly “ethnic and eultural").. The complete list
required by Education Code 51204.5; as amended by AB 1078; is reflected below-

that tn Hs determination acewmtely norbay the coblurad and rocial diversily of our socieby was
amended by AB 1078 te mirror the changes made to Education Code 51204.5; explained abeve.

Instruction shall include the early history of California and a study of the role and
contributions of people of all genders, Native Americans, African Americans, Latino
Americans, Asian Americans, Pacific Islanders, European Americans, LEGBTQ+leshian,
gay, bisexual, transgender, gueer, and guestioning (LGBTQ+) Americans, persons
with disabilities, and members of other ethnic, cultural, religious, and socioeconomic
status groups to the economic, political, and social development of California and the
United States, with particular emphasis on portraying the role of these groups in
contemporary society. (Education Code 51204.5, 60040)

b. The development of the American economic system, including the role of the
entrepreneur and labor

c. The relations of persons to their human and natural environments
d. Eastern and western cultures and civilizations
e. Contemporary issues

f. The wise use of natural resources

' CSBA NOTE: Education Code 51210, as amended by AB 1821 (Ch. 658, Statutes of
' 2024), requires instruction in social sciences in grades 1-6 to include the Spanish
 colonization of California and the Gold Rush Era as specified in Item #3g, below.

8. Spanish colonization of California and the Gold Rush Era, including the treatment

and perspectives of Native Americans during those periods

134



| effects of climate change, and the methods to mitigate and adapt to climate change.

4. Science: biological and physical aspects, with emphasis on the processes of experimental
inquiry and, the place of humans in ecological systems, the causes and effects of climate
change, and the methods to mitigate and adapt to climate change (Education Code 51210)

5. Visual and performing arts: instruction in dance, music, theatretheater, and visual arts aimed
at developing aesthetic appreciation and creative expression (Education Code 51210)

CSBA NOTE: Ed[:catidn Code_ 51202 require-s_that certéir1_ he;Ith-rt:z_létéd_to_p;ics—t)e addre_sseg at "the
appropriate elementary and secondary grade levels" during grades K-12. Districts may revise
FEMItems #6a-e below to indicate topics that will be addressed in grades K-6.

Education Code 51203 requires the Board to adopt regulations specifying the grade(s) and course(s)
in which drug and alcohol education will be given. For language fulfilling this mandate, see AR
5131.6 - Alcohol and Other Drugs.

6. Health: principles and practices of individual, family, and community health, including
instruction at the appropriate grade levels and subject areas in: (Education Code 51202,
51210)

a. Personal and public safety and accident prevention, including instruction in
emergency first aid, hemorrhage control, treatment for poisoning, resuscitation

techniques, and cardiopulmonary resuscitation (CPR) when appropriate equipment is
available

b. Fire prevention

c. The protection and conservation of resources, including the necessity for the
protection of the environment

d. Venereal disease

e. The effects of alcohol, narcotics, drugs, and tobacco upon the human body

CSBA NOTE: The following item isitems are optional pursuant to Education Code 51202.

f. Prenatal care for pregnant women

& g Violence as a public health issue

CSBA NOTE: Education Code 51925 requires districts that offer a health education course to
middle school students to include mental health instruction, as specified in Item #égéh. Districts
that offer a health education course to students in grade 6, and for which grade 6 is part of a middle
school program, should include Item #6g6h. Districts that offer mental health instruction to any

135




other elementary grade level(s) or for which grade 6 is not part of the middle school program, may
delete or revise ltem #6g6h, as appropriate.

Education Code 51929 requires the Califernia Department of Education (CDE) to develop a plan to
expand mental health instruction, and has created a webinar, "Student Mental Health Education
Implementation: Why, What & How,"” available on its website.

g h.

Mental Health, that provides for reasonably designed instruction on the

overarching themes and core principles of mental health, which includes: (Education
Code 51925)

Vi.

vii.

Defining the signs and symptoms of common mental health challenges

Explaining evidence-based services and supports that effectively help
individuals manage mental health challenges

Promoting mental health wellness and protective factors, including positive
development, social and cultural connectedness and supportive relationships,
resiliency, problem solving skills, coping skills, self-esteem, and a positive
school and home environment in which students feel comfortable

ldentifying warning signs of common mental health problems in order to
promote awareness and early intervention so that students know to take
action before a situation turns into a crisis, including how to obtain assistance
from the district or the community for themselves or others and evidence-
based and culturally responsive practices that are proven to help overcome
mental health challenges

Connecting the importance of mental health to overall health and academic
success and to co-occurring conditions, such as chronic physical conditions,
chemical dependence, and substance abuse

Conveying an awareness and appreciation about the prevalence of mental
health challenges across all populations, races, ethnicities, and socioeconomic
statuses, including the impact of race, ethnicity, and culture on the
experience and treatment of mental health challenges

Understanding the stigma surrounding mental health challenges and what
can be done to overcome stigma, increase awareness, and promote
acceptance, including, to the extent possible, classroom presentations of
narratives by trained peers and other individuals who have experienced
mental health challenges and how they coped with their situations, including
how they sought help and acceptance

Mental health instruction offered by the district shall: (Education Code
51926)

136



A. Be appropriate for use with students of all races, genders, sexual
orientations, ethnic and cultural backgrounds, students with
disabilities, and English learners

B. Be accessible to students with disabilities, including, but not limited
to, providing a modified curriculum, materials, and instruction in
alternative formats, and auxiliary aids

C. Not reflect or promote bias against any person on the basis of any
category protected by Education Code 220

D. Be coordinated with any existing on-campus mental health providers
including, but not limited to, providers with a pupil personnel services
credential, who may be immediately called upon by students for
assistance

Students receiving mental health instruction shall not be required to disclose
their confidential health or mental health information at any time in the course of
receiving the instruction. (Education Code 51927)

7. Physical education: with emphasis on physical activities conducive to health and vigor of
body and mind

CSBA NOTE: Item #8 below is optional. Education Code 51210.5 authorizes age-appropriate
instruction on violence awareness and prevention within any area of study listed in itemsltems #1-7
above. Pursuant to Education Code 51210.5, such instruction may include personal testimony in
the form of oral or video histories that illustrate the economic and cultural effects of violence within
a city, the state, and the country. SeeFor more information regarding history-social science

instruction, see BP 6142.94 - History-Social Science Instruction.

8. Violence awareness and prevention

.ES_BA_NOTE: Optional temitem #9 belov;f is not rr;:quired by sta_te le;w butis a highiy ;ecommende_d -
component of school-to-career instruction.

9. Career awareness exploration

Grades 7-12

ESBA I\_J(_JTE: ltems #1-44_1& _b_elow are areas of study requiré;:i by law for grades 7712_. _'I;he Boardi
may add other studies to this list. |

0

Courses of study for grades 7-12 shall include the following:

1. English: knowledge and appreciation of literature, language, and composition, and the skills
of reading, listening, and speaking (Education Code 51220)

137




2. Social sciences: age-appropriate instruction drawing upon the disciplines of anthropology,
economics, geography, history, political science, psychology, and sociology, with instruction
in: (Education Code 51220)

a. The history, resources, development, and government of California and the United
States, including instruction in:

CSBA NOTE: Education Code 51204 5 requires instruction in social sciences to mclude a study of
the role and contributions of specified groups of people to the economic, political, and social [
development of California and the United States of America, which; as amended by AB 1078;
includes people of all genders {fermerly “men and women");, Latino Americans fermerly “Mexican,

 Americanst); LEGBTQ Arrericans Hormerly leshian, gay. bisexual and transgender
Americans");, and members of other ethnic, religious, cultural, and socioeconomic status groups
formerly “ethnic and eultural”).. The complete list required by Education Code 51204.5; as amended
by AB 1078; is reflected below:

that in its determination aceurately portray the cultural and racial diversity of our secieby, was
mwmmmmmmmmﬁmwwmm

i. The early history of California and a study of the role and contributions of
people of all genders, Native Americans, African Americans, Latino
Americans, Asian Americans, Pacific Islanders, European Americans, LGBTQ+
Americans, persons with disabilities, and members of other ethnic, cultural,
religious, and socioeconomic status groups to the economic, political, and
social development of California and the United States, with particular

emphasis on portraying the role of these groups in contemporary society
(Education Code 51204.5, 60040)

CSBA NOTE Educatlon Code 51221 3 and 51221 4 encourage, but do ﬁot require, instruction on
the topics described in optional subitems #{ltems #2}-{4(a)(ii)-(iv) below. These items may be
modified or deleted to reflect district practice.

For districts that choose to offer such instruction, Education Code 51221.3 and 51221.4 encourage
that a component be drawn from personal testimony, especially in the form of oral or video history.
If oral histories are used, they must conform to the requirements of Education Code 51221.3 and
51221.4. SeeFor more information regarding history-social science instruction, see BP 6142.94 -

\ History-Social 5cnence Instruction.

ii. World War I, including the role of Americans and Filipino Americans who
served in the United States Army during that time

CSBA NOTE: Pursuant to Education Code 33540, 2, CDE has posted on |ts
“Model Curricula and Curriculum Guides” webpage, model curriculum

| regarding the Vietnamese American refugee experience that includes the

| period from the Vietnam War and the Fall of Saigon in 1975 to the year 2000.

138



iii. The Vietnam War, including the "Secret War" in Laos and role of Southeast
Asians in that war

iv. The Bracero program, in which there was a 1942 agreement between the
United States and Mexico authorizing the temporary migration of laborers to
the United States

b. The American legal system, the operation of the juvenile and adult criminal justice
systems, and the rights and duties of citizens under the criminal and civil law and the
state and federal constitutions

CSBA NOTE: The following optiona]}&agraph is for use by_ districts that offer a teen court or péei’ 5
court program.

This course may include participation in a teen court or peer court program.
(Education Code 51220.2)

CSBA NOTE: Pursuant to Education Code 49110.5, all public high schools are
reguired to observe the week that includes April 28 as "Workplace Readiness Week"
by providing information to students on their rights as workers, including specified
topics. For students in grades 11 and 12, the "Workplace Readiness Week" '
observances are required to be integrated into the regular school program,
consistent with the history-social science framework, but may also include special
events after regular school hours. For more information on “Workplace Readiness
Week," see BP 6142.94 - History-Social Science Instruction.

¢. The development of the American economic system, including the role of the
entrepreneur and labor
CSBA NOTE: The following item is required pursuant to Education Code 51220, as |
amended by AB 1871 (Ch. 810, Statutes of 2024).

d. Personal financial literacy

d_e. The relations of persons to their human and natural environments, including
the wise use of natural resources (Education Code 51221)
e—f. Eastern and western cultures and civilizations

CSBA NOTE: Pursuant to Education Code 51220, instruction related to human rights issues, as
provided in Item #2f2g below, may include the study of the Armenian genocide. Education Code
51226.3 encourages the incorporation of oral testimony into instruction in human rights, the
Holocaust, and genocide, including the Armenian, Cambodian, Darfur, and Rwandan genocides. In
accordance with Education Code 33540.4, model curriculum related to Cambodian American
history and heritage is available on CDE’s, “Model Curricula and Curriculum Guides,” webpage.

139




Education Code 51221.1, as added by SB 1277 (Ch. 890, Statutes of 2024), created the California
Teachers Collaborative for Holocaust and Genocide Education, which established a statewide
teacher professional development program on genocide, including the Holocaust, to ensure that
genocide education is taught consistent with the current content standards, curriculum frameworks

interdisciplinary and age-appropriate to students of different grade levels. Additionally, pursuant to
Education Code 51221.2, as added by SB 472 (Ch. 761, Statutes of 2025), CDE is required to
establish a grant program for direct allocations to districts to enable them provide resources and
opportunities and professional development for Holocaust and genocide education. In addition,
Education Code 51221.2 requires CDE to provide to districts serving students in grades 7-12, a
notice clarifying the requirements of Education Code 51220 as related to the understanding of
human rights issues, with particular attention to the study of the inhumanity of genocide, slavery,
and the Holocaust.

£ g Human rights issues, with particular attention to the study of the inhumanity
of genocide, which may include, but is not limited to, the Armenian, Cambodian,
Darfur, and Rwandan genocides, slavery, and the Holocaust (Education Code
51221.2,51226.3)

. CSBA NOTE: Education Code 51220, as amended by AB 1821, requires, to the
extent instruction is provided on the Spanish colonization of California or the Gold
Rush Era for grades 7-12, to include the treatment and perspectives of Native
Americans during those periods.

Pursuant to Education Code 51226.3, as amended by AB 1821, when SBE adopts

- new history-social science instructional materials, the Instructional Quality
Commission (IQC) is required to consider including content on the treatment and
perspectives of Native Americans during the periods of the Spanish colonization of

h. _To the extent instruction is provided on the Spanish colonization of California or the
Gold Rush Era, the treatment and perspectives of Native Americans during those
periods

g Contemporary issues

3. World language(s): understanding, speaking, reading, and writing, beginning not later than
grade 7 (Education Code 51220)

4. Physical education: with emphasis on physical activities conducive to health and vigor of
body and mind, as required by Education Code 51222 (Education Code 51220)

5. Science: physical and biological aspects; emphasis on basic concepts, theories, and
processes of scientific investigation and on the place of humans in ecological systems; the
causes and effects of climate change, the methods to mitigate and adapt to climate change:
and appropriate applications of the interrelation and interdependence of the sciences
(Education Code 51220)

140



| CSBA NOTE: Pursuant to Education Code 33547.5, as amended by SB 1410 (Ch. 476,

| Statutes of 2024), the 1QC is required to consider including in the mathematics curriculum
| framework that students in grade 8 be offered the opportunity to take an Algebra | or

| Mathematics | course that is aligned to the content standards adopted by SBE.]

6. Mathematics: mathematical understandings, operational skills, and problem-solving
procedures; algebra (Education Code 51220, 51224.5)

7. Visual and performing arts: dance, music, theatre, and visual arts, with emphasis upon
development of aesthetic appreciation and creative expression (Education Code 51220)

8. Applied arts: consumer education, family and consumer sciences education, industrial arts,
general business education, or general agriculture (Education Code 51220)

9. Career technical/vocational-technical education: in the occupations and in the numbers
appropriate to the personnel needs of the state and community served and relevant to the
career desires and needs of students (Education Code 51220)

health and HIV prevention instruction at least once in middle school or junior high school and at
least once in high school. SeeFor components of such instruction and required opt-out procedures,
see BP/AR 6142.1 - Sexual Health and HIV/AIDS Prevention Instruction fer required components
of suel instrueton

10. Comprehensive sexual health and HIV prevention (Education Code 51225.36, 51934)

CSBA NOTé:Education Code 51202 réquires that certain health-related topics be addressed aE “ihe_
appropriate elementary and secondary grade levels" during grades Kkindergarten-12. Districts may
revise itemltem #11 below to indicate topics that will be addressed in grades 7-12.

Education Code 51203 requires the Board to adopt regulations specifying the grade(s) and course(s)
in which drug and alcohol education will be given. For language fulfilling this mandate, see AR
5131.6 - Alcohol and Other Drugs.

11. Personal and public safety, accident prevention and health, including instruction in:
(Education Code 51202, 51203)

a. Emergency first aid, hemorrhage control, treatment for poisoning, resuscitation
techniques, and CPR when appropriate equipment is available

education for high school graduation;. For more information regarding high school graduation
requirements, see BP 6146.1 - High School Graduation Requirements. Pursuant to Education Code
51225.6, such districts are required to include instruction in performing compression-only
cardiopulmonary resuscitation (CPR), as described below. Such instruction must be based on
national evidence-based emergency cardiovascular care guidelines for the performance of
compression-only CPR, such as those developed by the American Heart Association or the

141




American Red Cross, and must include hands-on practice in compression-only CPR. On its website,
CDE provides guidance on how to implement this requirement.

Education Code 51225.6 also encourages districts to provide students with general information on
the use and importance of an automated external defibrillator.

Instruction shall be provided in compression-only CPR based on national guidelines
and shall include hands-on practice (Education Code 51225.6)

b. Fire prevention

c. The protection and conservation of resources, including the necessity for the
protection of the environment

d. Venereal disease

e. The effects of alcohol, narcotics, drugs, and tobacco upon the human body

f. Prenatal care for pregnant individuals

g. Violence as a public health issue

CSBA NOTE: Education Code 51925 requires districts that offer a health education course to high
school students to include mental health instruction, as specified in ltem #11h. Districts that offer a
health education course to high school students should include Item #11h, and may be deleted or
revised by districts that do not offer such a course.

Pursuant to Education Code 51929 requires, CDE te develephas developed a plan to expand
mental health instruction, and has ereated a webinar; “Studentposted, "Education Code 51925:

Mental Health Instruction Expansion Education implementation: Why; What & Hew" availablePlan,’
on its website.

= = — — ————

h. Mental Health, that provides for reasonably designed instruction on the overarching

themes and core principles of mental health, which includes: (Education Code
51925)

i. Defining the signs and symptoms of common mental health challenges

ii. Explaining evidence-based services and supports that effectively help
individuals manage mental health challenges

142



"

vi.

vii.

Promoting mental health wellness and protective factors, including positive
development, social and cultural connectedness and suppaortive relationships,
resiliency, problem solving skills, coping skills, self-esteem, and a positive
school and home environment in which students feel comfortable

Identifying warning signs of common mental health problems in order to
promote awareness and early intervention so that students know to take
action before a situation turns into a crisis, including how to obtain assistance
from the district or the community for themselves or others and evidence-
based and culturally responsive practices that are proven to help overcome
mental health challenges

Connecting the importance of mental health to overall health and academic
success and to co-occurring conditions, such as chronic physical conditions,
chemical dependence, and substance abuse

Conveying an awareness.and appreciation about the prevalence of mental
health challenges across all populations, races, ethnicities, and socioeconomic
statuses, including the impact of race, ethnicity, and culture on the
experience and treatment of mental health challenges

4 w
Understanding the stigma surrounding mental health challenges and what
can be done to overcome stigma, increase awareness, and promote
acceptance, including, to the extent possible, classroom presentations of
narratives by trained peers and other individuals who have experienced
mental health challenges and how they coped with their situations, including
how they sought help and acceptance : I

Mental health instruction offered by the district shall: {Education Code
51926)

3

~
L

1. Be appropriate for use with students of all races, genders, sexual
orientations, ethnic and cultural backgrounds, students with
disabilities, and English learners

P Ty
Y o

2. Be accessible to students with disabilities, including, but not limited
to, providing a modified curriculum, materials, and instruction in
alternative formats, and auxiliary aids

3. Not reflect or promote bias against any person on the basis of any
category protected by Education Code 220

4, Be coordinated with any existing on-campus mental health providers
including, but not limited to, providers with a pupil personnel services
credential, who may be immediately called upon by students for
assistance

143




Students receiving mental health instruction shall not be required
to disclose their confidential health or mental health information

at any time in the course of receiving the instruction. (Education
Code 51927)

" CSBA NOTE: The following paragraph is for use by districts that require a course
in health education for high school graduation. Beginning with the 2026-27
school year, Education Code 51225.38, as added by AB 2429 (Ch. 67, Statutes
of 2024), requires such districts to include instruction in the dangers associated
with fentanyl use in such a course. For more information regarding health
education, see AR 6142.8 - Comprehensive Health Education.]

viii. Starting with the 2026-27 school year, the dangers associated with fentanyl use
(Education Code 51225.38)

CSBA NOTE: Item #12 is optional. Education Code 51220.3 authorizes age-
appropriate instruction on violence awareness and prevention within any area of
study listed above for grades 7-12.

12. Violence awareness and prevention

CSBA NOTE: Pursuant to Education Code 51226.7, the State Board of Education (SBE) has adopted
a model curriculum in ethnic studies upon which districts may offer an elective course in social
sciences or English language arts in at least one year during grades 9-12.

Subject to funding in the annual Budget Act or other statute, Education Code 51225.3 requires a
one-semester course in ethnic studies for high school graduation beginning with students who
graduate in the 2029-30 school year. At its discretion, a district may require a full-year course.
Districts that require a full-year course should revise ltem #13 accordingly. A student who
completes a course in ethnic studies will also accrue credit for coursework in the subject that the
course is offered, including, if applicable, credit towards satisfying a course required for graduation.

Iitem #13 is eurrently eptional; but; conditional upon the Legislature appropriating funding for
ethnic studies courses. If funding is appropriated, districts will be required to offer a one-semester
ethnic studies course, as specified; beginning in the 2025-26 schoeol year.

13. Ethnie studies

Comrmencing in the 2025-26 school year, the district shall offer a eneA one-semester course
in Ethnic studies, which may be any one of the following: (Education Code 51225.3)

a. A course based on the model curriculum developed pursuant to Education Code
51226.7

b. An existing ethnic studies course

c. An ethnic studies course taught as part of a course that has been approved as
meeting the University of California (UC)/California State University (CSU) A-G
requirements

144



CSBA NOTE: Even though there is a model ethnic studies curriculum develoged by
IQC and adopted by SBE as described above, districts may locally develop an ethnic
studies course pursuant to Education Code 51225.3. Education Code 51225.3 ‘
| expresses leglslatlve mtent that boards choosmg to locally develop an ethnic studies

due to concerns related to bias, bigotry, and and discrimination.]

d. A locally developed ethnic studies course approved by the Governing Board

Such a course shall first be presented at an open Board meeting, and approved only
after a subsequent open Board meeting at which the public has had the opportunity
to express its views on the proposed course

For the courses described in [tems #13a-d above, the curriculum, instruction, and
instructional materials shall: (Education Code 51225.3)

(i) Be appropriate for use with students of all races, religious, nationalities,
genders, sexual orientation, and diverse ethnic and cultural backgrounds,
students with disabilities, and English learners

(ii) Not reflect or promote, directly or indirectly, any bias, bigotry, or
discrimination against any person or group of persons based on any category
protected by Education Code 220

(iii) Not teach or promote religious doctrine

CSBA NOTE: Pursuant to Education Code 51225.3, the district is required, commencing in
the 2027-28 school year, to offer a one semester course in personal finance. Additionally,
Education Code 51225.3, authorizes districts to exempt a student who completes a

any other course, from ﬂE graduation requnrement to complete a one-semester course in
economics.

| Pursuant to Education Code 51226.8, I1QC is required to develop and recommend to SBE a
curriculum guide and resources for a separate, stand-alone one-semester course in personal
finance that is not combined with any other course.

14. Commencing in the 2027-28 school year, a separate, stand-alone one-semester course in

personal finance (Education Code 51225.3)

CSBA NOTE: Education Code 51220.5 requires the equivalent content of a one-semester course in
parenting skills and education in grade 7 and/or 8, subject to funding which was not subsequently

appropriated; thus the following paragraph is currently optional.

In addition, the course of study for grade 7 and/or 8 may include parenting skills and education,
including, but not limited to, child growth and development, parental responsibilities, household

budgeting, child abuse and neglect issues, personal hygiene, maintenance of healthy relationships,

teen parenting issues, and self-esteem. (Education Code 51220.5)

CSBA NOTE: The following paragraph is for use by districts that maintain high schools.

High schools shall offer automobile driver education that includes instruction in: (Education Code

51220, 51220.1, 51220.4)

145




1. Vehicle Code provisions and other relevant state laws

2. Proper acceptance of personal responsibility in traffic

3. Appreciation of the causes, seriousness, and consequences of traffic accidents
4. Knowledge and attitudes necessary for the safe operation of motor vehicles

5. The safe operation of motorcycles

6. The dangers involved in consuming alcohol or drugs in connection with the operation of a
motor vehicle

7. The rights and duties of a motorist as they pertain to pedestrians and the rights and duties
of pedestrians as they pertain to traffic laws and traffic safety

Certification of College Preparatory Courses
CSBA NOTE: The following optional section is for use by districts that maintain grades 9-12 and
may be revised to reflect district practice. Among the criteria for admission to the University of
California (UC) or California State University (CSU) system is a requirement that students
satisfactorily complete 15 yearlong/30 semesters of specified courses ("A-G" courses). In order to
qualify as an "A-G" course, the course must first be submitted to and approved by UC. The district
or school should develop course descriptions using the templates provided by UC and submit them |
through UC's online system.

e ——————
x
1
|

Education Code 51225.37 encourages districts that offer world language courses specifically
designed for native speakers to submit those courses to UC for certification and addition to the
school's "A-G" course list.

The following paragraph may be revised to reflect the position in the district or school(s) that is
responsible for submitting and updating "A-G" courses.

The Superintendent or designee shall identify district courses that may qualify for designation as "A-
G" college preparatory courses, including courses in history-social science, English, mathematics,
laboratory science, languages other than English, visual and performing arts, career technical
education, and college preparatory electives. The Superintendent or designee shall submit any
necessary information regarding each identified course to UC for "A-G" designation.

Notification and Information Sharing Related to Students in Grades 9-12

| CSBA NOTE: The following section is for use by districts that maintain grades 9-12. f

At the beginning of each school year, the Superintendent or designee shall provide, as part of the
annual notification required pursuant to Education Code 48980, written notice to

146



parents/guardians of students in grades 9-12 that, to the extent possible, shall not exceed one page
in length and that includes all of the following: (Education Code 51229)

1. Abrief explanation of the course requirements for admission to UC and CSU

CSBA NOTE: The UC maintains a searchable website that lists certified "A-G" courses for all regular
California public high schools.

2. Alist of the current UC and CSU websites that help students and their families learn about
college admission requirements and that list high school courses that have been certified by
UC as satisfying the requirements for admission to UC and CSU

3. Abrief description of what career technical education is, as defined by the California
Department of Education (CDE)

4. The Internet address for the portion of CDE's website where students can learn more about
career technical education

5. Information about how students may meet with school counselors to help them choose
courses that will meet college admission requirements and/or enroll in career technical
education courses

parents/guardians pursuant to Education Code 51229, as amended by SB 153 (Ch. 38,
Statutes of 2024).

6. A separate and distinct disclosure, in accordance with 20 USC 1232g, the federal Family
Education Rights and Privacy Act of 1974 (FERPA), that data may be shared with the
California College Guidance Initiative (CCGI) to provide students and their parents/guardians

with direct access to online tools and resources for college and career planning

7. Contact information for the CaliforniaColleges.edu platform in order to access resources
that help students and their parents/guardians learn about college admissions requirements

CSBA NOTE: Pursuant to Education Code 60900, g_s__an;m_ded by SB 153, districts are requii'ed to, 1

on or before January 1, 2026, enter into a data sharing agreement with the California College

shares specified data with CCGI. The district is required to include in the annual notification to
parents/guardians a distinct notification that data may be shared with CCGI for specific purposes;
see AR 5125 - Student Records and E(1) 5145.6 - Parent/Guardian Notifications.

In order to provide data needed to improve student achievement and accomplish other specified

goals, the Superintendent or designee shall submit student transcript information for grades 9-12
students to CCGI and shall comply with other program requirements specified in Education Code
60900.5. (Education Code 60900)

CSBA NOTE: Education Code 51225.8 requires districts to provide specified information on how to
properly complete and submit the Free Application for Federal Student Aid (FAFSA) or the California

147




Dream Act Application (CADAA), as appropriate, at least once before grade 12. At the district's
discretion, the information provided may be disseminated through in-class instruction, an existing
program, family information sessions, group or individual sessions with school counselors, or other
appropriate means.

The Superintendent or designee shall provide information to students and parents/guardians
regarding the completion and submission of the Free Application for Federal Student Aid (FAFSA)
and/or the California Dream Act Application (CADAA) at least once before grade 12. (Education
Code 51225.8)

| CSBA NOTE: Pursuant to Education Code 51225.8, as amended by SB 153, districts are required to |
advise students in grade 11 to complete the grade 11 financial aid lessons on CCGl'’s
CaliforniaColleges.edu platform. The district may disseminate the information provided through in-
class instruction, an existing program, family information sessions. group or individual sessions with
school counselors, or other appropriate means.

The Superintendent or designee shall advise each student in grade 11 to complete the grade 11
financial aid lessons on CCGl's CaliforniaColleges.edu platform. (Education Code 51225.8)

Financial Aid Requirements for Students in Grade 12

CSBA NOTE: Pursuant to Education Code 51225.7, the district is required to confirm that each
student in grade 12 completes and submits a FAFSA to the U.S. Department of Education and/or, if
a student is exempt from paying nonresident tuition, a CADAA to the Student Aid Commission
(CSAC), unless there is an exception as specified below, To enable educators to ensure that each
student has successfully completed and submitted a FAFSA or CADAA, Education Code 51225.7; as
amended by SB 114 (Ch: 48. Statutes of 2023). requires CSAC to provide data to the Califernia
College Guidanee InitiativeCCGI to inform reports available through CaliforniaColleges.edu.

Pursuant to Education Code 51225.7, CSAC adopted regulations, available on its website, that
include model opt-out forms and acceptable use policies for the purpose of providing guidance on
the protection of student and parent/guardian data.

The California Student Opportunity and Access Program (Cal-SOAP) is a CSAC outreach program
that seeks to improve access to postsecondary education and financial aid for low-income and first-
generation students in underserved regions by providing students and parents/guardians with
guidance on financial aid and college admissions to make higher education accessible and
affordable. CSAC's website includes toolkits available for school staff who support students in their
financial aid process, including applying for the FAFSA and CADAA.

The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that each student in grade 12 completes and submits a
FAFSA to the U.S. Department of Education or, if a student is exempt from paying nonresident
tuition, a CADAA to the Student Aid Commission (CSAC), unless either: (Education Code 51225.7)

1. The student's parent/guardian, emancipated minor, or student age 18 years or older submits
an opt-out form to the district

2. If the district determines that a student is unable to complete a requirement of Education
Code 51225.7, the district shall exempt the student or the student's parent/guardian from
148



completing the FAFSA, CADAA, or opt-out form and shall complete and submit an opt-out
form on the student's behalf and notify the student’s parent/guardian of the student's
exemption

‘ ' CSBA NOTE: Pursuant t to Education Code 512257, as amended by AB 2165 (Ch. 702, Statutes of
‘ 2024), the district is required to provide the student and the student's parent/guardian with
specified information before being exempted from the requirement to complete a FAFSA or

Before a student or the student's parent/guardian is exempted from the requirement to complete
the FAFSA or CDAA, the district shall provide a student and the student’s parent/guardian with the
following information: (Education Code 51225.7)

1. The purposes and benefits of the FAFSA or CADAA, which include consideration for
financial aid

2. The conseguences of not completing and submitting a FAFSA or CADAA

3. The option to complete a FAFSA or CADAA after an opt-out form has been submitted

The information provided in ltems #1-3 above shall be provided: (Education Code 51225.7)

1. To the student through a meeting between a school counselor and the student or, if no
school counselor is employed at the school, between the student and other school staff,
through written material, or by other means of communication

2. To the student‘s p_arent/guardian or the student when required, and shall include

taken

This notice shall be provided with sufficient time for the student or parent/guardian to act before
the district opts out the student.

The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that each high school student in grade 12, and if
applicable, the student's parent/guardian, beis directed to any support and assistance necessary to
complete the FAFSA and/or CADAA that may be available through outreach programs, including,
but not limited to, programs operated by CSAC, postsecondary immigration resource centers,
college readiness organizations, community-based organizations, and/or legal resource
organizations. (Education Code 51225.7)

Information shared by students and parents/guardians in completing and submitting the FAFSA
and/or CADAA shall be handled in compliance with the federal Family Rights and Privaey ActFERPA
and applicable state law, regardless of any person's immigration status or other personal
information. (Education Code 51225.7)

’ CSBA NOTE: Pursuant to Education Code 51225 7.as amended gy AB 123 (Ch. 9, Statutes of ‘
2025), beginning with the 2025-26 school year, the Board is required to provide each student and
student’s parent/guardian with information about, and potential eligibility for, the California Kids
Investment and Development Program.

149




The Superintendent or designee shall provide each student in grade 12, and if applicable, the

student's parent/guardian, with information about, and potential eligibility for, the California Kids

Investment and Development Savings Program. (Education Code 51225.7)

Policy Reference UPDATE Service

Copyright 2025 by California School Boards Association, West Sacramento, California 95691

All rights reserved.

Policy Reference Disclaimer:
These references are not intended to be part of the policy itself, nor do they indicate the basis or authority for

the Governing Board to enact this policy. Instead, they are provided as additional resources for those
interested in the subject matter of the policy.

State
5 CCR 10020

5 CCR 10040-10043
5 CCR 10060

5 CCR 430-438

5 CCR 4940

Ed. Code 200-262.4

Ed: Code 220
e Coade 2341

Ed- Code 2347

Ed- Code 242

Ed. Code 33319.3
Ed. Code 33540
Ed. Code 33540.2

Ed. Code 33540.4

Description
Automobile driver education

Automobile driver training

Criteria for high school physical education programs
Individual student records

Nondiscrimination; course access

R — s | -
institutiensProhibition of discrimination

Bralibiion of dissrimisas

inEiieiisen. and bufli
Stud ’ fating o lnmlevabise and ait i
states

Aceess to information abeut educational laws and pelicies
regarding right to accurate and inclusive eurriculum

Driver education; CDE materials on road rage
Standards for government and civics instruction

Model curriculum related to Vietnamese American refugee
experience

Model curriculum related to Cambodian American history and

Ed. Code 33547.5

Ed. Code 48980
Ed. Code 49060-49079

heritage

Mathematics curriculum framework; Algebra | or Mathematics

offered to students in grade 8

Media literacy and artificial intelligence literacy curriculum
frameworks

Parent/Guardian notifications

Student records



Ed. Code 49110.5

Ed. Code 51202

Ed. Code 51203
Ed. Code 51204
Ed. Code 51204.5
Ed. Code 51210
Ed. Code 51220
Ed. Code 51221.1

Ed.

)

ode 51221.2

Ed. Code 51225.3
Ed. Code 51225.38

Ed. Code 51225.7-51225.8

Workplace readiness week

Instruction in personal and public health and safety
Instruction on alcohol, narcotics and dangerous drugs
Course of study designed for student's needs

History of California; contributions of specified groups
Course of study for grades 1-6

Course of study for grades 7-12

California Teachers Collaborative for Holocaust and Genocide
Education

Holocaust and genocide education; notice, survey, and grant
program

High school graduation requirements

Health education; fentanyl instruction

Completion and submission of the Free Application for Federal

Ed.

)

ode 51226.3

Ed. Code 51226.7
Ed. Code 51226.8
Ed. Code 51229

Ed. Code 51241

Ed. Code 51501

Ed. Code 51911-51921
Ed. Code 51925-51929
Ed. Code 51930-51939

Ed. Code 51940

Ed. Code 60040-60052
Ed. Code 60900-60901

Ed. Code 66204

Ed. Code 69560-69566

Gov. Code 11135

Student Aid and California Dream Act Application

Instruction on civil rights, human rights violations, genocide, slavery,
and the Holocaust

Model curriculum in ethnic studies

Personal finance course; curriculum guide and resources

Notifications related to college admissions and career technical
education

Temporary two-year or permanent exemption from physical
education

Nondiscriminatory subject matter

Comprehensive health education

Mandatory mental health education and in-service training
California Healthy Youth Act

Curriculum for brain and spinal cord injury prevention
Requirements for instructional materials

California Longitudinal Pupil Achievement Data System

Certification of high school courses as meeting university admission
criteria

California Student Opportunity and Access Program

Prohibition of discrimination

151




Gov. Code 12900-12996

Gov. Code 17581.6

Gov. Code 7282-7282.5

Gov. Code 7283-7283.2

Gov. Code 7284-7284.12
H&S Code 11032
Pen. Code 422.55

Federal
20 USC 1232¢g

20 USC 1681-1688

42 USC 2000d-2000d-7

34 CFR 99.1-99.67

Management Resources
Court Case

Court Case

California Department of
Education Publication

RightsCalifornia Attorney General

Publication

CSBA Publication

CSBA Publication

Website

Fair Employment and Housing Act

Reimbursement of state mandates; block grants

Standards for responding to U.S. Immigration and Customs
enforcement holds

Standards for participation in U.S. Immigration and Customs
enforcement programs

Cooperation with immigration authorities
Definition of dangerous drugs
Definition of hate crime

Description
Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA) of 1974

Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972; discrimination based

Sex

Title VI, Civil Rights Act of 1964

S

Family Educational Rights and Privacy

Description

Mahmoud v. Taylor (2025) 606 U.S. (2025 WL 1773627)

Westminster School District of Orange County v. Mendez (1947)
161 F2d 774

Education Code 51925: Mental Health Instruction Expansion
Education Plan, rev. March 2024

(https:/www.cde.ca.gov/Is/mh/documents/mentalhealth.docx)

2023Guidance to School Officials re: Legal Requirements for
Providing Inclusive Curricula and Books
(https:/oag.ca.gov/system/files/attachments/press-
docs/Legal%20Alert%20Re%20Inclusive%20Curricula.1.9.24.1157C
LEAN.pd

Instructional Materials Adoptions: State and local governing board
processes, roles, and responsibilities, February 2024
(https://csba.org/-
/media/CSBA/Files/GovernanceResources/GovernanceBriefs/2024-
REPD-instructional-materials-brief)

Fact Sheet: Instructional Materials Adoption: Local governing board

responsibilities, February 2024 (https:/www.csba.org/-
/media/FactSheet IM-LocalRoles-REPD 07-2024)

California Student Opportunity and Access Program
(https:/www.csac.ca.gov/california-student-opportunity-and-

access-program-cal-soap)

152



Website California College Guidance Initiative (http:/cacollegeguidance.org/)

Website California Kids Investment and Development Savings Program
(https:/calkids.org/)

Website Instructional Quality Commission

Website American Red Cross, Hands-Only CPR Training

Website CSBA District and County Office of Education Legal Services

Website Federal Student Aid

Website American Heart Association

Website California Student Aid Commission

Website University of California, A-G Course Submissions

Website University of California, List of Approved A-G Courses

Website California State University, Admission Requirements

Website California Career Resource Network

Website Department of Justice

Website California Colleges.edu

Website California Department of Education

Website CSBA

Website U.S. Department of Education

Cross References

Code Description

0410 Nondiscrimination In District Programs And Activities

0415 Equity

0460 Local Control And Accountability Plan

0460 Local Control And Accountability Plan

1312.2 Complaints Concerning Instructional Materials

13122 Complaints Concerning Instructional Materials

1312.2-E(1) Complaints Concerning Instructional Materials

13124 Williams Uniform Complaint Procedures

1312.4-E(1) Williams Uniform Complaint Procedures

1312.4-E(2) Williams Uniform Complaint Procedures

1340 Access To District Records

153




1340
3270
3270
3513.3
3513.3
5022
5022
5121
5121
5125
5125
5126
5126
5131.6
5131.6
5138
5141.4
51414
51415
5145.13
5145.13
5145.3
5145.3
5145.6
5145.6-E(1)
5145.7
5145.7
5146
6000
6011
6115

Access To District Records

Sale And Disposal Of Books, Equipment And Supplies
Sale And Disposal Of Books, Equipment And Supplies
Tobacco-Free Schools

Tobacco-Free Schools

Student And Family Privacy Rights

Student And Family Privacy Rights
Grades/Evaluation Of Student Achievement
Grades/Evaluation Of Student Achievement
Student Records

Student Records

Awards For Achievement

Awards For Achievement

Alcohol And Other Drugs

Alcohol And Other Drugs

Conflict Resolution/Peer Mediation

Child Abuse Prevention And Reporting
Child Abuse Prevention And Reporting
Mental Health

Response To Immigration Enforcement
Response To Immigration Enforcement
Nondiscrimination/Harassment
Nondiscrimination/Harassment
Parent/Guardian Notifications
Parent/Guardian Notifications

Sexual Harassment

Sexual Harassment

Married/Pregnant/Parenting Students
Concepts And Roles
Academic Standards

Ceremonies And Observances

154



6115
6141
6141
6141.2
6141.2
61414
6141.5
61421
6142.1
6142.2
6142.2
61423
61424
61425
6142.6
61427
6142.7
6142.8
6142.8
614291
614292
6142.93
614294
6144
6145
6145
6145.8
6146.1
6146.11
6146.11
6146.3

Ceremonies And Observances

Curriculum Development And Evaluation
Curriculum Development And Evaluation
Recognition Of Religious Beliefs And Customs
Recognition Of Religious Beliefs And Customs
International Baccalaureate Program

Advanced Placement

Sexual Health And HIV/AIDS Prevention Instruction
Sexual Health And HIV/AIDS Prevention Instruction .
World Language Instruction

Woaorld Language Instruction

Civic Education

Service Learning/Community Service Classes
Environmental Education

Visual And Performing Arfs Education

Physical Education And Activity

Physical Education And Activity

Comprehensive Health Education

Comprehensive Health Education
Reading/Language Arts Instruction

Mathematics Instruction

Science Instruction

History-Social Science Instruction

Controversial Issues

Extracurricular And Cocurricular Activities o
Extracurricular And Cocurricular Activities
Assemblies And Special Events

High School Graduation Requirements

Alternative Credits Toward Graduation

Alternative Credits Toward Graduation

Reciprocity Of Academic Credit

155




6146.3
6146.5
6151
6152.1
6152.1
6153
6153
6155
6155
6158
6158
6159
6159
6161.1
6161.1
6161.1-E(1)
6161.11
6163.1
6164.2
6172.1
6172.1
6173
6173
6173-E(1)
6173-E(2)
6173.2
6173.2
6173.3
6177
6178
6178

Reciprocity Of Academic Credit

Elementary/Middle School Graduation Requirements

.Class Size

Placement In Mathematics Courses

Placement In Mathematics Courses
School-Sponsored Trips

School-Sponsored Trips

Challenging Courses By Examination

Challenging Courses By Examination

Independent Study .

Independent Study

Individualized Education Program

Individualized Education Program

Selection And Evatuation Of Instructional Materials
Selection And Evaluation Of Instructional Materials
Selection And Evaluation Of Instructional Materials
Supplementary Instructional Materials

Library Media Centers

Guidance/Counseling Services

Concurrent Enrollment In College Classes
Concurrent Enrollment In College Classes
Education For Homeless Children

Education For Homeless Children

Education For Homeless Children

Education For Homeless Children

Education Of Children Of Military Families
Education Of Children Of Military Families
Education For Juvenile Court School Students
Summer Learning Programs

Career Technical Education

Career Technical Education 3

156



6178.1
6178.1
6181
6181
6184
6184

Work-Based Learning
Work-Based Learning
Alternative Schools/Programs Of Choice
Alternative Schools/Programs Of Choice

Continuation Education

Continuation Education

157




CSBA Sample District Policy Manual
CSBA Policy Management Console

Original Adepted Date: 09/01/1987 | ' }Last Revised Date: 12/01/2020 | Last Reviewed
Date:s 12/01/202011/01/25

158






09k

&
b

h




CSBA Sample District Policy Manual
CSBA Policy Management Console

Regulation 6146.2: Certificate Of Proficiency/High School Equivalency Status: ADOPTED

Original Adopted Date: 11/01/2007 | Last Revised Date: 1211/01/26202025 | Last Reviewed
Date: 1211/01/20202025

Certificate of Proficiency

CSBA NOTE: The following administrative regulation is for use by districts that maintain grades 9-
12.

CSBA NOTE: Pursuant to Education Code 48412, the State Board of Education (SBE) will award a
"certificate of proficiency" to persons who pass the California High Sehoel Proficiency Examination
{EHSREProgram (CPP) established by the California Department of Education (CDE) to assess
proficiency in reading, writing, and mathematics skills. A list of test centers and testing dates is
available on the EHSPE web site: As amended by SB 820 (Ch- 110; Statutes of 2020),CPP website.
Education Code 48412 requires CDE to schedule testing dates at least once in the fall semester and
once in the spring semester. The CDE will keepkeeps a permanent record of the issuance of all
certificates.

Pursuant to 5 CCR 11523 requires, the Superintendent is obligated to require the principal of each
high school to distribute information about the exam to students in grades 11-12. A fliyer that may
be used for this purpese is available en EBE's web site in both English and Spanish, At their
discretion, districts may revise the following paragraph to require distribution of such information to
students in grade 10.

The principal of each high school shall distribute to each student in grades 11-12 an announcement
explaining the California High Seheel Proficiency Examination (EHSPEProgram (CPP).
Announcements from the California Department of Education (CDE) or its contractor shall be
distributed early enough to enable interested students to register for the test to be given in the fall
of that year. (5 CCR 11523)

CSBAT\IE)TE: The following optional paragraph reflects GHSP-E—'siFrequently Asked Questions_ P
information on CDE's web sitewebsite.

The principal alse shall adviseAdditionally, students may be advised that the certificate of
proficiency awarded upon passing the CHSRE; whileCPP is equivalent to a high school diploma; is
pot. However, once the eguivalent of completing all courseweork required ferstudent has taken the
CPP, passed the language arts and mathematics subtests and exited high school graduatien and
therefore students should contact the admissions office of the college or university, they are
interestedmay choose to take the remaining High School Equivalency Test (HiSET)-Equivalency
subtests in attending to determine ifscience and social studies to earn their California High School
Equivalency Certificate, which provides more opportunities than the certificate satisfies cellege
admissien requirements:of proficiency does alone.

I

A student may take the GHSRECPP if the student meets one of the following conditions:
(Education Code 48412)

161




1. Is age 16 or older

2. Has been enrolled in the 10th grade for one school year or longer

3. Will complete one school year of enrollment in 10th grade at the end of the semester during
which the EHSPEnext CPP will be administered

If a student receives the certificate of proficiency, the district shall indicate the student's
accomplishment and the date of the award on the student's official transcript. (5 CCR 11521)

CSBA NOTE: Pursuant to 5 CCR 11522, the district must develop a consent form that may be used
by persons receiving the certificate of proficiency to be exempted from compulsory scheel
srteacanes: Ses s sesompanving exbibis iar a somiple concent farmn

Any student who has received the certificate of proficiency may be exempted from compulsory
school attendance upon the student's request, with verified parent/guardian consent as appropriate.
For this purpose, the Superintendent or designee shall provide a consent form which contains at
least the following information: (Education Code 48410; 5 CCR 11522)

1. A general explanation of the student's rights of exemption from compulsory attendance and
of re-enrollment in the public high schools

2. The date of issuance of the certificate of proficiency
3. The signature of the parent/guardian and the date

4. The signature of the school administrator who has personally confirmed the authenticity of
the parent/guardian's signature and the date

H aAny student age, 16- or 17-years of age, who terminates enroliment after receiving the high
sehoelcertificate of proficiency eertificate; the student may re-enroll in the district. ¥ the student If
enrollment is subsequently terminates enrellment terminated again, the student may be denied re-
enrollment until the beginning of the following semester. (Education Code 48414)

High School Equivalency Certificate

CSBA NOTE: Education Code 51420-51427 provide that persons may be awarded the California
High School Equivalency Certificate by taking a general educational development test and receiving

a score that is at least as high as that determined by SBE to be equal to the standard of

performance expected from high school graduates. As ef January 1; 2020, SBE has approved the '
use of two tests for this purpose: (1) the General Educational Development (GED) test adopted by
the General Educational Development Testing Service and (2) the High School Equivalency Test
(HIiSET) provided by the Educational Testing Service.

An eligible person may earnObtaining a high school equivalency certificate byrequires passing of a
general educational development test designated by the State Board of Education pursuant to

162



Education Code 51420, including the General Educational Development (GED) test or the High
Sechool Equivaleney Test {HISET)

Any person is elisible to ke

Anyone taking a test leading to a high school equivalency certificate i the persen is required to be a
resident of California or a member of the armed forces assigned to duty in California and
rmeetsmeet any one of the following criteria: (Education Code 51420; 5 €CR 11532)

1. Is 18 years of age or older; or is within 60 days of the persen's 18th birthday; regardless of
enrolbment status

2. s not currently enrolled in school and is within 60 days of when the persen would\Would
have graduated from high school had the person remained in school and followed the usual
course of study

- Is 17 vearsofage-has been out of school for at least 60 conseecutive days. and provides a
letter of reguest for the test from the military. 8 pestsecondary educational inshitution or a
prospective employer

3. 17 years of age; has accumulated fewer than 100 units of high school credit, and is confined
to a state or county hospital or to an institution maintained by a state or county correctional
facility; and meets other eriteria listed in 5 CER 11532

4. |Is 17 years of age, has accumulated fewer than 100 units of high school credit prior to
enrollment in an academic program offered by a dropout recovery high school as definred in
Education Coede 52052; and has successfully completed the dropout recovery high school's
state standards alignhed instructional program which is aligned te state standards; offers the
opportunity for completion of the requirements for a high school diploma; and prevides
services for at least one year of instruction or instruction followed by services related to the
academic program

Policy Reference UPDATE Service

Copyright 2025 by California School Boards Association, West Sacramento, California 95691

All rights reserved.

Policy Reference Disclaimer:

These references are not intended to be part of the policy itself, nor do they indicate the basis or authority for
the Governing Board to enact this policy. Instead, they are provided as additional resources for those
interested in the subject matter of the policy.

State Description

5CCR 11520-11523 Proficiency examination and certificate
5 CCR 11530-11532.5 High school equivalency certificate

Ed. Code 48400-48403 Compulsory continuation education

Ed. Code 48410 Exemption from continuation education

163




Ed. Code 48412
Ed. Code 48413
Ed. Code 48414
Ed. Code 51420-51427
Ed. Code 52052

Management Resources
Website

Website
Website
Website

Website

Website

Website

Cross References

Code
4112.2

4112.2
5112.1
21121
5113.2
5113.2
5125

5125
5145.6
5145.6-E(1)
5147

Certificate of proficiency

Enrollment in continuation classes

Reenrollment in district

High school equivalency certificates

Accountability; numerically significant student subgroups

Description
CSBA District and County Office of Education Legal Services

High School Equivalency Test
General Educational Development Test
California High School Proficiency Examination

(https:/hiset.org/)

California Department of Education, High School Equivalency
Tests

California Department of Education, California High Scheoel
Proficiency Examination Proficiency Program

(https:/www.cde.ca.gov/ta/tg/cp.asp)

California Department of Education, California High School
Equivalency FAQ

(https:/www.cde.ca.gov/ta/tg/gd/)

Description
Certification

Certification

Exemptions From Attendance
Exemptions From Attendance
Work Permits

Work Permits

Student Records

Student Records
Parent/Guardian Notifications
Parent/Guardian Notifications

Dropout Prevention

164



6146.1
614611
6146.11
6146.3
6146.3
6164.2
6178
6178
6184
6184
6200
6200

"

., -
H '

High School Graduation Requirements

Alternative Credits Toward Graduation

Alternative Credits Toward Graduation ~

Reciprocity Of Academic Credit
Recipraocity Of Academic Credit
Guidance/Counseling Services
Career Technical Education “
Career Technical Education
Continuation Education
Continuation Education

Adult Education

Adult Education

165




CSBA Sample District Policy Manual
CSBA Policy Management Console

Exhibit 6146.2-E(1): Certificate Of Proficiency/High School Equivalency Status: ADOPTED

Original Adopted Date: 12/01/2020 | Last Revised Date: 11/01/2025 |Last Reviewed Date:
1211/01/20202025

CSBA NOTE: The following exhibit is for use by districts that maintain grades 9-12. Pursuant to
Education Code 48410, any student who passes the California High Seheel Proficiency
ExaminatienProgram and receives a certificate of proficiency may be exempted from compulsory
school attendance upon request by the student and, if the student is under age 18 years, with the
consent of the student's parent/guardian. 5 CCR 11522 requires the district to develop a consent
form for this purpose. The following exhibit may be revised to reflect district practice.

NOTICE AND CONSENT TO DISCONTINUE SCHOOL ATTENDANCE FOR STUDENTS WITH A
CERTIFICATE OF PROFICIENCY

Notice of Student Rights: Students who pass the California High Sehesel Proficiency Examination
{CHSPE)Program and receive a Certificate of Proficiency issued by the State Board of Education
may continue to attend school, but upon request will be exempted from compulsory school
attendance pursuant to Education Code 48410. If the student is under 18 years of age, the
student's parent/guardian must also provide approval in order for the student to discontinue school
attendance.

If the student leaves school after reeeivingon the basis that the student received a Certificate of
Proficiency and is under 18 years of age, the student may later decide to re-enroll in the district with
no adverse consequences: in this ease if the student is under 18 years of age. However, the student
may be required to meet new or additional requirements established since the student was
previeusly enrelled: I the student disenrolled. Additionally, if after re-enrells andenrolling the
student then leaves school again, the student may be denied re-admittance until the beginning of
the following semester.

For further information about leaving school after obtaining the Certificate of Proficiency, contact
the principal or school guidance counselor.

Student's name:

School:

Date on which the Certificate of Proficiency was issued:

To be completed by student: | understand the rights granted to students who are awarded the
Certificate of Proficiency to disenroll from school, and to re-enroll if desired before the age of 18. |
hereby notify the school district of my intent to disenroll from school.

166



Student's signature: Date: .

To be completed by parent/guardian: | hereby grant consent for my minor child to disenroll from
school.

Parent/guardian’'s name (please print):

Signature: Date:

To be completed by school administrator: | hereby verify the parent/guardian's signature and date
recorded above.

Name of school administrator (please print):

Position:

Signature: Date:

Policy Reference UPDATE Service
Copyright 2025 by California School Boards Association, West Sacramento, California 95691
All rights reserved.

Policy Reference Disclaimer:

These references are not intended to be part of the policy itself, nor do they indicate the basis or authority for
the Governing Board to enact this policy. Instead, they are provided as additional resources for those
interested in the subject matter of the policy.

State Description

5 CCR 11520-11523 Proficiency examination and certificate

5 CCR 11530-11532.5 High school equivalency certificate

Ed. Code 48400-48403 Compulsory continuation education

Ed. Code 48410 Exemption from continuation education

Ed. Code 48412 Certificate of proficiency

Ed. Code 48413 Enrollment in continuation classes

Ed. Code 48414 Reenrollment in district

Ed. Code 51420-51427 High school equivalency certificates

Ed. Code 52052 Accountability; numerically significant student subgroups
Management Resources Description

Website CSBA District and County Office of Education Legal Services
Website High School Equivalency Test

167




Website General Educational Development Test
Website California High School Proficiency Examination

(https:/hiset.org/)

Website California Department of Education, High School Equivalency
Tests
Website California Department of Education, California High Sehoe!

Proficieney Examination Proficiency Program

(https:/www.cde.ca.gov/ta/tg/cp.asp)

Website California Department of Education, California High School
Equivalency FAQ

(https:/www.cde.ca.gov/ta/tg/gd/)

Cross References

Code Description

4112.2 Certification

4112.2 Certification

5112.1 Exemptions From Attendance

51121 Exemptions From Attendance

5113.2 Work Permits

5113.2 Work Permits

5125 Student Records

5125 Student Records

5145.6 Parent/Guardian Notifications
5145.6-E(1) Parent/Guardian Notifications

5147 Dropout Prevention

6146.1 High School Graduation Requirements
6146.11 Alternative Credits Toward Graduation
6146.11 Alternative Credits Toward Graduation
6146.3 Reciprocity Of Academic Credit
6146.3 Reciprocity Of Academic Credit
6164.2 Guidance/Counseling Services

6178 Career Technical Education

6178 Career Technical Education

168



Discussion/Action Item
Exhibit; V.7
Date: 1.13.26

SAN PASQUAL VALLEY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

Y s

TITLE:

The Superintendent recommends approval of updated CSBA Recommend policies and
procedures Section 7000 Concepts and Roles and BP 7131 Relations with local agencies

EXPLANATORY STATEMENT: \

Board Policy 7000 - Concepts and Roles

Policy updated as part of CSBA's process to regularly review policy documents that otherwise would not
be revised, due to no applicable changes to law, regulations, new guidance, or other directives, and
amended to clarify that (1) one of the major responsibilities of the Governing Board, in addition to
providing healthful, safe and adequate facilities that enhance the instructional program, is to provide
facilities that align with the needs of the district, and (2) in some instances, the best use of facilities may
be reuse by a third party, and in other instances, may be lease or sale. Additionally, policy updated to
clarify that, in order to plan for long-range facilities needs, the Superintendent or designee may develop,
for Board approval, a school facilities master plan in accordance with Board Policy 7110 - Facilities
Master Plan and that, in accordance with the plan, the Board will (1) select and purchase school sites for
future expansion, as needed, and facilities for new school sites or other district use, (2) sell or lease
facilities, including joint occupancy or joint use, when no other better use is identified, (3) authorize the
use of school facilities by district residents and community groups, and (4) consider the use of district
property for workforce housing.

Board Policy 7131 - Relations with Local Agencies

Policy updated to add that (1) the Governing Board is required to meet with appropriate local agency
recreation and park authorities to review possible methods of coordinating the planning, design, and
construction of new school facilities and school sites, or major additions to existing school facilities and
recreation and park facilities in the community, and (2} the district is required to recommend measures for
inclusion in the city/county general plan to ensure the availability of adequate school facilities to address
a new development. Additionally, policy updated to clarify material related to development within the
district, including that in order to adequately mitigate additional students generated by such development,
the Board may make certain findings required by law and that upon such findings, notify the city council
or county board of supervisors. In addition, policy updated to add material related to a district workforce
housing development.

STAFF MEMBERS INVOLVED:
Karen Medel, EAS and Richard Cordero, Superintendent

FISCAL IMPACT:
None

SOURCE OF FUNDING:
N/A

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Approve updated CSBA Recommend policies and procedures Section 7000 Concepts and Roles
and BP 7131 Relations with local agencies

PREPARED AND SUBMITTED BY:

Karen Medel, Executive Assistant to the Superintendent

REVIEWED BY:

Richard Cordero, M.Ed.,Superintendent




CSBA Sample District Policy Manual
CSBA Policy Management Console

Policy 7000: Concepts And Roles Status: ADOPTED

Original Adopted Date: 09/01/1988 | Last Revised Date: 0211/01/19962025 | Last Reviewed
Date: 0211/01/49962025

The Governing Board recognizes that one of its major responsibilities is to provide healthful, safe
and adequate facilities that enhance the instructional program: and align with the needs of the
district. The Board shall endeavor to make the provisien of adeguateprovide and maintain high-
quality school facilities a prierity in the distriet: that support the district’s educational program.
Because the schools serve as a focal point for the community, the Board shall alse strive to ensure
thatprovide district facilities fit harmeniously and attractively inte theirthat are compatible with
surrounding neighborhoods and have the flexibility of design to meet future educational and

haverecognizes that, in some instances, the best use may be reuse by a third party, and in other
instances, may be lease or sale.

In order to plan for long-range facilities needs, the Superintendent or designee may develop, for
Board approval, a school facilities master plan in placeaccordance with Board Policy 7110 -
Facilities Master Plan, and regularly reviewedreview such plan in light of the district's educational
goals. In accordance with this plan, the Board shall:

1. Approve additions or major alterations to existing buildings

2. Determine what new buildings shall be built, when and where, and what equipment shall be
purchased for them

3. Determine the method of financing that will be used

4. Select and purchase school sites for future expansion, as needed, and facilities for new
school sites or other district use

e

Sell or lease facilities, including via joint occupancy or joint use, when no other better use is
identified

5 6. Approve the selection of architects and structural engineers

6 7. Award contracts for design and construction

170




6184
6184
6200
6200

Continuation Education
Continuation Education
Adult Education
Adult Education

169



8. Authorize the use of school facilities by district residents and community groups in
accordance with Board Policy/Administrative Regulation 1330 - Use of School Facilities

9. Consider the use of district property for workforce housing

& 10. Advocate school facility needs to the community

The Superintendent or designee shall:

1. Assess the district's short- and long-term faeilityfacilities needs

2. Direct the preparation and updating of the facilities master plan

3. Oversee the preparation of bids and awardawarding of contracts

4. Supervise the implementation of the district's building program in accordance with the
master plan, Board policy, and state and local requirements, including collaboration with the
architect and contractor on the construction of new facilities and modernization of existing
facilities

5. Represent the district in official governmental interactions related to the building program

Policy Reference UPDATE Service

Copyright 2025 by California School Boards Association, West Sacramento, California 95691

All rights reserved.

Policy Reference Disclaimer:

These references are not intended to be part of the policy itself, nor do they indicate the basis or authority for
the Governing Board to enact this policy. Instead, they are provided as additional resources for those
interested in the subject matter of the policy.

State Description

5 CCR 14001 Minimum standards for school facilities

5 CCR 14010 Procedure for site acquisition

5 CCR 14030 Preliminary procedure, planning, and approval of school
facilities

5 CCR 14031-14032 Submissions to bureau of school facilities planning; approval

Ed. Code 17210-17224 School Sites; general provisions

Ed. Code 17260-17268 Plans and specifications for school facilities

Ed. Code 17280-17317 Field Act; approval of plans and supervision of construction

Ed. Code 17340-17343 Building of schoolhouses

Ed. Code 17350-17360 Factory-built school buildings

Ed. Code 17365-17374 Field Act; fitness for occupancy; liability of board members

Ed. Code 17400-17429 Leasing of school buildings

171




Ed. Code 17515-17526 Joint occupancy

Ed. Code 17527-17535 Joint use

Ed. Code 38130-38139 Civic Center Act

Management Resources Description

Website CSBA District and County Office of Education Legal Services
Cross References

Code Description

0440 District Technology Plan

1330 Use of School Facilities

1330.1 Joint Use Agreements

3311 Bids

3311 Bids

33111 Uniform Public Construction Cost Accounting Procedures
3311.1 Uniform Public Construction Cost Accounting Procedures
3311.2 Lease-Leaseback Contracts

3311.3 Design-Build Contracts

3470 Debt Issuance And Management

7110 Facilities Master Plan

7111 Evaluating Existing Buildings

7431 Relations With Local Agencies

7140 Architectural And Engineering Services

7140 Architectural And Engineering Services

7150 Site Selection And Development

7150 Site Selection And Development

7210 Facilities Financing

7310 Naming Of Facility

9000 Role Of The Board

172



| and school sites, or major additions to existing school facilities and recreation and park facilities. For

CSBA Sample District Policy Manual
CSBA Policy Management Console

Policy 7131: Relations With Local Agencies Status: ADOPTED

Original Adopted Date: 02/01/1996 | Last Revised Date: 11/01/20032025 | Last Reviewed
Date: 11/01/20042025

CSBA NOTE: Education Code 35275 requires the Board te meet with lecal park and recreation
authorities to coordinate planning; design and censtruction of new scheol facilities and school sites
or major additions to existing school facilities and recreation and park facilifies: see AR 7150 - Site
Selection and Development: In addition; Government Code 653522, as added by AB 1367 (Ch-
authorizing meetings between these ageneies to diseuss methods of coordinating planning, design
and construction of facilities:

CSBA NOTE: The following optional Board policy may be revised to reflect district practice.
Districts are generally authorized to cooperate and/or coordinate their activities or services with
other local agencies, including cities, counties, and special districts, as necessary to maximize

efficient use of resources.

The Governing Board recognizes the importance of collaborating and communicating with other
local agencies in order to provide the best possible school facilities and to allocate facility resources
in an effective and efficient manner. The Board and district staff shall consult and coordinate with
local agencies as required by law, and wherevershall utilize the expertise and resources of
thesesuch agencies ean assist when useful to the district in the planning, design, and construction
of facilities.

CSBA NOTE: Education Code 35275 requires ﬁ Governing Board f_o meet with local park and
recreation authorities to coordinate the planning, design, and construction of new school facilities

Selection and Development. Additionally, Government Code 65352.2 encourages collaboration
between districts, cities, and counties by authorizing meetings between those agencies to discuss
methods of coordinating the planning, design, and construction of facilities.| \

The Board shall meet with the appropriate local agency recreation and park authorities to review all
possible methods of coordinating the planning, design, and construction of new school facilities and
school sites, or major additions to existing school facilities and recreation and park facilities in the
community. (Education Code 35275)

Fellewing Upon receiving notification by a eity er eounty of proposed action to adopt or
substantially revise a city of county general plan, the Board may request a meeting with the local
planning agency to discuss possible methods of coordinating planning, design, and construction of
new school facilities and school sites. (Government Code 65352.2)

173




CSBA NOTE: Government Code 65995, as amended by SB 50 (Ch: 407, Statutes of 1998)
essentially repeals; until 2006, the Mira/Hart/Murrietta line of case law which had sranted cities of
eounties the authority to deny development prejects based on a determination as to whether the
schools were adequate te meet the demands created by the development: Although that autherity
has been repealed; districts may still wish to encourage eiies/counties to include language in the
city/eounty general plan regarding adequacy of school facilities so that the language is in place upon
the expiration of 5B 58's restrictions. The fellowing paragraphs are ephonal

| CSBA NOTE: Because new developments could |mpact the adequag{ of school facilities to support
student population, the district should maintain regular communication with city/county planning
officials to ensure that considerations of adequacy of school facilities and other public facilities
essential to development are included in city/county planning. Without this, the district may lack
necessary funds to provide adequate school facilities, since the imposition of any fee, charge, or
other requirement for the construction or reconstruction of school facilities is prohibited pursuant
to Government Code 65995, unless it is a school impact fee specifically authorized by Education
Code 17620.

The Superintendent or designee shall monitor land development proposals within district
boundaries and shall ensure that an exchange of accurate information is maintained with
city/county planning staff regarding the impact of land development on the district's educational
programs and facility needs. When necessary, the district shall recommend measures for inclusion in
the city/county general plan to ensure the availability of adequate school facilities to address the
new development.

Recognizing that available funds may not suffice to eliminate overcrowding in district schools
caused by new development, the Board urges the city/county to adopt in its general plan or other
appropriate planning documents, to the extent permitted by law, a provision which ensures that
adequate school facilities will be available.

Notifications to Other Local Agencies
' CSBA NOTE: For new residential development. Government Code 65971 requires the Board, upon '

|
making the findingsa finding described below by clear and convincing evidence, to notify the city |
| council or board of supervisors of the city or county in which the district is located: ¥ the eity
|
\

eeuneﬂ or beard of supervisors eoneurs in these findings;such finding. Government Code 65972

| requires that the development be denied unless specific everriding factors exist o the city or

‘ county, by ordinance and as a condition of approval, imposes specific land and/or fee requirements

- on the developer to fund interim classroom facilities: Altheugh Gevernment Code 65972 and
65972 may have been preempted by the provisions, or specific overriding factors exist which, in SB
50; itthe judgment of the city or county, justify approval of the development. It is recommended
that; if the conditions exist; districts make the findings below andwith guestions about requiring
developer land dedication or levying fees consult CSBA's District and County Office of Education
Legal Services or district legal counsel; as appropriate.

174



Fheln order to adequately mitigate the additional students generated by new development within
the district, the Board shall netify the eity council or county beard of supervisors whenever it
findsmay make a finding, based on clear and convincing evidence: , that: (Government Code 65971)

1. That conditions of overcrowding, as defined in Government Code 65973, exist in one or
more attendance areas within the district which will impair the normal functioning of the
educational programs, and the reason for the existence of those conditions

2. That all reasonable methods of mitigating conditions of overcrowding have been evaluated
and no feasible method for reducing those conditions exists

The abeove notice shall specity the mitgation measures considerad by the districtard.
such a finding, the Board shall notify the city council or county board of supervisors of such finding.
The notice shall include a completed application to the Office of Public School Construction for
preliminary determination of eligibility for school construction under applicable state law.
(Government Code 65971)

' CSBA NOTE: Government Code 53094 has leng autherizedauthorizes Boards to render; by a 2/3
vete of its members; a city or county zoning ordinance inapplicable to a proposed use of property by

j the district, as long as the propesed use of the property is for elassreomexcluding nonclassroom
facilities: See E 9323:2 - Actions by the Board: However; (such as warehouses, administrative
buildings, and automotive storage and repair buildings). as long as (1) the property lies within the

| geographical jurisdiction of the district in accordance with Government Code 53094; as amended

by AB 1367 (Ch. 396, Statutes of 2001}, now reguires that: prier to taking such anaeien /1 -
(2) if applicable, the district must retifynotifies the city or county planning commission of the
acquisition of a new school site {in accordance with Public Resources Code 21151.2), (3) if
applicable, the district notifies the city or the adeptiencounty planning commission or agency prior
to completion of a facilities needs analysis ef, master plan {, or other long-range plan that relates to
the expansion of existing school sites or necessity to acquire new school sites in accordance with

pursuant to Government Code 53097.3, a district may not render a city or county ordinance
inapplicable to a charter school facility unless that facility is physically located within the

" geographical jurisdiction of the district. For more information on Board action to render a zoning
ordinance inapplicable, see E(1) 9323.2 - Actions by the Board.
The Superintendent or designee shall notify the appropriate city or county planning agency of the
adoption of a school facility needs analysis e¥; facilities master plan; or other long-range plan; the
acquisition of a school site; er; and any other action regarding school facilities, in accordance with
law.

District Workforce Housing Development

| CSBA NOTE: Lb_;; following section is op_tio_hal aj_q may be revised to reflect district bs:aéﬁce.

| real property owned by a district if the housing development satisfies certain criteria. A housing

175




development that meets the requirements of Government Code 65914.7 is deemed consistent,
compliant, and in conformity with local development standards, zoning codes or maps, and the
' general plan. Land used for the development of workforce housing in accordance with Government
Code 65914.7 may be jointly used or jointly occupied by the district and any other party. For more
information related to developing education workforce housing, see CSBA's, "Education Workforce

Housing.” available on its website.

The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that the use of district-owned real property for
workforce housing is consistent with the criteria specified in Government Code 65%914.7.

Policy Reference UPDATE Service

Copyright 2025 by California School Boards Association, West Sacramento, California 95691

All rights reserved.

Policy Reference Disclaimer:

These references are not intended to be part of the policy itself, nor do they indicate the basis or authority for
the Governing Board to enact this policy. Instead, they are provided as additional resources for those
interested in the subject matter of the policy.

State Description

14 CCR 15000-15285 Implementation of California Environmental Quality Act of
1970

5 CCR 14010 Procedure for site acquisition

Ed. Code 17280-17317 Building approvals

Ed. Code 17620 Imposition of school impact fees on development

Ed. Code 35275 New school planning; cooperation with recreation and park
authorities

Gov. Code 53090-53097.5 Regulation of local agencies by counties and cities

Gov. Code 65300-65303.4 Authority for and scope of general plans

Gov. Code 65352.2 Communicating and coordinating of school sites

Gov. Code 65850-65863.11 Adoption of regulations

Gov. Code 65914.7 Local educational agencies; housing development projects

Gov. Code 65970-65981 School facilities

Gov. Code 65995-65998 Developer fees

Pub. Res. Code 21000-21177 California Envifonmental Quality Act of 1970

Management Resources Description

Website Education Workforce Housing

(https:/www.csba.org/GovernanceAndPolicyResources/Educ
ation-Workforce-Housing)

176



Website CSBA District and County Office of Education Legal §ervices

Website Department of General Services, Office of Public School
Construction
Website California Department of Education, School Facilities

Cross References

Code Description

1160 Political Processes

1330.1 Joint Use Agreements

3510 Green School Operations

35111 Integrated Waste Management

3511.1 Integrated Waste Management

7000 Concepts And Roles

7110 Facilities Master Plan

7150 Site Selection And Development h
7150 Site Selection And Development

7210 Facilities Financing .
7211 Developer Fees

7211 Developer Fees

9323.2 Actions By The Board

9323.2-E(1) Actions By The Board

177




Discussion/Action Item
- Exhibit; V.8
Date: 1.13.26
SAN PASQUAL VALLEY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

TITLE:

The Superintendent recommends approval of updated CSBA Recommend Board Bylaw 9310 —
Board Policy and Board Bylaw/Exhibits 9321 — Closed Session

EXPLANATORY STATEMENT:

Board Bylaw 9310 - Board Policies )
Bylaw updated to reflect current Board policy development and adoption process practice. Additionally,
bylaw updated to include new "Definitions" section which more clearly defines the use of "Board policy,"
"Board bylaw," and "administrative regulation." In addition, bylaw updated to add section headers to
differentiate between the development and adoption of Board policies versus administrative regulations.
Bylaw also updated to delete the section "Monitoring and Evaluation” and include that content in the new
"Board Policy Development and Adoption" section.

Board Bylaw 9321 - Closed Session -

Bylaw updated to add (1) that public comment is required to occur prior to closed session, and (2) that a
copy of a document that becomes public after action was taken during closed session be provided to any
person who has made a standing request for all documentation as part of a request for notice of meeting,
in addition to providing such document to any person present at the conclusion of the closed session who
has submitted a written request. Additionally, bylaw updated to reflect NEW ATTORNEY GENERAL
OPINION which states that only a person with "an official or essential role to play in a particular closed
session"” agenda item 'may attend closed session for that particular item, and to add new section
"Attendance in Closed Session" to address who is permitted to attend a particular closed session item. In
addition, bylaw updated to clarify that for purposes of a closed session agenda item on personnel matters
that "employee" includes an officer or independent contractor who functions as an officer or employee
but excludes Governing Board members and other independent contractors. Bylaw also updated to clarify
that disclosure of an approved agreement concluding labor negotiations identify the item approved and
the other parties to the negotiation. Additionally, bylaw updated to reflect NEW LAW SB (1445, 2024)
which authorizes the Board to allow student board members to make restorative justice recommendations
that would be considered in closed session expulsion hearings. In addition, bylaw updated to reflect NEW
LAW AB (2715, 2024) which authorizes the Board to hold a closed session with additional types of law
enforcement or security personnel and to hold a closed session on a threat to critical infrastructure
controls or critical infrastructure information.

Exhibit{1) 9321 - Closed Session

Exhibit updated in conjunction with the accompanying bylaw, with minor revisions.

Exhibit(2) 9321 - Closed Session

Exhibit updated in conjunction with the accompanying bylaw, with minor-revisions.

STAFF MEMBERS INVOLYED:

Karen Medel, EAS and Richard Cordero, Superintendent

FISCAL IMPACT:

None

SOURCE OF FUNDING:

N/A

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Approve updated CSBA Recommend Board Bylaw 9310 — Board Policy and Board
Bylaw/Exhibits 9321 — Closed Session




PREPARED AND SUBMITTED BY:

Karen Medel, Executive Assistant to the Superintendent

REVIEWED BY: .

Richard Cordero, M.Ed.,Superintendent




CSBA Sample District Policy Manual
CSBA Policy Management Console

Bylaw 9310: Board Policies Status: ADOPTED

Original Adopted Date: 06/01/1999 | Last Revised Date: 6711/01/20182025 | Last Reviewed
Date: 0711/01/20482025

.CSBA NOTE: The foilcmng optional by_law may_be re\}iéed to _re;lect district practicé.

Definitions

The Governing Board shall adept written policies to convey its expectations for actions that will be
parents/guardians, volunteers, contractors, visitors, and others shall abide while attending or
participating in the distrietdistrict programs or activities, on district property, or otherwise within
the jurisdiction of the district. Additionally, Board policies clarify the roles and responsibilities of the
Governing Board and Superintendent, and communicate Board philosophy and pesitiensvalues to
students, staff, parents/guardians, and the community.

Fhe Board Board bylaws are specific Board policies that govern the operations of the Board and
establish the rights and obligations of Board members.

Administrative regulations, which shall enrsurenot be inconsistent with Board policies, are written
rules that distriet peliciesimplement Board policies or prescribe the operations and administration
of the district. In case of conflict between an administrative regulation and a Board policy, the
Board policy, or applicable portion thereof, shall prevail.

Board policies and administrative regulations shall align with the district's vision and goals, promote
student learning and achievement, provide for consistent and fair treatment of students and staff,
and proactively address equity and the provision of equal access to opportunities for all students.

CSBA NOTE: State and federal laws mandate that districts develep peliey erenact Board policies or |
administrative regulations on numerous topics:, with certain Board policies or administrative }
|

|

|

|

regulations being mandated only if specific conditions apply. CSBA maintains a list of mandated
pelicies and conditionally mandated Board policies and administrative regulations, and also

indicates througheutin its sample pelicy manual instances where pelieyBoard policies and
administrative regulations when certain language is mandated: or conditionally mandated.

The Board recognizes the importance of maintaining a peliey manualBoard policies and
administrative regulations that isare up to date and refleetsreflect the mandates of law. Board
policies areor administrative regulation shall be binding en the distriet to the extent that they do not
conflict with federal or state law and are consistent with the district's collective bargaining
agreements. No Board policy; bylaw; or administrative regulation, or any portion thereof, shall be

178




operative if it is found te bethe Superintendent determines, based on advice of district legal
counsel, it is in conflict with applicable federal or state law or regulations or court decisions.
HHowever, any portion of a Board policy is feund te be invalid; that invalidibyor administrative
regulation so determined to be inoperative shall not affect the operability of other provisions of the
Board policy:

Policies shall be regularly reviewed at a Hime allocated for this purpose on the agenda of publie
Beard meetings: or administrative regulation.

Board Policy Development and Adoption

CSBA NOTFE:CSBA NOTE: In general, the process of policy review is not specified in state law.
} However, Education Code 35160.5 requires that district policies pertaining to intradistrict open
| enrollment and extracurricular/cocurricular activities be reviewed annually.

The following section describes the basic steps in the policy development process and mayshould
' be revised to reflect district practice. CSBA offers a variety of policy services designed to assist the
' governance teamteams with this process, including reviewcomprehensive reviews of district pelicy
ranuals; policies and policy development workshops fer individual districts and conserta of
The Board shall review certain policies annually; as required by Education Code 35160-5. I no
conducted: Other policies shall be monitored and reviewed as specified in the poliey itself er as
recded to reflect chanees in law or district circumstances.

Policy Bevelopment and Adeption Precess

services.
 The district's policy development p;eeessﬂwg Board shall includeregularly review Board policies and

shall do so at Board meetings or Policy Committee meetings, as applicable. Additionally, the Board
shall annually review the policies specified in Education Code 35160.5. If no revisions are deemed

was conducted. Other Board policies shall be monitored and reviewed as specified in the Board
policy itself or as needed to reflect changes in law or district circumstances.

The following basie steps: shall be used to develop, propose, and adopt a new Board policy or
revisions to an existing Board policy:

1. The Board and/or Superintendent or designee shall identify the need for a new peliey o
revision of an existing policy: The need may arise from a change in law; a new district vision
statement; Rew goals in the local control and accountability plan; educational research or

179




trends; an incident that has arisen in the district; or a recommendation of request from staft
a parept/guardian; or other interested persen:or revised Board policy

2. As needed, the Superintendent or designee shall gather fiscal data, staff and public input,
related districtBoard policies or administrative regulations, sample Board policies from the
California School Boards Association er ether erganizations or ageneies, legal advice, and
other useful information and data te fully inform the Board abeut a particular issue:

3. The Board may held agendize one or more discussions during or presentations with respect
to the need for a publie new or revised Board meeting to gain an understandingpolicy

As part of the issuethose discussions or presentations, the Board may request additional
information or research and may provide iritial direction to the Superintendent or designee:
Fhe regarding how to proceed with proposing a new or revised Board policy, including a
request for review by district legal counsel.

CSBA NOTE: Once a new or revised Board policy is drafted, it is common for it to be agendized at
two different meetings, with the first time (often referred to as the “first read”) being for public
input and Governing Board discussion may inelude; but net be limited to; community expectations;
stalf recemmendations: and the expected impoct of the poliey an student learning and well-being:

| equity; governaneethe second time (often referred to as the “second read”) being for further
discussion, if warranted, and the distriet's fiscal reseureesBoard action. This approach is reflected in
Item #4, below and eperational efficieney: should be modified to reflect district practice.

4. The Board or Superintendent may request that legal counsel review the draft policy as
appropriate:

%m&mmmmmmmama—mWWEM
- reading is generally net required by law se it may be waived by the Beard: The following paragraph

5 4. The Superntendent o desionee shall develop and present a dreaft policy for a first
reading at a public Board meeting. At its second reading: the Board may take action on the
propesed peliey: Once drafted, the proposed new or revised Board policy shall be agendized
at two separate Board meetings, with the first for public input and Board review and
direction, and the second for further discussion, if warranted, and Board action

The Board may waive or modify any of the second reading or may require an additional reading if
neeessary-above requirements on a case-by-case basis.

OnlyAll Board policies shall be formally adopted by a majority vote of the Board shall censtitute

The district's policy development process may be revised or expanded as needed based on the issue

being considered; the need for more information; or the desire to provide greater opportunities for

180



Pelieies Board policies shall become effective upon Board adoption or at a future date if so
designated by the Board at the time of adoption.

Board Bylaws

procedures as those used for the adoption or amendment of Beard poliey:

dniblitative Ragulst

anel Beard pelicy and shall be desigaed to promote the achievernent of district soals and sbiectives,
Administzative resulations may deseribe specific actions to be taken roles and responsibilifies of
procedures manuals; handbeooks; or other guides to carry out the intent of Board poliey:

When Board policies are amended: the Superintendent or designee shall review corresponding
administrative regulations to ensure that they conform to the intent of the revised poliey In case of
conflict between administrative regulation and Beard policy, pelicy shall prevail

The Board may review and/or approve administrative regulations for the purpose of ensuring
conformity with the intent of Beard policy:

Maniedngsnd Eosdit

At any time, the Board and Superintendent or designee may determine that progress reports to the
Board on the implementation and/or effectiveness of thea Board policy sheuld be scheduledare

necessary. If so, the Board and Superintendent or designee shall agree upon a timeline and, as
applicable, measures for evaluating the effectiveness of the Board policy in achieving its purpose.

Aceess to Pelicies Administrative Regulation Development and Approval

| CSBA NOTE: It is common for the _Sﬂy_perintendent_g designee to be solely responsible for E

development and approval of administrative regulations. This approach is reflected below and
should be modified to reflect district practice.

The Superintendent or designee shall be responsible for the development and approval of
administrative regulations.

When new Board policies are created or existing Board policies are revised, the Superintendent or
designee shall, as necessary create or revise any applicable administrative regulations to ensure

To carry out the intent of the Board, the Superintendent or designee may, in addition to developing
and approving administrative regulations, develop procedures manuals, handbooks, or other guides.

181




Access

CSBA NOTE: Districts that usesubscribe to CSBA's GAMUT Policy Plus service are able to update
their peliey manual eanand provide public access their district's policy manual and ether legal and
management reseureesto their Board policies, administrative regulations, and related documents,
such as exhibits, through their GAMUT Policy Plus site.

The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that all district employees and the public have aecess
te an up-to-date district policy manual: The pelicy manual shall be maintained electronically and/or
by paper eepy-

other stakeholders whenever o poliey that affects them is adepted or revised: He/she may
en the distriet's web site when required by law: easy and free access to all Board policies,
administrative regulations, and, as applicable, related documents.

Policy Reference UPDATE Service

Copyright 2025 by California School Boards Association, West Sacramento, California 95691

All rights reserved.

Policy Reference Disclaimer:

These references are not intended to be part of the policy itself, nor do they indicate the basis or authority for
the Governing Board to enact this policy. Instead, they are provided as additional resources for those
interested in the subject matter of the policy.

State Description

Ed. Code 35010 Control of district; prescription and enforcement of rules

Ed. Code 35160 Authority of governing boards

Ed. Code 35160.5 Intradistrict open enroliment

Ed. Code 35163 Official actions, minutes, and journal

Ed. Code 35164 Actions by majority vote

Management Resources Description

Website CSBA District and County Office of Education Legal Services
Website CSBA, Policy Services, including Policy Update Service,

Governance and Management Using Technology (GAMUT
Online), Policy Review Program, Individual D

Cross References

182



0000

0100

0415

0460

0460

0500

1112

1113

1113
1313-E(1)
1220

1220

1340

1340

2000

2210
4112.9
4112.9-E(1)
4141

4143
42129
4212.9-E(1)
4241

4243
4312.9
4312.9-E(1)
5116.1
5116.1
5145.6

* Vision -
Philosophy
Equity L
Local Control And Accountability Plan
Local Control And Accountability Plan
Accountability
Media Relations
District And School Websites
District And School Websites
District And School Websites
Citizen Advisory Committees
Citizen Advisory Committees
Access To District Records
Access To District Records
Concepts And Roles
Administrative Discretion Regarding Board Policy
Employee Notifications
Employee Notifications
Collective Bargaining Agreement
Negotiations/Consultation
Employee Notifications
Empl'oyee Notifications
Collective Bargaining Agreement
Negotiations/Consultation
Employee Notifications
Employee Notifications
Intradistrict Open Enroliment
Intradistrict Open Enroflment

Parent/Guardian Notifications

183




5145.6-E(1)
6000

6020

6020

6141

6141

6145

6145

9000

9005

9130

9320

9322

9323
9323.2
9323.2-E(1)

Parent/Guardian Notifications

Concepts And Roles

Parent Involvement

Parent Involvernent

Curriculum Development And Evaluation
Curriculum Development And Evaluation
Extracurricular And Cocurricular Activities
Extracurricular And Cocurricular Activities
Role Of The Board

Governance Standards

Board Committees

Meetings And Notices

Agenda/Meeting Materials

Meeting Conduct

Actions By The Board

* Actions By The Board

184



CSBA Sample District Policy Manual
CSBA Policy Management Console

Bylaw 9321: Closed Session Status: ADOPTED

Original Adopted Date: 12/01/2014 | Last Revised Date: 1211/01/20232025 | Last Reviewed
Date: 4211/01/20232025

CSBA NOTE: The Governing Board may held aonly meet in closed session enby for purposes
expressly authorized by the Brown Act (Government Code 54950-54963), Government Code
3549.1, or by a provision of the Education Code. Prior to recessing to closed session, the Brown Act
requires the Board to disclose the items to be discussed in closed session either verbally or by
reference to the items as they are described in the posted agenda. Consistent with the Brown Act,
the accompanying Exhibit (1) provides specific language for most types of closed session items.
Additionally, whenever the Board meets in closed session, the Brown Act generally requires the
Beardit to publicly repert anyreconvene in open session following closed session to disclose, either
orally or in writing, each action taken in closed session and the vote, recusal, or abstertienabsence
on thateach action of every member present.. Consistent with the Brown Act, the accompanying
Exhibit (2) provides specific language for reperting eut endisclosing closed session items in open
session following the closed session.

The Governing Board is committed to complying with state open meeting laws and modeling
transparency in its conduct of district business. The Board shall held ameet in closed session during
a regular, special, or emergency meeting only for purposes authorized by law.

Each agenda shall contain a general description of each closed session item to be discussed at the
meeting as required by law and provided in the accompanying Exhibit (1). (Education Code 35145;;
Government Code 54954.2, 54954.5, 54957)

In the open session preceding the closed session, the Board shall disclose the items to be discussed
in closed session as specified in this bylaw. The Board maychair, who is either the Board president
or the Board member chairing the meeting at the time if the Board president is absent, shall either
verbally state the infermation enclosed session items listed in the agenda or refer the public to the
closed session item(s) as listed by number or letter erin the agenda. In the closed session, the Board
mayshall consider only those items covered in its statement. (Government Code 54957, 54957.7)

CSBA NOTE: Pursuant to Education Code 35145.5 and Government Code 54954.3, the public is
required to be given an opportunity to directly address the Board on any agenda item of interest to
the public, including closed session items, either before or during the Board's consideration of the
item. As the public is not permitted to attend closed session, such an opportunity for public

Agenda/Meeting Materials and BB 9323 - Meeting Conduct.

Prior to closed session, members of the public shall be given an opportunity to address the Board

185




on any closed session item in the agenda in accordance with Board Bylaw 9322 - Agenda/Meeting
Materials and Board Bylaw 2323 - Meeting Conduct. (Education Code 35145.5; Government Code
54954.3)

After the closed session, the Board shall reconvene in open session before adjourning the meeting
and, when applicable, shall publiely disclose any actions taken in the closed session, the votes or
abstentions thereon, and other disclosures as specified in this bylaw. Such repertsdisclosures may
be made in writing or orally at the location announced in the agenda for the closed session as
required by law and provided in the accompanying Exhibit (2). (Education Code 32281;
Government Code 54957.1, 54957.7)

CSBA NOTE: Pursuant to Government Code 54957.1, a document approved or adopted in closed
session must be provided to any person who has submitted a written request within 24 hours of the
posting of the agenda or who has made a standing request for all documentation as part of a
request for meeting notices pursuant to Government Code 54954.1 or 54956.

When an action taken during a closed session involves final approval or adoption of a document,
such as a contract or settlement agreement, that becomes public upon such approval or adoption,
the Superintendent or designee shall immediately provide a copy of the document to any person
present at the conclusion of the closed session who has submitted a written request: i the action
taken results in ene or meremade a standing request for all documentation as part of a request for
notice of meetings. (Government Code 54957.1)

If, when adopting or approving a document during closed session, substantive amendments are
required to finalize the document, the Superintendent or designee shall make the document
available the next business day or when as soon as the necessary changes to the document are
completed. Whenever cepies of an appreved agreementsuch a document will not be immediately
released due to an amendment, the Board presidentchair shall orally summarize the substance of
the amendment fer these present atin open session as part of the required disclosures.
(Government Code 54957.1)

Attendance in Closed Session

Each Board member may attend closed session for each agenda item except if the Board member is
required to recuse themselves or is prohibited by law from attending. Additionally, the erd
efSuperintendent may attend closed session for each agenda item, except for personnel matters,
complaints, or charges regarding the elosed session: (Gevernment Code 549571}

Superintendent under Government Code 54957, or to discuss the Superintendent’s compensation
under Government Code 54957.6.

In addition, the Board secretary or designee shall attend closed session for each agenda item to
keep minutes of topics discussed and decisions made. (Government Code 54957.2)

186



CSBA NOTE: The Attorney General has opinéd in 105 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 89 (2022) that only a
person with “an official or essential role to play in a particular closed session” item may attend

are authorized by statute to attend for that particular item (e.g.. district legal counsel for a litigation
item), as reflected in ltem #1, below. Additionally, the opinion provides that anyone else may attend
| if their presence is “essential” to the Board’s ability to conduct its business as it relates to that
particular item (e.g.. dean of discipline for a student matter), as reflected in Item #2. below.

Except as prohibited by law, the following individuals may attend closed session for a particular item

1. District legal counsel, district negotiators, or other district staff authorized by statute to
attend for the particular item

2. Any other individual whose attendance is essential to the Board's ability to conduct its
closed-session business with respect to the particular item

Any other individual shall not attend closed session.

Confidentiality

CSBA NOTE: Pursuant to Gevernment Code 54963, a Board member who discloses confidential
Any person in attendance in closed session shall not disclose information received in a elesed
session may be referred to the local grand jury or may be subject to action in a court of law: For a
definition of confidential information and the actions that may be taken against o Board member if
such information is disclosed; see BBclosed session except as permitted by Board Bylaw 9011 --
Disclosure of Confidential/Privileged Information:

A Board member shall not disclose confidential information received in closed session unless the
Board autherizes the disclosure of that information or the information has been publicly reported by
the District {Government Code 54963) or Board Policy 4119.23 - Unauthorized Release Of
Confidential/Privileged Information, as applicable.

The Board shall not disclose any information that is protected by state or federal law. n
additienAdditionally, no victim or alleged victim of tortious sexual conduct or child abuse shall be
identified in any Board agenda, notice, announcement, disclosure, or report required by the Brown
Act, unless the identity of the person has previously been publicly disclosed. (Government Code
54957.7, 54961)

Personnel Matters: Appointment, Employment, Performance Evaluation, or
Discipline/Dismissal/Release

' CSBA NOTE: Government Code 54957 authorizes the use efBoard to meet in closed
sessienssession to consider and, as applicable, vote on the appointment, employment, evaluation of
performance, discipline, or dismissal of an employee. Consistent with Government Code 54957.1

- and 54957.7, this provision may be interpreted to include a demotion or other change in

187




employment status. Fer the purpese of these elesed sessions; “employee” includes an officer o
' independent contractor whe functions as an officer or employee but excludes Board members: The

While the Attorney General has concluded in 59 Ops.Cal. Atty.Gen. 532 (1976) that it is appropriate
to use a elosed session te discuss and evaluate Superintendentthe Superintendent’s performance:
Hoewever, the Board may not diseuss or aet upen in closed session pursuant to Government Code
54957, Government Code 54957 explicitly prohibits the Board from discussing any proposed
change in the Superintendent’s compensation other than a reduction of compensation that results
from the imposition of discipline under this exception; altheugh such a diseussion. However, the
Board may eeeur undermeet in closed session to discuss the Superintendent’s compensation in
closed session pursuant to Government Code 54957.6; see “Negotiations/Collective Bargaining,”
below.

The Board may held ameet in closed session urder the “persennel exception” to consider the
appointment, employment, performance evaluation, discipline, dismissal, or change in employment
status of an employee. SuehExcept as permitted by law, such a closed session item shall not include
discussion or action on proposed compensation except for a reduction of compensation that results
from the imposition of discipline. {Gevernment Code 54957, 54957 1 Government Code 54957,
54957.1

For the purpose of such an agenda item, "employee" includes an officer or independent contractor
who functions as an officer or employee, but excludes Board members and other independent
contractors. (Government Code 54957)

Personnel Matters: Specific Complaints or Charges

CSBA NOTE: Government Code 54957 authorizes the use efBoard to meet in closed
sessignssession to consider and, as applicable, vote on complaints or charges against an employee,
so long as the district provides the employee with 24-hour notice in advance of the closed session.
Failure to provide such notice will render any action taken by the Board in the closed session null
and void. Determining whether a "specific complaint or charge" is involved is usually fact-specific
and it is recommended that the Board sheuld consult with CSBA's District and County Office of
Education Legal Services or district legal counsel, as appropriate.

In Furtado v. Sierra Community College District, the court held that the term "specific complaints or
charges" as used in Government Code 54957, does not include negative comments in an
employee's performance evaluation. In another decision, Bell v. Vista Unified School District, the court
determined that a presentation to the Board by a district staff member regarding an employee's
violation of a California Interscholastic Federation rule constituted a "complaint or charge" and thus
the employee was entitled to 24-hour notice. Yet another ruling, Morrison v. Housing Authority of the
City of Los Angeles Board of Commissioners, held that when a board rejects its hearing officer's

findings of fact and conducts its own hearing, the employee must be given 24-hour notice.

Furthermore, an Atterney General epinien {in 78 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 218 (1995)) has). the Attorney

188



General clarified that a probationary certificated employee does not have the right to an open
session when the Board is discussing whether to reemploy the employee for a third consecutive
school year. Education Code 44929.21 allewsauthorizes the Board to non-reelect a probationary
certificated employee at the end of the first or second school year as long as written notice is given
in accordance with law. For more information, see AR 4117.6 - Decision Not to Rehire.

The Board may held ameet in closed session to hear complaints or charges brought against an
employee, unless the employee who is the subject of the complaint requests an open session.
Before the Board helds ameets in closed session on specific complaints or charges brought against
an employee, the Superintendent or designee shall ensure that the employee receives written
notice of the right to have the complaints or charges heard in open session. This notice shall be
delivered personally or by mail at least 24 hours before the time of the closed session.
(Government Code 54957)

For the purpose of such an agenda item, "employee" includes an officer or independent contractor
who functions as an officer or employee, but excludes Board members and other independent
contractors. (Government Code 54957)

Personnel Matters: Application for Early WithdrawWithdrawal of Funds in Deferred Compensation
Plan

The Board may held ameet in closed session to discuss an employee's application for early
withdrawal of funds in a deferred compensation plan when the application is based on financial
hardship arising from an unforeseeable emergency due to illness, accident, casualty, or other
extraordinary event, as specified in the deferred compensation plan. (Government Code 54957.10)

Negotiations/Collective Bargaining

' CSBA NOTE: Pursuant to Government Code 54957.6, the Board is authorized to held ameet in

closed session with the district's designated representatives regarding the salaries, salary schedules,
or compensation paid in the form of fringe benefits to its represented and unrepresented
employees, including the Superintendent. However, Government Code 54957.6 explicitly prohibits
the Board from taking final action in closed session on the proposed compensation of one or more
unrepresented employees. Additionally, the Attorney General has concluded in 98 Ops.Cal. Atty.
Gen. 41 (2015) that this exception does not permit the Board to meet in closed session with its
designated representative to discuss the negotiation of a project labor agreement because the
contractors and laborers covered by such an agreement are not district employees.

The Board may meet in closed session to review the Board's position and/or instruct its designated
representative(s) regarding salaries, salary schedules, or compensation paid in the form of fringe
benefits of its represented and unrepresented employees, and, for represented employees, any
other matter within the statutorily provided scope of representation. A closed session item
regarding salaries, salary schedules, or compensation paid in the form of fringe benefits may include
discussions of the district's available funds and funding priorities, but only insofar as they relate to
providing instructions to the Board's designated representative. Final action on the proposed
compensation of one or more unrepresented employees shall not be taken in closed session.
(Government Code 54957.6)

189




FheAdditionally, the Board alse may meet in closed session with a state conciliator who has
intervened in proceedings regarding any of the purposes enumerated in Government Code
54957.6.

CSBA NOTE: Pursuant to Government Code 54957.1, the Board may vote on an agreement
regardingconcluding labor negotiations in closed session and then wait to publicly repert
afterdisclose the agreement after it is final and has been accepted or ratified by the other party. For
a new collective bargaining agreement, however, it is also common practice for Boards to vote in
open session rather than closed session.

Pursuant to Government Code 54957.1, approval in closed session of an agreement
regardingconcluding labor negotiations with represented employees pursuant to Government Code
54957.6 shall be reperteddisclosed after the agreement is final and has been accepted or ratified by
the other party. The disclosure shall identify the item approved and the other parties to the
negotiation. However, the Board may, at its sole discretion, vote on such an agreement isin open
session. (Government Code 54957.1)

CSBA NOTE: The Educational Employment Relations Act (EERA) (Government Code 3540-3549.3)
lists certain exemptions from the Brown Act related to negotiations. The critical exemption for
districts is that the Brown Act does not apply to a meeting of the Board if the meeting is exclusively
for the purpose of discussing the Board's position regarding any matter within the scope of
representation and determining how to instruct its designated representatives, regardless of
whether its designated representatives attended. If it is combined with another closed session item
and/or an open session item, then the Brown Act applies. It is recommended that the Board utilize
this provision of the EERA sparingly and consult CSBA's District and County Office of Education
Legal Services or legal counsel prior to meeting under this provision.

Pursuant to Government Code 3549.1, the Board may, without following the requirements of the
Brown Act, meet in closed session exclusively for the purpose of discussing its position regarding
any matter within the scope of representation or for the purpose of instructing its designated
representatives. The Board shall not discuss any other item at any sueh items, either in closed
session: or open session, as part of such a meeting. (Government Code 3549.1)

Matters Related to Students

The Board shall meet in closed session to consider an appeal by a parent/guardian of a denial of a
request to amend incorrect, inaccurate, or misleading information in a student record maintained by
the district in accordance with Administrative Regulation 5125.3 - Challenging Student Records.
(Education Code 49070)

CSBA NOTE: FhisThe following seefienparagraph should be revised to reflect district practice.
Education Code 35146; 48912; and 4907048912 permit a Board to consider in closed session any

- diseiplinary action, including discipline (except expulsion) against a student; any other action),

against a student; and a challenge te a student record. The district is required to provide the student |
and the student's parent/guardian with advance notice that the disciplinary action will be

190



considered in closed session and that the parent/guardian may, within 48 hours from receipt of the
notice, request the district to have the item heard instead in a publie open session rather than in
elesed session.. While Education Code 35146; and 48912; and 49070 do not provide the days or
hours prior to the meeting by which the notice to the student and the student's parent/guardian
mustis required to be given, it is recommended that the district notify the student and the student's
parent/guardian at least 72 hours before the meeting, including for special meetings.

If a public hearing would lead to the disclosure of confidential student information such as grades or
discipline information, the Board shall meet in closed session to consider a suspension; disciplinary
any action, any ether achenincluding discipline, against a student, except expulsion; er a ehallenge
to a student record:, At least 72 hours prior to the start of the meeting of which the closed session
is a part, the Superintendent or designee, on behalf of the Board, shall, in writing, by registered or
certified mail or by personal service, notify the student and the student's parent/guardian of the
intent of the Board to hear the item in closed session. If a written request for open session is
received from the student or the student's parents/guardians within 48 hours of receiving the
notice, the meeting shall be public, except that any discussion at that meeting which may be in
conflict with the right to privacy of any other student shall remain in closed session. (Education
Code 35146, 48912; 49670)

expelled. The hearing may be held by the Board, a hearing officer, or an administrative panel. See
BP/AR 5144.1 - Suspension and Expulsion/Due Process.

If the Board conducts an expulsion hearing pursuant to Board Policy 5144.1 - Suspension and
Expulsion/Due Process, the Board shall do so in closed session unless the student submits a written
request at least five days before the date of the hearing that the hearing be held in open session.
Regardless of whether the expulsion hearing is conducted in open or closed session, the Board shall
meet in closed session for the purpose of deliberating and determining whether to expel the
student should be expelled. (Education Code 48918)

CSBA NOTE: Pursuant to Education Code 35012, as amended by SB 1445 (Ch. 327, Statutes of
2024), the Board may authorize a student Board member(s) to make restorative justice
recommendations regarding expulsions if certain conditions are met. The following paragraph is for
districts that have student Board members and should be deleted for districts that do not.

On a case-by-case basis, the student Board member(s) may make restorative justice
recommendations to the Board regarding specific expulsion matters in accordance with Board
Bylaw 9150 - Student Board Members.

CSBA NOTE: Although Education Code 48918 states that student expulsion records are
"nonprivileged, disclosable public records" and the Attorney General in 80 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 85
(1997) has opined that districts mustare required to disclose the student's name, the court in Rim of
the World Unified School District v. San Bernardino County Superior Court held that the federal Family
Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA) (20 USC 1232g) preempts state law and prohibits the

' disclosure of student expulsion records to the public. Failure to comply with FERPA may lead to loss

191




of federal funding. Because of the potential conflict between state and federal law, it is

recommended that districts consult CSBA's District and County Office of Education Legal Services |

- or legal counsel prior to adopting the following paragraph.

In order to protect student privacy rights provided in 20 USC 1232g or other applicable laws, the
identity of a student shall not be listed in the agenda and, unless the item is heard in open session,
shall not be included in any repertdisclosure after closed session. Additionally, a student matter shall
be listed in the open session portion of the agenda with the same description and numbering
system as it was enlisted in the closed session portion of the agenda.

Security Matters

CSBA NOTE: Government Code 54957 permits the Board to meet in closed session with the
Governor, Attorney General, District Attorney, district legal counsel, sheriff or chief of police, or, as
amended by AB 2715 (Ch. 243, Statutes of 2024), other law enforcement or security personnel to
discuss certain threats, as specified below. \

The Board may meet in closed session with the Governor, Attorney General, District Attorney,
district legal counsel, sheriff or chief of police, or their respective deputies; or a security consultant
or aother law enforcement or security eperations managerpersonnel on matters posing a threat to
theany of the following: (Government 54957)

1. The security of public buildings; te the

2. The security of essential public services, including water, drinking water, wastewater
treatment, natural gas service, and electric service; er te the

3. The public's right of access to public services or public facilities: Sueh diseussions may be
held in closed session during an emergency meeting called pursuant to Beard Bylaw 9320 -

4. Critical infrastructure controls or critical infrastructure information relating to cybersecurity

The Board may alse meet in closed session to consult with law enforcement officials on the
development of a plan for tactical responses to criminal incidents and to approve the plan.
(Education Code 32281)

Real Property Negotiations
CSBA NOTE: The Attorney General opined in 94 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 82 (2011) that only three

subjects related to real property negotiations may be considered in closed session: (1) the amount
of consideration the local agency is willing to pay or accept in exchange for the real property rights

192



| to be acquired or transferred;; (2) the form, manner, and timing of how that consideration will be
| paids; and (3) items that are essential to arriving at the authorized price and payment terms.

The Board may meet in closed session with its real property negotiator prior to the purchése, sale,
exchange, or lease of real property by or for the district in order to grant its negotiator authority
regarding the price and terms of payment for the property. (Government Code 54956.8)

Anticipated Litigation/Initiation of Litigation

Based on the advice of its legal counsel, the Board may held ameet in closed session to confer with
or receive advice from #s legal counsel regarding anticipated litigation or whether to initiate
litigation when discussion of either matter in open session would prejudice the district's position
with respect to such litigation. For this purpose, "litigation" meansincludes any adjudicatory
proceeding, including eminent domain, before a court, administrative body exercising its
adjudicatory authority, hearing officer, or arbitrator. (Government Code 54956.9)

' CSBA NOTE: Pursuant to Government Code 54956.9, the district is considered to be a "party,” or to |
have "significant exposure," to litigation if any of its officers or employees is a party or has significant
exposure to the litigation under circumstances specified below.

Litigation is considered to be "anticipated” when, in the Board's opinion based on the advice of s
legal counsel regarding the existing facts and circumstances, there is a significant exposure to
litigation against the district or against a district officer or employee based on prior or prospective
activities or alleged activities during and potentially during the course and scope of that office or
employment. (Government Code 54956.9)

Existing facts and circumstances are limited to the following: (Government Code 54956.9)

1. Facts and circumstances that might result in litigation against the district but which the
district believes are not yet known to potential plaintiff(s)

2. Facts and circumstances including, but not limited to, an accident, disaster, incident, or
transactional occurrence whiehthat might result in litigation against the district, which are
already known to potential plaintiff(s)

3. The receipt of a claim pursuant to the Government Claims Act or a written threat of
litigation from a potential plaintiff

4. A threat of litigation made by a person in an open meeting on a specific matter within the
responsibility of the Board

5. Athreat of litigation made by a person outside of an open meeting on a specific matter
within the responsibility of the Board, provided that the district official or employee
receiving knowledge of the threat made a record of the statement before the meeting

193




CSBA NOTE: Under certain circumstances, Government Code 54954.5 enables multiple anticipated
litigation items to be grouped together into one closed session agenda item so long as the number
of items is listed in the agenda. However, given the complexity and nuance of the different
disclosure requirements for anticipated litigation items, it is recommended that each anticipated
litigation item be listed as a separate agenda item.

In Fowler v. City of Lafayette, the appellate court clarified that when an item is agendized in closed
session based on Item #5 above, then Government Code 54956.9 requires that the statement be
made available to the public. Upon receiving a threat of litigation in such a manner, it is
recommended that the Board sheuld consult with CSBA's District and County Office of Education
Legal Services or district legal counsel as appropriate. The following paragraph should be revised to
reflect district practice.

Each agenda item related to anticipated, or initiation of, litigation shall only contain one such
matter. For an anticipated litigation item that is anticipated based on Items #2, #3, or #5 above, the
agenda item shall also include the facts or circumstances that might result in litigation, the claim or
written threat of litigation, or the record of the threat. However, the agenda item shall not identify
the alleged victim of unlawful or tortious sexual conduct or anyone making the threat on the alleged
victim's behalf, or identify a public employee who is the alleged perpetrator of any unlawful or
tortious conduct upon which a threat of litigation is based, unless the identity of the person has
been publicly disclosed. (Government Code 54956.9)

Existing Litigation

Based on the advice of its legal counsel, the Board may held ameet in closed session to confer with
or receive advice from is legal counsel regarding existing litigation when discussion of the matter in
open session would prejudice the district's position with respect to such litigation. Litigation is
considered to be "existing" when the district has been named a party to the litigation, or a district
officer or employee has been named a party to the litigation based on prior or prospective activities
or alleged activities during the course and scope of that office or employment, including litigation ia
which involves whether an activity is outside the course and scope of the office or employment. For
this purpose, "litigation" reansincludes any adjudicatory proceeding, including eminent domain,
before a court, administrative body exercising its adjudicatory authority, hearing officer, or
arbitrator. (Government Code 54956.9)

Tort, Public, or Workers' Compensation Liability

CSBA NOTE: The following paragraph is for use by districts participating in a joint poWers agency
(JPA) for insurance pooling or in a self-insurance authority.

The Board may meet in closed session to discuss a claim for the payment of tort liability losses,

public liability losses, or workers' compensation liability incurred by a joint powers agency (JPA)

formed for the purpose of insurance pooling or self-insurance authority of which the district is a
member. (Government Code 54956.95)

Joint Powers Agency Issues

194



' CSBA NOTE: Pursuant to Government Code 54956.96, a JPA may adopt a provision, either through
a policy or through the joint powers agreement, authorizing a sehoel distriet Board member serving
on the JPA board to disclose confidential information received during the JPA board's closed session
under the circumstances specified below. Government Code 54954.5 provides an agenda
description for the purpose of this closed session. The following optional paragraph is for use by
districts that participate in a JPA that has adopted such a provision.

When the board of the JPA has so authorized and upon advice of district legal counsel thel ho
Board may meet in closed session in order to receive, discuss, and take action concerning
information that has direct financial or liability implications for the district and that was obtained in
a closed session of a JPA of which the district is a member. Buring the Beard's elosed
sessiepHowever, a Board member serving on the JPA board may only disclose confidential
information acquired during a closed session of the JPA to fellow Board members: if the governing

54956.96})

Review of Audit Report from California State Auditor's Office

| CSBA NOTE: Government Code 54956.75 authorizes the Board to meet in closed session to
discuss a confidential final draft audit report from the California State Auditor's Office. This
authority relates to situations in which a member of the legislature has requested the California
State Auditor's Office to audit a school district. This audit is separate from the annual audit that
districts mustare required to conduct pursuant to Education Code 41020. The law does not
authorize the Board to meet in closed session to discuss the district's annual audit.

Upon receipt of a confidential final draft audit report from the California State Auditor's Office and
before the report has been made public, the Board may meet in closed session to discuss its
response to that report. After public release of the report from the California State Auditor's Office,
any Board meeting to discuss the report shall be conducted in open session, unless exempted from
that requirement by some other provision of law. (Government Code 54956.75)

Review of Assessment Instruments

The Board may meet in closed session to review the contents of any student assessment instrument
approved or adopted for the statewide testing system. Before any such meeting, the Board shall
agree by resolution to accept any terms or conditions established by the State Board of Education
for this review. (Education Code 60617)

Policy Reference UPDATE Service

Copyright 2025 by California School Boards Association, West Sacramento, California 95691

All rights reserved.

Policy Reference Disclaimer:

These references are not intended to be part of the policy itself, nor do they indicate the basis or authority for
the Governing Board to enact this policy. Instead, they are provided as additional resources for those
interested in the subject matter of the policy.

State Description

Ed. Code 35012 Restorative justice

195




Ed. Code 35145 Public meetings

Ed. Code 35145.5 Public Comment

Ed. Code 35146 Closed sessions regarding suspensions

Ed. Code 44929.21 Notice of reelection decision; districts with 250 ADA or more

Ed. Code 48912 Governing board suspension

Ed. Code 48918 Rules governing expulsion procedures

Ed. Code 49070 Challenging student records

Ed. Code 60617 Meetings of governing board

Gov. Code 3540-3549.3 Educational Employment Relations Act

Gov. Code 54950-54963 The Ralph M. Brown Act

Federal Description

20USC 1232g Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA) of 1974

Management Resources Description

Attorney General Opinion 98 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 41 (2015)

Attorney General Opinion 89 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 110 (2006)

Attorney General Opinion 59 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 532 (1976)

Attorney General Opinion 78 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 218 (1995)

Attorney General Opinion 86 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 210 (2003)

Attorney General Opinion 94 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 82 (2011)

Attorney General Opinion 105 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 89 (2022)

Attorney General Publication The Brown Act: Open Meetings for Legislative Bodies, rev.
2003

Court Decision Fowler v. City of Lafayette (2020) 45 Cal.App.5th 68

Court Decision Bell v. Vista Unified School District (2001) 82 Cal.App. 4th
672

Court Decision Fischer v. Los Angeles Unified School District (1999) 70

Cal.App. 4th 87

Court Decision Furtado v. Sierra Community College District (1998) 68
Cal.App. 4th 876

Court Decision Morrison v. Housing Authority of the City of Los Angeles
Board of Commissioners (2003) 107 Cal.App.4th 860

Court Decision Roberts v. City of Palmdale (1993) 5 Cal.App. 4th 363

196



Court Decision Sacramento Newspaper Guild v. Sacramento County Board of

Supervisors (1968) 263 Cal.App. 2d 41
Court Decision San Diego Union v. City Council {1983) 146 Cal.App.3d 947

CSBA Publication The Brown Act: School Boards and Open Meeting Laws, rev.

2023
League of C;ilifornia Cities Publication = Open and Public IV: A Guide to the Ralph M. Brown Act, rev.
’ : July 2010
Website CSBA District and County Office of Education Legal Services
Website League of California Cities
Website ' California Attorney General's Office
Website CSBA
Cross References T o e e
N 4
Code Description
0450 Comprehensive Safety Plan
0450 Comprehensive Safety Plan
1160 Political Processes
1220 Citizen Advisory Committees
1220 Citizen Advis;ry Committees
1312.1 Complaints Concerning District Employees
13121 Complaints Concerning District Employees
13123 ' Uniform Complaint Procedures
1312.3 Uniform Complaint Procedures
1312.3-E(1} Uniform Complaint Procedures
1312.3-E(2) Uniform Complaint Procedures
1340 Access To District Records
1340 Access To District Records
2120 Supgrintendent Recruitment And Selection
2121 Sup;arintendent's Contract
2140 Evaluation Of The Superintendent
3280 Sale Or Lease Of District-Owned Real Property

197




3280
3320
3515
3515
3516
3516
3530
3530
3555
3555-E(1)
4030
4030
4112.6
4112.9
4112.9-E(1)
4115
4115
4118
4118
4119.23
4140
4143
41431
41431
4144
4144
4212.6
42129
4212.9-E(1)

Sale Or Lease Of District-Owned Real Property
Claims And Actions Against The District
C:'ampus Security

Campus Security

Emergencies And Disaster Preparedness Plan
Emergencies And Disaster Preparedn;ss Plan
Risk Management/Insurance

Risk Management/Insurance

Nutrition Program Compliance

Nutrition Program Compliance
Nondiscrimination In Employment
Nondiscrimination In Employment

Personnel Filss

Employee Noftifications

Employee qutiﬁcations
Evaluation/Supervision

Evaluation/Supervision
Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action
Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action
Unauthorized Release Of Confidential/Privileged Information

Bargaining Units

Negotiations/Consultation

Public Notice - Personnel Negotiations
Public Notice - Personnel Negotiations
Complaints

Complaints

Personnel Files

Employee Notifications

Employee Notifications

198




4215
4218
4218
4219.23
4240
4243
42431
42431
4244
4244
43121
4312.6
43129
4312.9-E(1)
4315
4319.23
4340
4344
4344
511342
541342
5117
5117
5119
5125
5125
5125.3
5144
5144

Evaluation/Supetvision

Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action
Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action

Unauthorized Release Of Confidential/Privileged Information
Bargaining Units
Negotiations/Consultation

Public Notice - Personnel Negotiations
Public Notice - Personnel Negotiations
Complaints

Complaints

Contracts

Personnel Files

Employee Notifications

Employee Npoﬂﬁﬁcaﬁons

Evaluation/ Sépewision

Unauthorized Release Of Confidential/Privileged Information
Bargaini‘ng L;nifs

Complaints

Complaints

Interdistrict Attendance

Interdistrict Attendance

Students Expelled From Other Districts
Student Records

Student Records

Challenging Student Records

Discipline

Discipline

199




51441
51441
5144.2

6162.5
6162.51
6162.51
9011
9121
9124
9130
9150
9270
9270-E(1)
9320
9322
9323
9323.2
9323.2-E(1)

Suspension And Expulsion/Due Process
Suspension And Expulsion/Due Process

Suspension And Expulsion/Due Process (Students With
Disabilities)

Student Assessment

State Academic Achievement Tests
State Academic Achievement Tests
Disclost{re Oi: Confidential/Privileged Information
President

Attorney

Board Committees

Student Board Members

Conflict Of Interest

Conflict Of !nterest

Meetings A;nd Notices
Agenda/Meeting Materials
Meeting Conduct

Actions By The Board

Actions By The Board

.

200



CSBA Sample District Policy Manual
CSBA Policy Management Console

Exhibit 9321-E(1): Closed Session Status: ADOPTED

Original Adopted Date: 07/01/2019 | Last Revised Date: 1211/01/20232025 | Last Reviewed
Date: 1211/01/20232025

BOARD MEETING AGENDA DESCRIPTIONS FOR CLOSED SESSION ITEMS
CSBA NOTE: Pursuant to Government Code 54954.2, the agenda for each Governing Board
meeting sustis required to contain a general description of each item to be discussed in closed
session; see the accompanying Board Bylaw. Government Code 54954.5 provides specific agenda
descriptions for most closed session items and that language is, which are reflected below. Where
the law does not provide a specific agenda description for a closed session item, the language
offered below is designed to inform the public of the purpose of the item without breaching ‘
confidentiality. Language in parentheses is for informational purposes only and should not be ‘
included as part of the general description of an item. The district may revise the following ‘
descriptions to reflect district practice and should consult with CSBA's District and County Office of
Education Legal Services or district legal counsel, as appropriate.

ol il g =

The Governing éoérd r?1eéting agenda shall include the following descriph:on of a closed session
item, as applicable:

Personnel Matters

PUBLIC EMPLOYEE APPOINTMENT
Government Code 54957

Title:
(Specify position to be filled}.)

PUBLIC EMPLOYMENT
Government Code 54957

Title:
(Specify position to be filled).)

PUBLIC EMPLOYEE PERFORMANCE EVALUATION
Government Code 54957

Title:
(Specify title of employee being evaluated).)

PUBLIC EMPLOYEE DISCIPLINE/DISMISSAL/RELEASE

201




Government Code 54957
(Due to employee privacy rights, no additional information may be provided.)

SPECIFIC COMPLAINT OR CHARGE AGAINST EMPLOYEE
Government Code 54957
(Due to employee privacy rights, no additional information may be provided.)

EMPLOYEE APPLICATION FOR EARLY WITHDRAWAL OF FUNDS IN DEFERRED
COMPENSATION PLAN

Government Code 54957.10

(No additional information may be provided.)

Negotiations/Collective Bargaining

CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATORS
Government Code 54957.6

District-Designated Representatives:
(Specify names of representatives attending the closed session. If circumstances necessitate the absence
of a specified designated representative, an agent or designee may participate in place of the absent
representative as long as the name of the agent or designee is announced at an open session held prior to
the closed session.)

Employee Organization:
(Specify name of employee organization with which negotiations are being held.)

or

Unrepresented Employee(s):
(Specify position of unrepresented employee(s) who are the subject of the negotiations.)

Matters Related to Students

STUDENT SUSPENSION/OTHER DISCIPLINARY ACTION
Education Code 35146

Tracking/ldentification Number:
(Due to student privacy rights, no additional information may be provided. The district may use other
means to identify the student for record-keeping purposes.)

STUDENT EXPULSION
Education Code 48912

Tracking/ldentification Number:
(Due to student privacy rights, no additional information may be provided. The district may use other

202



means to identify the student for record-keeping purposes.)

STUDENT GRADE CHANGE APPEAL
Education Code 49070

Tracking/ldentification Number:
(Due to student privacy rights, no additional information may be provided. The district may use other
means to identify the student for record-keeping purposes.)

CONFIDENTIAL STUDENT MATTER

Action Under Consideration:
(If the Board is considering a confidential student matter other than those listed above, specify type of
action.)

Tracking/Identification Number:
(Due to student privacy rights, no additional information may be provided. The district may use other
means to identify the student for record-keeping purposes.)

Security Matters

THREAT TO PUBLIC SERVICES OR FACILITIES
Government Code 54957

Consultation With:
(Specify name of law enforcement agency and title of officer, or name of applicable agency representative
and title, with whom the Board will consult.)

DEVELOPMENT/APPROVAL OF TACTICAL RESPONSE PLAN
Education Code 32281

Consultation With:
(Specify name of law enforcement agency and title of officer, or name of applicable agency representative
and title, with whom the Board will consult.)

Real Property Negotiations

CONFERENCE WITH REAL PROPERTY NEGOTIATORS
Government Code 54956.8

Property:
(Specify street address or, if no street address, the parcel number or other unique reference of the real
property under negotiation.)

District Negotiator:

203




(Specify names of negotiators attending the closed session. If circumstances necessitate the absence of a
specified negotiator, an agent or designee may participate in place of the absent negotiator as long as the
name of the agent or designee is announced at an open session held prior to the closed session.)

Party With Whom District Is Negotiating:
(Specify name of party, not agent.)

Under Negotiation:
(Specify whether instruction to negotiator will concern price, terms of payment, or both.)

Anticipated Litigation/Initiation of Litigation

CSBA NOTE: For an anticipated litigation or initiation of litigation closed session item, the district
may be required to provide additional information erin the agenda or in an oral statement prior to
the closed session pursuant to Government Code 54956.9(e)(2)-(5). Boards should consult with
CSBA's District and County Office of Education Legal Services or district legal counsel, as
appropriates).

CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL - ANTICIPATED LITIGATION
Significant exposure to litigation pursuant to Government Code 54956.9(d)(2) or (3)

(If applicable) Existing Facts And Circumstances:

CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL - INITIATION OF LITIGATION
Initiation of litigation pursuant to Government Code 54956.9(d)(4)

(If applicable) Existing Facts And Circumstances:

Existing Litigation

CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL - EXISTING LITIGATION
Government Code 54956.9(d)(1)

Name Of Case:
(Specify by reference to claimant's name, names of parties, or case or claim numbers.)

or

Case name unspecified, as identification of the case would jeopardize service of process or existing
settlement negotiations

Tort, Public, or Workers' Compensation Liability

LIABILITY CLAIMS

204




Government Code 54956.95

Name Of Claimant(s):
(Specify name, except when the claimant is a victim or alleged victim of tortious sexual conduct or child
abuse unless the identity of the person has been publicly disclosed.)

Name Of Agency Against Which Claim Is Made:

Joint Powers Authority Issues

INFORMATION FROM A JOINT POWERS AGENCY WITH DIRECT FINANCIAL OR LIABILITY
IMPLICATIONS FOR DISTRICT

Government Code 54956.96

Name Of JPA:

Discussion Will Concern:
(Specify closed session description used by the JPA.)

Name Of District Representative On JPA beard:
Board:

Review of Audit from State Auditor's Office

AUDIT BY CALIFORNIA STATE AUDITOR'S OFFICE
Government Code 54956.75
(No additional information is required.)

Review of Assessment Instruments

REVIEW OF STUDENT ASSESSMENT INSTRUMENT

Education Code 60617

(Reference resolution in which board agreed to accept the terms or conditions established by rules and
regulations of the State Board of Education.)

Policy Reference UPDATE Service
Copyright 2025 by California School Boards Association, West Sacramento, California 95691
All rights reserved.

Policy Reference Disclaimer:

These references are not intended to be part of the policy itself, nor do they indicate the basis or authority for
the Governing Board to enact this policy. Instead, they are provided as additional resources for those
interested in the subject matter of the policy.

State Description
Ed. Code 35012 Restorative justice
Ed. Code 35145 Public meetings

205




Ed. Code 35145.5

Ed. Code 35146

Ed. Code 44929.21

Ed. Code 48912

Ed. Code 48918

Ed. Code 49070

Ed. Code 60617

Gov. Code 3540-3549.3
Gov. Code 54950-54963

Federal
20 USC 1232g

Management Resources

Attorney General Opinion
Attorney General Opinion
Attorney General Opinion
Attorney General Opinion
Attorney General Opinion
Attorney General Opinion

Attorney General Opinion

Attorney General Publication

Court Decision

Court Decision

Court Decision

Court Decision

Court Decision

Court Decision

Public Comment

Closed sessions regarding suspensions

Notice of reelection decision; districts with 250 ADA or more
Governing board suspension

Rules governing expulsion procedures

Challenging student records

Meetings of governing board

Educational Employment Relations Act

The Ralph M. Brown Act

Description
Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA) of 1974

Description
98 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 41 (2015)

89 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 110 (2006)
59 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 532 (1976)
78 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 218 (1995)
86 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 210 (2003)
94 Ops.Cal. Atty.Gen. 82 (2011)

105 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 89 (2022)

The Brown Act: Open Meetings for Legislative Bodies, rev.
2003

Fowler v. City of Lafayette (2020) 45 Cal.App.5th 68

Bell v. Vista Unified School District (2001) 82 Cal.App. 4th
672

Fischer v. Los Angeles Unified School District (1999) 70
Cal.App. 4th 87

Furtado v. Sierra Community College District (1998) 68
Cal.App. 4th 876

Morrison v. Housing Authority of the City of Los Angeles
Board of Commissioners (2003) 107 Cal.App.4th 860

Roberts v. City of Palmdale (1993) 5 Cal.App. 4th 363

206



Court Decision

Court Decision

CSBA Publication
League of California Cities Publication

Website ks
Website

Website

Website >
Cross References
Code

0450

0450

1160

1220

1220

13121

13121

13123

13123
1312.3-E(1)
1312.3-E(2)
1340

1340

2120

2121

2140

3280

‘Sacramento Newspaper Guild v. Sacramento County Board of
Supervisors (1968) 263 Cal.App. 2d 41

San Diego Union v. City Council {1983) 146 Cal.App.3d 947

The Brown Act: School Boards and Open Meeting Laws, rev.
2023

Open and Public IV: A Guide to the Ralph M. Brown Act, rev.
July 2010

CSBA District and County Office of Education Legal Services
League of California Cities
California Attorney General's Office

CSBA

Description
Comprehensive Safety Plan

Comprehensive Safety Plan

Political Processes

Citizen Advisory Committees

Citizen Advisory Committees

Complaints Concerning District Employees
Complaints Cpncerning District Employees
Uniform Complaint Procedures

Uniform Complaint Procedures

’ Uniform Complaint Procedures

Uniform Complaint Procedures

Access To District Records

Access To D‘}strict Records

Superinter'ldent Recruitment And Selection
Superintendent's Contract

Evaluation Of The Superintendent ~
Sale Or Lease Of District-Owned Real Propethy

207




3280 Sale Or Lease Of District-Owned Real Property

3320 Claims And Actions Against The District

3515 Campus Security .

3515 Campus Security

3516 Emergencies And Disaster Preparedn?ss Plan

3512 Emergencies And Disaster Preparednéss Plan

3530 Risk Management/Insurance

3530 Risk Management/Insurance

3555 Nutrition Program Compliance

3555-E(1) Nutrition Program Compliance

4030 . Nondiscrimination In Employment

4030 Nondiscrimination In Employment

4112.6 Personnel Files <
4112.9 Employee Notifications

4112.9-E{1) Employee Notifications

4115 Evaluation/Supervision

4115 ' Evaluation/Supervision

4118 Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action m
4118 DisrhissallSuspension/ Disciplinary Action

4119.23 Unauthorized Release OFf Confidential/Privileged Information
4140 Bargaining Units ‘
4143 Negotiations/Consultation )
4143.1 Public Notice - Personnel Negotiations

41431 Public Notice - Personnel Negotiations

4144 Complaints: ’

4144 Complaints

4212.6 Personnel Files

42129 Employee Notifications

4212.9-E(1) Employee Notifications

208




4215 i
4218 '
4218 .
4219.23

4240

4243

4243.1

42431

4244

4244

43121

4312.6

4312.9

4312.9-E(1)

4315

4319.23

4340

4344

4344

5113.12

511342

5117

5117

5119

5125

5125

5125.3

5144

5144

* Evaluation/Supervision

Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action
Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action

Unauthorized Release Of Confidential/Privileged Information
Bargaining Units

Negotiations/Consultation

Public Notice - Personnel Negotiations

Public Notice - Personnel Negotiations

Complaints

Complaints

Contracts

Personnel Files

Employee Notifications

Employee Noftifications

Evaluation/ SIJpervision

Unauthorized Release Of Confidential/Privileged lnfﬁc‘:r‘l;‘laﬁon
Bargaining Units

Complaints

Complaints

Interdistrict Attendance

Interdistrict Attendance

Students Expelled From Other Districts
Student Records

Student Records

Challenging Student Records

Discipline

Discipline

209




51441
51441
5144.2

6162.5
6162.51
6162.51
9011

9121

9124

9130

9150

9270
9270-E(1)
9320

9322

9323
9323.2
9323.2-E(1)

.Suspension And Expulsion/Due Process

Suspension And Expulsion/Due Process

Suspension And Expulsion/Due Process (Students With

Disabilities)

Stud;.r:t Assessment

State Academic Achievement Tests

State Academic Achievement Tests

Disclosure Of Confidential/Privileged Information
President a
Attorney

Board (Eommittees

Student Boarf;l Members

Conflict Of Interest

Conflict ('Sf Interest

Meetings And Notices

Agenda/Meeting Materials

Meeting &Conduct

Actions By The Board

Acﬁon: By The Board

Ly

210



CSBA Sample District Policy Manual
CSBA Policy Management Console

Exhibit 9321-E(2): Closed Session Status: ADOPTED

Original Adopted Date: 07/01/2019 | Last Revised Date: 1211/01/20232025 | Last Reviewed
Date: 1211/01/20232025

REPORTSDISCLOSURES OF CLOSED SESSION ACTIONS

CSBA NOTE: Pursuant to Gevernment Cede 549577 wheneverWhenever the Governing Board
helds ameets in closed session, the Brown Act generally requires it mustto reconvene in open
session following the closed session to repert en its actiensdisclose, either orally or in writing, on l
each action taken in closed session and make ary diselosures required by lawthe vote, recusal, or |
absence on each action; see the accompanying Board Bylaw. The language offered below is
intended to follow the specific repertngdisclosure requirements found in law. Where the law does
not specifically address the reperting ofprovide disclosure requirements for a closed session item,
the following language is designed to inform the public of the Board's action without breaching
confidentiality. Language in parentheses is for informational purposes only and should not be
included as part of the general description of an item. The district may revise the following
descriptions to reflect district practice and should consult with CSBA's District and County Office of
Education Legal Services or district legal counsel, as appropriate.

Following a elosed sessien during any After the Governing Board meetingmeets in closed session,
the Board shall reconvene in open session to present;disclose, either orally or in writing, a repert of
any of the following actions taken during the closed session, as applicable:

Personnel Matters

CSBA NOTE: Government Code 54957.1 requires the Board to publiely repertdisclose any closed j.
session action taken to appoint, to employ, to dismiss, to accept the resignation of, or that I
otherwise affeetaffects the employment status of a district employee. The Attorney General, in 89 ‘
Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 110 (2006), opined that boards are not required to publiely repertdisclose an |
action taken in closed session to reject the proposed dismissal of an employee, as such a decision to
maintain the status quo does not constitute "an action taken to dismiss."

S Ll AT S-S

PUBLIC EMPLOYEE APPOINTMENT

Title:
(Specify position to be filled)

Appointment Made: (Yes; otherwise no action taken)

Ayes:

211




Nays:
Abstentions:
Absent:
Recused:
(Enter names of Board members)

PUBLIC EMPLOYMENT

Title:
(Specify position to be filled)

Decision to Employ: (Yes; otherwise no action taken)

Ayes:
Nays:
Abstentions:

Absent:

Recused:

(Enter names of Board members)

PUBLIC EMPLOYEE PERFORMANCE EVALUATION

Title:
(Specify title of employee being evaluated)

(If applicable) Board evaluated an employee in the above listed position.

PUBLIC EMPLOYEE DISCIPLINE/DISMISSAL/RELEASE

—_ - m- S

CSBA NOTE: Pursuant o Government Code 54957.1; generally requires the geperal reguirement is
thatdisclosure of any action taken in closed session to appoint, employ, dismiss, accept the
resignation of, or otherwise affect the employment status of a public employee in elosed session is
required be reported after closed session: Anydisclosed, Additionally, Government Code 54957.1
requires that any such repert is alse required tedisclosure identify the title of the position even, for
items where the #tertitle of the position was not listed in the agenda. However, Government Code
54957.7 provides for an exception such that the repertdisclosure of a dismissal or of the
nonrenewal of an employment contract mustis required to be deferred until the first publie meeting
following the exhaustion of administrative remedies, if any.

ﬁtle:
(Specify position affected)

(If applicable) Decision to Dismiss/Release: (Yes; otherwise no action taken)

Ayes:
Nays:

212



Abstentions:

Absent:

Recused:

(Enter names of Board members)

SPECIFIC COMPLAINT OR CHARGE AGAINST EMPLOYEE
(If applicable) Board heard/discussed a specific complaint or charge against an employee.

EMPLOYEE APPLICATION FOR EARLY WITHDRAWAL OF FUNDS IN DEFERRED
COMPENSATION PLAN

(If applicable) Board received/discussed an employee's application for early withdrawal of funds in
deferred compensation plan.

Negotiations/Collective Bargaining

(If applicable) Agreement Reached With:
(Specify Employee Organization)

Ayes:
Nays:
Abstentions:

Absent:

Recused:

(Enter names of Board members)

Matters Related to Students
STUDENT SUSPENSION/OTHER DISCIPLINARY ACTION

Tracking/ldentification Number:

(If applicable) Board heard/discussed this matter and will vote in open session as indicated in the
agenda.

STUDENT EXPULSION

Tracking/ldentification Number:

(If applicable) Board heard/discussed this matter and will vote in open session as indicated in the
agenda.

STUDENT GRADE CHANGE APPEAL

213




Tracking/ldentification Number:

(If applicable) Board heard/discussed this matter.
CONFIDENTIAL STUDENT MATTER

Action Under Consideration:

Tracking/ldentification Number:

(If applicable) Board heard/discussed this matter.
Security Matters

THREAT TO PUBLIC SERVICES OR FACILITIES
(If applicable) Board consulted with:

(Specify name of law enforcement agency and title of officer, or name of applicable agency representative
and title, with whom the Board will consult.)

DEVELOPMENT/APPROVAL OF TACTICAL RESPONSE PLAN
(If applicable) Board approved a Tactical Response Plan.

Ayes:
Nays:
Abstentions:

Absent:

Recused:

(Enter names of Board members)

Real Property Negotiations
CSBA NOTE: Pursuant to Government Code 54957.1, if the Board approves an agreement
concluding real estate negotiations pursuant to Government Code 54956.8 in closed session, it is
required to repertdisclose the vote and the substance of the agreement in open session at the
publiesame meeting during which the elesed sessien is held. However, if final approval rests with
the other party to the agreement, the Superintendent or designee is required, upon inquiry by any
person, to disclose the fact of that approval and the substance of the agreement as soon as the
other party or its agent has informed the district of its approval.

(If applicable) Boérd approved an agreement concluding real estate negotiations and the agreement
is final.

Substance Of Agreement:

214



Ayes:
Nays:
Abstentions:

Absent:

Recused:

(Enter names of Board members)

Anticipated Litigation/Initiation of Litigation

CSBA NOTE: Pursuant to Government Code 54957.1, if the Board approves an agreement resolving 1
litigation that is anticipated or litigation that the district was going to initiate, it is required to
reportdisclose the vote and the substance of the agreement in open session at the publiesame
meeting during which the elosed sessien is held. However, if final approval rests with the other
party to the agreement, the Superintendent or designee is required, upon inquiry by any person, to
disclose the fact of that approval and the substance of the agreement as soon as the other party or
its agent has informed the district of its approval.

CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL - ANTICIPATED LITIGATION

(If applicable) Board has given approval to legal counsel to defend the district against anticipated
litigation.

Ayes:
Nays:
Abstentions:

Absent:

Recused:

(Enter names of Board members)

or
(If applicable) Board approved an agreement concluding this matter and the agreement is final.

Adverse Party(s):

Substance Of Agreement:

Ayes:
Nays:
Abstentions:
Absent:
Recused:
(Enter names of Board members)

CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL - INITIATION OF LITIGATION

215




je 54¢ oinitiate |

CSBA NOTE: Pursuant to Government Code 54957 1, in the case of approval glven to initiate
litigation, the Board is only required to repertdisclose that it gave direction to initiate litigation.
However, the Superintendent or designee is required, upon inquiry by any person, to disclose
additional information regarding the action such as the name(s) of the defendant(s) once the
litigation is formally commenced, unless doing so would jeopardize the district's ability to effectuate |
service of process on one or more unserved parties or conclude existing settlement negotiations to
its advantage. !

(If applicable) Board has given approval to Iegal counsel to initiate litigation.

Ayes:
Nays:
Abstentions:
Absent:
Recused:
(Enter names of Board members)

or
(If applicable) Board approved an agreement concluding this matter and the agreement is final.

Adverse Party(s):

Substance Of Agreement:

Ayes:
Nays:
Abstentions:
Absent:
Recused:
(Enter names of Board members)

Existing Litigation

CSBA NOTE: Pursuant to Government Code 54957.1, if the Board approves an agreement resolving
existing litigation, it is required to repertdisclose the vote and the substance of the agreement in
open session at the publiesame meeting during which the closed session is held.. However, if final
approval rests with the other party to the agreement, the Superintendent or designee is required,
upon inquiry by any person, to disclose the fact of that approval and the substance of the
agreement as soon as the other party or its agent has informed the dlstrlct of its approval

CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL - EXISTING LITIGATION

(If applicable) Board has given approval to legal counsel to defend the district, seek or refrain from
seeking appellate review or relief, or to enter as an amicus curiae in this litigation.

216



Avyes:
Nays:
Abstentions:

Absent:

Recused:

(Enter names of Board members)

or
(If applicable) Board approved an agreement concluding this litigation and the agreement is final.

Substance Of Agreement:

Ayes:
Nays:
Abstentions:

Absent:

Recused:

(Enter names of Board members)

Tort, Public, or Workers' Compensation Liability
LIABILITY CLAIMS
(If applicable) Board approved disposing of this claim and that disposition is final.

Substance Of Claim, Including Amount Of Payment To Claimant:

Ayes:
Nays:
Abstentions:

Absent:

Recused:

(Enter names of Board members)

Joint Powers Agency Issues

INFORMATION FROM A JOINT POWERS AGENCY WITH DIRECT FINANCIAL OR LIABILITY
IMPLICATIONS FOR DISTRICT

(If applicable) Board heard/discussed this matter.
Review of Audit from State Auditor's Office

AUDIT BY CALIFORNIA STATE AUDITOR'S OFFICE

217




(If applicable) Board heard/discussed this matter.

Review of Assessment Instruments

REVIEW OF STUDENT ASSESSMENT INSTRUMENT

(If applicable) Board reviewed the assessment in compliance with the applicable board resolution.

Policy Reference UPDATE Service

Copyright 2025 by California School Boards Association, West Sacramento, California 95691

All rights reserved.

Policy Reference Disclaimer:

These references are not intended to be part of the policy itself, nor do they indicate the basis or authority for
the Governing Board to enact this policy. Instead, they are provided as additional resources for those

interested in the subject matter of the policy.
State
Ed. Code 35012

Ed. Code 35145

Ed. Code 35145.5

Ed. Code 35146

Ed. Code 44929.21

Ed. Code 48912

Ed. Code 48918

Ed. Code 49070

Ed. Code 60617

Gov. Code 3540-3549.3
Gov. Code 54950-54963

Federal
20USC 1232g

Management Resources
Attorney General Opinion

Attorney General Opinion
Attorney General Opinion
Attorney General Opinion

Attorney General Opinion

Description

Restorative justice

Public meetings

Public Comment

Closed sessions regarding suspensions

Notice of reelection decision; districts with 250 ADA or more
Governing board suspension

Rules governing expulsion procedures

Challenging student records

Meetings of governing board

Educational Employment Relations Act

The Ralph M. Brown Act

Description
Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA) of 1974

Description
98 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 41 (2015)

89 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 110 (2006)
59 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 532 (1976)
78 Ops.Cal Atty.Gen. 218 (1995)
86 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 210 (2003)

218



Attorney General Opinion 94 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 82 (2011)

Attorney General Opinion 105 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 89 (2022)

Attorney General Publication The Brown Act: Open Meetings for Legislative Bodies, rev.
2003

Court Decision Fowler v. City of Lafayette (2020) 45 Cal.App.5th 68

Court Decision Bell v. Vista Unified School District (2001) 82 Cal.App. 4th
672

Court Decision Fischer v. Los Angeles Unified School District (1999) 70
Cal App. 4th 87

Court Decision Furtado v. Sierra Community College District (1998) 68
Cal.App. 4th 876

Court Decision Morrison v. Housing Authority of the City of Los Angeles
Board of Commissioners (2003) 107 Cal.App.4th 860

Court Decision Roberts v. City of Palmdale (1993) 5 Cal.App. 4th 363

Court Decision Sacramento Newspaper Guild v. Sacramento County Board of

Supervisors (1968) 263 Cal.App. 2d 41

Court Decision San Diego Union v. City Council (1983) 146 Cal.App.3d 947

CSBA Publication The Brown Act: School Boards and Open Meeting Laws, rev.
2023

League of California Cities Publication =~ Open and Public IV: A Guide to the Ralph M. Brown Act, rev.
July 2010

Website CSBA District and County Office of Education Legal Services

Website League of California Cities

Website California Attorney General's Office

Website CSBA

Cross References

Code Description

0450 Comprehensive Safety Plan

0450 Comprehensive Safety Plan

1160 Political Processes

1220 Citizen Advisory Committees

219




1220
1312.1

» 13121
1312.3
1312.3
1312.3-E(1)
1312.3-E(2)
1540 ’
1340
2120
2121
2140
3280
3280

3320
3515
3515
3516
3516
3530
3530
3555
3555-E(1)
4030
4030
41126
41129
4112.9-E(1)
4115

]

Citizen Advisory Committees

Complaints Concerning District Employees
Complaints Concerning District Employees
Uniform Complaint Procedures

Uniform Complaint Procedures

Uniform Complaint Procedures

Uniform Complaint Procedures

Access To District Records

Access To District Records

Superintendent Recruitment And Selection
Superintendent's Contract

Evaluation C3f The Superintendent

Sale br Lease Of District-Owned Real Pr?perty

t:Sale Or Lease Of District-Owned Real Property

Claims And Actions Against The District
Campus Security

Campus Security

Eme'rgencies And Disaster Preparedness Plan
Emergenci:as And Disaster Preparedness Plan
Risk Management/Insurance

Risk Management/Insurance

Nutrition Program Compliance

Nutrition Program Compliance
Nondiscrimination In Employment
Nondiscrimination In Employment

Personnel Files

Employee Notifications

Employee Notifications

Evaluation/Supervision

220

~



4115
4118
4118
4119.23
4140
4143
4143.1
4143.1
4144
4144
4212.6
4212.9
4212.9-E(1)
4215
4218
4218
4219.23
4240
4243
4243.1
4243.1
4244
4244
4312.1
4312.6
4312.9
4312.9-E(1)
4315
4319.23

Evaluation/Supervision

Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action *
Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action

Unauthorized Release Of Confidential/Privileged Information
Bargaining Units

Negotiations/Consultation

Public Notice - Personnel Negotiations

Public Notice - Personnel Negotiations

Complaints

Complaints

Personnel Files

Employee Notifications

Employee Notifications {
Evaluation/Supervision

Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action
Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action

Unauthorized Release Of Confidential/Privileged Information
Bargaining Units

Negotiations/Consultation

Public Notice - Personnel Negotiations

Public Notice - Personnel Negotiations

Complaints

Complaints

Contracts # f
Personnel Files

Employee Notifications

Employee Notifications

Evaluation/Supervision

Unauthorized Release Of Confidential/Privileged Information

221




4340 Bargaining Units

4344 Complainis

4344 Complaints .

5117 Interdistrict Attendance

5117 . Interdistrict Attendance

5119 Students Expelled From Other Districts

5125 Student Records

5125 Student Records

5125.3 Challenging Student Records -

5144 Discipline

5144 Discipline

5144.1 Suspension And Expulsion/Due Process

5144.1 Suspension And Expulsion/Due Process

51442 Suspension And Expulsion/Due Process {Students With
E Disabilities)

6165.5 Stuc;ent Assessment

6162.51 State Academic Achievement Tests

6162.51 | State Academic Achievement Tests

9011 ) Disclosure Of Confidential/Privileged Information

9121 President

9124 Attorney )

9130 Board Committees

9150 Student Board Members

9270 Conflict Of Interest

9270-E(1} Conflict Of Interest

9320 Meetings A;wd Notices

9322 Agenda/Meeting Materials

9323 Meeting Conduct ‘

222




9323.2
9323.2-E(1)

Actions By The Board
Actions By The Board

223




Discussion/Action
\ Exhibit; V.9
Date: 1.13.26

SAN PASQUAL VALLEY UNIFIED SCHOQCL DISTRICT

TITLE:
Bylaw 9250: Remuneration, Reimbursement and Other Benefits

EXPLANATORY STATEMENT:

School Board Member Compensation. And finally, AB 1390 (Solache, D-Lakewood) will
increase the maximum compensation that eligible school board and county board members can
receive, provided they attend all meetings held. These increases are based on county classes (for
county board members) or prior year ADA (for school board members. The new range of pay for
eligible school board members will be $600 to $4,500 (up from $120 to $1,500). In sponsoring
the bill, the California School Boards Association argued that the pay thresholds haven’t been
changed in 40 years, and given the time and trave]l commitment requirements of participating on
a governing board, the pay increase was important and long-overdue. The policy is also aimed at
increasing the pooliof candidates who can consider running for a board position. Nothing in the
bill changes a county or school board’s ability to raise compensation rates 5% annually above
those prescribed in law, nor does it require board members be compensated.

In a school district in which the average daily attendance for the prior school year was 1,000 or
less, but more than 150, each regular member of the city board of education or the governing
board of the school district who attends all meetings held may receive as compensation for the
regular member’s services a sum not to exceed six hundred dollars ($600) in any month.

STAFF MEMBERS INVOLVED .

Board members

FISCAL IMPACT:

Up to $36,000 annually (3600 x 12 =$7,200 x 5 board members $36,000)

SOURCE OF FUNDING:

Budgeted - General

RECOMMENDED ACTION:

Information and discussion only. Action item will appear in January as needed.

PREPARED AND SUBMITTED BY: .

Karen Medel, Executive Assistant to the Superintendent

REVIEWED BY:

Ricardo Cordero, M.Ed. Superintendent




iy EGISCAN

Bill Text: CA AB1390 | 2025-2026 | Regular Session | Chaptered
California Assembly Bill 1390

Bitl Title: Public school governance: board member compensation.
Spectrum: Partisan Bill (Democrat 5)
Status: (Passed) 2025-10-11 - Chaptered by Secretary of State - Chapter 639, Statutes of 2025. [AB1390 Detail]

Download: California-2025-AB1390-Chaptered.html

Assembly Bill No. 1390
CHAPTER 639 -

-

An act to amend Sectlons 1090 and 35120 of the Education Code, relating to public school governance.

[ Approved by Governor October 11, 2025. Filed with Secretary of State October 11, 2025. ]

. LEGISLATIVE COUNSEL'S DIGEST

AB 1390, Sclache. Public school governance: board member compensation.

Existing law establishes county boards of education and schoo! districts throughout the state to administer the public elementary and
secondary schools within their respective jurisdictions. Existing law requires county boards of education and the governing board of
each school district to prescribe and enforce rules not inconsistent with state law for thefr own government. Existing law authorizes the
members of city or county boards of education or the governing boards of school districts to recelve compensation not to exceed a
specified amount between $60 and $1,500 per month, based on the average daily attendance for the prior school year in the
jurisdiction of the governing board, as provided.

This bill would revise and recast provisions related to the compensation of members of city or county boards of education and the
governing boards of school districts by increasing the authorized compensation to instead not exceed a specified amount between $600
and $4,500 per month, based on the average dally attendance for the prior school year In the jurisdiction of the governing board for
the prior school year, as provided.

Digest Key

Vote: majority Appropriation: no Fiscal Committee: ne Local Program: no

1

Bill Text
THE PEOPLE OF THE STA1\'E OF CALIFORNIA DO ENACT AS FOLLOWS:'

SECTION 1. Section 1090 of the Education Code is amended to read:

=

1090. {a} The board of supervisors may allow, as compensation, to each regular member of the county board of education a sum not
to exceed the following amounts:

(1) In any class one county, each regular member of the county board of education who actually attends all meetings held may
receive as’compensation for the regular member’s services a sum not to exceed three thousand dollars ($3,000) per month.

- S

(2) In any class two county, each regular member of the county board of education who actually attends all meetings held may
recelve as compensation for the regular member's services a sum not to exceed two thousand dollars ($2,000) per month.

(3) In any class three county, each regular member of the county board of education who actually attends all meetings held may
receive as’compensation for the regular member’s services 2 sum not to exceed one thousand five hundred dollars ($1,500) per




month.

*
{4) In any class four county, each regular member of the county board of education who actually attends all meetings held may
receive as compensation for the regular member’'s services a sum not to exceed one thousand dollars ($1,000) per month.

{5) In any class five, class six, class seven, or class eight county, each regular member of the county board of education who actually
attends all meetings held may receive as compensation for the regular member's services a sum not to exceed eight hundred doflars
{$800) per month.

(b) Any regular member or pupll member who does not attend all meetings held in any month may receive as compensation for the
regular member's or pupll member's services, an amount not greater than the maximum amount allowed by subdivision (a) or
paragraph (2) of subdivision (h), as applicable, divided by the number of meetings held, and multiplied by the number of meetings
actually attended.

(c) The amount of compensaticn shall be determined by the county board of supervisors, of, in a county having a fiscally independent
county board of education, by the county board of education.

(d) A pupil member or regular member of a county board of education may be paid for any meeting for which the member Is absent if
the board by resolution duly adopted and included within its minutes finds that at the time of the meeting the member was performing
services outside the meeting on behalf of the beard, the member was il or on jury duty, or the absence was due to a hardship deemed
acceptable by the board.

{e) There may also be allowed to each regular member who uses a privately owned automobile in the discharge of necessary official
duties as 2 member of the county board of education, the same amount as allowed by any county official in the performance of the
county official’s dutles, The mileage rate allowed In this section shall be based on the total mileage claimed in a calendar month.

(f) For purposes of this sectlon, the classification of counties shall be determined pursuant to Section 1205.

(g} On an annual basis, the county board of education may increase the compensation of individual regular members of the board
beyond the limits delineated in this section, in an amount not to exceed 5 percent based on the present monthly rate of compensation.
Any increase made pursuant to this section shall be effective upon approval by the county board of education. This action may be
rejected by a majority of the voters in that county voting in a referendum established for that purpose, as prescribed by Chapter 2
(comtmencing with Section 9100) of Divislon 9 of the Elections Code.

(h) The county board of education may award a pupil member either or both of the following:
(1) Elective course credit based on the number of equivalent daily instructional minutes for the pupll member's services provided.
(2) Monthly financial compensation as determined by the county board of education.

(1) As used Iin this section, the following definitions apply:
(1) *Pupil member” means a pupll board member appointed pursuant to subdivision (b) of Section 1000.

(2) "Regular member” means a board member elected or selected pursuant to subdivision (a) of Section 1000.
SEC. 2. section 35120 of the Education Code Is amended to read:

35120. (a) (1) In a school district in which the average daily attendance for the. prior school year exceeded 250,000, each regular
member of the governing board of the school district who attends all meetings held may recelve as compensation for the regular
member’s services a salary as set forth by the local city charter law or applicable rules and regulations and as determined by a local
compensation review committee.

(2) In a school district that is not located In a city and county, and in which the average daily attendance for the prior school year
exceeded 60,000, the governing board may prescribe, as compensation for the services of each regular member of the board who
attends all meetings held, a sum not to exceed four thousand five hundred dollars ($4,500) in any month.

{3) In a schoo! district in which the average dally attendance for the prior school year was 60,000 or less, but mere than 25,000,
each regular member of the city board of education or the governing board of the school district who attends all meetings held may
recelve as compensation for the regular member’s services a sum not to exceed three thousand dollars ($3,000) in any month.

(4) In a schoo! district in which the average daily attendance for the prior school year was 25 000 or less, but more than 10,000,
each regular member of the clty board of education or the governing board of the school district who attends all meetings held may
receive as compensation for the regular member’s services a sum not fo exceed two thousand dollars ($2,000) In any month.

{5) In a school district in which the average daily attendance for the prior school year was 10,000 or less, but more than 1,000, each
regular member of the city board of education or the governing board of the schoo! district who attends all meetings held may
receive as compensation for the regular member’s services a sum not to exceed one thousand two hundred dollars ($1,200) In any
month.

(6) In a school district in which the average daily attendance for the prior school year was 1,000 or less, each regular member of the
city board of education or the governing board of the school district who attends all meetings held may receive as compensation for
the regular member's services a sum not to exceed six hundred dollars ($600) in any month.




(7) A regular member or pupil member who does not attend all meetings held in any month may receive, as compensation for the
regular member’s or pupil member’s services, an amount not greater than the maximum amount allowed by this subdivision or
paragraph (2) of subdivision (f), as applicable, divided by the number of meetings held and muitiplied by the number of meetings
attended.

{8) For purposes of providing compensation pursuant to paragraphs (1) to (6), Inclusive, average dally attendance for the prior
school year may be increased by a school district’s percentage of excused absences reported for the 1996-97 fiscal year.

(b) The compensation of regular members of the governing board of a school district newly organized or reorganized shall be governed
by subdivision (a). For this purpose, the total average daily attendance in all of the schools of the school district in the school year in
which the organization or reorganization became effective shall be considered the average daily attendance in the school district for the
prior school year. ’

1
(c) A pupil member or regular member may be paid for any meeting when absent if the board, by resolution duly adopted and included
in its rinutes, finds that at the time of the meeting the member is performing services ocutside the meeting for the school district or
‘districts, the member was il or on jury duty, or the absence was due to a hardship considered acceptable by the board.

{d} Compensation provided pursuant to this section shall be a charge against the funds of the school district. If the city board of
education or the governing board of the school district is the governing board of mare than one school district, the compensation shall
be charged against and paid by the respective school districts in the same proportion as the salary of the city superintendent of schools
is charged against them. Compensaticn shall be reduced by an amount equal to any salary or compensation paid to the members of
the city board of education from any funds of the city. s

(e) On an annual basis, the governing board may increase the compensation of regular members beyond the limits delineated In this
section, in an amount.not to exceed 5 percent based on the present monthly rate of compensation. An increase made pursuant to this
subdivision shall be effective upon approval by the governing board,

(f) The goverglng board of a school district may award a pupll member either or both of the following: ‘
{1) Elective course credit based on the number of equivalent daily instructional minutes for the pupil mem'r:n'er’s services provided.
{2) Monthly financiai compensation as determined by the governing board.

{g) As used In this section, the following definitions apply:
{1) “Pupil member” means a puplil board member appointed pursuant to subdivlsi;)n (d) of Sect‘ion 35012,

{2) "Regular member” means a board member elected or selected pursuant to subdivisions (a) to (c), inclusive, of Section 35012.



Board Policy Manual
San Pasqual Valley Unified School
‘ _ District

Bylaw 9250: Remuneration, Relinbursement Ard Other Benefits Status: ADOP];ED i

Criginal Adopted Date: 01/17/2017 | Last Revised Date: 04/15/2025 | Last Reviewed Date: 04/15/2025

L]

Compensation

Each member of the Board of Trustees may receive the maximum monthly compensation as provided for in
Education Code 35120, '

On an annual basis, the Board may increase the compensation of Board members beyond the limit delineated in
Education Code 35120 in an amount not to exceed five percent based on the present monihly rate of
compensation. (Education Code 35120)

Board members are not required to accept payment for meetings attended.

Any member who does not attend all Beard meetings during the month is eligible to receive anly a percentage of the
monthly compensation equal to the percentage of meetings he/she attended, unless otherwise authorized by the
Board in accordance with law. (Education Code 35120}

Members may be paid for meetings missed when the Board, by Board action and included in the minutes, finds that
they were, at the time of the meeting, performing services outside the meeting for the school district, were ill or on
jury duty, or the absence was duty to a hardship deemed acceptable by the Board. (Education Code 35120©)
[Chapter 1148, Stats, 1996, effective 1/1/97]

Student Board members shall receive no compensation for meetings attended. (Education Code 35012)
Reimbursement of Expenses

Board members shall be reimbursed for actual and necessary expenses incurred when performing authorized services
for the district. Expenses for travel, telephone, business meals, or other authorized purposes shall be in accordance

with policies established for district personnel and at the same rate of reimbursement.
)

Board members shall be reimbursed for travel expenses incurred when performing services directed by the Board.
(Education Code 35044)

Authorized purposes may include, but are not limited to, attendance at educational seminars or conferences designed
to improve Board members' skills and knowledge; participation in regional, state, or national organizations whose
activities affect the district's interests; attendance at district or community events; and meetings with state or federal
officials on issues of cammunity concern.

Personal expenses shall be the responsibility of individual Board members, Personal expenses include, but are not
limited to, the personal portion of any trip, tips or gratuities, alcohol, entertainment, laundry, expenses of any family
member who is accompanying the Board member on district-related business, personal use of an automobile, and
personal losses and traffic violation fees incurred while on district business.

Any questions regarding the propriety of a particular type of expense should be resalved by the Superintendent or
designee before the expense is incurred.

Health and Welfare Beneflts for Current Board Members
Board members may participate in the health and welfare benefits program provided for district employees.

Health and welfare benefits for Board members shall be no greater than that received by the disttict's nonsafety
employees with the most generous schedule of benefits. {Government Code 53208.5)

Board members who elect to participate shall pay the full cost of premiums.
Cell Phone

The Board President will receive a district-owned cell phone for district business use, When the board president
changes, the phone will be returned to the district and re-issued to the new board president. Each president will be




required to sign an equipment check out form 9250(E). The Board President will be responsible for the cost of
damage to the district-issued cell phone or if the cell phone is lost.




Discussion/Action Item
Exhibit: V.10
Date: 1.13.26

SAN PASQUAL VALLEY UNIFIED SCHOQL DISTRICT

TITLE:

Letter of Agreement to engage SiteloglQ for the development of facility improvements, energy
conservation measures, renewable energy solutions, and energy management services.

EXPLANATORY STATEMENT:

SitelogIQ is a leading Energy Services Company (ESCO) specializing in the design, construction, and
management of comprehensive facilities and energy solutions tailored for K~12 school districts. Their
approach integrates strategic planning, implementation, funding acquisition, and long-term performance
management to address key areas such as:

- Energy efficiency

- Renewable energy generation and storage

» Indoor air quality

- Operational optimization
* Sustainability and climate action goals

Sitelogi(Q’s projects are self-funded, meaning the energy savings will exceed the cost of the
improvements, resulting in a net-positive annual impact to the District’s General Fund.

Community Engagement:
Beyond infrastructure, SiteloglQ) incorporates staff, student, and cornmunity engagement into their
programs—bringing energy and sustainability education to life across the District.

Local Expertise:
SiteloglQ is a recognized leader in California, including the Imperial Valley, and will serve San Pasqual
Valley Unified School District through their dedicated Southern California team.

STAFF MEMBERS INVOLVED:

Richard Cordero, Superintendent

FISCAL IMPACT:

None ,

SOURCE OF FUNDING:

N/A

RECOMMENDED ACTION:

Superintendent recommends that the Board approve the Letter of Agreement to engage SiteloglQ for the
development of facility improvements, energy conservation measures, renewable energy solutions, and
energy management services.

PREPARED AND SUBMITTED BY:

Karen Medel, Executive Assistant to the Superintendent

REVIEWED BY:

Richard Cordero, M.Ed.,Superintendent



sitelogiQ

Efficiency Powered by

January 6, 2026

Mr. Richard Cordero

Superintendent

San Pasqual Valley Unified School District
676 Base Line Rd.

‘Winterhaven, CA 92283 .*

RE:  Facility Solution Project Feasibility and Letter of Agreement (LOA)
Dear Mr, Cordero:

This Letter of Agreement (LOA) is intended to briefly describe the manner in which
SiteloglQ and San Pasqual Valley Unified School District will work together during
the project development process, as well as the obligations of each party with
respect to the development process.

Client Identification: San Pasqual Valley Unified School District

Facility Locations:

District Office

San Pasqual Valley High Valley School
San Pasqual Valley Middle School

San Pasqual Valley Elementary School

Area of Focus:

SiteloglQ will provide a proposal and Facility Solution agreement for the
implementation of facility improvements energy conservation, energy generation,
and/or energy management services.

Scope of Services:

A. SiteloglQ will conduct a site visit to the Facilities to perform a physical audit
and collect data. The Client will cooperate and collaborate with SiteloglQ
during this phase by providing copies of requested data, including (if
available): Site and system drawings, historical operating data produced or
recorded by existing controls or meters, manual logs, and any other data that
may be pertinent to this evaluation.

B. Client will also make operational personnel available at reasonable times for
in-person and telephone interviews with SiteloglQ to answer questions about
existing facilities conditions, operating profile and existing equipment

operation.
CA Office: 1651 Response Rd, Ste 300, Sacramento, CA 95815
Phone: (916) 914-1929
www.sitelogig.com O CA License #1054171




h)

sitelogiQ

Efficiency Powered by

C. Where operational data is not available to support the analysis, SitelogiQ will
utilize standard engineering practices and assumptions to.provide a
conservative analysis on the potential energy savings from installing the
energy conservation measures.

D. SiteloglQ will also analyze the potential for energy generation measures.

E. SiteloglQ wili recommend energy management and on-going monitoring
services. .

F. For each of the targeted Energy Conservation Measures (ECMs), estimated
{projected) operating costs will be calculated and then compared to existing
operating costs. Existing conditions will be evaluated using data-logged or
stipulated and mutually agreed operational schedules.

G. SiteiogIQ will prepare a return on investment analysis (consistent with the
client’'s preferred evaluation methods based on agreed upon Economic
Criteria noted below).

H. SiteloglQ will provide budgetary construction costs estimates and a summary
Scope of Work for all recommended ECMs. Cost estimates will represent a
“turnkey” solution. Refer to Attachment A for the list of discussed potential
ECM's to be evaluated.

1. The results will be presented to client as a recommended Scope of Work and
a financial proforma (such as a Cash Flow} which will include costs and energy
savings for the next 30 years with escalatiohn of no more than 6% and including
future maintenance & repair costs. As a result, True Cost of Ownership is
presented to the client for their review and consideration.

-

Clarification on SiteloglQ’s Obligations: ~

Consistent with California Government Code Section 1097.6, SiteloglQ's duties and
services under this LOA shall not include preparing or assisting the Client with any
portion of the Client's preparation of a request for proposals, request for
qualifications, or any other solicitation regarding a subsequent or additional contract
with the Client. The Client enters this LOA shall at all times retain responsibility for
public contracting, including with respect to any subsequent phase of the project(s}
proposed under this LOA. SiteloglQ's participation in the planning, discussions, or
drawing of project plans or specifications shall be limited to conceptual, preliminary,
or initial plans or specifications. SiteloglQ shall cocoperate with the public entity to
ensure that all potential participants in a future project proposed under this LOA

2




sitelog

Efficiency Powered by

e
I\Q
nleligence

have access to the same information, including all conceptual, preliminary, or initial
plans or specifications prepared by SiteloglQ pursuant to this LOA,

Client Responsibilities:

In order for SiteloglQ to provide the services described in this LOA, the Client agrees
to provide (or cause its energy suppliers to provide) SiteloglQ with the data
requested in Attachment B. In addition, Client shall execute Attachment C (“Utility
Authorization Form”) to provide access to Client's Utility account information.
Development Efforts:

Client acknowledges that SiteloglQ will incur considerable expense in developing
the Project. This expense includes the cost to by SiteloglQ's development team, the
cost to visit the Site, and the cost to prepare the financial proforma. SiteloglQ is
acting hereunder as an independent contractor and not as an agent or employee of
the Client. SiteloglQ shall not represent or otherwise hold out itself or any of its
directors, officers, partners, employees, or agents to be an agent or employee of the
Client.

Ownership of Work:
All work products, including aill proforma’s, schedules, and scope of work
documentation provided by SiteloglQ, will only become the property of the Client
upon execution of a binding, irrevocable contract between the Client and SiteloglQ
for the implementation of the ECMs proposed by SiteloglQ. Notwithstanding the
foregoing, to the extent that any tangible work documentation produced by
SiteloglQ contains SiteloglQ's pre-eXisting materials {including but not limited to
templates, forms, and other SiteloglQ -created materials), SitelogiQ will remain the
sole and exclusive owner of all such pre-existing materials.
Interconnection Application:
If applicable, SiteloglQ may request important Distribution System information from
the local utility regarding planned solar interconnection points, prior to submitting
an Interconnection Application during construction of a Solar Generation PV Array.
The purpose is to avoid or address early in the design phase any existing utility
infrastructure that may prohibit or delay the construction of a Solar Generation PV
Array at any of the listed locations below.

« District Office

« San Pasqual Valley High Valley School

« San Pasqual Valley Middie School

» San Pasqual Valley Elementary School



sitelogiq

Efficiency Powered by

Development Fee: r . .
SiteloglQ will develop the Project for the firm, fixed fee/rate as listed below:

1. Fee/Rate of: $15,000 Fixed Fee.

In the event that the Client enters into a contract with SiteloglQ for the
implementation of the ECMs within 60 days after presenting the Proposal, then
SitelogiQ's cost to develop the Proposal will be waived. If the Client enters into a
contract with SiteloglQ at a later date, the Development Fee paid by the Client will
be credited toward the project’s total implementation cost. '

If SiteloglQ cannot meet the Economic Criteria Client will not compensate SiteloglQ
for its LOA fee. :

Econormic Criteria: =

The Client has represented to SiteloglQ that Client agrees to move forward with the
project if the project is shown to reduce the operational expenses at the site over the
useful life of the project. The main financial objectives of the project are as follows:

Provide a self-funded program, which pays for itself through expense
reductions and minimizes the Client's contribution and meets the
requirements of California Government Code 4217.10 et seq.

-
i s

Terms & Conditions:: ! ' :

Contractor is acting hereunder as an independent contractor and not as an agent or
employee of the Customer. The Contractor shall not represent or otherwise hold out
itself or any of its directors, officers, partners, employees, or agents to be an agent or
employee of the Customer. ’

This LOA shall be construed and enforced in accordance with the Iaws of the State
of California without regard to principles of conflicts of law. -

If you agree with the provisions set forth in this LOA, kindly sign and date the LOA
below and return one fully-executed copy to my attention. Thank you again for
providing SiteloglQ with the opportunity to work on this important initiative.




Wb

sitclogiQ

Efficiency Powered by

Acceptance of Letter of Agreement
This agreement is between San Pasqual Valley Unified School District
and SiteloglQ, Inc.

San Pasqual Valley Unified School SiteloglQ

District , <
Name: Name:

Title: Title:

Date: Date:



Ve

sitclogiQ

Efficiency Powered by

Attachment A:

Potential Facility Improvement, Energy Conservation, Energy Generation,

NUINIRENIES

and Energy Management Measures to be considered:

Solar Generation and Energy Storage *

EV Charging Infrastructure

HVAC Mechanical Equipment

Building/Mechanical Controls

Interior and Exterior Lighting Retrofits, including Lighting Controls
Utility Monitoring and Ongoing Energy Management

L)




Discussion/Action Item
Exhibit; V.10
Date: 1.13.26

SAN PASQUAL VALLEY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

TITLE:
The Superintendent recommends approval of Resolution Regarding Board Stipends

EXPLANATORY STATEMENT:

Per Education Code and San Pasqual Valley Unified School Board Bylaw 9250, paragraph two
(2): “Members may be paid for meetings missed when the Board, by Board action and included
in the minutes, finds that they were, at the time of the meeting, performing services outside the
meeting for the school district, were ill or on jury duty, or the absence was due to a hardship
deemed acceptable by the Board. (Education Code 35120(c)) [Chapter 1148, Stats. 1996,
effective 1/1/97]”

STAFF MEMBERS INVOLVED:
« Board members absent from meeting .

FISCAL IMPACT:

Budgeted - General

SOURCE OF FUNDING:

N/A

RECOMMENDED ACTION:

Approve Resolution for Board Members Missing January Meetings

PREPARED AND SUBMITTED BY:

Karen Medel, Executive Assistant to the Superintendent

REVIEWED BY:

Richard Cordero, M.Ed., Superintendent



SAN PASQUAL VALLEY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
' BOARD OF EDUCATION

I

RESOLUTION REGARDING BOARD STIPENDS January 2026

WHEREAS, Education Code section 35120 and Board Bylaw 9250 of the San Pasqual Valley
Unified School District (“District””) anthorize Board members to be paid stipends for meetings they
were unable to attend due to illness, hardship or other duties such as jury duty or performing duties or
services for the District at the time of a Board meeting; and

WHEREAS, the Board finds that the Board members may be paid, or retain, stipends for
meetings they were unable to attend as stated in Attachment A.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the San Pasqual Valley Unified School
District Board of Education which finds and determines as follows:

1. Adopts the foregoing recitals as true and correct;

2. Authorizes stipends for meetings the Board members were unable to attend pursuant to
Attachment A; and

3. Incorporates herein by reference Attachment A.

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the San Pasqual Valley Unified School District Board of Education on
this 13th day of January, 2026 by the following vote:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSTAIN:
ABSENT:

ATTESTED TO: .

Richard Cordero, M.Ed. _ Cody Hartt
Secretary of the Board of Education President of the Board of Education




ATTACHMENT A
RESOLUTION BOARD
STIPENDS FOR January 2026

Absence Due to Other Duties: Stipends are authorized to the following Board
member(s) due to:

o Illness

0 Hardship

o Other duties such as jury duty or performing duties or services for the
District at the time of a Board meeting -






